
                            
 

TOWN OF MOUNTAIN VILLAGE 
TOWN COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING 

THURSDAY FEBRUARY 15, 2018, 8:30 AM 
2nd FLOOR CONFERENCE ROOM, MOUNTAIN VILLAGE TOWN HALL 

455 MOUNTAIN VILLAGE BLVD, MOUNTAIN VILLAGE, COLORADO 
AGENDA 

 Time Min Presenter Type  

1.  8:30    Call to Order 

2.  8:30 5   Public Comment on Non-Agenda Items 

3.  8:35 90 Reed/Mahoney Legal 
Executive Session for the Purpose of Receiving Legal Advice Pursuant to 
C.R.S. 24-6-402(b), and for the Purpose of Negotiations Pursuant to C.R.S. 
24-6-402(4)e 

4.  10:05 5 Break   

5.  10:10 15 Kennefick Informational Overview of AV Upgrade to Council Chambers 

6.  10:25 5 Johnston Action Consideration of Approval of Minutes of the January 18, 2017 Regular 
Council Meeting 

7.  10:30 15 Abbott 
Action 

Legislative 
First Reading, Setting of a Public Hearing and Council Vote on an Ordinance 
Opting Out of Signature Verification in Municipal Elections 

8.  10:45 15 
Mahoney 

Kunz 
Montgomery 

Action Consideration of a Policy for Employee Unit Sales Provisions and Lottery 
Priority 

9.  11:00 45 Swain 
Informational 

Action 
Work Session 

Finance: 
a. Presentation of the January 31, 2017 Business & Government 

Activity Report (BAGAR)  
b. December 31, 2017 Financials 
c. Consideration and Ratification of the 2019 Budget Process 
d. Short Term Rentals Licensing and Taxation Compliance 

10.  11:45 20 Starr 
Action 

Legislative 
Quasi-Judicial 

First Reading, Setting of a Public Hearing and Council Vote on an 
Ordinance to Consider a Rezone and Density Transfer Application to 
Transfer Density from Lot 628B into the Density Bank per Community 
Development Code Sections 17.4.9 & 17.4.10 

 12:05 30   Lunch  

11.  12:35 45 
Mahoney 

Reed 
Action 

 
Consideration of a Standstill Agreement Regarding Lots126R and 152R  

12.  1:20 5 Haynes 
Action 

Legislative 
Quasi-Judicial 

Second Reading, Public Hearing and Council Vote on an Ordinance 
Approving: (1) Rezone Lot 304 and (2) Transfer Density of Four (4) Person 
Equivalents of Single Family Density From Lot 304 into the Density Bank 
pursuant to Community Development Code Sections 17.4.9 & 17.4.10 

13.  1:25 10 Kee 
Action 

Legislative 
 

First Reading, Setting of a Public Hearing and Council Vote on an 
Ordinance Approving a Community Development Code (CDC) Amendment 
to Section 17.7.7 Building Board of Appeals to Make Minor and Conforming 
Amendments Pursuant to CDC Section 17.1.7 Amendments to the 
Community Development Code 

14.  1:35 30 Haynes 
Action 

Legislative 

Consideration of Approval of a Resolution Regarding a Comprehensive 
Plan Amendment Regarding Parcel M, Lot 30, Which Consists of Lot 30 
and a Portion of the Adjacent Open Space Parcel OS1AR-3 Within the 
Village Center Subarea and Other Associated Amendments to Accomplish 
the Foregoing Pursuant to Community Development Code Section 17.1.5 
Town Comprehensive Plan 

15.  2:05 20 Haynes Informational Town Hall Subarea -  Village Court Apartments Expansion Progress 
Update 

16.  2:25 20 Loebe Action Consideration of Adopting the Parking Committee’s Recommendation to 
Permanently Eliminate Permit Parking on Upper Mountain Village 

1



 
 
 
 

Please note that times are approximate and subject to change. 
jk 

02/7/18 
Individuals with disabilities needing auxiliary aid(s) may request assistance by contacting Town Hall at 970-369-6429 or email: 
mvclerk@mtnvillage.org.   A minimum advance notice of 48 hours is required so arrangements can be made to locate requested auxiliary 

aid(s) 

Boulevard 

17.  2:45 20 
Anderson 

Lauterbach 
Action 

Consideration of Approval of a Request for Funding from the Telluride 
Mountain Club to Implement Proposed Trails Sustainability Plan with Funds 
to Come From Existing Recreation/Trails Budget 

18.  3:05 15 Tuddenham Action Consideration of Approval of a Resolution Supporting Legislation to Protect 
the Environment and Reduce Public Liabilities Relative to Mining Activities  

19.  3:20 30 
Council 

Members 
& Staff 

Informational 
 

Council Boards and Commissions Updates: 
a. San Miguel Watershed Coalition-Starr     
b. Colorado Flights Alliance -Jansen 
c. Transportation & Parking – MacIntire/Benitez 
d. Budget & Finance Committee –Caton/Gilbride 
e.         Gondola Committee – Caton/Berry 
f.          Colorado Communities for Climate Action – Berry 
g. San Miguel Authority for Regional Transportation (SMART)- 
            Benitez/Caton/Binder                                                                                                                                                                                                 
h. Eco Action Partners – Berry/Binder 
i. Telluride Historical Museum- Berry 
j.          Telluride Conference Center –MacIntire/Gilbride 
k.         Alliance for Inclusion – Berry 
l.          Green Team Committee- Berry/MacIntire 

   m.         Telluride Tourism Board-Jansen 
    n.         Mayor’s Update - Benitez 

20.  3:50 20 Kunz 
Montgomery 

Informational 
Action 

Staff Reports:  
a. Human Resources 

1. Consideration of Approval of the 2018 Employee Handbook 
b. Town Manager 

21.  4:10 5 Kennefick 
 Other Business: 

1. Notification of Design Review Board Seats Expiring with 
Appointments to be Made in March as per Policy 

22.  4:15    Adjourn 

2



 
TOWN OF MOUNTAIN VILLAGE 

MINUTES OF THE JANUARY 18, 2018 
REGULAR TOWN COUNCIL MEETING   DRAFT     

         AGENDA ITEM #6 
                             

 
The meeting of the Town Council was called to order by Mayor Laila Benitez at 8:33 a.m. on Thursday, 
January 18, 2018 in the Mountain Village Town Hall, 455 Mountain Village Boulevard, Mountain Village, 
Colorado. 
 
Attendance: 
The following Town Council members were present and acting: 
Laila Benitez, Mayor 
Dan Caton, Mayor Pro Tem 
Dan Jansen  
Jack Gilbride 
Bruce MacIntire 
Patrick Berry  
Natalie Binder 

 
Also in attendance were: 
Kim Montgomery, Town Manager          
Jackie Kennefick, Director of Administration/Town Clerk   Kenny Maenpa 
Susan Johnston, Deputy Town Clerk      Elizabeth Stuffings 
Christina Lambert, Administrative Services Coordinator   Bill Jensen 
David Reed, Town Attorney        Anton Benitez 
Jim Mahoney, Assistant Town Attorney     John Burchmore 
Sarah Abbott, Associate Town Attorney     Jolana Vanek 
Chris Broady, Police Chief       Robert Stenhammer   
Kevin Swain, Finance Director       Marti Prohaska 
Julie Vergari, Chief Accountant      Tim Johnson 
Michelle Haynes, Director of Planning & Development Services  Carly Shaw 
Randy Kee, Building Official       Meghan Pittenger 
Sam Starr, Planner        Bill Jensen  
Bill Kight, Marketing & Business Development Director    Jonathan Greenspan   
Sue Kunz, Director of Human Resources      
Finn Kjome, Director of Public Works      
Steven LeHane, Director of Cable & Broadband Services     
 
Public Comment on Non-Agenda Items (2) 
There was no public comment.   
 
Executive Session for the Purpose of Receiving Legal Advice Pursuant to C.R.S. 24-6-402(b), and for 
the Purpose of Negotiations Pursuant to C.R.S. 24-6-402(4)e (3) 
On a MOTION by Jack Gilbride and seconded by Bruce MacIntire, Council voted unanimously to enter 
into Executive Session for the purpose of receiving legal advice pursuant to C.R.S. 24-6-402(b), and for the 
purpose of negotiations pursuant to C.R.S. 24-6-402(4)e at 8:35 a.m.   
 
Council returned to regular session at 9:50 a.m. 
 
Council took a break from: 9:50 a.m. to 10:00 a.m. (4) 
 
 

3



 
Consideration of Approval of Minutes of the December 14, 2017 Regular Council Meeting (5) 
Deputy Town Clerk Susan Johnston presented. On a MOTION by Jack Gilbride and seconded by Dan 
Caton, Council voted unanimously to approve the December 14, 2017 meeting minutes as presented. 

 
Consideration of a Resolution Designating Posting Locations for the Town’s Ordinances and Public 
Notices (6) 
On a MOTION by Patrick Berry and seconded by Jack Gilbride, Council voted unanimously to adopt a 
Resolution designating posting locations for the Town’s Ordinances and Public Notices as presented.  
 
Liquor Licensing Authority: 
Consideration of Re-certification of the Mountain Village Promotional Association and Common 
Consumption Area (7) 
Susan Johnston presented.  Patrick Berry recused himself due to his employment with TSG who is a member 
of the Promotional Association. Council discussion ensued.  On a MOTION by Dan Caton and seconded 
by Bruce MacIntire, Council voted unanimously (with Patrick Berry recused) to approve the re-certification 
of the Mountain Village Promotional Association and Common Consumption Area as presented. 
 
TRAA (Telluride Regional Airport Authority) Bi-Annual Report (8) 
Airport Manager Kenny Maenpa presented the report stating that the following capital improvements were 
completed in 2017: 

• Aircraft parking apron rehabilitation 
• Commercial Terminal remodel and addition 
• General Aviation Terminal remodel and addition 

He stated that fuel sales and operations were down due to the three-month airport closure for remodeling.  
Mr. Maenpa encouraged Council to come out and see the improvements.  The Category C approach is 
completed and TRAA is marketing it to the airlines. They are hopeful that the airport will soon see larger 
planes.  He noted that TEX (Telluride Regional Airport) is one of the few airports that owns their approach.  
 
Finance: (9) 

a. Presentation of the December 31, 2017 Business & Government Activity Report (BAGAR) 
Director of Finance Kevin Swain presented the BAGAR.  Council discussion ensued. 

b. November 30, 2017 Financials  
On a MOTION by Dan Jansen and seconded by Dan Caton, Council voted unanimously to approve the 
November 30, 2017 Financials as presented. 

 
First Reading, Setting of a Public Hearing and Council Vote on an Ordinance Approving a Major 
PUD Amendment to Extend the Development Agreement and the Associated Vested Property 
Rights on Lots 126R and 152R for a Two Year Period The Applicant has Requested that this Item be 
Continued to the February 15, 2018 Town Council Meeting  (10)     
Planning and Development Services Director Michelle Haynes stated that the applicant has requested the 
continuation to evaluate comments provided by the Design Review Board and determine how to proceed. 
On a MOTION by Jack Gilbride and seconded by Bruce MacIntire, Council voted unanimously to continue 
the above item to the February 15, 2018 Town Council Meeting. 
 
First Reading, Setting of a Public Hearing and Council Vote on an Ordinance to Consider a Rezone 
and Density Transfer Application to Transfer Density from Lot 304 into the Density Bank per 
Community Development Code Sections 17.4.9 & 17.4.10 (11) 
Michelle Haynes presented stating that Lots 303R1 and 305 have existing single-family homes on them.  Lot 
304 is vacant.  The owners of lot 303R1, 304 and 305 have agreed to replat the three lots into two lots. A 
substantial portion of the former lot 304 will depict a private covenant called a no build zone on the newly 
replatted portions of Lots 303R2 and 305R. In order to propose a minor subdivision application, the 
applicants have submitted two concurrent applications: 1) transfer the density associated with lot 304 (to be 
vacated) to the density bank by way of a density transfer and rezone application and 2) submit a minor 
subdivision application to replat the properties. Both applications have been 

4



received and are being reviewed concurrently. The Design Review Board unanimously recommended 
approval for the density transfer and rezone application for Lot 304 with conditions found in the proposed 
motion. On a MOTION by Dan Caton and seconded by Patrick Berry, Council voted 7-0 to approve an 
Ordinance considering a rezone and density transfer application to transfer density from Lot 304 into the 
Density Bank per Community Development Code Sections 17.4.9 and 17.4.10 with the following findings 
and conditions: 
Finding: 

1. The owner of record of density in the density bank shall be responsible for all dues, 
fees and any taxes associated with the assigned density and zoning until such time 
as the density is either transferred to a lot or another person or entity. 

Condition: 
1. The density transfer approval is conditioned upon the minor subdivision plat approval by the Town 

Council. 
 
Consideration of a Resolution to Approve a Minor Scale Subdivision for Lots 303R1, 304 and 305 to 
Replat into Lots 303R2 and 305R per Community Development Code Section 17.4.13.E.2 Quasi-
Judicial (12) 
Council discussion ensued. On a MOTION by Dan Caton and seconded by Jack Gilbride, Council voted 
unanimously to approve a minor scale subdivision for Lots 303R1, 304 and 305 to replat into Lots 303#2 
and 305R per Community Development Code section 17.4.13.E.2. 
 
Council moved to agenda item # 19. 
 
Consideration of Building Board of Appeals Appointment (13) 
Building Official Randy Kee presented the above item stating that the Building Board of Appeals consists of 
five regular members and two alternates.  The alternate member position is vacant as a result of Dylan 
Henderson moving out of state.  The position was posted on the Town website and in the local newspaper.  
Council discussion ensued. On a MOTION by Jack Gilbride and seconded by Natalie Binder, Council voted 
unanimously to appoint Ryan Deppen as an alternate member of the Building Board of Appeals. 
 
Council moved to agenda item #20b. 
 
Consideration of a Letter of Support for a Grant Application by the San Miguel Watershed 
Coalition(SMWC) for the Bureau of Reclamation’s WaterSMART Grant and Update on the Upper 
San Miguel Basin Forest Health Landscape Assessment (14) 
Program Coordinator for SMWC Elizabeth Stuffings presented the request for a letter of support for a grant 
application which would provide $95,000 of funding over two years. It is a funding opportunity for non-
government watershed groups and would allow SMWC to expand their capacity and undergo watershed 
planning.  Year one would focus on expanding the coalition’s capacity with the primary goal of turning Ms. 
Stuffings half time position into a full-time program coordinator position. Year two of the funding would 
focus on watershed restoration planning. The Coalition’s current level of funding is approximately a 50/50 
split between local government funding and grant funding. SMWC’s top priorities include: water quality 
testing, stakeholder outreach, stream management planning, landscape assessment, forest health issues and 
how they affect the watershed. On a MOTION by Patrick Berry and seconded by Bruce MacIntire, Council 
voted unanimously to approve a letter of support for a grant application by the San Miguel Watershed 
Coalition for the Bureau of Reclamation’s WaterSMART Grant.  
 
Ms. Stuffings presented a Landscape Assessment update stating that recent activities/progress includes: 

• Dr. Jason Sibold from Colorado State University presented the completed forest health landscape 
assessment maps to the stakeholder group.  The maps were formatted down into a user-friendly 
interactive map for the community. The Forests in Flux maps are an educational tool to help the 
community and land managers make ecologically informed decisions. 

• Stakeholder field trip to Boomerang Road to discuss future projects and how to utilize the landscape 
assessment maps 

• Public education event held in December introducing the Landscape Assessment Project to the 
public. 

5



 
Council discussion ensued regarding the need to become more proactive regarding our landscape.  Council is 
very supportive of SMWC’s efforts and would like to see a more aggressive regional program. 

 
Consideration of Approval of the Green Team Committee Mission Statement, Focus/Guiding 
Principles and 2018 Action Plan (15) 
Green Team Committee Chair Jonathan Greenspan and Co-Chair Marty Prohaska presented. Mr. Greenspan 
thanked Patrick Berry for helping to streamline the mission statement. Mr. Greenspan stated that all but two 
Mountain Village restaurants have agreed to perform a waste study audit which will help to determine how 
the Town’s waste is being distributed.  He will be attending a compost conference in Atlanta which will 
showcase the newest information on composting. Mr. Greenspan will create a list of all the area 
environmental organizations and their focus in an effort to determine how the Green Team can contribute 
without duplicating efforts.  A key goal in 2018 is to establish the Green Team niche in the region. Council 
discussion ensued regarding whether the Green Team should focus locally or regionally. Council consensus 
was to focus primarily on actionable items in Mountain Village for the first year and to expand from there. 
Council directed the Green Team to provide quarterly reports and asked to have the action plan refined by 
the first quarter report in April. On a MOTION by Dan Caton and seconded by Jack Gilbride, Council 
voted unanimously to approve the Green Team Committee Mission Statement, focus/guiding principles and 
2018 Action Plan with the amendment that the Green Team provide a revised action plan with their first 
quarter report in April.   

 
Council took a break for lunch from 12:39 p.m. to 12:48 p.m. 
 
Consideration of a Resolution Supporting Reauthorization by the General Assembly of the Colorado 
Lottery Division in 2018 (16) 
Marketing & Business Development Director Bill Kight presented the Resolution stating that Colorado 
voters provided for a statewide lottery, and in a subsequent election adopted the GOCO (Great Outdoors 
Colorado) amendment to the state constitution, which directs that lottery profits be used for parks, open 
space, wildlife, and outdoor recreation purposes. The Colorado Lottery Division is critical to the 
administration of the entire GOCO program and the provision for the Division is set to expire in 2018 
unless extended by the General Assembly.  Legislation to extend the Division to 2039 will be considered 
during the 2018 legislative session. The GOCO Trust Fund has distributed over $10,300,000 in San Miguel 
County for these purposes to date, and future funds could be considered for distribution for the Town of 
Mountain Village.  On a MOTION by Dan Caton and seconded by Jack Gilbride, Council voted 
unanimously to adopt a Resolution supporting the reauthorization by the General Assembly of Colorado 
Lottery Division in 2018. 
 
Telluride Ski & Golf (TSG) Quarterly Update (17) 
TSG Chief Executive Officer Bill Jensen presented the update stating that Colorado is experiencing the third 
lowest snow fall since the 1880’s.  Snowmaking operations began on October 26th and can potentially run 
through February 23rd.  TSG is committed to making snow through the end of January and will reassess at 
that time.  They are still pushing to expand terrain and expect to do so following the incoming snow storm. 
Mr. Jansen held a meeting to update the community and to squelch unfounded rumors that the ski area 
might close due to lack of snow, a water shortage and pressure from the U.S. Forest Service.  He stated that 
the ski area will not be closing and that through January 17th the resort is at 82% of year over year visitation 
numbers.  Revenues are 77% of 2017 numbers and they have reduced lift ticket prices to reflect the available 
terrain. All TSG housing units are occupied with a small reserve available and they are working on purchasing 
lots in Illium Valley to build additional units. These units are targeted for completion in early 2019. Mr. 
Jensen added that TSG is excited about the proposed core revitalization plan.  Council thanked him for the 
informative report. 

 
Consideration of a Proclamation of the Town Council of the Town of Mountain Village, Colorado 
Declaring January 2018 as Ski Mountain Employee Appreciation Month (18) 
Mayor Pro-Tem Dan Caton read the Proclamation. On a MOTION by Jack Gilbride and seconded by 
Bruce MacIntire, Council voted unanimously to adopt a Proclamation declaring January 2018 as Ski Mountain 
Employee Appreciation Month. 

6



 
Council moved to agenda item 20. c.(i) 
 
Council Boards and Commissions Updates: (19) 

a. San Miguel Watershed Coalition (SMWC) –Starr 
There was no update.  

b. Colorado Flights Alliance (CFA) –Jansen 
Mr. Jansen stated that the flight loads held up well through the holidays although the passenger numbers are 
declining in January.  CFA is promoting the expansion of service and capacity into TEX.   

c. Transportation & Parking – MacIntire/Benitez 
Mr. MacIntire stated that there is a committee meeting scheduled for January 22nd to discuss parking on 
upper Mountain Village Blvd.  

d. Budget & Finance Committee -Gilbride/Caton 
There was no update. 

e. Gondola Committee – Caton/Berry  
There was no update. 

f. Colorado Communities for Climate Action – Berry 
Mr. Berry stated that an extension was approved for a six-month delay on their budget and that a meeting is 
scheduled for next week. 

g. San Miguel Authority for Regional Transportation- Benitez/Caton/Binder 
Mayor Benitez stated that a vehicle has been purchased for the Rico shuttle route. The exact route will be 
dependent on the passengers and is flexible.  She stated that SMART’s new Executive Director David Averill 
has established an office on the corner of Spruce and Pacific in Telluride and that he has extended an 
invitation to Council members to stop by.  He will be scheduling a strategic planning retreat. Discussion 
ensued on the use of electric vehicles on the SMART fleet and the issues to be considered (cost, distances 
traveled etc.).  They will keep looking at the possibility down the line.   

h. Eco Action Partners (EAP)– Berry/Binder 
As part of the Green team Patrick Berry stated that he is working on an inventory of local and regional 
environmental organizations to determine the focus of each group and where the needs are. Mr. Berry stated 
that he will be participating in the Carbon Neutral Coalition in a support capacity so that Mountain Village is 
represented if Bill Kight is unable to attend. Natalie Binder stated that she had attended the most recent 
meeting and that EAP is looking for direction from the Town on the role of the Green Team.  

i.  Telluride Historical Museum- Berry 
Mr. Berry stated that the Museum is looking for old winter sports artifact donations for a summer exhibit. 
The Museum’s storage unit in Montrose was broken into and will be inventoried to determine if anything is 
missing. 

j. Telluride Conference Center (TCC) –MacIntire 
Mr. MacIntire stated the committee met with TCC Manager Tony Kalyk to discuss what is needed to 
improve operations.  Mr. Kalyk indicated that the back of the house needs some updating which would help 
streamline operations.  The committee is discussing the possibilities for expansion.   

k. Alliance for Inclusion – Berry 
Dan Jansen stated that there was a meeting organized by students at the library to discuss DACA (Deferred 
Action for Childhood Arrivals).   

l. Green Team Committee- Berry/MacIntire 
The next meeting is on January 29th.  A revised mission statement is on today’s agenda. 

m. Mayor’s Update – Benitez 
Mayor Benitez updated that she has had many conversations with merchants about how to get through the 
challenging low snow season.  She expressed appreciation for all the volunteers over the holiday season.  
CAST (Colorado Association of Ski Towns) is in Town and the opening dinner is tonight at Tomboy Tavern 
and the meeting is Friday January 19th at 8:00 a.m. to be held at The Peaks.      
 
Dan Jansen has been asked to join the Telluride Tourism Board (TTB) and Council consensus was to add an 
update to the monthly Council Boards and Commission updates.  He stated that CFA and TTB have been 
working together to promote alternate activities to visitors and will coordinate their efforts with TSG.  The 
Mayor thanked President and CEO of Marketing Telluride Inc (MTI) Michael Martelon for actively involving 

7



the relevant players to promote alternate activities adding that he has been a driving force in 
communications. 

 
Council moved to agenda item # 13 
 
Staff Reports: (20) 

a. Marketing & Business Development 
Director Bill Kight presented his report stating that WiFi reporting is done on a year to date basis and there 
were zero email addresses captured last month because the contract with the previous host was terminated.  
He is working with Meracki to learn how to collect and save the email addresses from the units and should 
have it up and running soon. Mr. Kight stated that wayfinding continues to move forward.  Since the last 
update the Village Center monument has been installed.  He has received positive feedback on the 
installation and noted that the entrance sign will be installed in the next few days.  The next phase will 
include parking garage signage.  The web site is transitioning to a new web host and some functionality may 
be lost in the transition; but he will be working diligently to fix any bugs or pages that break. Mr. Kight stated 
that the Merchant meetings have been a great source of ideas and suggestions to improve the guest 
experience. Council thanked Mr. Kight for a very thorough report and expressed their appreciation for his 
hard work. 
 
Council moved back to agenda item 14 
 

b. Cable & Broadband Services 
Director Steven Lehane presented his report stating that both the audit and fiber project have been 
completed.  The fiber is hosting four contractors: T-Mobile, TSG, Mammoth Networks and Brainstorm. 
Cable programming may be dropping the four Univision channels because of a 42% price increase which 
would make Telemundo the only Spanish channel available.  

c. Town Manager 
Kim Montgomery stated that the nominees for the Great Services Award were Julie Vergari for helping an 
inexperienced business owner with a business license; Daniel Gleason for going above and beyond and filling 
in potholes at VCA; Finn Kjome and Bill Kight for their efforts with the wayfinding project; JD Wise and 
the Plaza Services crew for keeping the plazas clean and neat over the holidays and the Gondola Maintenance 
Department including Jim Loebe for their incredible dedication in repairing a bull wheel on the Gondola. 
The award went to the Gondola Maintenance Department and Jim Loebe for working all night to minimize 
impacts and limit interruption to the public. Ms. Montgomery stated that the Cassidy Ridge property is under 
contract and the Town plans to sell it by lottery to a qualified Town employee. The Town will have first right 
of refusal on the unit if the employee decides to sell. Ms. Montgomery stated that she will be working on an 
RFP (Request for Proposal) for the Town’s IT (Internet Technology) needs to include daily IT needs as well 
as cyber security. Brian Morgan of Telluride Bytes has been contracted to handle IT needs in the interim.   

i) Consideration of a Proclamation of the Town Council of the Town of Mountain 
Village, Colorado Recognizing Extraordinary Service by the Town’s Transit and 
Plaza Services Departments 

Kim Montgomery presented the above item stating that the Proclamation was created to acknowledge the 
Town’s Transit and Plaza Services Departments for their exemplary work on replacing a bull wheel on the 
Gondola and maintaining the plazas over the holiday season.  The Mayor read the Proclamation and thanked 
the departments for their service and dedication. On a MOTION by Jack Gilbride and seconded by Patrick 
Berry, Council voted unanimously to adopt a Proclamation recognizing extraordinary service by the Town’s 
Transit and Plaza Services Departments. 

 
Other Business (21) 
Chief of Police Chris Broady introduced the newest Police Officer, Grant Markwell.  Mayor Benitez 
administered the Oath of Office and welcomed him to Mountain Village. 
  
There being no further business, on a MOTION by Patrick Berry and seconded by Bruce MacIntire, 
Council voted unanimously to adjourn the meeting at 1:23 p.m.  
 
 

8



 
Respectfully prepared,                                                                              Respectfully submitted, 
 
  
Susan Johnston                                                                                          Jackie Kennefick 
Deputy Town Clerk                                                                                  Town Clerk 

 
 
 
 

9-



Memo    Agenda Item #7 
To: Mayor and Town Council    
From: Sarah H. Abbott 
Date: February 8, 2018 
Re: Ordinance Opting Out of Signature Verification in Municipal Elections  
 

The proposed Ordinance is in response to 2016 State legislation amending the Colorado Municipal 
Election Code to require signature verification on mail ballots.  

The Town Charter requires that the Town follow the Municipal Election Code unless it adopts an 
Ordinance to the contrary. The proposed ordinance would amend the Town Municipal Code to opt out 
of the signature verification requirement. 

Below are motions for approval and denial depending on what action the Town Council desires to 
take: 

 
Approval:  I move to approve the Ordinance of the Town Council of the Town of 

Mountain Village opting out of the signature verification requirement in the Colorado 
Municipal Election Code.   

 
Denial:  I move to deny the Ordinance of the Town Council of the Town of Mountain 

Village opting out of the signature verification requirement in the Colorado Municipal Election 
Code.  

   

 
 

10



ORDINANCE NO. 2018 -  ______ 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF MOUNTAIN 
VILLAGE AMENDING SECTION 1.12.050 OF THE MOUNTAIN VILLAGE 
MUNICIPAL CODE TO OPT OUT OF THE SIGNATURE VERIFICATION 

REQUIREMENT IN THE COLORADO MUNICIPAL ELECTION CODE FOR ALL 
MOUNTAIN VILLAGE MUNICIPAL ELECTIONS 

 
RECITALS: 

 
A. The Town of Mountain Village (the “Town”), in the County of San Miguel and State of 

Colorado, is a home rule municipality duly organized and existing under the laws of the 
State of Colorado and its Town Charter.  

 
B. The Town, from time to time, holds municipal elections by mail ballot under the Town 

Charter, the State of Colorado Mail Ballot Act, the Election Rules of the Colorado 
Secretary of State, and the Colorado Municipal Election Code of 1965, as amended. 
 

C. The Council has determined that it is in the best interests of the Town to opt out of the 
signature verification requirement of the State of Colorado Municipal Election Code, as 
defined in C.R.S. 31-10-910.3, for all Mountain Village municipal elections. 
 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN 
OF MOUNTAIN VILLAGE, COLORADO AS FOLLOWS:  
 
Section 1.  Legislative Findings.   
 
The recitals to this Ordinance are adopted as findings of the Town Council in support of the 
enactment of this Ordinance.  
 
Section 2.  Section 1.12.050 of the Town Municipal Code is hereby amended and shall read 
in its entirety as set forth on Exhibit A attached hereto. 
 
Section 3.  Severability. 
 
If any provision, clause, sentence or paragraph of this Ordinance or the application thereof to any 
person or circumstance shall be held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect the other provisions 
of this Ordinance which can be given effect without the invalid provision or application, and, to 
this end, the provisions of this Ordinance are declared to be severable.  
 
Section 4.  Ordinance Effect. 
 
Existing Ordinances or parts of ordinances covering the same matters as embraced in this 
Ordinance are hereby repealed and any and all ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with 
the provisions of this Ordinance are hereby repealed, provided however, that the repeal of any 
Ordinance or parts of Ordinances of the Town shall not revive any other section of any 
Ordinance or Ordinances hereto before repealed or superseded and further provided that this 

11



repeal shall not affect or prevent the prosecution or punishment of any person for any act done or 
committed in violation of any Ordinance hereby repealed prior to the taking effect of this 
Ordinance.  
 
Section 5.  Safety Clause. 
 
The Town Council finds and declares that this Ordinance is promulgated and adopted for the 
public health, safety and welfare of the citizens of the Town.  
 
Section 6.  Effective Date. 
 
This Ordinance shall take effect on _______________, 2018.     

Section 7.  PUBLIC HEARING. 

A public hearing on this Ordinance was held on the _____ day of _______________, 2018, in 
the Town Council Chambers, 455 Mountain Village Boulevard, Mountain Village, Colorado. 
 
INTRODUCED, READ AND REFERRED to public hearing before the Town Council of 
the Town of Mountain Village, Colorado on the _________ day of _______________, 2018. 
 

TOWN OF MOUNTAIN VILLAGE, 
COLORADO, A HOME-RULE 
MUNICIPALITY 

 
 

      By:________________________________ 
       Laila Benitez, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
________________________________ 
Jackie Kennefick, Town Clerk 
 
HEARD AND FINALLY ADOPTED by the Town Council of the Town of Mountain 
Village, Colorado, this _________ day of _______________, 2018. 
 

TOWN OF MOUNTAIN VILLAGE, 
COLORADO, A HOME-RULE 
MUNICIPALITY 

 
 

      By:________________________________ 
       Laila Benitez, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
____________________________________ 
Jackie Kennefick, Town Clerk 

12--



Approved As To Form: 
 
____________________________________ 
James Mahoney, Assistant Town Attorney 
 
I, Jackie Kennefick, the duly qualified and acting Town Clerk of the Town of Mountain Village, 
Colorado (“Town"), do hereby certify that: 
 
1.  The attached copy of Ordinance No.__________ (“Ordinance") is a true, correct and 
complete copy thereof. 
 
2. The Ordinance was introduced, read by title, approved on first reading with minor 
amendments and referred to public hearing by the Town Council of the Town (“Council") at a 
regular meeting held at Town Hall, 455 Mountain Village Blvd., Mountain Village, Colorado, on 
____________, 2018 by the affirmative vote of a quorum of the Town Council as follows: 
 
Council Member Name “Yes” “No” Absent Abstain 
Laila Benitez, Mayor     
Dan Caton     
Bruce McIntire     
Dan Jansen     
Patrick Berry     
Jack Gilbride     
Natalie Binder     
 
3.  After the Council’s approval of the first reading of the Ordinance, notice of the public 
hearing, containing the date, time and location of the public hearing and a description of the 
subject matter of the proposed Ordinance, was posted and published in the Telluride Daily 
Planet, a newspaper of general circulation in the Town, on _____________________, 2018, in 
accordance with Section 5.2b of the Town of Mountain Village Home Rule Charter.   
 
4.  A public hearing on the Ordinance was held by the Town Council at a regular meeting of the 
Town Council held at Town Hall, 455 Mountain Village Blvd., Mountain Village, Colorado, on 
_______________, 2018.  At the public hearing, the Ordinance was considered, read by title, and 
approved without amendment by the Town Council, by the affirmative vote of a quorum of the 
Town Council as follows: 
 
Council Member Name “Yes” “No” Absent Abstain 
Laila Benitez, Mayor     
Dan Caton     
Bruce McIntire     
Dan Jansen     
Patrick Berry     
Jack Gilbride     
Natalie Binder     
 

13



5.  The Ordinance has been signed by the Mayor, sealed with the Town seal, attested by me, as 
Town Clerk, and duly numbered and recorded in the official records of the Town.  
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the seal of the Town this 
_____ day of ____________, 2018. 

 
________________________________ 
Jackie Kennefick, Town Clerk 

 
(SEAL)  

14--



EXHIBIT A 
 

CHAPTER 1.12.050 
 

ELECTION CODE 
 
Sections: 
 
1.12.050 Identification and Verification Requirements 
 
 

15



 
1.12.050  Identification and Verification Requirements 
 

The Town of Mountain Village opts out of the identification requirement provisions of 
the State of Colorado Mail Ballot Act, as defined in C.R.S. 1-7.5-107 (3.5), (4) and (5), and 
Colorado Secretary of State Regulations 12.5.6 through 12.5.9, and the signature verification 
requirement of the State of Colorado Municipal Election Code, as defined in C.R.S. 31-10-910.3, 
for all Mountain Village Municipal Elections. ; and further, that bBeyond the voter registration 
requirement to provide the voter’s date of birth, further identification will not be required as a 
condition of registering to vote or voting in Town of Mountain Village Municipal Elections. 
Comparison of a voter’s signature on the return envelope to any signature image, including those 
signature images in the statewide voter registration system, is not required. (Ord. 04-03 and 18-
___) 

16



TOWN OF MOUNTAIN VILLAGE EMPLOYEE HOUSING PURCHASE PROGRAM 

When the Town of Mountain Village (the “Town”) owns a housing unit which it desires to sell, the Town 
may elect to sell such unit to a full-time year round employee (“Employees”) of the Town according to the 
following guidelines: 

1. The Town may offer to sell the housing unit with the following guidelines: 
a. The Town shall send out a “Notice of Sale” to all Employees via email, HR Newsletter, and 

Ultipro homepage setting forth the unit, the sale price, and the deadline for which 
Employees must submit their application to the Town’s Human Resources Department (the 
“Submittal Deadline”); along with any other information the Town determines is 
appropriate. 

b. All interested Employees shall have until the Submittal Deadline set forth in the Notice 
of Sale to submit the application to the Town’s Human Resources Department. Failure 
to submit an application by the Submittal Deadline shall preclude consideration. 

c. Preference shall be given to Employees who have submitted their application based on 
the number of years such employees have worked continuously for the Town, the level of 
responsibility that such employees have relative to Town operations, and the employee’s 
performance within their area of responsibility based upon annual evaluations. If the Town 
is in process of recruiting a key position at the time the when the unit is available (Town 
Manager, Finance Director, Planning & Development Services Director, Public Works 
Director, Transit Director or Police Chief), this candidate would have priority. 

d. Once applications are received, the Town’s Human Resources Department in 
consultation with the Housing Director and the Town Manager shall establish a list of 
eligible candidates who will then be notified. 

e. The holder of the first position shall have 15 days after they are notified of their position to 
submit a pre-approval letter from a qualified lender or proof of available funds for the 
amount of the purchase price. In the event the holder of the first position fails to submit a 
pre-approval letter or proof of funds, the Town may move on to the next candidate on the 
list. 

f. After providing the pre-approval letter or proof of funds, the employee shall have 10 days 
to enter into a standard real estate contract with the Town for the purchase of the unit, with 
a closing date of no more than 60 days from the date such contract is entered into. Failure 
to meet any of these deadlines shall allow the Town to move on to the next position holder. 

g. The selected employee must close on the purchase of the property from the Town within 
such 60-day time period. If the selected employee does not close, the Town may move on 
to the next candidate. 

2. The sale of a Town owned property to an employee shall have the following restrictions: 
a. In the event the property has any type of Employee Housing Deed Restriction, the 

purchaser must abide by such deed restriction requirements. The purchaser must also 
execute an amendment to any such deed restriction eliminating the ability for the deed 
restriction to be removed upon foreclosure. 

17--



b. The purchaser must grant the Town a right of first refusal granting the Town the ability to 
purchase back such property should the purchaser ever desire to sell the property. Such 
right of first refusal would be recorded against the property’s title. 

c. The purchaser must sign an acknowledgment that the purchase of the property is tied to 
the purchaser’s employment with the Town and that if the purchaser is no longer 
employed by the Town, the purchaser shall have 6 months from the date of termination of 
employment with the Town to convey the property back to the Town according to the 
terms set forth below. 

d. In the case of a required conveyance of the property to the Town, a standard real estate 
contract with the same general terms and conditions as the contract used to purchase the 
property from the Town, shall be used and the purchase price shall be either: 

i. The maximum sales price allowed for all property with an appreciation cap 
pursuant to an employee housing deed restriction. 

ii. The average of two appraisals, one selected by and paid for by the Town and 
one selected by and paid for by the purchaser. 

18--



T O W N O F M O U N T A I N V I L LA G E 
========================================================================== 

MOUNTAIN VILLAGE HOUSING AUTHORITY 
455 Mountain Village Boulevard, Ste. A 

Mountain Village, CO 81435 
(970) 239-4061 

 
Employee Housing Purchase program 

 
For those persons intending to purchase an employee housing owned by Mountain Village, please submit the following application to 
the Mountain Village Housing Authority located at the above address: 

 
 

Application Form: 
 

1. Applicant (s)    
 

2. Mailing Address:    
 

3. Phone: (H)  (W)  (C)   
 

4. Address of the property you are purchasing: Cassidy Ridge, 136 San Joaquin Road #C201, Mountain Village 
 

5. Is this a deed restricted property? yes 
 

6. Is the DR property price-capped? Yes   X What %    3  No    
 
 

THIS PROGRAM IS SUBJECT TO SELECTION BASED ON THE MATRIX BELOW. YOU WILL BE NOTIFIED IF YOU 
HAVE MET THE ELIGIBILITY CRITERIA. 

 
I hereby certify that I have read and acknowledge the terms of the town housing purchase program. 

 
 
 

Applicant Date 
 

For Staff Use Only 
 
 

Received   By  Receipt #     
date & time   initials 

 
Approved  By    

date & time initials 
 

For Human Resources Use Only: 
 

Years of service  Level of responsibility Performance rating (avg. past three 
years) 

1-5 years = 1 point Employee = 1 point 3.0-3.75 = 1 point 
6-10 years = 2 points Supervisor/ Manager = 2 points 3.76 – 4.25 = 2 points 
>10 years = 3 points Director = 3 points >4.25 = 3 points 

 
Years of service   
Employee position      
Average performance rating (over past three years)    

 

Total score =    
19



Activity MONTH YTD MONTH YTD Variance Variance %

# Residential & Bulk Basic Cable 881 910 (29) -3.2%
# Premium Channel Residential & Bulk Subscribers 498 544 (46) -8.5%
# Digital Subscribers 230 266 (36) -13.5%
# Internet Subscribers 1,865 1,761 104 5.9%
Average # Phone Subscribers 101 108 (7) -6.5%

Occupancy Rate                        % 98.64% 98.64% 98.64% 98.64% 0.00% 0.0%
# Vacated Units    0 0 3 3 (3) -100.0%
# Work Orders Completed         38 38 34 34 4 11.8%
# on Waiting List                               94 77 17 22.1%

Service Calls 310 310 315 315 (5) -1.6%
Snow Fall                                    Inches 44 44 92 92 (48) -52.2%
Snow Removal - Streets & Prkg Lots  Hours 443 443 1,097 1,097 (654) -59.6%
Roadway Maintenance            Hours 233 233 6 6 227 3783.3%
Water Billed Consumption       Gal. 64,070,000 64,070,000 33,728,000 33,728,000 30,342,000 90.0%
Sewage Treatment                      Gal. 6,212,000 6,212,000 7,802,000 7,802,000 (1,590,000) -20.4%

# Infants & Toddlers Actual Occupancy 21.30 21.30 22.96 22.96 (1.66) -7.2%
# Preschoolers Actual Occupancy 14.56 14.56 14.18 14.18 0.38 2.7%

GPG (noon snapshot) 8,196 8,196 7,480 7,480 716 9.6%
GPG Parking Utilization (% of total # of spaces occupied) 59.4% 59.4% 54.2% 54.2% 5.2% 9.6%
HPG (noon snapshot) 1,694 1,694 1,987 1,987 (293) -14.7%
HPG Parking Utilization (% of total # of spaces occupied) 53.3% 53.3% 62.5% 62.5% -9.2% -14.7%
Total Parking (noon snapshot) 14,981 14,981 14,334 14,334 647 4.5%
Parking Utilization (% of total # of spaces occupied) 61.7% 61.7% 59.1% 59.1% 2.6% 4.4%
Paid Parking Revenues $28,487 $28,487 $33,375 $33,375 ($4,888) -14.6%
Bus Routes                    # of Passengers 0 0 0 0 0 #DIV/0!
Employee Shuttle  # of Passengers 1,526 1,526 1,491 1,491 35 2.3%
Employee Shuttle Utilization Rate % 51.7% 51.7% 52.4% 52.4% -0.70% -1.3%
Inbound (Vehicle) Traffic (Entrance)       # of Cars 66,815 66,815 66,150 66,150 665 1.0%

FT Year Round Head Count 80 78 2 2.6%
Seasonal Head Count (FT & PT) 2 3 (1) -33.3%
PT Year Round Head Count 19 21 (2) -9.5%
Gondola FT YR, Seasonal, PT YR Head Count 59 62 (3) -4.8%
Total Employees 160 164 (4) -2.4%
Gondola Overtime Paid               Hours 424 424 165 165 260 157.8%
Other Employee Overtime Paid               47 47 73 73 (27) -36.3%
# New Hires Total New Hires 6 6 7 7 (1) -14.3%
# Terminations 7 7 5 5 2 40.0%
# Workmen Comp Claims 0 0 2 2 (2) -100.0%
Workmen Comp Claims Costs $0 $0 $1,178 $1,178 ($1,178) -100.0%

Town Hosted Meetings 4 4 4 4 0 0.0%
Email Correspondence Sent 4 4 3 3 1 33.3%
E-mail List # 4,668 na #VALUE! #VALUE!
Wifi Subscribers 363 na #VALUE! #VALUE!
Press Releases Sent 0 0 ma na #VALUE! #VALUE!

Gondola  # of Passengers 319,968 319,968 327,788 327,788 (7,820) -2.4%
Chondola  # of Passengers 31,133 31,133 31,372 31,372 (239) -0.8%
RETA fees collected by TMVOA $417,855 $417,855 $666,598 $666,598 ($248,743) -37.3%

Prior year numbers will be skewed due to several reasons, many transitions took place in 2017 leaving comparison 
information inaccurate.Marketing & Business Development

Current RETA revenues are unaudited

Human Resources 

Gondola and RETA

Child Development Fund

Public Works

Transportation and Parking

Village Court Apartments

2018 2017

Business and Government Activity Report
For the month ending: January 31st

Cable/Internet
Some prior year numbers have been adjusted to accommodate the change in reporting by 
EBU

Variance

20

jvergari
Typewritten Text
Item 9a



Activity MONTH YTD MONTH YTD Variance Variance %
2018 2017

              

Variance

Calls for Service # 330 330 402 402 (72) -17.9%
Investigations # 24 24 19 19 5 26.3%
Alarms # 16 16 27 27 (11) -40.7%
Arrests # 0 0 2 2 (2) -100.0%
Traffic Contacts # 11 11 7 7 4 57.1%
Traffic Tickets Written   # 1 1 3 3 (2) -66.7%
Parking Tickets Written      # 377 377 370 370 7 1.9%
Administrative Dismissals     # 8 8 2 2 6 300.0%

Community Development Revenues $21,920 $21,920 $13,503 $13,503 $8,417 62.3%
# Permits Issued        25 25 32 32 (7) -21.9%
Valuation of Mtn Village Remodel/New/Additions Permits $78,311 $78,311 $1,202,752 $1,202,752 ($1,124,441) -93.5%
Valuation Mtn Village Electric/Plumbing/Other Permits $87,938 $87,938 $89,796 $89,796 ($1,858) -2.1%
Valuation Telluride Electric/Plumbing Permits $164,450 $164,450 $195,225 $195,225 ($30,775) -15.8%
# Inspections Completed           191 191 299 299 (108) -36.1%
# Design Review/Zoning Agenda Items   5 5 11 11 (6) -54.5%
# Staff  Review Approvals 14 14 19 19 (5) -26.3%

Recreation 
Mile of Trails Maintained 14.7 14.7 14.7 14.7 0.00 0.0%
Platform Tennis Registrations       40 40 93 93 (53) -57.0%
Ice Rink Skaters 1085 1085 786 786 299 38.0%
Snow Cat Hours 12 12 176 176 (164) -93.2%

Snow Removal  Plaza                 Hours 287 287 890 890 (603) -67.8%
Plaza Maintenance  Hours 557 557 182 182 376 207.0%
Lawn Care  Hours 0 0 0 0 0 #DIV/0!
Plant Care  Hours 8 8 0 0 8 #DIV/0!
Irrigation  Hours 0 0 0 0 0 #DIV/0!
TMV Trash Collection  Hours 130 130 86 86 44 51.5%
Christmas Decorations  Hours 261 261 147 147 114 78.0%
Residential Trash Pound 19,950 19,950 18,750 18,750 1,200 6.4%
Residential Recycle Pound 27,246 27,246 28,331 28,331 (1,085) -3.8%
Diversion Rate % 57.73% 57.73% 60.18% 60.18% -2.45% -4.1%

# Preventive Maintenance Performed 17 17 18 18 (1) -5.6%
# Repairs Completed              46 46 24 24 22 91.7%
Special Projects 1 1 4 4 (3) -75.0%
# Roadside Assists 0 0 2 2 (2) -100.0%

# Employee Based Business Licenses Issued 650 650 636 636 14 2.2%
# Privately Licensed Rentals 68 68 67 67 1 1.5%
# Property Management Licensed Rentals 395 395 373 373 22 5.9%
# VRBO Listings for MV 385 442 (57) -12.9%
# Paperless Billing Accts (YTD is total paperless customers) 17 832 24 673 159 23.6%
# of TMV AR Bills Processed 2,167 2,167 2,109 2,109 58 2.8%

$506,759 92.4% $345,771 89.2% ($27,007) 112.1% Change in Value $480,946
6,959           1.3% 36,261         9.4% 330                -1.4% Ending Balance $5,446,669
1,486           0.3% 3,042           0.8% -                    0.0% Investment Income $6,438

958              0.2% 1,884           0.5% 2,592             -10.8% Portfolio Yield 1.31%
32,223         5.9% 504              0.1% -                    0.0%

548,385$     100.0% 387,462$     100.0% (24,086)$        100.0%

Other Statistics
37,144$       73.7% 862,666$     89.7% (255,508)$      74.6% Population (estimated) 1,420

6,526           12.9% 50,075         5.2% (79,354)          23.2% (Active) Registered Voters 882
3,951           7.8% 8,479           0.9% (4,816)            1.4% Property Valuation 289,947,030
1,445           2.9% 6,880           0.7% (16,343)          4.8%
1,343           2.7% 34,070         3.5% 13,730           -4.0%

50,409$       100.0% 962,170$     100.0% (342,291)$      100.0%Total

Current
30+ Days

90+ Days
over 120 days

60+ Days

Plaza Services

Accounts Receivable - Total Bad Debt Reserve/Allowance: $3,520

90+ Days

Finance 

General Fund Investment ActivityVCA - Village Court Apartments
TMV Operating Receivables 
(includes Gondola funding)

Winter - November 1 - April 30

Total

60+ Days

Current

Utilities - Cable and 
Water/Sewer

Due to the timing of the packet, trash diversion rates are for the previous month.

30+ Days

Vehicle Maintenance

over 120 days

Other Billings - CDF, 
Construction Parking

Change Since Last Month -
Increase (Decrease) in AR Total All AR

Building/Planning

Police

21

' ' ' ' ' ' ' ' ' 

' ' ' ' ' ' ' ' ' 

' ' ' ' ' ' 

' ' ' ' ' ' ' ' ' 

' ' ' ' ' ' ' ' ' 

' ' ' ' ' ' ' ' ' 

' ' ' ' ' ' ' ' ' 
' ' ' 
' ' 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 
' ' 
' ' 



 
Memorandum 

To:  Town Council 
From:  Kevin Swain, Finance Director 
Date:  February 8, 2018 
Re:  Town of Mountain Village Financial Statements through December 2017 

 Mountain Village Financials Statements through December, 2017 
 

The presented financials are unaudited. Budgets have been updated for 2017 revisions adopted at the 
December 2017 meeting. Accruals have been made as appropriate but actual amounts may change. 

 
General Fund Summary 
The General Fund currently reflects a surplus of $1.4 million.  Permit and use taxes are ahead of prior year 
and budget.  Sales taxes show an increase of 5% over prior year and 2% over budget.  Revenues of $11.2 
million were over budget by $190,547 due mainly to sales taxes, development related fees, and contributions. 
 
Total operating expenditures of $8.1 million were under budget by $1.3 million.  Capital outlay through this 
period was for Sunset Plaza improvements, wayfinding, and police equipment. 

 
Transfers to other funds include: 
 

Fund This Month YTD Budget YTD Actual Budget Variance
Capital Projects Fund  (From GF) 1,402$         300,000$        266,071$      (33,929)                     
Child Development Fund   34,583$       134,209$        120,404$      (13,805)                     
Conference Center Subsidy 25,000$       223,467$        199,089$      (24,378)                     
Affordable Housing Development Fund 
(Monthly Sales Tax Allocation) 71,794$       440,572$        461,662$      21,090                      
Vehicle & Equipment Acquisition Fund  3,861$         696,248$        561,775$      (134,473)                    

 
Income transfers from other funds include: 
 

Fund This Month YTD Budget YTD Actual Budget Variance
Overhead allocation from Broadband, W/S, 
Gondola, VCA and Parking Services 121,510$     483,971$        482,133$      (1,838)                       
*Tourism Fund 5,916$         24,533$          37,580$        13,047                      

Debt Service Fund (Specific ownership taxes) 11,889$       83,909$          149,712$      65,803                      
Debt Service Fund (Sunset Plaza Funding) -$                 -$                    207,439$      207,439                    

*This transfer is comprised of  administrative fees, interest, and penalties collected.

 22

jvergari
Typewritten Text
Item 9b



 
 

Vehicle and Equipment Acquisition Fund – No Fund Income Statement Attached 
A snowcat for the recreation department, snow blower, a transit bus, an excavator, a building maintenance 
truck, a vehicle maintenance truck, a police vehicle and shop equipment were purchased and the bobcat 
leases have been paid.  Total expenditures in 2017: $495,405. 
 
Capital Projects Fund – No Fund Income Statement Attached 
$266,071 was spent on the Meadows Improvement Plan. 
 
Historical Museum Fund – No Fund Income Statement Attached 
$96,066 in property taxes were collected and $94,138 was tendered to the historical museum. The county 
treasurer retained $1,928 in treasurer’s fees.  
 
Mortgage Assistance Fund – No Fund Income Statement Attached 
There has been no activity in this fund this year. 
 
Sales Tax 
Sales taxes of $4.5 million are 5% over 2016 through the end of the year and are over budget by 2%. Other shows 
the highest growth at 20%, followed by lodging at 4.8%.      

 
 

Category Actual
2013

Actual
2014

PY %
Increase

Actual
2015

PY %
Increase

Actual
2016

PY %
Increase

Actual
2017

PY $
Variance

PY %
Increase

4.5% 4.5% 2013 to 
2014

4.5% 2014 to 
2015

4.5% 2015 to 2016 4.5% 2016 to 2017 2016 to 
2017

Lodging 27,745,883      30,473,814      10% 37,582,678      23% 40,954,783      9% 42,917,729        1,962,946      4.79%
Restaurant 13,631,180      15,497,118      14% 18,425,565      19% 20,589,021      12% 21,046,830        457,809         2.22%
Retail 14,864,000      15,593,895      5% 16,511,742      6% 17,404,997      5% 17,290,472        (114,525)        -0.66%
Utility/Other 9,049,664        8,363,744        -8% 10,952,440      31% 11,105,038      1% 13,301,698        2,196,660      19.78%
  Total 65,290,728      69,928,571      7% 83,472,424      19% 90,053,839      8% 94,556,729        4,502,890      5.00%

Actual Sales Tax Base By Class, Through December 2017

 
 
 

 23

4,500,000 -
4,250,000 

"C 4,000,000 
21 3,750,000 
u 3,500,000 GI 

0 3,250,000 
0 3,000,000 

'~ )( 2,750,000 ai ... 2,500,000 
al 2,250,000 .... 
0 2,000,000 ... 

,750,000 
,500,000 
,250,000 

1,000,000 
750,000 
500,000 
250,000 

201 3 

Sales i:ax b,y Ca.tego,ry 
thr,o,ugh the mo,nth ,of: Deoember 

,,_ 

' 

~ 
.....--

2014 2015 2016 

v,ear 

- ~ 

---~~~ ~ 
----a--

-- .I j r 

Tcf.a l 

2017 



Tourism Fund 
 
2017 restaurant taxes totaling $421,514 have been collected and $413,084 was tendered to the airline 
guarantee program. $1,700,957 in lodging taxes were collected and $1,675,443 was tendered to the airline 
guarantee program and to MTI. The Town retained $33,944 in administrative fees, and penalties and 
interest of $2,239, offset by additional funding to MTI for a guest services agent.  
 
Lodging taxes exceeded prior year by 3.7% and exceeded budget by 1.9%.  Restaurant taxes are ahead of 
prior year and budget by 2.3% and 4.1%, respectively. 
 

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2016 2017 Budget
Activity         

(4%)
Activity         

(4%)
 Activity           

(4%)
 Activity           

(4%)
 Activity           

(4%)
Var % Budget  Var %

January 167,378           159,264        216,904        193,815           245,628           26.73% 197,004         19.80%
February 151,727           170,098        231,700        249,339           260,809           4.60% 254,958         2.24%
March 203,235           248,285        303,173        304,515           312,990           2.78% 308,050         1.58%
April 9,382               7,291            12,319          7,638               8,353               9.36% 7,748             7.24%
May 10,684             10,627          15,282          16,633             12,333             -25.85% 17,350           -40.68%
June 77,013             74,275          84,204          106,415           122,193           14.83% 109,059         10.75%
July 93,602             109,934        136,711        153,342           158,585           3.42% 157,246         0.84%
August 84,727             88,929          88,990          111,760           111,942           0.16% 115,095         -2.82%
September 69,349             82,891          113,475        139,363           148,591           6.62% 143,338         3.54%
October 16,450             17,383          22,812          31,322             34,040             8.68% 32,360           4.94%
November 6,761               11,840          11,372          14,725             18,535             25.87% 14,881           19.71%
December 191,249           226,508        261,808        311,903           266,958           -14.41% 311,911         -16.84%
Total 1,081,555         1,207,325     1,498,749     1,640,771        1,700,957        3.67% 1,669,000      1.88%
Tax Base 27,038,867       30,183,132   37,468,729   41,019,282      42,523,936      41,725,000    

Town of Mountain Village Colorado Lodging Tax Summary

 
 

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2016 2017 Budget
Activity       

(2%)
Activity       

(2%)
 Activity (2%)  Activity (2%)   Activity (2%) Var % Budget  Var %

January 34,448          38,239          46,261          48,594          54,097           11.32% 47,656          11.91%
February 41,121          48,466          53,871          60,243          59,783           -0.76% 59,077          1.18%
March 47,045          53,516          60,420          71,171          73,736           3.60% 69,795          5.34%
April 2,518            1,995            2,876            1,511            1,829             21.07% 1,483            18.92%
May 3,913            5,154            5,457            4,568            4,448             -2.63% 4,480            -0.72%
June 19,116          25,366          25,426          34,359          34,365           0.02% 33,693          1.96%
July 27,921          32,661          40,081          44,827          46,470           3.66% 43,959          5.40%
August 25,645          25,017          29,015          35,020          34,998           -0.07% 34,344          1.87%
September 19,982          23,831          32,169          36,195          39,291           8.55% 35,495          9.66%
October 5,468            5,369            9,492            11,312          13,519           19.52% 11,094          17.94%
November 4,668            5,765            6,637            5,099            5,352             4.95% 5,002            6.53%
December 42,983          49,923          55,055          59,070          53,628           -9.21% 57,922          -8.01%
Total 274,828        315,303        366,759        411,969        421,514         2.32% 404,000        4.16%
Tax Base 13,741,420   15,765,152   18,337,941   20,598,437   21,075,705    20,200,000   

Town of Mountain Village Colorado Restaurant Tax Summary

  
 

 
Business license fees of $320,183 are over budget (2%) and prior year (7%).  $300,972 was remitted to MTI 
and $31,537 in admin fees and penalties were transferred to the General Fund. 
 
 

24



 

 
 
To:  TMVOA; Town Council 

From:  Kevin Swain, Finance Director 

Date:  February 7, 2018 

Re:  Gondola Quarterly Report, December 31, 2017  

Budgets have been updated for 2017 revisions adopted at the December 2017 meeting. 
 
At year-end 2017, the gondola fund is $1 million under budgeted expenses. Half of that savings are 
from major repairs and capital.   
 
Gondola Fund - Expenditures 

 
1. Mobile Aerial Rapid Rescue System (MARRS):   
 Annual budget: $81,158 
 YTD expenditures: $73,595 
 YTD budget: $81,158 

MARRS is 4% under budget.  This is primarily due to savings in employee costs. 
 
2. Chondola Operations and Maintenance:   

   Annual budget: $385,528  
   YTD expenditures: $319,109  
   YTD budget: $385,528 

Chondola operations expenses are under budget by 17%. Savings are in controls and the sound 
dampening project.   
 

3. Gondola Operations:   
   Annual budget: $1.8 million (includes grant success fees) 
   YTD expenditures: $1.6 million 
   YTD budget: $1.8 million 

Gondola operations were under budget by $170,878.  Group insurance and worker’s compensation 
premiums and claims are under budget $80,830 and $44,771. Group insurance is under budget due 
mainly to turnover in positions.  Worker’s comp saving are a mixture of prior year audit, prior year 
dividend returns, and favorable rates.   

 
4. Gondola Maintenance:  

   Annual budget: $1.27 million  
   YTD expenditures: $1.14 million 
   YTD budget: $1.27 million 

25



Gondola maintenance is under budget by $130,340.  Employee costs are under budget $118,259 
which includes worker’s compensation premiums and claims and group insurance. Contract labor 
also shows savings from budget. 
 

5. Fixed, General, Overhead and Administration:  
 Annual budget: $456,009 
 YTD expenditures: $386,414 
 YTD budget: $456,009 

FGOA costs are $69,595 below budget.  Savings are mainly in utilities and employee shuttle costs.   
 

6. Town Administrative Overhead:   
   Annual Budget: $45,000  
   YTD transfer: $43,161 
   YTD budget: $45,000 

Administrative allocations are based on actual hours and are considered a transfer to the General 
Fund rather than an expense.   
 

7. Major Repairs and Replacements:   
   Annual Budget: $526,265  
   YTD expenditures: $299,056 
   YTD budget: $526,265 

Expenses made were for cabin refurbishment, cabin window buffing, haul ropes, and wayfinding.  
Saving of $200,000 from budget were due to the fiber optics control system not undertaken.   

   
8. Capital Outlay:   

Annual Budget: $1.53 million (there are matching grant funds of $88,000 towards 
expenses)  

   YTD expenditures:  $1.25 million 
   YTD budget: $1.53 million 

Gondola cabins were replaced (under budget $186,500) and a new vehicle and generator (under 
budget $38,000) were purchased.  Bike racks, budgeted at $50,000 were not purchased.   
 
Overall Financial Performance through September 30, 2017 
 
Total gondola expenditures through this period of $5.17 million were 17% under budget.  Budget 
savings are due in large part to worker’s compensation, other employee costs, under budget or not 
completed major repairs and capital projects, and utility costs also under budget. Total funding for 
the period of $5.17 million was primarily provided by TMVOA (90%), with contributions of 
approximately $4.69 million, $186,075 (3%) provided by TSG from lift ticket sales, $88,000 in 
capital grant funding (1%), $149,982 in operating grant funding (2%), sale of assets of $1,672, TOT 
contribution of $36,000, and event operations funding of $14,157.  

26



Town of Mountain Village Monthly Revenue and Expenditure Report
December 2017

2016 2015 2014

 Actual YTD 
 Budget 

YTD 
 Budget 

Variance  
Budget 

Variance 
 Annual 
Budget 

 Budget 
Balance  Actual YTD  Actual YTD  Actual YTD 

($) (%)

Revenues
Charges for Services 480,671$             388,784$        91,887$      23.63% 388,784$           (91,887)$          268,083$          $341,139 $279,123
Contributions 74,551                 30,922            43,629        141.09% 30,922               (43,629)            45,209              39,762              35,287              
Fines and Forfeits 8,282                   6,077              2,205          36.28% 6,077                 (2,205)              11,157              7,146                4,093                
Interest Income 36,122                 45,000            (8,878)         -19.73% 45,000               8,878               47,908              60,650              44,268              
Intergovernmental 374,212               379,333          (5,121)         -1.35% 379,333             5,121               377,290            375,754            363,555            
Licenses and Permits 566,818               505,467          61,351        12.14% 505,467             (61,351)            302,975            349,783            274,555            
Miscellaneous Revenues 245,763               283,753          (37,990)       -13.39% 283,753             37,990             86,312              95,173              89,837              
Taxes and Assessments 9,451,398            9,407,934       43,464        0.46% 9,407,934          (43,464)            8,485,683         8,057,308         7,151,121         

Total Revenues 11,237,817          11,047,270     190,547      1.72% 11,047,270        (190,547)          9,624,617         9,326,715         8,241,839         

Operating Expenses
Legislation & Council 96,623                 112,704          (16,081)       -14.27% 112,704             16,081             59,066              38,825              18,072              
Town Manager 250,003               253,859          (3,856)         -1.52% 253,859             3,856               227,719            220,455            227,808            
Administrative Services 389,593               396,852          (7,259)         -1.83% 396,852             7,259               365,761            328,745            329,063            
Finance 810,135               821,896          (11,761)       -1.43% 821,896             11,761             793,106            784,943            766,061            
Technical 193,434               218,837          (25,403)       -11.61% 218,837             25,403             163,641            156,481            157,025            
Human Resources 296,357               313,963          (17,606)       -5.61% 313,963             17,606             291,849            273,828            251,257            
Town Attorney 450,145               530,929          (80,784)       -15.22% 530,929             80,784             538,421            524,997            438,293            
Marketing and Business Development 245,056               440,087          (195,031)     -44.32% 440,087             195,031           315,756            263,148            212,636            
Municipal Court 30,713                 31,633            (920)            -2.91% 31,633               920                  28,827              28,432              28,859              
Police Department 779,607               845,896          (66,289)       -7.84% 845,896             66,289             781,208            762,206            662,848            
Community Services 50,184                 51,687            (1,503)         -2.91% 51,687               1,503               47,130              48,810              51,391              
Community Grants and Contributions 106,000               106,000          -                  0.00% 106,000             -                       77,500              66,500              79,795              
Roads and Bridges 1,067,867            1,139,255       (71,388)       -6.27% 1,139,255          71,388             1,061,715         843,589            910,000            
Vehicle Maintenance 579,252               598,977          (19,725)       -3.29% 598,977             19,725             461,527            433,858            432,818            
Municipal Bus 195,188               207,834          (12,646)       -6.08% 207,834             12,646             186,049            155,433            154,008            
Employee Shuttle 44,498                 84,265            (39,767)       -47.19% 84,265               39,767             44,219              52,286              70,086              
Parks & Recreation 501,920               584,888          (82,968)       -14.19% 584,888             82,968             443,790            398,610            400,979            
Plaza Services 1,119,798            1,402,815       (283,017)     -20.17% 1,402,815          283,017           1,240,457         1,126,922         1,141,618         
Public Refuse Removal 50,937                 62,759            (11,822)       -18.84% 62,759               11,822             47,230              50,128              43,929              
Building/Facility Maintenance 168,333               205,816          (37,483)       -18.21% 205,816             37,483             167,933            171,537            100,459            
Planning & Development Services 8,589                   6,649              1,940          29.18% 6,649                 (1,940)              7,301                6,034                5,527                
Building Division 297,601               447,212          (149,611)     -33.45% 447,212             149,611           364,795            238,476            186,500            
Housing Division Office 18,998                 21,761            (2,763)         -12.70% 21,761               2,763               21,431              18,348              19,096              
Planning and Zoning Division 381,722               457,031          (75,309)       -16.48% 457,031             448,442           473,125            306,141            364,727            
Contingency -                          93,436            (93,436)       -100.00% 93,436               74,438             33,501              -                        -                        

Total Operating Expenses 8,132,553            9,437,041       (1,304,488)  -13.82% 9,437,041          1,658,623        8,243,057         7,298,732         7,052,855         

Surplus / Deficit 3,105,264            1,610,229       1,495,035   92.85% 1,610,229          (1,849,170)       1,381,560         2,027,983         1,188,984         

Capital Outlay 932,273               977,577          (45,304)       -4.63% 977,577             45,304             101,004            198,817            289,682            

Surplus / Deficit 2,172,991            632,652          1,540,339   243.47% 632,652             (1,540,339)       1,280,556         1,829,166         899,302            

Other Sources and Uses
Sale of Assets -                          -                      -                  #DIV/0! -                         -                       4,822                30,034              10,568              
Transfer (To) From Affordable Housing (461,662)             (440,572)         (21,090)       4.79% (440,572)            21,090             (445,361)           (423,604)           (348,409)           
Transfer (To) From Broadband -                          -                      -                  #DIV/0! -                         -                       -                        147,147            179,928            
Transfer (To) From Child Development (120,404)             (134,209)         13,805        -10.29% (134,209)            64,880             (67,460)             (59,902)             (86,937)             
Transfer (To) From Capital Projects (266,071)             (300,000)         33,929        -11.31% (300,000)            (337,580)          (355,658)           -                        -                        
Transfer (To) From Debt Service 357,151               291,348          65,803        22.59% 291,348             (190,785)          136,536            149,178            142,584            
Transfer (To) From Overhead Allocation 482,133               483,971          (1,838)         -0.38% 483,971             1,838               431,654            423,645            443,371            
Transfer (To) From Parking Services -                          (83,031)           83,031        -100.00% (83,031)              37,373             -                        191,508            36,751              
Transfer (To) From Conference Center (199,089)             (223,467)         24,378        -10.91% (223,467)            (223,467)          (196,206)           (193,103)           (153,097)           
Transfer (To) From Tourism 37,580                 24,533            13,047        53.18% 24,533               (332,618)          25,755              62,645              28,124              
Transfer (To) From Vehicle/Equipment (561,775)             (696,248)         134,473      -19.31% (696,248)            (134,473)          (353,671)           (283,305)           (185,994)           
Transfer (To) From Water/Sewer -                          -                      -                  #DIV/0! -                         -                       -                        -                        -                        

Total Other Sources and Uses (732,137)             (1,077,674)      345,537      -32.06% (1,077,675)         (1,093,741)       (819,589)           44,242              66,890              

2017

27



2016 2015 2014

 Actual YTD 
 Budget 

YTD 
 Budget 

Variance  
Budget 

Variance 
 Annual 
Budget 

 Budget 
Balance  Actual YTD  Actual YTD  Actual YTD 

($) (%)

2017

Surplus / Deficit 1,440,854$          (445,023)$       1,885,877$ -423.77% (445,023)$          (2,634,081)$     460,967$          1,873,408$       966,192$          

Beginning Fund Balance Components Actual YTD Annual Budget
Emergency Reserve 3,302,964$          3,256,401$        
Unreserved 6,143,351            4,900,429          

Beginning Fund Balance 9,446,315$          8,156,830$        

YTD Ending Fund Balance Components
Emergency Reserve 3,302,964$          3,256,401$        
Health Care Premium Savings Reserve 50,000                 50,000               
Facility Maint Reserve 155,000               155,000             
Unreserved 7,379,205            4,250,406          

Ending Fund Balance 10,887,169$        7,711,807$        

Revenues
Taxes & Assessments - Property taxes are under budget because of abatements.  Specific Ownership taxes collected are exceeding budget and prior year 13%. 

Sales tax revenues are 2% over budget and 5% over prior year.  Construction use tax exceeded prior year and budget.  
Licenses & Permits -  Construction, electrical, and plumbing permits are over budget.
Intergovernmental - Intergovernmental revenues are under budget due to mineral lease and severance revenues and highway user tax funds.
Charges for Services - DRB fees are over budget $16,000 and plan review fees are exceeding budget $29,000.  Road impact fees are exceeding budget $63,500.
Fines & Forfeitures - Over budget due to traffic fines. 
Investment Income - Interest is under budget and prior year.
Miscellaneous - Over budget in plaza rents but under budget in grants.
Contributions -  Over budget due to the See Forever contribution for Sunset Plaza.

Top Ten Budget Variances 

Under Budget
Plaza Services -  $283,017 Employee, natural gas, and electricity savings.  Savings also in planter/paver repair and contract labor.
Marketing and Business Development - $195,031  Under budget in personnel costs due to vacancies, sponsorship, and marketing collateral.
Building Division - $149,611 Environmental incentive programs are under budget.
Parks and Recreation - $82,968  Under budget in trail maintenance and labor costs.
Town Attorney - $80,784 Litigation is running over budget but is offset by general and extraordinary legal.
Planning & Zoning - $75,309 Savings in consultation fees, forestry management, and personnel costs.
Road & Bridge - $71,388  Gasoline and paving and bridge repair are under budget.
Police - $66,289  Savings in personnel costs.
Employee Shuttle - $39,767  Gasoline and repairs and maintenance is under budget.

Over Budget
Planning & Development - $1940 Communications and contract labor are over budget. Overage absorbed by the planning, building, and housing office budgets.

28



Town of Mountain Village Monthly Revenue and Expenditure Report
December 2017

2016 2015 2014
 Actual 
YTD 

 Budget 
YTD 

 Budget 
Variance  

Budget 
Variance 

 Annual 
Budget 

 Budget 
Balance 

 Actual 
YTD 

 Actual 
YTD 

 Actual 
YTD 

($) (%)
Tourism Fund

Revenues
Business License Fees 320,183$      315,307$      4,876$          2% 315,307$      (4,876)$         296,585$     $281,898 $270,572
Lodging Taxes - Condos/Homes 945,490        884,570        60,920          7% 884,570        (60,920)         912,743       812,121       563,529       
Lodging Taxes - Hotels 755,468        784,430        (28,962)         -4% 784,430        28,962          725,343       685,304       638,859       
Lodging Taxes - Prior Year 692               -                    692               #DIV/0! -                    (692)              824              4,840           781              
Penalties and Interest 14,565          15,000          (435)              -3% 15,000          435               15,635         26,448         12,546         
Restaurant Taxes 421,514        404,000        17,514          4% 404,000        (17,514)         411,969       366,365       314,737       
Restaurant Taxes - Prior Year -                    -                    -                    #DIV/0! -                    -                    85                641              88                

Total Revenues 2,457,911     2,403,307     54,604          2% 2,403,307     (54,604)         2,363,183    2,177,617    1,801,111    

Tourism Funding
Additional Funding 27,915          40,000          (12,085)         -30% 40,000          12,085          38,000         8,091           25,000         
Airline Guaranty Funding 1,246,892     1,213,730     33,162          3% 1,213,730     (33,162)         1,206,879    1,095,776    898,081       
MTI Funding 1,143,288     1,122,544     20,744          2% 1,122,544     (20,744)         1,090,050    1,008,605    849,906       

Total Tourism Funding 2,418,095     2,376,274     41,822          98% 2,376,274     (41,822)         2,334,929    2,112,472    1,772,987    

Surplus / Deficit 39,815          27,033          12,782          47% 27,033          (12,782)         28,255         65,145         28,124         

Administrative Fees
Audit Fees 2,235            2,500            (265)              -11% 2,500            265               2,500           2,500           -                  

Total Administrative Fees 2,235            2,500            (265)              -11% 2,500            265               2,500           2,500           -                  

Surplus / Deficit 37,580          24,533          13,047          53% 24,533          (13,047)         25,755         62,645         28,124         

Other Sources and Uses
Transfer (To) From Other Funds (37,580)         (24,533)         (13,047)         53% (24,533)         13,047          (25,755)        (62,645)        (28,124)        

Total Other Sources and Uses (37,580)         (24,533)         (13,047)         53% (24,533)         13,047          (25,755)        (62,645)        (28,124)        

Surplus / Deficit -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                -$                -$                

2017

29



Town of Mountain Village Monthly Revenue and Expenditure Report
December 2017

2016 2015 2014
 Actual 
YTD 

 Budget 
YTD 

 Budget 
Variance  

Budget 
Variance 

 Annual 
Budget 

 Budget 
Balance  Actual YTD  Actual YTD  Actual YTD 

($) (%)
Parking Services Fund

Revenues
Contributions/Shared Facility Expenses 12,230$          7,000$             5,230$          75% 7,000$             (5,230)$         9,953$               $7,732 $20,771
Fines and Forfeits 27,320            30,000             (2,680)           -9% 30,000             2,680             48,374               52,769               29,182                    
Gondola Parking Garage 115,680          105,000           10,680          10% 105,000           (10,680)         105,111             198,945             140,173                  
Heritage Parking Garage 195,112          150,000           45,112          30% 150,000           (45,112)         157,278             153,063             139,895                  
Parking Meter Revenues 18,518            12,000             6,518             54% 12,000             (6,518)           6,214                 12,288               10,750                    
Parking Permits 12,548            12,000             548                5% 12,000             (548)              14,605               16,995               14,986                    
Parking in Lieu Buyouts 80,000            80,000             -                    0% 80,000             -                    -                         -                         -                              
Special Event Parking 49,286            41,000             8,286             20% 41,000             (8,286)           65,897               60,299               41,743                    

Total Revenues 510,694          437,000           73,694          17% 437,000           (73,694)         407,432             502,091             397,500                  

Operating Expenses
Other Operating Expenses 53,277            29,730             23,547          79% 29,730             (23,547)         5,874                 2,762                 614                         
Personnel Expenses 120,937          135,212           (14,275)         -11% 135,212           14,275          113,641             115,759             122,316                  
Gondola Parking Garage 73,659            62,445             11,214          18% 62,445             (11,214)         38,268               37,424               37,705                    
Surface Lots 66,524            54,900             11,624          21% 54,900             (11,624)         18,802               21,344               23,909                    
Heritage Parking Garage 80,148            109,045           (28,897)         -27% 109,045           28,897          89,770               87,294               113,152                  
Meadows Parking 1,000              1,000               -                    0% 1,000               -                    15,454               1,000                 2,000                      

Total Operating Expenses 395,545          392,332           3,213             1% 392,332           (3,213)           281,809             265,583             299,696                  

Surplus / Deficit 115,149          44,668             70,481          158% 44,668             (70,481)         125,623             236,508             97,804                    

Capital
Capital 4,800              94,800             (90,000)         -95% 94,800             90,000          4,800                 14,715               29,232                    

Surplus / Deficit 110,349          (50,132)            160,481        -320% (50,132)           (160,481)       120,823             221,793             68,572                    

Other Sources and Uses
Sale of Assets -                      -                       -                    #DIV/0! -                       -                    -                         -                         -                              
Overhead Allocation (32,899)           (32,899)            -                    0% (32,899)           -                    (27,038)              (30,285)              (31,821)                  
Transfer (To) From General Fund -                      83,031             (83,031)         -100% 83,031             83,031          -                         (191,508)            (36,751)                  

Total Other Sources and Uses (32,899)           50,132             (83,031)         -166% 50,132             83,031          (27,038)              (221,793)            (68,572)                  

Surplus / Deficit 77,450$          -$                     -$                  #DIV/0! -$                     93,785$             -$                       -$                            

Beginning Fund Balance 93,785$          -$                     93,785$        
Ending Fund Balance 171,235$        -$                     171,235$      

Parking revenues are over budget $73,700. HPG revenues are over budget and prior year 30% and 24%.  This is primarily because there are no free hours.  Parking meter 
(surface lots) revenues are over budget 54% and prior year 198%.   GPG is over budget and over prior year 10%.  Personnel costs are under budget but other costs are 
over due to wayfinding. GPG is over budget in asphalt repair. HPG is under budget due to shared expenses.  Surface lots maintenance is over budget.  The Parking Fund 
did not require a transfer from the General Fund.

2017

30



Town of Mountain Village Monthly Revenue and Expenditure Report
December 2017

2016 2015 2014

 Actual YTD 
 Budget 

YTD 
 Budget 

Variance  
Budget 

Variance 
 Annual 
Budget 

 Budget 
Balance  Actual YTD  Actual YTD  Actual YTD 

($) (%)
Gondola Fund

Revenues
Event Operations Funding 14,157$           -$                     14,157$           #DIV/0! -$                     (14,157)$          7,029$                 16,663$               5,525$                 
Event Operations Funding - SMC/TOT 36,000             36,000             -                       0.00% 36,000             -                       36,000                 36,000                 36,000                 
Operations Grant Funding 149,982           150,100           (118)                 -0.08% 150,100           118                  150,100               150,101               325,908               
Capital/MR&R Grant Funding 88,000             88,000             -                       0.00% 88,000             -                       808,977               171,842               -                           
Insurance Proceeds -                       -                       -                       #DIV/0! -                       -                       -                           -                           -                           
Miscellaneous Revenues 591                  -                       591                  #DIV/0! -                       (591)                 3,658                   12,100                 3,169                   
Sale of Assets 1,672               -                       1,672               #DIV/0! -                       (1,672)              3,350                   10,500                 558                      
TMVOA Operating Contributions 3,228,341        3,792,978        (564,637)          -14.89% 3,792,978        564,637           3,156,618            3,158,639            2,878,376            
TMVOA Capital Contributions 1,461,922        1,972,689        (510,767)          -25.89% 1,972,689        510,767           1,297,602            398,801               392,058               
TSG 1% Lift Sales 186,075           200,000           (13,925)            -6.96% 200,000           13,925             195,809               181,205               158,550               

Total Revenues 5,166,740        6,239,767        (1,073,027)       -17.20% 6,239,767        1,073,027        5,659,143            4,135,851            3,800,144            

Operating Expenses
Overhead Allocation Transfer 43,161             45,000             (1,839)              -4.09% 45,000             1,839               43,097                 43,735                 -                           
MAARS 73,595             81,158             (7,563)              -9.32% 81,158             7,563               68,273                 66,092                 71,291                 
Chondola 319,109           385,528           (66,419)            -17.23% 385,528           66,419             272,107               225,093               162,843               
Grant Success Fees 8,736               14,286             (5,550)              -38.85% 14,286             5,550               30,606                 29,166                 37,702                 
Operations 1,645,929        1,816,807        (170,878)          -9.41% 1,816,807        170,878           1,616,274            1,632,286            1,529,002            
Maintenance 1,139,874        1,270,214        (130,340)          -10.26% 1,270,214        130,340           1,117,757            1,194,030            1,122,519            
FGOA 386,414           456,009           (69,595)            -15.26% 456,009           69,595             404,450               374,806               484,729               
Major Repairs and Replacements 299,056           576,265           (277,209)          -48.10% 576,265           277,209           1,007,901            214,440               272,685               
Contingency -                       110,076           (110,076)          -100.00% 110,076           110,076           -                           -                           -                           

Total Operating Expenses 3,915,874        4,755,343        (839,469)          -17.65% 4,755,343        839,469           4,560,465            3,779,648            3,680,771            

Surplus / Deficit 1,250,866        1,484,424        (233,558)          -15.73% 1,484,424        1,098,678            356,203               119,373               

Capital
Capital Outlay 1,250,866        1,484,424        (233,558)          -15.73% 1,484,424        233,558           1,098,678            356,203               119,373               

Surplus / Deficit -$                     -$                     -$                     #DIV/0! -$                     -$                         -$                         -$                         

2017

31



Town of Mountain Village Monthly Revenue and Expenditure Report
December 2017

2016 2015 2014
 Actual 

YTD 
 Budget 

YTD 
 Budget 

Variance  
Budget 

Variance 
 Annual 
Budget 

 Budget 
Balance 

 Actual 
YTD 

 Actual 
YTD 

 Actual 
YTD 

($) (%)
Child Development Fund

Revenues
Daycare Fees 272,382$         275,396$         (3,014)             -1.09% 275,396$         3,014$             283,175$         $252,544 $245,405
Fundraising Revenues - Daycare 16,768             8,500               8,268               97.27% 8,500               (8,268)             14,857             13,417             10,136             
Fundraising Revenues - Preschool 3,075               3,500               (425)                -0.24% 3,500               (158,938)         2,880               3,379               3,980               
Grant Revenues - Daycare 25,650             24,450             1,200               4.91% 24,450             (1,200)             32,354             24,904             23,147             
Grant Revenues - Preschool 13,000             13,000             -                      0.00% 13,000             -                      14,168             13,595             12,168             
Preschool Fees 162,438           173,475           (11,037)           -6.36% 173,475           170,400           177,131           172,082           171,473           

Total Revenues 493,313           498,321           (5,008)             -1.00% 498,321           5,008               524,565           479,921           466,309           

Operating Expenses
Daycare Other Expense 70,112             64,246             5,866               9.13% 64,246             (5,866)             70,244             58,338             57,240             
Daycare Personnel Expense 345,127           357,428           (12,301)           -3.44% 357,428           12,301             332,421           336,385           310,570           
Preschool Other Expense 39,432             45,560             (6,128)             -13.45% 45,560             6,128               39,518             35,374             42,766             
Preschool Personnel Expense 159,046           165,296           (6,250)             -3.78% 165,296           6,250               149,842           109,726           142,670           

Total Operating Expenses 613,717           632,530           (18,813)           -2.97% 632,530           18,813             592,025           539,823           553,246           

Surplus / Deficit (120,404)         (134,209)         13,805             -10.29% (134,209)         (67,460)           (59,902)           (86,937)           

Other Sources and Uses
Contributions -                      -                      -                      #DIV/0! -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
Transfer (To) From General Fund 120,404           134,209           13,805             10.29% 134,209           13,805             67,460             59,902             86,937             

Total Other Sources and Uses 120,404           134,209           13,805             10.29% 134,209           13,805             67,460             59,902             86,937             

Surplus / Deficit -$                    -$                    -$                    #DIV/0! -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    

Child Development revenues are $5,000 under budget or 1%.  Operating expenses are $18,813 under budget due primarily to group insurance in both daycare and preschool. 
The program required $120,404 in funds from the General Fund in 2017.

2017

32



Town of Mountain Village Monthly Revenue and Expenditure Report
December 2017

2016 2015 2014

 Actual YTD  Budget YTD 
 Budget 

Variance  
Budget 

Variance 
 Annual 
Budget 

 Budget 
Balance  Actual YTD  Actual YTD  Actual YTD 

($) (%)
Water & Sewer Fund

Revenues
Mountain Village Water and Sewer 2,594,660$           2,513,307$           81,353$                3.24% 2,513,307$           (81,353)$               2,262,918$           $2,276,311 $2,197,870
Other Revenues 10,373                  13,450                  (3,077)                   -22.88% 13,450                  3,077                    9,753                    10,126                  9,336                    
Ski Ranches Water 155,919                158,111                (2,192)                   -1.39% 158,111                2,192                    139,185                131,230                130,865                
Skyfield Water 29,474                  27,525                  1,949                    7.08% 27,525                  (1,949)                   26,165                  21,874                  24,127                  

Total Revenues 2,790,426             2,712,393             78,033                  2.88% 2,712,393             (78,033)                 2,438,021             2,439,541             2,362,197             

Operating Expenses
Mountain Village Sewer 503,537                508,902                (5,365)                   -1.05% 508,902                5,365                    479,585                455,206                414,305                
Mountain Village Water 897,405                1,051,259             (153,854)               -14.64% 1,051,259             153,854                883,342                936,056                864,141                
Ski Ranches Water 65,418                  41,639                  23,779                  57.11% 41,639                  (23,779)                 18,894                  25,704                  20,389                  
Contingency -                            32,036                  (32,036)                 -100.00% 32,036                  32,036                  -                            -                            -                            

Total Operating Expenses 1,466,360             1,633,836             (167,476)               -10.25% 1,633,836             167,476                1,381,821             1,416,966             1,298,835             

Surplus / Deficit 1,324,066             1,078,557             245,509                22.76% 1,078,557             1,056,200             1,022,575             1,063,363             

Capital
Capital Outlay 379,565                470,220                (90,655)                 -19.28% 470,220                90,655                  392,577                1,742,372             330,931                

Surplus / Deficit 944,501                608,337                336,164                55.26% 608,337                663,623                (719,797)               732,431                

Other Sources and Uses
Overhead Allocation Transfer (142,527)               (142,527)               -                            0.00% (142,527)               -                            (131,311)               (127,164)               (134,455)               
Mountain Village Tap Fees 255,316                250,000                5,316                    2.13% 250,000                (5,316)                   42,960                  105,228                27,043                  
Grants -                            -                            -                            #DIV/0! -                            -                            -                            67,774                  -                            
Ski Ranches Tap Fees 21,232                  21,232                  -                            0.00% 21,232                  -                            -                            -                            10,718                  
Skyfield Tap Fees -                            -                            -                            #DIV/0! -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            
Sale of Assets 352                       -                            352                       #DIV/0! -                            (352)                      -                            -                            -                            
Telski Tap Fee/Water  Credit -                            -                            -                            #DIV/0! -                            -                            -                            -                            (116,762)               
Transfer (To) From General Fund -                            -                            -                            #DIV/0! -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            

Total Other Sources and Uses 134,373                128,705                5,668                    4.40% 128,705                (5,668)                   (88,351)                 45,838                  (213,456)               

Surplus / Deficit 1,078,874$           737,042$              341,832$              46.38% 737,042$              575,272$              (673,959)$             518,976$              

MV Excess water fees exceeded budget $15,300 and snowmaking is over budget $66,800.  Skyfield excess usage fees are over budget and Ski Ranches is under budget. Other revenues are 
under budget in maintenance and inspection fees.  Sewer expenditures are under budget by 1%. MV water is under budget mainly in water sample analysis, salaries and wages, and electricity.  
Personnel costs are under due to more time being spent and allocated to Ski Ranches, which is over budget in salaries and wages and tank replacement.  Capital costs were for a vehicle, the 
Ski Ranches chlorine building, power generators, water rights, regional sewer, and lift 7 water line.  
 

2017

33



Town of Mountain Village Monthly Revenue and Expenditure Report
December 2017

2016 2015 2014

 Actual YTD 
 Budget 

YTD 
 Budget 

Variance  
Budget 

Variance 
 Annual 
Budget 

 Budget 
Balance  Actual YTD  Actual YTD  Actual YTD 

($) (%)
Broadband Fund

Revenues
Cable User Fees 890,845$         917,150$         (26,305)$          -2.87% 917,150$         26,305$           860,098$         $825,982 $793,941
Internet User Fees 952,341           867,899           84,442             9.73% 867,899           (84,442)            869,961           787,572           708,974           
Other Revenues 59,118             62,764             (3,646)              -5.81% 62,764             25,299             51,050             68,575             86,829             
Phone Service Fees 37,465             35,281             2,184               6.19% 35,281             (23,837)            37,495             35,413             35,742             

Total Revenues 1,939,769        1,883,094        56,675             3.01% 1,883,094        (56,675)            1,818,604        1,717,542        1,625,486        

Operating Expenses
Cable Direct Costs 792,260           828,736           (36,476)            -4.40% 828,736           36,476             784,883           651,234           572,187           
Phone Service Costs 24,240             27,000             (2,760)              -10.22% 27,000             2,760               24,905             26,745             24,505             
Internet Direct Costs 214,500           224,400           (9,900)              -4.41% 224,400           9,900               232,132           167,783           108,000           
Cable Operations 551,931           579,363           (27,432)            -4.73% 579,363           27,432             532,128           530,962           532,434           
Contingency 55                     3,000               (2,945)              -98.17% 3,000               2,945               -                       -                       -                       

Total Operating Expenses 1,582,986        1,662,499        (79,513)            -4.78% 1,662,499        79,513             1,574,048        1,376,724        1,237,126        

Surplus / Deficit 356,783           220,595           136,188           61.74% 220,595           244,556           340,818           388,360           

Capital
Capital Outlay 131,574           126,500           5,074               4.01% 126,500           (5,074)              51,774             126,654           42,096             

Surplus / Deficit 225,209           94,095             131,114           139.34% 94,095             192,782           214,164           346,264           

Other Sources and Uses
Sale of Assets -                       -                       -                       #DIV/0! -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       
Transfer (To) From General Fund -                       -                       -                       #DIV/0! -                       -                       -                       (147,147)          (179,928)          
Overhead Allocation Transfer (145,028)          (145,028)          -                       0.00% (145,028)          -                       (127,762)          (117,017)          (116,336)          

Total Other Sources and Uses (145,028)          (145,028)          -                       0.00% (145,028)          -                       (127,762)          (264,164)          (296,264)          

Surplus / Deficit 80,181$           (50,933)$          131,114$         -257.43% (50,933)$          65,020$           (50,000)$          50,000$           

Beginning (Available) Fund Balance 125,019$         125,019$         -$                     
Ending (Available) Fund Balance 205,200$         74,086$           131,114$         

Cable user revenues are under budget and over prior year.  The prior year variance is mainly due to increased rates. Internet revenues are over budget and prior year
9.7% and 9%.   Other revenues are under budget 5.8% due primarily to equipment rental and parts revenues.  Direct costs for cable are under budget and over prior
year due to increasing programming costs.  Internet costs are under budget due to a one time credit.  Phone service revenues are over budget by 6.2%, while phone 
service expenses are under budget by 10.2%.  Cable operating expenses are under budget with savings in multiple line items. Capital expenses were for a cable system 
upgrade.  

2017

34



Town of Mountain Village Monthly Revenue and Expenditure Report
December 2017

2016 2015 2014
 Actual 
YTD 

 Budget 
YTD 

 Budget 
Variance  

Budget 
Variance 

 Annual 
Budget 

 Budget 
Balance  Actual YTD  Actual YTD  Actual YTD 

($) (%)
Telluride Conference Center Fund

Revenues
Beverage Revenues -$                  -$                 -$                  #DIV/0! -$                    -$                  -$                       -$                      -$                      
Catering Revenues -                    -                    -                    #DIV/0! -                      -                    -                         -                        -                        
Facility Rental -                    -                    -                    #DIV/0! -                      -                    -                         -                        -                        
Operating/Other Revenues -                    -                    -                    #DIV/0! -                      -                    -                         -                        920                   

Total Revenues -                    -                    -                    #DIV/0! -                      -                    -                         -                        920                   

Operating Expenses
General Operations -                    15,000          (15,000)         -100.00% 15,000            15,000          -                         27                     -                        
Administration 93,525          88,467          5,058            5.72% 88,467            (5,058)           82,422               82,639              78,598              
Marketing 100,000        100,000        -                    0.00% 100,000          -                    100,000             100,000            36,480              
Contingency -                    -                    -                    #DIV/0! -                      -                    -                         -                        -                        

Total Operating Expenses 193,525        203,467        (9,942)           -4.89% 203,467          9,942            182,422             182,666            115,078            

Surplus / Deficit (193,525)       (203,467)      9,942            -4.89% (203,467)         (182,422)           (182,666)          (114,158)          

Capital Outlay/ Major R&R 5,564            20,000          (14,436)         -72.18% 20,000            14,436          13,784               10,437              38,938              

Surplus / Deficit (199,089)       (223,467)      24,378          -10.91% (223,467)         (196,206)           (193,103)          (153,097)          

Other Sources and Uses
Damage Receipts -                    -                    -                    #DIV/0! -                      -                    -                         -                        -                        
Insurance Proceeds -                    -                    -                    #DIV/0! -                      -                    -                         -                        -                        
Sale of Assets -                    -                    -                    #DIV/0! -                      -                    -                         -                        -                        
Transfer (To) From General Fund 199,089        223,467        (24,378)         -10.91% 223,467          24,378          196,206             193,103            153,097            
Overhead Allocation Transfer -                    -                    -                    #DIV/0! -                      -                    -                         -                        -                        

Total Other Sources and Uses 199,089        223,467        (24,378)         74.00% 223,467          24,378          196,206             193,103            153,097            

Surplus / Deficit -$                  -$                 -$                  #DIV/0! -$                    -$                       -$                      -$                      

Expenses for the year are HOA dues, appraisal costs, HVAC upgrade, and contracted marketing expenses.

2017

35



Town of Mountain Village Monthly Revenue and Expenditure Report
December 2017

2016 2015 2014
 Actual 
YTD 

 Budget 
YTD 

 Budget 
Variance  

Budget 
Variance 

 Annual 
Budget 

 Budget 
Balance  Actual YTD  Actual YTD  Actual YTD 

($) (%)
Affordable  Housing Development Fund

Revenues
Contributions -$                  -$                  -$                  #DIV/0! -$                    -$                  -$                      -$                      -$                      
Grant Proceeds -                    -                    -                    #DIV/0! -                      -                    -                        -                        -                        
Rental Income 13,165          12,778          387               3.03% 12,778            (387)              13,135              12,579              12,705              
Sales Proceeds -                    -                    -                    #DIV/0! -                      -                    -                        -                        -                        

Total Revenues 13,165          12,778          387               3.03% 12,778            (387)              13,135              12,579              12,705              

Operating Expenses
Community Garden -                    1,000            (1,000)           -100.00% 1,000              1,000            -                        2,495                -                        
HA Consultant 4,900            13,000          (8,100)           -62.31% 13,000            8,100            -                        -                        69,280              
RHA Funding 87,776          87,776          -                    0.00% 87,776            -                    88,500              82,138              -                        
Town Owned Properties 11,694          9,987            1,707            17.09% 9,987              (1,707)           10,004              9,920                9,905                
Density bank 8,856            9,013            (157)              -1.74% 9,013              157               8,856                8,856                8,856                

Total Operating Expenses 113,226        120,776        (7,550)           -6.25% 120,776          7,550            107,360            103,409            88,041              

Surplus / Deficit (100,061)       (107,998)       (7,937)           7.35% (107,998)         (7,937)           (94,225)             (90,831)             (75,336)             

Other Sources and Uses
Transfer (To) From MAP -                    (60,000)         60,000          -100.00% (60,000)           -                    -                        (30,000)             -                        
Transfer (To) From General Fund - Sales Tax 461,662        440,572        21,090          4.79% 440,572          (21,090)         445,361            423,604            348,409            
Transfer (To) From Capital Projects Fund (1) -                    -                    -                    #DIV/0! -                      -                    -                        (453,202)           (54,221)             
Transfer (To) From VCA -                    -                    -                    #DIV/0! -                      -                    -                        -                        (33,752)             

Total Other Sources and Uses 461,662        380,572        81,090          21.31% 380,572          (21,090)         445,361            (59,599)             260,435            

Surplus / Deficit 361,602$      272,574$      (89,028)$       -32.66% 272,574$        (29,028)$       351,136$           (150,429)$         185,100$           

Beginning Fund Equity Balance 1,149,533$   1,149,533$   -$                  
Ending Equity Fund Balance 1,511,135$   1,422,107$   89,028$        

1. For Meadows Improvement Plan

Expenses consist of HOA dues, RHA contribution, maintenance and utilities on town owned property and fees associated with the housing consultation undertaking.  

2017

36



Town of Mountain Village Monthly Revenue and Expenditure Report
December 2017

2016 2015 2014
Actual Budget Budget Budget Annual Budget

Village Court Apartments YTD YTD Vary ($) Var (%) Budget Balance
Operating Revenues
  Rental Income 2,244,056$         2,225,944$         18,112$             1% 2,225,944$        (18,112)$            2,274,578$            $2,264,605 $2,206,773
  Other Operating Income 99,585                82,225                17,360               21% 82,225               (17,360)              59,251                   72,856                   117,473                 
  Less: Allowance for Bad Debt 4,608                  (10,914)              15,522               -142% (10,914)              (15,522)              (1,917)                    (9,619)                    (12,918)                  
    Total Operating Revenue 2,348,249           2,297,255           50,994               2% 2,297,255          (50,994)              2,331,911              2,327,842              2,311,328              

Operating Expenses
  Office Operations 175,583              197,879              22,296               11% 197,879             22,296                138,114                 195,125                 173,601                 
  General and Administrative 127,667              171,105              43,438               25% 171,105             43,438                115,696                 111,240                 109,656                 
  Utilities 370,625              381,950              11,325               3% 381,950             11,325                353,617                 348,609                 362,007                 
  Repair and Maintenance 385,434              412,516              27,082               7% 412,516             27,082                367,916                 365,407                 347,354                 
  Major Repairs and Replacement 193,273              170,801              (22,472)              -13% 170,801             (22,472)              164,548                 90,721                   206,805                 
  Contingency -                         13,452                13,452               0% 13,452               13,452                9,338                     -                             -                             
    Total Operating Expenses 1,252,581           1,347,703           95,122               7% 1,347,703          95,122                1,149,229              1,111,102              1,199,424              

Surplus / (Deficit) After Operations 1,095,667           949,552              146,115             15% 949,552             1,182,682              1,216,740              1,111,905              

Non-Operating (Income) / Expense
  Investment Earning (1,264)                (60)                     1,204                 2007% (60)                     1,204                  (52)                         (72)                         (179)                       
  Debt Service, Interest 406,401              406,401              0                        0% 406,401             0                        432,260                 480,291                 262,799                 
  Debt Service, Fees 1,750                  -                         (1,750)                #DIV/0! -                        (1,750)                1,750                     4,500                     518,537                 
  Debt Service, Principal 357,073              357,073              -                        0% 357,073             -                         367,621                 356,834                 285,801                 
    Total Non-Operating (Income) / Expense 763,960              763,414              (546)                   0% 763,414             (546)                   801,580                 841,553                 1,066,957              

Surplus / (Deficit) Before Capital 331,708              186,138              145,570             78% 186,138             381,102                 375,187                 44,947                   

  Capital Spending 6,713                  -                         (6,713)                #DIV/0! -                        (6,713)                5,496                     -                             -                             

Surplus / (Deficit) 324,995              186,138              138,857             75% 186,138             375,606                 375,187                 44,947                   

Other Sources / (Uses)
Transfer (To)/From General Fund (118,518)            (118,518)            -                        0% (118,518)            (119,486)            (102,446)                (105,444)                (116,635)                
Sale of Assets 968                     -                         968                    0% -                        -                         -                             -                             -                             
Grant Revenues -                         -                         -                        0% -                        -                         -                             -                             -                             
Transfer From AHDF -                         -                         -                        0% -                        117,550              -                             -                             33,752                   
    Total Other Sources / (Uses) (117,550)            (118,518)            968                    0% (118,518)            117,550              (102,446)                (105,444)                (82,883)                  

Surplus / (Deficit) 207,445              67,620                139,825             207% 67,620               273,160                 269,743                 (37,936)                  

Rent revenues exceeded budget 1% but are down from previous year.  Other revenues are over budget 21% due mainly to lease break and unit transfer fees, credit check and pet fees.  Office 
operations are under budget 11%.  This is primarily due to employee costs and outside consulting.  General and administrative is under budget 25% due mainly to marketing expenses, credit 
card charges, and property insurance.  Utilities are 3% under budget and 4% higher than last year, with budget savings in electricity.  Maintenance is under budget 7%. MR&R is over budget 
13% due to the carpet replacement in common areas.  Expenses include roof repairs, carpet replacement (including some of the common areas), appliances (to include hot water heaters), vinyl 
replacement, and the bobcat lease.

2017

Actual Actual Actual

37



Town of Mountain Village Monthly Revenue and Expenditure Report
December 2017

2016 2015 2014

 Actual YTD  Budget YTD 
 Budget 

Variance  
Budget 

Variance 
 Annual 
Budget 

 Budget 
Balance  Actual YTD  Actual YTD  Actual YTD 

($) (%)
Debt Service Fund
Revenues

Abatements -$                          -$                      -$                      #DIV/0! -$                         -$                      -$                              -$                              -$                              
Contributions 204,515                 204,335             180                    0.09% 204,335               (180)                  207,975                     206,275                     204,425                     
Miscellaneous Revenue -                            -                        -                        #DIV/0! -                           -                        -                                -                                -                                
Property Taxes 3,414,348              3,481,093          (66,744)             -1.92% 3,481,093            66,744               3,438,748                  3,473,399                  3,536,181                  
Reserve/Capital/Liquidity Interest 4,302                     2,053                 2,249                 109.53% 2,053                   (2,249)               1,314                         1,561                         10,582                       
Specific Ownership Taxes 149,712                 83,909               65,803               78.42% 83,909                 (65,803)             136,536                     149,178                     142,584                     

Total Revenues 3,772,877              3,771,390          1,488                 140.00% 3,771,390            (1,488)               3,784,572                  3,830,413                  3,893,773                  

Debt Service
2001/2011 Bonds - Gondola - Paid by contributions from TMVOA and TSG

2001/2011 Bond Issue - Interest 89,515                   89,525               (10)                    77.85% 89,525                 10                      92,975                       96,275                       99,425                       
2001/2011 Bond Issue - Principal 115,000                 115,000             -                        #DIV/0! 115,000               -                        115,000                     110,000                     105,000                     

2005 Bonds - Telluride Conference Center - (refunding portion   -                        
2005 Bond Issue - Interest 34,000                   34,000               -                        5.00% 34,000                 -                        66,250                       97,000                       126,250                     
2005 Bond Issue - Principal 680,000                 680,000             -                        #DIV/0! 680,000               -                        645,000                     615,000                     585,000                     

2006/2014 Bonds - Heritage Parking -                        
2014 Bond Issue - Interest 267,180                 267,795             (615)                  53.03% 267,795               615                    276,425                     285,211                     373,388                     
2014 Bond Issue - Principal 505,000                 505,000             -                        #DIV/0! 505,000               -                        15,000                       245,000                     220,000                     

2007 Bonds - Water/Sewer (refunding 1997) -                        
2007 Bond Issue - Interest 89,513                   89,513               (1)                      5.25% 89,513                 1                        174,825                     244,800                     300,863                     
2007 Bond Issue - Principal 1,705,000              1,705,000          -                        #DIV/0! 1,705,000            -                        1,625,000                  1,555,000                  1,495,000                  

2009 Bonds - Telluride Conference Center (refunding 1998 bo -                        
2009 Bond Issue - Interest 12,400                   12,400               -                        4.00% 12,400                 -                        24,200                       32,900                       41,300                       
2009 Bond Issue - Principal 310,000                 310,000             -                        8.14% 310,000               -                        295,000                     290,000                     280,000                     

Total Debt Service 3,807,608              3,808,233          (625)                  -0.02% 3,808,233            625                    3,329,675                  3,571,186                  3,626,226                  

Surplus / (Deficit) (34,731)                 (36,844)             2,113                 -5.73% (36,844)                454,897                     259,227                     267,547                     

Operating Expenses
Administrative Fees 2,175                     13,750               (11,575)             -84.18% 13,750                 11,575               11,764                       12,325                       128,236                     
County Treasurer Collection Fees 102,762                 102,344             418                    0.41% 102,344               (418)                  103,442                     104,429                     106,280                     

Total Operating Expenses 104,937                 116,094             (11,157)             -9.61% 116,094               11,157               115,206                     116,754                     234,516                     

Surplus / (Deficit) (139,668)               (152,938)           13,269               -8.68% (152,938)              339,691                     142,473                     33,031                       

Other Sources and Uses
Transfer (To) From General Fund (149,712)               (83,909)             (65,803)             78.42% (83,909)                65,803               (136,536)                   (149,178)                   (142,584)                   
Transfer (To) From Other Funds (1) (207,439)               (207,439)           -                        0.00% (207,439)              -                        -                                -                                -                                
Bond Premiums -                            -                        -                        #DIV/0! -                           -                        -                                -                                -                                
Proceeds From Bond Issuance -                            -                        -                        #DIV/0! -                           -                        -                                -                                -                                

Total Other Sources and Uses (357,151)               (291,348)           (65,803)             22.59% (291,348)              65,803               (136,536)                   (149,178)                   (142,584)                   

Surplus / (Deficit) (496,819)$        (444,286)$     (52,534)$       11.82% (444,286)$       203,155$             (6,704)$               (109,553)$           

Beginning Fund Balance 947,096$         947,096$      -$                  
Ending Fund Balance 450,277$         502,811$      (52,534)$       

Note (1) Transfer to General Fund for additional expense on the Sunset Plaza repair project.

2017

38



2017 Financial Planning Management Summary* - Qtr 4
* This summary is a combined town revenue and expenditure summary not prepared in accordance with governmental budgeting and accounting standards, but rather to provide a summary look at the actual revenue and expenditures with debt service allocated to the appropriate fund or operation.

General Fund
Vehicle 

Acquisition

Debt 
Service 

Fund
Capital 

Projects
Parking 
Services Water/Sewer Cable TCC VCA

Affordable Housing 
Development Fund 

and Mortgage 
Assistance

Child 
Development 

Fund Total
Percentage 

of Total Tourism
 Historical 
Museum Gondola

Inflows
Revenues 11,237,817$ 61,970$      -$                -$                510,694$       2,790,426$    1,939,769$    -$                   2,348,249$    13,165$                 493,313$       19,395,402$  2,457,911$    -                     5,165,078$    27,018,391$  

Debt Service Income
Property Tax (Income) -                    -                 149,712      -                  2,521,849      564,642         -                     327,857         -                     -                            -                     3,564,060      -                     96,066           -                     3,660,126      
Other Income -                    -                 -                  -                  3,177             711                -                     413                1,264             -                            -                     5,566             -                     -                     204,515         210,081         

Total Debt Service Income -                    -                 149,712      -                  2,525,026      565,354         -                     328,270         1,264             -                            -                     3,569,626      -                     96,066           204,515         3,870,207      

Inflow Subtotal (Revenues) 11,237,817   61,970        149,712      -                  3,035,720      3,355,780      1,939,769      328,270         2,349,513      13,165                   493,313         22,965,029    -  2,457,911      96,066           5,369,593      30,888,598    

Other Sources and Uses (Inflows)
Interfund Transfers In 876,864        561,775      -                  266,071      -                     -                     -                     199,089         -                     461,662                 120,404         2,485,865      -                     -                     -                     2,485,865      
Tap Fees -                    -                 -                  -                  -                     276,548         -                     -                     -                     -                            -                     276,548         -                     -                     -                     276,548         
Sale of Assets -                    1,300          -                  -                  -                     352                -                     -                     968                -                            -                     2,620             -                     -                     1,672             4,292             

Other Sources and Uses (Inflows) Total 876,864        563,075      -                  266,071      -                     276,900         -                     199,089         968                461,662                 120,404         2,765,033      -                     -                     1,672             2,766,705      

Total Inflows 12,114,681   625,045      149,712      266,071      3,035,720      3,632,680      1,939,769      527,359         2,350,481      474,827                 613,717         25,730,062    2,457,911      96,066           5,371,265      33,655,303    

Outflows
Operating Expense
Cable, Phone, and Internet Service Delivery Costs -                    -                 -                  -                  -                     -                     1,057,295      -                     -                     -                            -                     1,057,295      7.75% -                     -                     -                     1,057,295      
Consulting, Contract Labor, Professional Services 221,938        -                 -                  -                  9,670             -                     635                5,000             68,606           4,900                    900                311,649         2.28% -                     -                     23,303           334,952         
Dues, Fees, and Licenses 140,595        -                 -                  -                  32,400           2,733             1,585             88,525           38,600           17,795                   817                323,050         2.37% 2,235             1,928             13,170           340,382         
Environmental Projects 10,894          -                 -                  -                  -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                            -                     10,894           0.08% -                     -                     -                     10,894           
Equipment and Vehicle Maintenance 105,451        -                 -                  -                  -                     54,781           34,791           -                     8,527             -                            -                     203,550         1.49% -                     -                     9,124             212,674         
Fuel (Vehicles) 94,188          -                 -                  -                  508                7,235             2,579             -                     2,205             -                            -                     106,715         0.78% -                     -                     4,612             111,327         
Funding Support to Other Agencies/Programs 156,000        -                 -                  -                  -                     -                     5,000             -                     -                     87,776                   29,001           277,777         2.04% 1,246,892      94,138           -                     1,618,807      
Government Buildings and Facility Expense 243,114        -                 -                  -                  23,099           5,530             2,806             -                     174,919         -                            48,492           497,960         3.65% -                     -                     47,675           545,635         
Information Technology 193,434        -                 -                  -                  7,302             -                     51,795           -                     8,683             -                            -                     261,214         1.91% -                     -                     4,593             265,807         
Legal Services 450,145        -                 -                  -                  -                     32,305           -                     -                     33,567           -                            -                     516,017         3.78% -                     -                     10,903           526,920         
Marketing, Public Communications, and Regional Promotion 132,295        -                 -                  -                  49,572           -                     105                100,000         -                     -                            -                     281,972         2.07% 1,171,204      -                     -                     1,453,176      
Other Expenses 195,497        -                 -                  -                  47,437           -                     -                     -                     5,610             -                            10,701           259,245         1.90% -                     -                     56,661           315,906         
Personnel Expense 5,046,302     -                 -                  -                  120,937         501,784         381,566         -                     412,062         -                            504,577         6,967,228      51.05% -                     -                     2,643,663      9,610,891      
Property Insurance 99,918          -                 -                  -                  -                     12,223           3,555             -                     55,884           -                            -                     171,580         1.26% -                     -                     32,469           204,049         
Road, Bridge, and Parking Lot Paving, Striping, and Repair 425,560        -                 -                  -                  71,869           -                     -                     -                     -                     -                            -                     497,429         3.64% -                     -                     -                     497,429         
Supplies, Parts and Materials 169,524        -                 -                  -                  14,150           39,432           13,458           -                     59,165           1,816                    6,232             303,776         2.23% -                     -                     224,706         528,482         
Travel, Education, and Conferences 37,757          -                 -                  -                  -                     625                3,023             -                     5,474             -                            2,319             49,198           0.36% -                     -                     13,077           62,275           
Utilities-W/S, Electric, Natural Gas, Internet, Communications 409,941        -                 -                  -                  18,601           292,424         24,794           -                     379,279         939                       10,678           1,136,656      8.33% -                     -                     324,031         1,460,687      
Water/Sewer Service Delivery -                    -                 -                  -                  -                     413,883         -                     -                     -                     -                            -                     413,883         3.03% -                     -                     -                     413,883         

Total Expense 8,132,553     -                 -                  -                  395,545         1,362,955      1,582,987      193,525         1,252,581      113,226                 613,717         13,647,089    100.00% 2,420,331      96,066           3,407,987      19,571,473    

Capital and Major Repairs 932,273        495,405      -                  266,071      4,800             332,865         131,573         5,564             6,713             -                            -                     2,175,264      -                     -                     1,715,602      3,890,866      

Debt Service Expense
Principal/Interest -                    -                 -                  -                  772,180         1,794,513      -                     1,036,400      763,474         -                            -                     4,366,567      -                     -                     204,515         4,571,082      
County Treasurer and Trustee Fees -                    -                 -                  -                  77,507           17,354           -                     10,076           1,750             -                            -                     106,687         -                     -                     -                     106,687         

Total Debt Service Costs -                    -                 -                  -                  849,687         1,811,867      -                     1,046,476      765,224         -                            -                     4,473,254      -                     -                     204,515         4,677,769      

Outflows (Expenses) Subtotal 9,064,826     495,405      -                  266,071      1,250,032      3,507,687      1,714,560      1,245,565      2,024,518      113,226                 613,717         20,295,606    2,420,331      96,066           5,328,104      28,140,108    

Other Sources and Uses (Outflows)
Interfund Transfers Out 1,609,001     -                 357,151      -                  32,899           142,527         145,028         -                     118,518         -                            -                     2,405,124      37,580           -                     43,161           2,485,865      
Other -                    -                 -                  -                  -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                            -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     

Other Sources and Uses Total (Outflows) 1,609,001     -                 357,151      -                  32,899           142,527         145,028         -                     118,518         -                            -                     2,405,124      37,580           -                     43,161           2,485,865      

Total Outflows 10,673,827   495,405      357,151      266,071      1,282,931      3,650,214      1,859,588      1,245,565      2,143,036      113,226                 613,717         22,700,730    2,457,911      96,066           5,371,265      30,625,973    

Net Budget Surplus (Deficit) 1,440,854     129,640      (207,439)     -                  1,752,789      (17,534)          80,181           (718,206)        207,445         361,602                 -                     3,029,331      -                     -                     -                     3,029,330      

Outstanding Debt (end of year) -$                 -$               -$               -$               7,615,000$    1,705,000$    -$                  990,000$       12,632,600$  -$                         -$                  22,942,600$  -$                  -                    2,370,000$    25,312,600$  

Governmental Funds Enterprise (Business-Type) Funds Governmental Pass Through Funds 
Special Revenue Funds

39



Town of Mountain Village 
2019 

BUDGET PROCESS 
 Schedule of Activities 

 
  Time Period                      Activity 
 
February 15, 2018                            Town Council considers and ratifies the process to adoption 
  
April 12, 2018 Budget and Finance Committee meeting to establish 

preliminary revenue and spending level targets, including a 
recommendation for total grant funding, for the 2018 budget. 
 

May 17, 2018                                     Town Council regular meeting Budget Goal Setting 
Worksession 

 
June 18, 2018 – July 20, 2018 Department heads and Managers to identify/or revise and 

develop:  
1) Department Program Narratives 
2) Department Goals  
3) Performance Measures 
4) Mid-term Department performance evaluation 
5) 2018 Revised year end budget amounts  
6) 2019 - 2023 Budget and long-term projections  
7) Revenue Expectations for 2018 
8) Capital Outlay requests 

  
July 30 – August 10, 2018     Department Directors meet with Finance       
 
August 20, 2018  Present draft to Finance and Budget Committee   
 
August 27, 2018                                 Finance and Budget Committee review first amended draft 
 
August 27 – September 12, 2018     Departments revise proposed budget figures with finance. 
 
                          
September 20, 2018    Town Council Meeting  

Overview of first amended draft 
 
 

October 10, 2018 8:30 am     Special Council Meeting  
Review of second draft and meet with all departments: 

• Public Works, including Roads and Bridges, Vehicle 
Maintenance, Water and Sewer, Facility Maintenance, 
Vehicles and Equipment Acquisitions, Plaza Services 

• Public Safety including Police, Community Services and 
Municipal Court 

40--

jvergari
Typewritten Text
Item 9c



• Transportation and Parking, including Municipal Bus 
Service, Parking Services, Employee Shuttle and 
Gondola/Chondola 

• Parks and Recreation 
• Broadband Services 
• Administration including, Town Council, Town 

Manager, Administrative Services, Human Resources, 
Marketing and Business Development, Finance, Legal  

• Community Grants 
• Capital Projects 
• Child Care and Development 
• Planning and Development Services including Building, 

Planning, Affordable Housing Development, Village 
Court Apartments, San Miguel Regional Housing 
Authority  

• Town Council convening as the Mountain Village 
Metropolitan District for The Debt Service Fund 

• Telluride Conference Center 
• Tourism and Historical Museum Funds 

 
October 11 – November 7, 2018 Finance works with departments to make requested changes and 

prepare proposed 2019 Budget and revised 2018 Budget for first 
reading. 

 
November 15, 2018     Council meets for First Reading and Consideration of 2018 

Revised Budget and 2019 Proposed Budget and for the 2019 
fines and fees changes resolution 

 
November 16 – Nov 30, 2018 Finance works with departments to make requested changes and 

prepares final 2019 Budget. 
 
December 13, 2018     Second Reading, Public Hearing and Adoption of 2018 

Revised Budget and 2019 Budget. 

41--



February 6, 2018 

TO: Town Council 

FROM: Kevin Swain 

Short Term Rental and Lodging Worksession 

In our continued effort to level the playing field in our lodging business community we are expanding 
and improving our internet review of businesses and owners who are advertising and booking on-line 
lodging for licensing and tax compliance.  It is with a new offering from our outsourced contractor 
known to many of you as Munirevs.   

In 2011 inspired by the Town of Telluride and equally uninspired by the Colorado Department of 
Revenue we set sail on the self-collected sales tax course.  Simultaneously with that and encouraged by 
our Town Council we set a goal of bringing our business licensing and sales and excise tax business to a 
sophisticated on-line platform.  On that plan we entered into contract with MUNIRevs. 

Munirevs is a local company owned and operated by my predecessor here, Erin Neer.   Munirevs 
provides an on-line place to register a business and remit payments for licenses and sales and excise 
taxes for Mountain Village.  Munirevs was also performing a monthly review and compliance audit of 
owners and businesses advertising and booking lodging reservations in Mountain Village on VRBO and 
Homeaway. 

Our first 5 years with them were amazing. 

We grew Sales Tax revenue by 60% 

We grew Lodging tax revenue by 88% 

We increased business licenses issued by 34%  

However, we have since found the explosion in new on-line booking sites to be beyond the scope of our 
initial contract.  We also became acutely aware of the lack of information we could glean from new sites 
like AIRBnB.  With those developments and our concerns came the development of LODGINGRevs. 

Applying mapping technology LODGINGRevs will be reviewing 22 websites for us each month looking for 
compliance issues.  The mapping technology will identify property locations using the mapping 
reference coordinates. 

We believe this will allow us to better thresh out real compliance issues and focus our enforcement 
efforts at the property owner level in accordance with our Municipal Code.  We also found the up-front 
cost to be budget friendly not to mention the ongoing monthly fees based on results. 

Erin Neer will attend this meeting to provide more detail on LODGINGRevs and answer any questions 
Town council may have about our vacation rental compliance efforts. 

42--

jvergari
Typewritten Text
Item 9d



PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT SERVICES 
 DEPARTMENT 

455 Mountain Village Blvd. 
Mountain Village, CO 81435 

 (970) 369-8250 

Agenda Item No. 10 

TO: Town Council 

FROM: Sam Starr, Planner 

FOR: Meeting of February 15, 2018 

DATE: February 6, 2018 

RE: First reading, public hearing and Council vote on an ordinance to consider a rezone 
and density transfer application to transfer density from lot 628B into the density 
bank per Community Development Code Sections 17.4.9 & 17.4.10  

PROJECT GEOGRAPHY 
Legal Description:   Lot 628A, 628B and 628C, Town of Mountain Village according to Plat 

Book 1, Page 1159 according to records of San Miguel County, Colorado. 
Address: 103, 105, 107 Double Eagle Way   
Applicant/Agent: Tom Beck, and Susan Caruso DBA Total Planning, LLC., and Don Perotta 
Owner:  Total Planning, LLC., and Don Perotta 
Zoning:   Single Family  
Existing Use:   Single Family Homes (lots 628A and 628C) Vacant Land (lot 628B) 
Proposed Use:   replat Lots 628A, 628B, and 628C into lots 628AR and 628CR 
Lot Size: .362 acres 
Adjacent Land Uses: 

o North:  Open Space
o South:  Single Family
o East:  Single Family
o West:  Single Family

ATTACHMENTS 
• Exhibit A: Applicant's Narrative
• Exhibit B: Proposed Replat Document With Existing Conditions
• Exhibit C: Ordinance

BACKGROUND 

Lots 628A and 628C have existing single-family homes on them.  Lot 628B is vacant.  The owners 
of lot 628A, 628B and 628C have agreed to replat the three lots into two lots.  Lot 628B will be 
replat equally into Lot 628AR and 628CR. 

In order to propose a minor subdivision application, the applicants have submitted two concurrent 
applications: 1) transfer of the density associated with lot 628B (to be vacated) to the density bank 
by way of a density transfer and rezone application; and 2) a minor subdivision application to 
replat the properties.  Both applications have been received and are being reviewed concurrently. 

43



A recommendation from the DRB for the density transfer rezone portion is part of the review 
process. The minor subdivision application will be reviewed concurrently by the Town Council 
with the rezone and density transfer application on March 15th, 2018. 
 
DENSITY TRANSFER APPLICATION, CRITERIA AND STAFF ANALYSIS 
 
To transfer density to the Density Bank the rezoning process must be followed, which includes a 
recommendation by the Design Review Board and final action by the Town Council. The following 
criteria must be met for the review authority to approve a rezoning application: 
 

a. The proposed rezoning is in general conformance with the goals, policies and 
provisions of the Comprehensive Plan; 

b. The proposed rezoning is consistent with the Zoning and Land Use Regulations; 
c. The proposed rezoning meets the Comprehensive Plan project standards; 
d. The proposed rezoning is consistent with public health, safety and welfare, as well 

as efficiency and economy in the use of land and its resources; 
e. The proposed rezoning is justified because there is an error in the current zoning, 

there have been changes in conditions in the vicinity or there are specific policies 
in the Comprehensive Plan that contemplate the rezoning; 

f. Adequate public facilities and services are available to serve the intended land 
uses; 

g. The proposed rezoning shall not create vehicular or pedestrian circulation hazards 
or cause parking, trash or service delivery congestion; and 

h. The proposed rezoning meets all applicable Town regulations and standards. 
 
The proposal to transfer units to the Density Bank is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan 
which notes in Land Use Value Number 8, land uses are envisioned to fit into the surrounding 
neighborhood. (p. 35 of the Comprehensive Plan).  Single Family zoning is intended to be low 
density which is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan Land Use Policy A.1 (p.38) This 
application is reducing the density between the three lots by one single family density. Staff finds 
the application meets the above criteria.  Criteria e & f are not applicable to this application. 
 
The following criteria must be met for the Town Council to approve the transfer of density to the 
density bank: 
 

a. The criteria for decision for a rezoning are met, since such density transfer must 
be processed concurrently with a rezoning development application; 

b. The density transfer meets the density transfer and density bank policies; and 
c. The proposed density transfer meets all applicable Town regulations and 

standards. 
 
The proposed density transfer meets the above criteria. 
 
DRB RECOMMENDATION 
The DRB by a unanimous vote of 7-0 recommended approval to the Town Council regarding the 
density transfer and rezone application for Lot 628B with conditions found in the proposed motion. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends approval of the first reading of an ordinance.  
 
PROPOSED MOTION DENSITY TRANSFER AND REZONE 

44



I move to approve by first reading of an ordinance a rezone and density transfer application 
pursuant to CDC Sections 17.4.9 & 17.4.10 to transfer one single family density unit (four-person 
equivalent density) to the Density Bank for Lot 628B and direct the Town Clerk to set a public 
hearing on March 15, 2018 with the following findings and conditions: 
 
Findings: 

1. The owner of record of density in the density bank shall be responsible for all dues, 
fees and any taxes associated with the assigned density and zoning until such time 
as the density is either transferred to a lot or another person or entity. 

 
Condition: 

1. The density transfer approval is conditioned upon the minor subdivision plat 
approval by the Town Council. 
 

This motion is based on the evidence and testimony provided at a public hearing held on February 
15, 2018, with notice of such hearing as required by the Community Development Code. 
 
 
 /STS 

45--



46

January 25, 2018 

Michelle Haynes, Planning Department Director 
Town of Mountain Village, CO 
455 Mountain Village, CO 81435 
mhaynes@mtnvillage.org 

RE: 
Proposed density transfer and rezone application for Lot 6286, 105 
Double Eagle Way, to transfer one density unit (four-person equivalent 
density) into the Density Bank. 

Dear Ms. Haynes: 

We are requesting a vacation of the lot l ines in Lot 628B, that t he lot 
be subdivide<! and portions of lot 628B be transferred to the adjacent 
parcels Lot 628A and lot 628C, all of which Is set forth in the proposed 
submitted replat. 

We make this request in order to guard against fu rther development 
on either side of the parties current residences. 

Upon compietlon of the process, the lots will be designated as Lot 682-
AR for Beck & Caruso and 628-CR for Total Plann ing, LLC. 

Tom Beck 

cc: Susan Caruso 
Tota l Planning, LLC 



 

F:
\O

ld
 W

\J
ob

s\
JO

B
S2

00
5\

05
00

7\
dw

g\
05

00
7 

R
EP

LA
T 

09
-1

7.
dw

g,
 1

2/
29

/2
01

7 
12

:2
5:

05
 P

M
, P

C
3

47

I 
I 
I 

SCALE: 1 "=16' 

TOWN OF MOUNTAIN VILLAGE 
VICINITY MAP 

SIT£ OF R£Pl.AT 

NOT TO SCALE 

\ 
\ 
\ 
\ 
\ 
\ 

0.362 

~ 

\ "'
\ "' \\ 
\\ 
\~ 

\ 
\ 
\ 
\ 
\ 
\ 
\ 

\ 
\ 
\ 
I 
\ 
I 

llm~lCl @$f=:3l:3l 
(TOWN OF MOUNTAIN VILLAGE) 

N sz10·00· E 

N ax2\'1r2• E 

139.95" (R) 
139,83' (1,1) 

--·--·--·7 
- -- -- I 

\ MENT --
16' GENERA:_~_:- -- -- -- ----

\ --- -- --- --
--1- -- -- - 1 ----- . \ 

f]SEME~ - - - \ 
6, GEN~ --- I I 

I 
1 -- -- \ \ -- \ . 

I 
\ 

I 
I 
I 
I 
I - \ "' . - I 

'A \ z· 

l\ 
I 

\ I 
;,:cl 
'?,. I 

I 
I 
\ 
\ 
\ 
I 
\ 
\ 
\ 
\ 

\ \ 
I \ 
I 

\ \ 
I \ 
I 
l ""-

i\ 
\_ g 
I -
I "'-
\ 'i1. 
\ z . .., 
\J 
i '&, 

1. ~ 

\'!. 

"' -
\ < ~ 

1; -
\_§ ~ 
\§ -
\ C: ;:;. 

z b 
• r"'\ o. 

\ '§. 

\ 
\ 

I 
\ 
I 
I 
I 

.:c l 

\ \ "' . I 
"al~ \_ 

"' I 
~ \_ 

l \ 
\ \ 
'!. \ 

I 
I 

0.520 ACRES (M) 
I 
I \ 

I 
I 
I 
I 

\ 
\ 

·\_,.------
--

I 
I 
I 
I 

\ I 
I 

\ \ --
\ \ --- --\ \ I -----E,6.SEMEl'IT 
I _.--·-- 16, GENERAL 
I _..\-- -
\ .-- --·- . -- \ 

\ 

IF@lm ~ IE Im 
L@l ~218l=lC 

0.338 ACRES (R) 

-- -- -- - -- -- - - -- -

I 
I 

I 
\~ 
I "' 
I ',;I 

:~ 
I~ 
I \2 
I ',;I 
I -I 

I 
I 

I 
I 

I 
I 

I 
I 

I 
I 

- -- _ _j 

L@l ~2®=~ 
(KONOLD SlE\IEN TODD AND 

KONOLD JODIE WARRICK, JOINT TRUSJ) 

VI 

~ "' 
00 ... ~ •o "' . og . ' 

--- DOUBLE EAGLE WAY - -0 4 8 12 16 32 

/ 
/ 

/ 

/ 
/ 

/ 

/ 

/ 
/ 

/ 

/ 
/ 

/ 
/ 

OWNER'S CERTIFICATE: 

-------

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS that SUSAN M. CARUSO 
AND THOMAS P. 8£CK, being the owners of the following described 
land: 

LOT 628-A, MOUNTAIN VILLAGE; ACCORDING ro THE FINAL REPLAT OF 
LOTS 628, 635 AND 636, FIUNG 4. AND LOT 641, FIUNG 9, AND A 
PORTION OF THE OPEN SPACE; TELJ.URIDE MOUNTAIN VILLAGE; 
RECORDED AUGUST 21, 1991 IN PLAT BOOK 1 AT PAGE 1159, 
COUNT'f OF SAN MIGUEL, STATE: OF COLORADO. 

AND THAT 

1DTAL PLANNING, LLC, AN /OWA UMffED LJAB/LJTr COMPANY, and 
SUSAN M- CARUSO AND THOMAS P. BECK, being the owner of the 
following described land: 

LOT 628-B. MOUNTAIN VILLAGE; ACCORDING ro THE FINAL REPLAT OF 
LOTS 628, 635 AND 636, FIUNG 4. AND LOT 641, FIUNG 9, AND A 
PORTION OF THE OPEN SPACE; TELJ.URIDE MOUNTAIN VILLAGE; 
RECORDED AUGUST 21, 1991 IN PLAT BOOK 1 AT PAGE 1159, 
COUNT'f OF SAN MIGUEL, STATE: OF COLORADO. 

AND THAT 

1DTAL PLANNING, LLC, AN /OWA UMffED LJAB/LJTr COMPANY, being the 
owner of the following described land: 

LOT 628-C, MOUNTAIN VILLAGE; ACCORDING ro THE FINAL REPLAT OF 
LOTS 628, 635 AND 636, FIUNG 4, AND LOT 641, FIUNG 9, AND A 
PORTION OF THE OPEN SPACE; TELJ.URIDE MOUNTAIN VILLAGE; 
RECORDED AUGUST 21, 1991 IN PLAT BOOK 1 AT PAGE 1159, 
COUNT'f OF SAN MIGUEL, STATE: OF COLORADO. 

Ha.., by these presents caused same to be laid out. platted and 
subdivided the same into lots, as shown on this plat under the 
nome and style of LOT 628-AR AND LOT 628-CR REPLAT, and 
hereby dedicate portions of Lot 628-AR and Lot 628-CR as 16' 
general easements as shown htJreOn. 

OWNER'S CERTIFICATE (cont.}: 

LEGEND 

'9 FOUND 1-1/2" ALUMINUM CAP 
ON No. 5 REBAR, LS. 28652 

0 FOUND 1-1/2" ALUMINUM CAP 
ON No. 5 REBAR, LS. 20632 

Q FOUND l-1/2" ALUMINUM CAP 
ON No. 5 REBAR, LS. 25954 

0 FOUND 1-1/2" ALUMINUM CAP 
ON No. 5 REBAR, LS. 36577 

• SET 1-1/2" ALUMINUM CAP ON 
18" No. 5 REBAR, LS. 37970 

(M) MEASURED DIMENSIONS 
ACCORDING TO THIS SURVEY 

(R) RECORD DIMENSIONS ACCORDING 
TO PLAT BOOK l AT PAGE 1159 

The Parties do herr,by agree upon the boundary linlJtl as set forth 
hereon and do further grant, sell and con..,y to the other owners 
such of their reol property as may lie on the other party's side of 
the boundary /in.... set forth on this Plat and do herr,by agree that 
the boundary /in.... as shown on this plat are the boundary lines by 
agreement of adjoiners pursuant to the Provisions of Colorado 
Revised statutes (197:J} .JIJ-44-112. 

GRANT OF EASEMENT: 

The Owners da hereby grant to 7SG Ski .t Golf, LLC, a Delaware 
limited liability company; Mountain Village Metropolitan District (the 
"District"); Telluride Mountain Village Resort Company, a Colorado 
non-profit corporation, doing business as Mountain Village Owners 
Association, Inc. ("MVOA "); and the Town of Mountain Village (the 
"Town "), their successors and assigns. a perpetual easement. 16 
fnt In width o..,,; across and under all areas designated as 16 • 
General Easement on this Rep/at for any and all uses, improvements 
and activl'ties deemed necessary by TSG Ski .t Golf, LLC, the District, 
Metro ServiCIJtl, and the Town, for the safe and efficient operation of 
the Telluride Ski Area, the Telluride Golf Course, and the Town, which 
include but are not limited to the following: utilities, drainage. 
11/scb lea/ service, communication service, ski slope maintenance, 
blcycle aCCIJtls, skier access, roadway access, equestrian access, 
pedestrian aCCflSS, golf cart accas, snow making, waterways, slope 
maintenance, snow storage. retaining walls, snowmobi1e access, snow 
n,moval, snowcat acc11SS, water, sanitary st1wer and storm Nnr. 

OWNERS: 

by Susan M. Caruso. 

by Thomas P. Beck. 

by Donald Perro/ta as Memeber/Manager of Total Planning, LLC, an 
Iowa limited liabi7ity company. 

by Karla Barlow as Memeber/Manager of Total Planning, LLC, an 
Iowa limited liability company. 

Lot 628-AR and Lot 628-CR Replat, 

OWNER'S CERTIFICATE (cont,): 

ACKNOWLEDGMENT: 

State of 

County of 

) 
) ss 
) 

The foregoing signature was acknowledged before me this ___ day of 
________ 2017 A.O. by Suson M. Caruso. 

My commission expires _______ _ 
Witness my hand and seal. 

Notary Public 

ACKNOWLEDGMENT: 

State of 

County of 

) 
) ss 
) 

The foregoing signature was acknowledged before me this ___ day of 
________ 2017 A.O. by Thomas P. 8ec/c. 

My commission expires ________ , 
Witness my hand and seal. 

Notary Public 

ACKNOWLEDGMENT: 

State of ) 
) ss 

County of ) 

The foregoing signature was acknowledged before me this ___ day of 
__________ 2017 A.O. by Donald Perra/ta as Memeber/Manager 
of Total Planning, LLC, an Iowa limited liability company. 

My commission explree --,-------
Witness my hand and seal. 

Notary Public 

ACKNOWLEDGMENT: 

state of 

County of 

) 
) ss 
) 

The foregoing signature was acknowledged before me this ___ day of 
________ 2017 A.O. by Karla Barlow as Memeber/Manager of 
Total Planning, LLC, an Iowa limited liability company. 

My commission explree _______ _ 
Witn.,ss my hand and seal. 

Notary Public 

(60" R.O.W.J 

EASEMENT VACATION: 

The undersigned, being the benef',ciaries of record of those portions of land 
labeled as 16 foot General Easement (G.E.} as established on the property 
as shown hereon by the Plat of record filed in the Office of the Clerk and 
Recorder of 
San Miguel County, do hereby vacate and relinquish that portion of said 
easemt1nt as shown vacated on this plat. 

M. C. Homing, Jr., Manager of 7SG Ski .t Golf, LLC, a Delaware Umited 
Uab,7ity company. 

by _____________ as __________ of 

thtJ Town of Mountain Village. 

by _____________ as __________ of 

the Mountain Village Owner's Association, Inc. 

ACKNOWLEDGMENT: 

state of 

County of 

) 
) ss 
) 

The foregoing signature was acknowledged before me this ___ day of 
2017 A.O. by M.C. Homing, Jr. as Manager of 7SG 

Ski .t Golf, LLC, a Delaware Umited Liability company. 

My commission expires _______ _ 
Witness my hand and seal. 

Notary Public 

ACKNOWLEDGMENT: 

state of ) 
) ss 

County of ) 

The foregoing signature was acknowledged before me this ___ day of 
2017 A.O. by as 

_______ of the Town of Mountain Village. 

My commission expires -,,--------
Witnus my hand and seal. 

Notary Public 

ACKNOWLEDGMENT: 

state of 

County of 

) 
) ss 
) 

The foregoing slgnoture was acknowledged before me this ___ day of 
________ ,, 2017 A.O. by as 
_______ of Mountain Village Ownt1r's Association, Inc. 

My commission expires _______ _ 
Witness my hand and seal. 

Notary Public 

I Pro·ect M r: JH ~-"'-'--------jl=tev. ======escn ==,on =======t==a e=t::1 FSL EY 
A Small Scale SUbdidvision to vacate property lines on Lots 628-A, 628-B, and 628-C, Town of Mollltain Village, 

located within the N 1/2 of Section 33, T.43N., R.9W., N.M.P.M., County of San Miguel, state of Colorado. 

f-T~ec~hinn~ic·~1an!);: _ _!M!',iC ____ 7l=t:==============11==:::t::::1 
Technician: ASSOCIATIS, INC. 

Checked by: 

Start date: 09/11/2017 11--+--------------+---+-I Drawing path: dwg\05D07 REPIAT 09-17.dwg 

SURVEYOR'S CERTIFICATE: 

I, Jeffrey C. Has/cell of Foley Associates, Inc., being a Colorado 
Ucensed Surveyor, do herr,by cert,'fy that this plat and survey 
of LOT 628-AR AND LOT 628-CR REPLAT was made by me 
and under my direct rssponsibi7ity, supervision and checking, in 
compliance wlth the applicable provisions of Title .JIJ, Article 
51, C.R.S., and that both are true and accurate to the best 
of my knowledge and belief. 

P.L.S. No. 37970 Date 

NOTES: 

1. Approval of this plan may create a vested property right 
pursuant to Article 68 of Title 24, C.R.S., as amended. 

2. Easement research and legal descriptions provided by 
Land Tit/8 Guarantee Company, Order Number TLR86007302, 
dated August O:J, 2017 at 5:00 P.M. as to Lot 628-A, Order 
Number TLR86007157, dated June OS. 2017 at 5:00 P.M. as 
to Lot 628-8, and Order Number TLR86007299, dated August 
03, 2017 at 5:00 P.M. as to Lot 628-C. 

:J. NOTES OF CLARIFICATION: 

a. The Configuration of the following lots, tracts, and 
right-of-way have been modif'led by this plat: 

none 

b. The following lots ha... been created by this plat: 

Lot 628-AR and Lot 628-CR 

c. The following lots have blJtln deleted by this plat; 

Lot 628-A, Lot 628-8, and Lot 628-C 

4. BASIS OF BE"ARINGS: The bearing between found 
monuments along the northern boundary of former Lot 628-8, 
as shown hereon, assumed to ha... the record bearing of N 
76°09'07" E according to Plat Boole 1 at page 1159. 

5. Uneal Units represented hereon are shown In U.S. Survey 
Fnt or a dee/ma/ portion tht1reof. 

6. Mortgagee's consent for Lot 628-C, Town of Mountain 
Village, is recorded at Reception No. ----~ 

7. NOTICE: According to Colorado law, you must commence 
any legal action based upon defect in this survey w,Yhin three 
years after you first disco...r such defect. In no e...nt may 
any action based upon any defect in this survey be 
commenced more than ten years from the date of the 
certification shown htJreOn. 

TOWN OF MOUNTAIN VILLAGE APPROVAL: 

I, __________ as Mayor of the Town of 
Mountain Village. Colorado, do hereby certify that this Plat has 
been appro~ by the Town Counsel in the some resolution 
that has authorized and directed me to execute this 
document. 

Dote 

TlnE INSURANCE COMPANY CERTIFICATE: 

Land Title Guarantee Company dolJtl herr,by certify that we 
have examined the title to all lands herein shown on this plat 
and that the title to this land is in the names of those 
persons shown in the Owners Cert,'f',cote which is on the face 
hereof and is free of all /isns and taKeS, eKCtJpt as follows: 

Title Insurance Company Representative 

TREASURER'S CERTIFICATE: 

I, tht1 undersigned, Treasurer of thtJ County of San Miguel, do 
hereby cert,'fy that according to the records of the San Miguel 
County Treasurer there are no liens against the subdMsion or 
any part thereof for unpaid state, county. municipal or local 
taxes or spec/a/ assessmt1nts dutJ and payable, In accordance 
with Land Use Code Section :J-101. 

Dated this __ day of _______ 2017. 

San Miguel County Treasurer 

RECORDER'S CERTIFICATE: 

This plat was filed for record in the off,ce of the San M',gue/ 
County Cieri< and Recorder on this ____ day of 
_________ , 2017, at 
Plat Book ____ _ 
Page ___ _ 
Reception No. _______ _ 
Timt1 ____ _ 

San Miguel County Cleric 

970-728-6153 970-728-6050 fax 
P.O. BOX 1385 

125 W. PACIFIC, SUITE B-1 

TELLURIDE, COLORADO 81435 

Sheet1 of 1 Project ff: 05007 



ORDINANCE NO. 2018-___ 

 

ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF MOUNTAIN VILLAGE, 

COLORADO APPROVING:  (1) REZONE LOT 628B AND (2) TRANSFER DENSITY OF FOUR 

(4) PERSON EQUIVALENTS OF SINGLE FAMILY DENSITY FROM LOT 628B INTO THE 

DENSITY BANK   

 

RECITALS 

 

A. The applicant and owner’s representative, Total Planning LLC has submitted an application for a 

rezoning and density transfer for the reconfiguration of Lots 628A, 628B and 628C replat into 

lots 628AR and 628CR. The proposed rezoning and density transfer is for one (1) unit of single 

family density, equivalent to four (4) person equivalents, to the density bank to be held by 

Telluvista, LLC (the “Application”) pursuant to the requirements of the Community 

Development Code (“CDC”). 

 

B. Total Planning LLC.; is the owner of Lot 628A and 628B and Don Perotta is the owner of Lot 

628C (“Owner”). 

 

C. Lots 628A, 628B and 628C is referred to as the “Property” and have the following physical 

addresses in respective order: 103 Double Eagle Way, 105 Double Eagle Way, and 107 Double 

Eagle Way. 

 

D. The Owner is pursuing the approval of the minor subdivision application to replat Lots 628A 

628B and 628C into Lots 628AR and 628CR concurrent with a rezoning and density transfer to 

transfer the density from former Lot 628B into the density bank.   

 

E. The Property has the following zoning designations pursuant to the Official Land Use and 

Density Allocation List and zoning as set forth on the Town Official Zoning Map: 

 

Lot No. Zone District Zoning 

Designation 

Actual 

Units 

Person Equivalent 

per Actual Unit 

Total Person 

Equivalent Density 

Lot 628A Single Family Residential 1 4 4 

Lot 628B Single Family  Residential 1 4 4 

Lot 628C Single Family Residential 1 4 4 
 

F. At a public hearing held on February 1, 2018, the DRB considered the Applications, testimony 

and public comment and recommended to the Town Council that the Applications be approved 

with conditions pursuant to the requirement of the CDC. 

 

G. At its regularly scheduled meeting held on February 15, 2018, the Town Council conducted a 

public hearing pursuant to the CDC and after receiving testimony and public comment, closed the 

hearing and approved this Ordinance on first reading and set a further public hearing on March 

15, 2018. 

 

H. At its regularly scheduled meeting held on March 15, the Town Council conducted a public 

hearing on this Ordinance, pursuant to the Town Charter and after receiving testimony and public 

comment, closed the hearing and approved the Applications and this Ordinance on second 

reading. 

48



 

I. This Ordinance rezones the Property as follows 

 

 

Lot No. 

Zone 

District 

Zoning 

Designation 

Actual 

Units 

Person 

Equivalent per 

Actual Unit 

Total Person 

Equivalent 

Density 

Notes 

Lot 628A Single 

Family  

Residential  1 4 4  

Lot 628C Single 

Family  

Residential  1 4 4  

The 

former 

Lot628B 

(to be 

replat into 

Lots 

628AR & 

628CR) 

Single 

Family 

Residential 0 0 0 Transferred 

into the 

Density 

Bank 

 

J. Transfer of four (4) person equivalents of Single Family Density from Lot 628B to the Density 

Bank to be held by Total Planning LLC. 

  

K. The meeting held on February 15, 2018 and the public hearing held on March 15, 2018 were duly 

publicly noticed as required by the CDC Public Hearing Noticing Requirements, including but 

not limited to notification of all property owners within 400 feet of the Property, posting of a sign 

and posting on the respective agendas. 

 

L. The Town Council hereby finds and determines that the Applications meet the Rezoning Process 

Criteria for Decision as provided in CDC Section 17.4.9(D) as follows: 

 

Rezoning Findings 

1. The proposed rezoning is in general conformance with the goals, policies and provisions of the 

Comprehensive Plan. 

 

2. The proposed rezoning is consistent with the Zoning and Land Use Regulations. 

 

3. The proposed rezoning meets the Comprehensive Plan.  
 
4. The proposed rezoning is consistent with public health, safety and welfare, as well as efficiency 

and economy in the use of land and its resources.  

 

5. The proposed rezoning is justified because of the specific policies in the Comprehensive Plan that 

contemplate the rezoning as applied for. 

 

6. Adequate public facilities and services are available to serve the intended land uses. 

 

7. The proposed rezoning shall not create vehicular or pedestrian circulation hazards or cause 

parking, trash or service delivery congestion.  

 

8. The proposed rezoning meets all applicable Town regulations and standards. 

 

49



M. The Town Council finds that the Applications meet the Rezoning Density Transfer Process 

criteria for decision contained in CDC Section 17.4.10(D)(2) as follows: 

 

Density Transfer  Findings 

1. The criteria for decision for a rezoning are met. 

 

2. The density transfer meets the density transfer and density bank policies. 

 

3. The proposed density transfer meets all applicable Town regulations and standards. 

 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Town Council approves the Applications. 

Section 1.  Effect on Zoning Designations 

 

Section 2.  Ordinance Effect 

 

All ordinances, of the Town, or parts thereof, inconsistent or in conflict with this Ordinance, are hereby 

repealed, replaced and superseded to the extent only of such inconsistency or conflict. 

 

Section 3.  Severability 

 

The provisions of this Ordinance are severable and the invalidity of any section, phrase, clause or portion 

of this Ordinance as determined by a court of competent jurisdiction shall not affect the validity or 

effectiveness of the remainder of this Ordinance. 

 

Section 4.  Effective Date 

 

This Ordinance shall become effective on __________, 2018 following public hearing and approval by 

Council on second reading. 

 

Section 5.  Public Hearing 

 

A public hearing on this Ordinance was held on the 15th of March, 2018 in the Town Council Chambers, 

Town Hall, 455 Mountain Village Blvd, Mountain Village, Colorado 81435. 

 

INTRODUCED, READ AND REFERRED to public hearing before the Town Council of the Town 

of Mountain Village, Colorado on the 15th Day of February, 2018. 

 

TOWN OF MOUNTAIN VILLAGE 

TOWN OF MOUNTAIN VILLAGE, 

COLORADO, A HOME-RULE 

MUNICIPALITY 

 

By:________________________________ 

Laila Benitez, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

____________________________ 

Jackie Kennefick, Town Clerk 

50



HEARD AND FINALLY ADOPTED by the Town Council of the Town of Mountain Village, 

Colorado this 15th day of March, 2018 

 

TOWN OF MOUNTAIN VILLAGE 

TOWN OF MOUNTAIN VILLAGE, 

COLORADO, A HOME-RULE 

MUNICIPALITY 

 

By:________________________________ 

Laila Benitez, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

____________________________ 

Jackie Kennefick, Town Clerk 

 

 

Approved As To Form: 

 

____________________________ 

Jim Mahoney, Assistant Town Attorney 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

51--



I, Jackie Kennefick, the duly qualified and acting Town Clerk of the Town of Mountain Village, Colorado 

(“Town") do hereby certify that: 

 

1.  The attached copy of Ordinance No.__________ (“Ordinance") is a true, correct and complete copy 

thereof. 

 

2. The Ordinance was introduced, read by title, approved on first reading with minor amendments and 

referred to public hearing by the Town Council the Town (“Council") at a regular meeting held at Town 

Hall, 455 Mountain Village Blvd., Mountain Village, Colorado, on __________________, 2018, by the 

affirmative vote of a quorum of the Town Council as follows: 

 

Council Member Name “Yes” “No” Absent Abstain 

Laila Benitez, Mayor     

Dan Caton, Mayor Pro-Tem     

Dan Jansen     

Bruce MacIntire     

Patrick Berry     

Natalie Binder     

Jack Gilbride     

 

3.  After the Council’s approval of the first reading of the Ordinance, notice of the public hearing, 

containing the date, time and location of the public hearing and a description of the subject matter of the 

proposed Ordinance was posted and published in the Telluride Daily Planet, a newspaper of general 

circulation in the Town, on _____________________, 2018 in accordance with Section 5.2b of the Town 

of Mountain Village Home Rule Charter.   

 

4.  A public hearing on the Ordinance was held by the Town Council at a regular meeting of the Town 

Council held at Town Hall, 455 Mountain Village Blvd., Mountain Village, Colorado, on 

_________________, 2018.  At the public hearing, the Ordinance was considered, read by title, and 

approved without amendment by the Town Council, by the affirmative vote of a quorum of the Town 

Council as follows: 

Council Member Name “Yes” “No” Absent Abstain 

Laila Benitez, Mayor     

Dan Caton, Mayor Pro-Tem     

Dan Jansen     

Bruce MacIntire     

Patrick Berry     

Natalie Binder     

Jack Gilbride     

 

5.  The Ordinance has been signed by the Mayor, sealed with the Town seal, attested by me as Town 

Clerk, and duly numbered and recorded in the official records of the Town.  

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the seal of the Town this _____ day 

of ____________, 2018. 

 

____________________________ 

Jackie Kennefick, Town Clerk 

 

(SEAL)  

 

52



Item 11 

Memo 
To: Mayor and Council Members   
From: James Mahoney 
Date: February 8, 2018 
Re: Lot 126R and 152R Rosewood 

 

As you are aware of, the current owner of Lots 126R and 152R, which is commonly known as 
“Rosewood”, was approved for a mixed unit development pursuant to the PUD approval process in 
2007 (the “2007 PUD Approval”).  Those approvals also contained approvals for “vested rights” 
which through several extensions specifically of the vested rights are set to expire on March 18, 2018.                

The current owner of the property applied to the Town to extend that vesting by an additional two 
years on the basis of wanting to preserve existing platting, easements and entitlements as a base for 
applying for a revised PUD approval.  However, the owner pulled that application via email to the 
Town on February 7, 2018 and is instead asking the Town to enter into a standstill agreement in order 
to pursue other development scenarios.     

This action requires a basic understanding of what vested rights are and what their expiration does to 
the 2007 PUD Approval.   

Vested rights are rights given to property owners/developers and protect such property 
owner/developers from action by the jurisdiction (in this case the Town) which would diminish or 
revoke development approvals to which the vested rights attach.  The expiration of the vested rights 
alone does not by itself revoke land use approvals.  Instead, the expiration of vested rights allows the 
Town to initiate proceedings to revoke or modify the PUD approvals for Rosewood without having to 
compensate the owner for such revocation or modification.   

Therefore, the owner of Rosewood has asked the Town to consider entering into a “Standstill 
Agreement” which is included in your packets, which provides that the Town would forego initiating 
revocation proceedings on the 2007 PUD Approval for a period of time, so long as the owner submits 
and diligently pursues a revised PUD application with material changes and reductions to the overall 
mass/scale of Project and reductions to the land uses and densities occurring on the Property relative 
to the 2007 PUD Approval.   

53



This could be a viable approach to the current situation as it would preserve the base  of the 2007 PUD 
Approval, which is a concern for the property owner, while ensuring that during the term of the 
standstill agreement the 2007 PUD Approvals is not constructed and that the owner, on a timeline, 
pursues a reduced scale project.    

Also included in your packets for informational and historical purposes is a land and density analysis 
tracking the status of the properties which now make up Rosewood, for several decades and shows 
that there has always been a fair amount of density associated with this area. 

 

 

 

54--



MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 
 
This Memorandum of Understanding (“MOU”), made effective as of _____________, 2018 (“Effective 
Date”), is made by and between Town of Mountain Village, a Colorado Home Rule Municipality and 
Political Subdivision of the State of Colorado (“Town”) and Northlight Trust I (“Landowner”). The 
Town and the Landowner also are referred to as the Parties.    
  

RECITALS 
 

A. In 2007, the Town reviewed and approved a certain mixed use development project 
(“Project”) which authorized certain development and uses to occur on Lot 126R and Lot 152R 
(“Property”), as reflected and evidenced by certain documents of record (“Existing Town Approvals”)   
 

B. The Existing Town Approvals also included “Vested Rights” which precludes the Town 
from any zoning or land use action, which would alter, impair or diminish the development or use of the 
Property consistent with the Existing Town Approvals at any time during the period of vesting.  The 
Vested Rights are set to expire on March 18, 2018.   

 
C. The expiration of the Vested Rights does not alter, impair, diminish or revoke the 

Existing Town Approvals, rather the expiration of the Vested Rights would allow the Town to take 
affirmative action to alter, impair, diminish or revoke the Existing Town Approvals.   
 

D. Prior to the granting of the Existing Town Approvals, the zoning, land uses and density 
rights applicable to the Property were as follows (“Prior Use By Right Land Uses/Density”): 

     
Lot Acreage Zone 

District 
Zoning 
Designation 

Units  Density 
Per Unit 

Total 
Density  

Rezone of Density 
Transfer Request 

118 .86 acres  Single 
Family 

Single Family 1 4 4 Rezone to 4 Hotel 
Efficiency Density Units 

126 2.698 
acres  

Multi-
Unit 

Condominium  25 3 75  

   Hotel 70 1.5 105 Rezone 21 Hotel Density 
Units to Hotel Efficiency 

   Employee 
Apartment 

2 3 6  

   Employee 
Dorm 

16 1 16  

   Commercial    

130 .474 acres  Multi-
Unit 

Condominium 10 3 30  

152A .401 acres  Multi-
Unit 

Condominium 8 3 24  

152B .367 acres  Multi-
Unit 

Condominium 6 3 18  

152C .368 acres  Multi-
Unit 

Condominium 8 3 24  

OS-1 5.16 acres  Active 
Open 
Space 

Open Space     

Total Units/ 
Density 

   146  302  

 
E. The Existing Town Approvals authorized the following zoning, land uses and density 

rights in connection with the development of the Property 
 

55



Lot Acreage Zone 
District 

Zoning 
Designation 

Units  Density 
Per Unit 

Total 
Density 

Rezone/Density Transfer 
Request 

126R 3.11 acres  Multi-
Unit 

Condominium  44 3 132 Transfer of 27 Units of 
Condo Density 

   Hotel 56 1.5 84  
   Hotel 

Efficiency 
19 2 38 Transfer of 13 Units of 

Condo Density and 
Rezone to Hotel 
Efficiency 

   Employee 
Dorm 

17 1 17 Creation and Transfer of 1 
Unit of Dorm Density  

   Employee 
Apartment 

5 3 15 Creation and Transfer of 9 
Units of Employee 
Apartment Density 

   Commercial 34,001 
34 Units 

  

152R 1.46 acres  Multi-
Unit 

Condominium 23 3 69 Transfer of 3 Units of 
Condo Density 

   Commercial 4,665 
4.66 Units 

  

OS-1R-1 91.96 
acres  

Active 
Open 
Space 

Open Space    

OS-118 .65 acres  Active/Pa
ssive 
Open 
Space 

Open Space    

OSP-126 .26 acres  Passive 
Open 
Space 

Open Space    

Total Units/ 
Density 

   164 
202.6 with 
Commercial 
Units 

 355 

 
F. Landowner has advised the Town that Landowner seeks to pursue an alternative 

development plan for the Property that would involve material changes and reductions to the overall 
mass/scale of Project and reductions to the land uses and densities occurring on the Property relative to 
the Existing Town Approvals (“Alternative Development Plan”).  The Landowner recognizes and 
agrees that the Town would review and act upon the Alternative Development Plan in accordance with 
the then current standards and requirements of the Community Development Code (“CDC”) in the course 
of duly noticed and conducted public hearings.   

 
G. In lieu of seeking a further extension of the Vested Rights, the Landowner has proposed 

and the Town has agreed that Landowner will not seek to implement the “Site Specific Development 
Plan” reflected in the Existing Town Approvals and in return the Town has agreed to refrain from taking 
an action to revoke the Existing Town Approvals, provided that Landowner is otherwise in substantial 
compliance with the terms, conditions and provisions of this MOU. 

 
AGREEMENTS 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing recitals (which are incorporated into the below 
agreements) and for such other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is 
hereby acknowledged, the Parties agree as follows: 
 

1. Landowner Agrees Not to Pursue Extension of Vested Rights. Landowner agrees that 
it shall not submit an application seeking to extend the Vested Rights for the Existing Town Approvals.   

 

56



2. Limitations on Use of the Property. During the term of this MOU, Landowner agrees 
that it will not seek to develop, construct, apply for permits or otherwise seek to develop the Property in 
accordance with the Existing Town Approvals.  The foregoing shall not preclude Landowner from 
undertaking general and routine maintenance of the Property. 

 
3. Alternative Development Plan.  
 

a. Landowner agrees that Landowner shall submit an application for its Alternative 
Development Plan pursuant to the provisions of the CDC on or before June 15th, 2018 (the “Application 
Deadline”).  Landowner and the Town agree that the Landowner shall diligently pursue action on the 
Alternative Development Plan and that the Town shall in good faith process, review and act upon the 
application for the Alternative Development Plan according to the processes set forth in the CDC.  
Nothing herein shall be construed as contractually or otherwise obligating the Town to approve 
Landowner’s application for the Alternative Development Plan. 

  
4. Town Agreement Not to Revoke Existing Town Approvals.  Landowner agrees that 

the Town, upon expiration of the Vested Rights on March 18, 2018, the Town has the right pursuant to 
the CDC in effect at the time the Town initiates such action, to revoke, rescind, or otherwise terminate the 
Existing Town Approvals. Town agrees that during the term this MOU is in effect and provided that 
Landowner is in compliance with the MOU, it will not take any such action to revoke, rescind or 
otherwise terminate the Existing Town Approvals. 

   
5. Termination. This MOU shall terminate upon any one  of the following events: (a) the 

Landowner fails to submit an application by the Application Deadline; (b) the Landowner is notified by 
the Town that it has not been diligently pursuing the application for the Alternative Development 
Deadline and does not cure such failure to the reasonable satisfaction of the Town within thirty (30) days 
of notification by the Town; (c) the parties mutually agree to terminate this MOU; (d) 45 days after any 
final determination on an the Alternative Development Plan by the Town for which vested rights would 
attached pursuant to the CDC; (e) on June 15, 2020.    Upon termination of this MOU for any reason prior 
to securing approval of the Alternative Development Plan for the Property, the Town may immediately 
take action to revoke, rescind or otherwise terminate the Existing Town Approvals in whole or in part, 
with due consideration given to preserving existing platting, easements and prior land exchanges between 
the Landowner, the Town and third parties, which may result in a reversion to the Prior Use By Right 
Land Uses/Density for the Property.  Nothing herein shall prevent or limit Landowner from appearing at 
any such proceeding to revoke, rescind or otherwise terminate the Existing Town Approvals pursuant to 
the Landowners rights if any under the CDC.      

 
6. Miscellaneous Provisions.   

 
a. Recording.  This MOU will be recorded in the Official Records of the San 

Miguel County Clerk and Recorders Office. 
 
b. Remedies; Governing Law. Costs and Expenses.  This MOU shall be 

construed under and governed by the laws of Colorado, with jurisdiction and venue restricted to a state 
court of competent jurisdiction in San Miguel County, Colorado. In the event a Party is deemed to be in 
default hereunder, the other party may pursue any and all available remedies under applicable law, 
including, without limitation, injunctive relief and specific performance.  All of the rights and remedies of 
the Parties under this MOU shall be cumulative. In any action to enforce or construe the terms of this 
MOU, the substantially prevailing Party shall recover all legal and related court costs, including all 
reasonable attorneys’ fees and expert witness fees, costs and expenses.   

 
c. Binding Effect.  This MOU shall extend to, inure to the benefit of, and be 

57



binding upon the Town and its successors and assigns and upon the Landowner its successors (including 
subsequent owners of the Property, or any part thereof), legal representatives and assigns.  This MOU 
shall constitute an agreement running with the Property.   

 
d. Modifications, Amendments and Waiver.  No amendment, modification or 

termination of this MOU or any portion thereof shall be valid or binding unless it is in writing, dated 
subsequent to the date hereof and signed by each of the Parties hereto.  The Parties shall not amend this 
MOU unless undertaken following a duly noticed public meeting by the Town Council, with a 
recommendation from the DRB in the manner prescribed by the CDC.  No waiver of any breach, term or 
condition of this MOU by any party shall constitute a subsequent waiver of the same or any other breach, 
term or condition. 

 
e. Severability and Further Assurances.  If any term or provision or Article of 

this MOU, or the application thereof to any person or circumstances shall, to any extent, be invalid or 
unenforceable, the remainder of this MOU or the applications or such term or provision or Article to 
persons or circumstances other than those to which it is held invalid or unenforceable, shall not be 
affected thereby, and each remaining term and provision of this MOU shall be valid and enforceable to 
the fullest extent permitted by law.  Each Party shall execute and deliver such documents or instruments 
and take such action as may be reasonably requested by the other Party to confirm or clarify the intent of 
the provisions hereof and to effectuate the agreements herein contained and the intent hereof. 

 
f. Entire Agreement.  This MOU contains the entire agreement and understanding 

of the Parties with respect to the subject matter hereof, and no other representations, promises, agreements 
or understandings or obligations with respect to the payment of consideration or agreements to undertake 
other actions regarding the subject matter hereof shall be of any force or effect unless in writing, executed 
by all Parties hereto and dated after the date hereof. 

 
g. Counterparts and Copies.  This MOU may be executed in counterparts, each of 

which shall be deemed an original, but all of which together shall constitute one and the same document.  
Scanned/emailed or facsimile copies of any party’s signature hereon shall be deemed an original for all 
purposes of this MOU. 

 
h. Notice.   All notices, demands or writings in this MOU provided to be given or 

made or sent that may be given or made or sent by either party hereto to the other, shall be deemed to 
have been fully given or made or sent when made in writing and delivered either by Fax, Email or United 
States Mail (certified, return receipt requests and postage pre-paid), and addressed to the party, at the 
below stated mailing address, email address or fax number. The mailing address, email address or fax 
number to which any notice, demand or writing may be changed by sending written notice to each party 
notifying the party of the change. 

 
Town: 
Town of Mountain Village 
Attention: Town Manager 
455 Mountain Village Blvd., Suite A 
Mountain Village, CO 81435  

Owner: 
 

With a Copy to: 
J. David Reed, Esquire 
PO Box 196 
Montrose, CO 81402 
 

With a Copy to: 
The Law Offices of Thomas G. Kennedy, P.C. 
307 E. Colorado Ave., Suite 203 
P.O. Box 3081 
Telluride, CO  81435 
Email: tom@tklaw.net 
 

58



 
THIS MOU IS AGREED AND ENTERED INTO BY THE PARTIES AS OF THE EFFECTIVE 
DATE: 
 
TOWN: 
 
Town of Mountain Village, a Colorado Home Rule Municipality  
and Political Subdivision of the State of Colorado 
 
 
By:________________________________ Date: _____________________ 
 
Printed Name: ______________________ 
Title: ______________________________  
 
Attest:  __________________________ 
  Town Clerk 
  
STATE OF _______________________) 

                                     ) ss 
COUNTY OF _____________________) 

 
Acknowledged, subscribed and sworn to before me this ____ day of ______________, 2018 by 
____________________________________ as the Mayor of The Town of Mountain Village.   
 
Witness my hand and official seal. 
 
________________________________                    My commission expires:                         . 
Notary Public                                                                 
      
 LANDOWNER: 
 
Northlight Trust I  
 
 
By:________________________________ Date: _____________________ 
 
Printed Name: ______________________ 
Title: ______________________________ 
  
STATE OF _______________________) 

                                     ) ss 
COUNTY OF _____________________) 

 
Acknowledged, subscribed and sworn to before me this ____ day of ______________, 2018 by 
__________________________________________________ as the ___________________________ of 
Northlight Trust I. 
 
Witness my hand and official seal. 
 
________________________________                    My commission expires:                         . 
Notary Public                                                                 

59



Executive Summary 
The Rosewood Planned Unit Development (PUD) resulted in a unit increase of 18, a person equivalent density increase of 53, an increase in open space by .5 acres MOL and an approved commercial square footage of 38,666 square feet compared to the 
units, densities, open space and commercial space in existence prior to the PUD approval.  The Rosewood PUD Community Benefits included one additional dormitory and three additional employee apartments, improvements to the existing Boomerang 
and Jurassic Trails, dedication of two passive open space tracts to the Town (.91 acres in total), required sidewalk and Mountain Village Boulevard improvements, an interpretive site agreement and a $500,000 check to the town to be used for public 
purpose.  Through design review they were allowed height increases on buildings A and C.  There were no site coverage limitations in the Land Use Ordinance at the time, so the site was otherwise approved through the design review and other town 
processes.  Today there is a 65% site coverage limitation in the Multi-Family Zone District unless otherwise varied through a PUD or Variance process. 
 
The prior plat information illustrates that since the 1980’s, units and densities were higher than were previously understood during the recent public hearing process.  Lot 152 allowed for 18 condominium units and Lot 126 allowed for 120 Hotel Units, 2 
employee apartments and 16 dormitory units.  Compared to what was approved through the Rosewood PUD the comparison is that Lot 152 approved 23 condominium units and Lot 126R allowed for 44 condominium units, 56 hotel units, 5 employee 
apartments, 17 employee dormitory units, 19 hotel efficiency and commercial space as approved. In summary lot 152R increased by five condominium units.  The mix of units on 126R decreased in hotel density and increased in condominium density. 

 
Zoning Designation, Units and Person Equivalent Density Before the Rosewood PUD Compared to the Rosewood PUD 

Densities Before Rosewood     Densities Rosewood PUD    

Lot Zoning Designation Units 
Person Equivalent 
Density 

Total Person 
Equivalent Density  Lot Zoning Designation Units 

Person 
Equivalent 
Density 

Total Person 
Equivalent 
Density 

152A Condominium 8 3 24  152R Condominium 23 3 69 

152B Condominium 6 3 18    Commercial 
4,665 square 

feet 0 4,655 square feet 
152C Condominium 8 3 24  126R Hotel 56 1.5 84 
126 Hotel 70 1.5 105    Employee Apartment 5 3 15 
  Employee Apartment 2 3 6    Employee Dormitory 17 1 17 
  Employee Dormitory 16 1 16    Hotel Efficiency 19 2 38 
  Condominium  25 3 75    Condominium 44 3 132 

  Commercial   0 0    Commercial  
34,001 square 

feet 0 
34,001 square 

feet 
118 Single Family 1 4 4            
130 Condominium 10 3 30            
Totals   146   302  Total   164 Units   355 

          

38,666 
commercial 

square footage   

38,666 
commercial 

square footage 
Open Space Table Before Rosewood         
Lot Zoning Designation Acreage   Open Space Table Rosewood PUD   
OS-1 Active Open Space 93.98 acres   Lot Zoning Designation Acreage    

Total  93.98 acres     
OS-1R-

1 Active Open Space 91.96 acres    

      
OS-1R-

2 Active Open Space .62 acres    

      
OS-1R-

3 Active Open Space 1.09 acres    

      
OSP-
118 Passive Open Space .65 acres    

      OS-126 Passive Open Space .26 acres    
      Total   94.58 acres    

General Note: The primary difference between hotel and hotel efficiency is that a hotel efficiency may be in a condominium community. 
General Note: The primary difference between employee apartment and employee dormitory is that an employee dormitory has shared kitchen and recreational facilities. 

60

I 



Lots 126R & 152R Rosewood Planned Unit Development and Development History of Lots 126, 152, OS-1, 118 and 130 
1987 Plat 
152 

1990 Plat 
152-A, 152-B, 152-C 
   

2006 Pre-Rosewood Approval 
152-A,152-B,152-C 

2007 Rosewood Approval 
152R 

Lot Acreage Zoning 
Designation 

Person 
Equiva
lent 
Units 

Lot Acreage Zoning 
Designation 

Person 
Equiva
lent 
Units 

Notes Lot Acreage Zoning 
Designation 

Person 
Equivalent 
Units 

Notes Lot Acres Zoning 
Designation 

Person 
Equivale
nt Units 

Notes 

152 1.136 
Acres 

18 
condominium 
units 

54 152-A .401 
acres 

8 condominium 
units 

24   152A .401 
acres 

8 condominium 
units 

24  152R  1.47 
acres 
total 

 23 
Condominium 
4, 665 
Commercial 
square feet 

 69 
4,665 
commer
cial 
square 
feet 

 

    152-B .367 
acres 

6 condominium 
units 

18   152B .367 
acres 

6 condominium 
units 

18  A portion 
of OS-1 
became 
part of 
152R 

.334 
acres 

Rezoned to 
multi-family 

See 
above 

.334 part of 1.47 total 
acres 

    152-C .368 
acres 

8 condominium 
units 

24   152C 
 

.368 
acres 

8 condominium 
units 

24 1.136 total        

Sub 
total 

1.136 
acres 

18 
condominium 
units 

54  1.136 
acres 

22 condominium 
units 

66  Increase of 4 
condominium 
units and 12 
person 
equivalent 
Units  

 1.136 
acres 

22 condominium 
units 

66   1.47 
acres 

23 
condominiums 

69 Increased by 1 
condominium unit and 
3 person equivalent 
units  

1984 
Plat 
Lot 
126 

2.70 
acres 

120 Hotel 
Units 
2 Employee 
Apartment 
16 Employee 
Dormitory 
Commercial 

        1999 
Plat  
Lot 126   

 2.698 
acres 

70 Hotel 
2   Employee  
     Apartment 
16 Employee  
     Dormitory 
25 Condominium 
     Commercial 

105 
   6 
  
16 
 
 75 

Rezone 21 
Hotel Density 
Units to Hotel 
Efficiency 

126R  3.11 
acres 

56 Hotel 
5   Employee     
     Apartment  
17 Employee  
     Dormitory  
19 Hotel  
     Efficiency 
44 Condominium 
Commercial 
34,001  
      

84 
15 
 
17 
 
38 
 
132 
 
34,001 

 

              A portion 
of 126 
became 
OSP-126 

 .26 acres  Passive Open 
Space 

    

          118  .86 acres 1 Single family 4 Rezone 21 
hotel density 
units to Hotel 
Efficiency 

A portion 
of 126R 
and OSP 
118 

 .65 acres  Passive Open 
Space 

      

          130  .474 
acres 

10 condominiums 30  A portion 
of 126R 

    

1984 
Plat 
OS-1 

107.57 
acres 

Open 
Space/Recrea
tion Tract 

      OS-1 93.98 
acres 

Active Open 
Space 

   OS-1R-1 91.96 
acres 

 Active Open 
Space 

    

                OS-1R-2   .62 acres  Active Open 
Space 

  Was a portion OS-1 

               OS-1R-3  1.09 
acres 

 Active Open 
Space 

  Was a portion of OS-1 

61



126R & 152R Rosewood Approval Details 
The following rezone, density transfer and design variations were approved The following community benefits were accepted by the Town 
Transferred 27 units of condominium density from the density bank to Lot 126R 
Transferred 13 units of condominium density and rezoned to hotel efficiency Lot 126R 

1 additional employee dorm and 3 employee apartments over and above what is currently platted on lot 126.  New 126R will include 5 
employee apartments and 17 employee dormitory rooms in total. One parking space for each employee dorm. All required parking to serve 
these employee units will be provided onsite.  

Creation and transfer of 9 units of employee apartment density from the density bank to Lot 126R Improvements to the public access to the existing Boomerang and Jurassic trails, reducing the existing grade of the upper Boomerang Trail 
from 23% to 18% 

Creation and transfer of 1 unit of dormitory density from the density bank to Lot 126R Dedication of the newly created open space OSP-126R and OSP-118 to the Town of Mountain Village consistent of .92 acres (OSP-118 
transferred to the town when the trail is relocated) (both will be conveyed as fee title ownership) 

Transfer 3 units of condominium density from the density bank to Lot 152R Creation of a sidewalk (public improvements) from the resort development along Country Club Drive to the Mountain Village Boulevard, 
providing safe pedestrian access to the existing trails and for the residents and guests of this neighborhood. 

• Height increase to the maximum height on 126R for Building A an additional 15 feet (from 48 feet to 63 feet)
• Height increase for the maximum average height for lots 126R and Lot 130 an additional 6.66 feet for building A and 5.33

feet for Building C

Creating a public overlook at Jurassic and Boomerang Trail head with interpretive nature and informational signage. 

51 tandem parking spaces for the hotel operations to be counted as part of the required parking. Creation of a year-round trail connection form the Meadows trail to the Boomerang and Jurassic trail heads. 
Allow a portion of the building on 126 visible from the San Miguel Canyon to be developed with Condominium Zoning Designation 
(condominium units) that the units will be part of the larger building operated as a public hotel and that the units are placed in a 
rental pool. 

$500,000 to the town of mountain village (a donation) to be used by the tow for public purposes as determined by the town. 

The following easements are associated with the Rosewood PUD approvals 
• Construction and Maintenance Easement Agreement
• Golf Cart and Pedestrian Access Easement Agreement
• Utility and Stormwater Management Easement Agreement
• Landscape, Grading and Emergency Access Easement Agreement
• Jurassic Trail Easement Agreement
• Interpretive Site Facilities Easement Agreement
• Boomerang Road/trail Facilities Easement Agreement
• Skier Trail Access Easement and Consent to Skier Improvements
• Declaration of Boomerang Road/Trail Facilities Easement
• Utility and Improvements Easement Agreement (CC Drive)
• Pedestrian sidewalk easement agreement
• Public road easement agreement (country club drive road improvements)
• Public road easement agreement (relocated country club drive)

Additional easements of record shown on the subdivision plat 
• Scenic Easement
• Memorandum of Ski Facility Easement Agreement
• Scenic, Tennis Court, Pedestrian and Service Access Easement
• Pavilion Parking Area
• Bridge and Landscaping Easement
• Ski in and Pedestrian Access Easement
• Ski Lift Easement
• Golf Cart and Pedestrian Easement
• Pedestrian Bridge Airspace Easement Agreement

Rezoning the Property as follows: 
• Rezone a portion of Lot 118 from Single Family to Multi-Unit.
• Rezone a portion of Lot 118 from Multi-Unit to Passive Open Space.
• Rezone a portion of Lot 126 from Multi-Unit to Passive Open Space.
• Rezone a portion of OS-1 from Active Open Space to Multi-Unit.

Replat of Lots 118, 126 and 130 into a newly reconfigured Lot 126R (containing 3.11 acres) 
Tract OS-126 (containing .26 acres) and  
Tract OS-118 (containing .65 acres). 
Replat of Lots 152A, 152B, 152C and OS-1 into newly configured Lot 152R (containing 1.47 
acres) and Tract OS-IR-l final configuration is 91.96 acres 

General Note: Multi-Family development with the Rosewood application was not subject to site coverage limitations and otherwise approved by the final architectural and development plan set.  As of 2015 multi-family zoning is 
restricted to a 65% site coverage limitation. Detached condominium heights are limited to 35 feet versus multi-family condominiums within one building that can be constructed up to 48 feet. 

/mbh 

62



126R & 152R Rosewood Replat for reference

63

~'1'-.k,_1,.'(),.\._,..._::.,...,.,,.,,.,,,-,,,_ToOMotllounldn ~ 
Calanzdo,do,.,,,.,C&'tf1ylbatlhh,R9plot--apprr,,-Jbythe 
T°""Cauncllln IM-TowtCaunr:/1Appn,,a/-,,,llon(-
belor,). I 

5ta6-ofC:.~) 

COl.<'l(yaf..,:»,..~-

~~=7~~-::.:' 
U..T-,af/Jountorn~ 

:,-~ .=,- 1 ... (,1- l"l...e.t:1:J 
..:.,tL 'i' .:::9-::::\ ••v 
NotmyPubllc L _s,l,_1e_ 

4~NM<lnopraftl!IJTo.,.,of~ ~ 
Colorodo,da~~--~--tlPfll'Owdbytm 
T00on Coundl In Ille Tolm Council Appnr,t,/ __,, (- l>rlo•). 
wh/tJhha.authorlzad-dnej,o,tmeto-,,i.W.dot:IJtrwtt. 

~ ~I•:;!_'-•-, 

-.a1Ceo~J 

eounqo1S.-..~ ~~=~~L~ofof 
1.,W,,,,"'1/ofW.Rep/otmay..-t.o_..,.~rlght,,.,,..-to 
~lllofmt.U,c.R.s.,,...,,,,.,_, 

2. E-t __,,,, from s...urily mt. Guamn(y Com,oo,,y -..mltment 
"""""""S02112Jf-lfN(ll9,2007atB:OOAJ,/ 

.J.tMSISOFBEN1JNGS.11>e1-rir,goftha~IIMofLotl2'
_,,,.,,toHSIWS8'fO"E~to theP/otofl.ot 126, TtJllutltle 
Mounmln~~1,,__llan:l>B,1ffllnP/Qt-fatpaga 
ZIXM.11leendtlofaaid11M-,,mon......,,tadbyt1/5,_.lop/»dwllll 
o I 1/2"olumlnum-,LS208J2 ,,,_ __ ,,.,.,,,.,i-, ___ ,...,,,,,__u,.,_ 
-lntheRr,plrlt-i..ini.sub.J-,ttoU,.~ 
,,,,,,_.oftheTo ... otklountalnvmag.L<lndUH-,.,._,, 
~i.no.,,rn.n«Jtor,,.Jtmoyboo,,,.,,_fram,,,_totime. 

.._ TIM Conllgun;dlon of/M folkwlng-, 
tnx,w, and rlght-of-lffJ,1 ,_ -m,nlf/Hby 
thisR9plot:-

b. 11>e -.ilng ----bythisR9plot: 
Lotla,R,Lot1!1:ZR.n,,,,tOSP--118,TnxtOSP-126,n...t 

OS-IR-1,Tru<:tOS-1R-2,T,wtOS-1R-.1 
~- n.. ,-,g /o,., ___ byW.R.p/al: 

Lot Hit l.ot 12', l.ot 16,Z,1, Lat 1!S28. l.ot fut; nvct 05-/. 

'-"'--""""of~Rop/r,t-dp,iorp/aandloti>oundoly 
-forlM.,,..,_,,,,,,,lnthtJU{llllo..t:rfptionto the IIGH"'-flT 
andlheTSG~m,-,,,-_,,/ntnec.rltflt:alaafO...-!p. 
7.N<mCE.·kt:anllngtoColontdo,_;,oum...t ____ _ 
bandupontNfecl:/nthls ____ aft.ryouffrst 

10. T1M ow--,,;p- ,-of Lot,,,. Tolm ofl.lolmtaln lfllas-!a 
~byU..~,.,.t,f,:tioM:(a)thdlotalionof111• 
~ Roa4/wllbwlfl """""1mdonto Lot 11/J,,,,,._ to U.. 
n,..,Coundll,pf,rv,o/RlltlolutJon,dll,,._.,,.""',,.,1c1oaertoa,JJt,,:.nt 
Lol>,117tNld7f9;and(b)nahealtJUI/Mngtr9u-Hf9fflOWld 
fram~l.otlf/Jfollori>g/ha,./oaa/Jonand.,,,,,._oftl!IJ 
BoomMvngRoacVtrvfl~-

CDrnFIClf.711'0FOWIIDIMIII' 

-GtnMHokllngaLLC,aMid,Jgonllmllwlltollm(y~(ilGI") 
andTSGS/d.tOo/f.U.C.ao.la"""'l/mllwl~oompat!f("TS(;") 
(~bw"}t/Nl"Cl!rno,s")do'-wby-ondaffllm•-: 

J.111atWGH-a/Jf.vfnedor,-abtainlng~lond,__,,.,,. 
and ""t/HflmMt. ("T-, ...,,__.) t:Oltffffllttg Ill• un ond 
........,,._.,taft/NIIIGHl'n,ptlf1y•,.,,_,,,_.,,.,,,W.~lnllle 
ro-eo-.-RNalutlan..tne~..-,tantJ 
olllerwah.,,,,,,,_rwfet:tlng_appn,..,,,,,,_,U..To..,or 
llauntoJn-,..Colomdo("Toon"). 

4..0,,,,.,.-ID,.,,talllt.llGH/N-1¥and1SO~,.,,.IM 
-tlf~thallft'6'~anddalgnamdltband 
pa,r1Q•the--d.plt:mdand_,_antht.R,eplat. 

5.150/ratlconnnmdtoW.R9platandlheTown~"""'""llt. 
_,,.,,,,,aa&n.,""-atlll•ISO~•-antheTo.., --· INlll'INE5Sllflfll'ffl'",WGH(wilh~totheWGH""-1y}and 

7;; 9':,it:eo/et/NI 1SO ~) :,,~--;:: :::-rt::11:: -----Ha/dln,pU.C,al,l/r:hlgtM,,,,,_/labllltyCompatiy 

... AM. -
,,,_ ll<lm•: Ap.,... e. • y-w' 
,.,,.,_/Ut!!M,H, 

: ~ k:--- ltollil1(y -y 
Printed,,.,,_ bl:t€12~ev 
1111--Ceo 

VICINITY MAP 

..... ,,,•""'' ......... M><,tnON"•'"H"-0 

.L ,;,;· --¥?;i~ ... 
..... .. 

'f:1 

011ANro,1rOftfmlotL~ 

-~Ho/dif,pU.C,a~IIWIJl.i/JabllJly,:ampany('llr;H? 
and1SOSl/lllOolf.U.C.aDe/aware,,,,,_/lablllty"""',OdllY(aoto 
llta--,,.bw"}~lntaLat.andoon'9)'0dtoWGH)i-wt,y 
gn11>t.to1SOSlt/llGa/f.U.C.aOtJltJrlanlllmlmdllabllltyoompany; 
TM/urlda"°""""""Wiaf"'RNarlCampony.aCo/orr,dr,non~m 
corporalioto.do/nfl,,,,_,,..,..,,,lalnl'll'age.,.._,•~lna. 
(\M:M');andthe To..,ofMountain ~ Colotuda(IM "To..,?, 
----and~a~-- llft..t 
1n-,,-,...,,,..and,_all,,,.,,.dtJeifltta/Jlldm llS'
£_,.,,tonthr.R.platf<>r°""andall._~and __ ,...,_,.b/11S9Sld.tGolf.U.C.AM:14,tzndtha 

To..., for/1,a_,.and-.,,topo,vt,bnoft/NO TollurldaSldAraa, th. 
~GalfCo<Nw,andllleTalm,Wihfdllnt:IUde/Jutat9notllmllwl ""u,. ,-,.,, -. tJrolnop, - .......... aomn,,mlt:atlon --.ski,,,_maln......,.,/Jlc:ycle-,--1Wd"'O' _,,,,__,,___galfCINt-,.,,.,.. 
maldng, _,.,,,..., .,,.. ,.,,,,,,_,_ ...... -- ...to/nlng .... :::~ ~=· ,_,_, -- - --. -,/to,y 

TH,.,,,,,.,.,,.,,IMl,,g/lM-ol-,JaflllOH~tlf 
/and/abtJltJt/mllSF"ootGenenJ/_,,.,,t(G.EJIIHHla/JJIIJhedon 
tlNo IIG'lfN-1¥do h..by_,,1-andNl/flqut.h lhatpart/Oll af-,ld 
IISFootc.n-,/£-lhat.,,.J!OtH,,.,_,and_""'1ian of-£--y-~ ----,. -y--~an,Jro.--,r...,,..,JJran,/IMIIG/ ,.,.,. 

d/am..,-..,,,,,nf.,,f. /ttno.....,tmoyanyactionbandupon"'lYdwfecl 
~~~---tw,-f,,rn,fb.d,m,tlfthe 

IJ.w.tfatldamo_,,,,.,__,,-,,,,,,byll',ff:M-~ 
Conaultmg~andflllld~byFdtly~1""/tt 
Sept9mber,200tJ.~-,,,.aubJ-t""the~ 
pro-..a11naro..,o/Mountain~l..and!ln~•
_,,.,,,..,,.no,./n~or-1tmoyboo__,,.,,,,.,..,_i,,t1ma 

~,.,,,,,., _.AW-Q:he 

9.ThlaR-,,lallabff>gnHXJtdtJt/ln-... --No. 
20()7-IDl5-05ofHMTo..,Counc/toflheTo..,olMountalnWRrlll"(" 
ToonCounr:IAppnwof-tfon"),-,_onl,ptf/11,2007/n 
R.ooptfonNo.J/IIIJ1'-IMChltltomJ-kJl"So/lJllfllMICoun(r, 
Colomdo('Offlclt,/_,. o.w.ro,,,,,entonHMWGHf'r-'Yhl 
authorfndto_,,,-fn,,,,,,,,,_rdll,th.To..,Coundl~ 
RNolutionond-lhe~t~l"--IIC'londlMTo"" ~='=-~~""t"J..,,;;;r.-

LOT 126R, LOT 152R, TRACT OSP-118, TRACT OSP-126, TRACT OS-lR-1, TRACT 06-fl-2, AND TRACT OS-lR-3 
A REPI..AT OF LOTS 118, 128,..131U52A, 1528, 152C NO TRACT 08-1, TOWN OF MOUNTAIN VI.LAGE LOCATED - ll-E N 1/2 OF SEC110N 3, T. 42 N, R 9 W. NO ll-E , •• , •• 

81/2 OF SEC110N 34, T. '43 N. R 9 W. NMPM. N ll-E COUNTY OF BAN M0a LYNCl - - NCOll'ORATED TOWN OF MOUNTAN Vti.AGE, COLORADO :::-.: "'" 

::-0~:~?-
-Na ..... G9f.S-M:--h 
MarlagffolT_,of_,ta/nlfllap,o 

970-728-6153 970-728-5050 f"ax 

PO BOX !385 
125 VI. PACIFIC, SUITE B-1 



64

S68'35'10"EW.19' 

1-

J 
' g !CT 1&2R 
l 

_ ~ ~7'_1!,E_J.!4.~ _ ~ 

N oJiib~~- E 

LOT 126A, LOT 152A, TRACT OSP-fl8, TRACT OSP-126, TRACT OS-1R-1, TRACT OS-1R-2, AND TRACT OS-1R-3 
A REPI.AT OF LOTS 118, l2ll.m 152A, 1528, 152C At,[) TRACT OS-\ TOWN OF MOUNTAIN VILLAGE LOCATED WITHN THEN 1/2 OF SECTION 3, T. 42 N., R 9 W, At,[) THE 

S 1/2 OF SECTION 34, T. 43 N., R 9 W., N.M.PM. IN THE COLMY OF SAN MIOUE~ LY1NG WTTHN THE INCOfFOAATED TOWN OF MOUNT~ VILLAGE, COLORADO 

SffUSESDESCRI 
n;,1171' IN r;J?ANf OF 16' Tl/IS Pt.AT (SHr. 1) 
TSG 9.!ill,/V/T(SHEIT1) 

(1}Lol11B,Toliurld<JMounlainVil~.accordlngta~Plotr,,cordod 
/,lorr,h9,19lUinPlo/Book1ot-476 

(Jl} Loi 126, Filing 1, Tolluridd Mcuntain Vil/ago, according la II,,, Plat 
rttaordM!Man:h ll, 1999 in Plat &ok 1 al page2504 

(31 Lot IJO, Toli<Jr/<it, Mountain Wllaga, <=:ordlng to th• Plot r,,oardod 
Octot,,,rl8,1988inPlo/Bool<1at-ll47 

(4) Loi,; 152-A, 152-8, 152-C, To//urlde Mountain '01/ogo, Filing I, 
-::;o,:";';J'v, lo I~ Plat=~ January 10, 1!190 In Plat Bo<Jk I ot 

NOTE::&oringsan<idilttancnshowr,/nparonlhMM1roflootr,,cord 
!nformalkmaccord!nglo~Plolt!N•todobo\'<!' 

F&LEY 

• 
0 

~ 

@ 

0 



65

._ I 

TRACT OSP-118 

llACT OSP-128 

TRA~!,, ~-1R-1 

LOT 126A, LOT 152R, lRACT OSP-118, lRACT OSP-126, lRACT OS-1M, lRACT OS-1R-2, AND lRACT 06-1R-3 

• srT""""N<011/YM.IMMIOH'ISJ7..,. 

QA """"""""'_..,,,,,,..,,_,_wCN'IS2'15< 
09 '°""Drlrall!...,!t/2"M.UIIINLMCI\PLS2".., 

Qc ,tlLJNOl!EIWINlO I 1/:l"~CN'LS ..... 

QD """"'REBAIIN<011/t'"'-"""""CN'ISIOIJ2 

Qr """"""""NID1t/t',,_,_LMCN'IS11951 

Or ""'""""""'ANDttf>""-""'"""""'"'""'" 
Q; FOUNll""""001!/2"IWIIWWCAPLSOOOO 

QN F00/111.....,.,.,,,/2""-IMNUWQIPIS .. 054 

o, """"""""'N<011/t',,_,_Lll!CN'I.S!t1 .. 

0• """"'""'"'AM0tt/2"M.UIIINLMCN'LSl!'3< 

QL FOUNll,SR£9"!"""/IOCN' 

QW ---••/2""-UM""""OO'LS,7605 

QN ---11/2"AI.JJMINUilCN'IS11SJ< 

970-728-615.'.3 970-728---0050 f"ax 

P.O. BOX 1385 



66

CURVE NUMBERS C~ ™RU C7 
N«JC2~WERENOfUSED 

" , 
''° 
'" "' ,., 
"' 

u, ,. 
"' '" ,. 
'" "' 

"' "' 

LINET.olll.E-RECORD - -~ s11r1a· '« 

LOT 126R, LOT 152R, TRACT OSP-118, TRACT OSP-126, TRACT OS-1R-1, TRACT OS-1R-2, AND TRACT OS-1R-3 
IT OF LOTS 118, 126, 130, 152A, 1528, 1S2C AND TRACT OS-1, TOWN OF MOUNTAIN '11llAOE LOCATED WTTHN Tl£ SW 1/4 OF Tl£ SE 1/4 A10 THE SE 1/4 OF THE '~'"" 

11/4, SECTION 34, T. 42 N, R 9 W., N.M.PM IN THE COlMY OF 6AN ~L, LfflG wmtN THE NCOfl'ORATED TOWN OF MOUNTAIN '11llA~ COLORADO :;";,,;• ,,,,, 

GE J87J 
FSLEY 
AINCIAT•I, INC. 

~ 

LINE AND CURVE TAB 

o..., .. ,". aoth· ,. 6-00-07 n;v,- -f\R,plal 6-DB-•7 ,h ... ,_ ---~- lTTJ: 



67

Dear Mountain Village Town Council, 

First we would like to thank the members of ORB for their time and effort in reaching the 
decision to recommend to Town Council not to extend the Rosewood PUD and all of its many 
variances. We hope and trust that Town Council will honor and agree with that recommendation 
to deny any extension of the current PUD. 

The developers are asking for a 2-year extension of the Rosewood Plan which was originally 
approved in 2007 for 3 years , extended again for 3 and finally 5 more until March 18, 2018, by 
which time they intend to submit the attached site plan or some variant of it. Eleven years is 
long enough. The fact that County Club Drive is now a single family neighborhood has to be 
considered along with the mandate of the Town Council to safeguard the natural beauty of our 
village. 

At the time the initial Rosewood PUD was approved 11 years ago, our village was in another 
place and wanted development at any cost. Yet, there has been no new construction in the 
village core in 1 O years. If a new hotel is needed, the village core is where it should be built. 
Telluride and Mountain Village are now known around the world. Visitors are taking advantage 
of Airbnb, VRBO and our local boutique rental companies to get accommodations without the 
availability of more hotel rooms. Guest visits are growing rapidly and our visitors are enjoying 
these new "Hot Beds" found in homes and condos. 

If the attached site plan or any variation of it is approved and built, it will add many years of 
construction traffic to the end of our village on a small winding road not able to safely or 
adequately handle this project. At build out there will be 28 buildings, 13 of which will run along 
the right side of the 1st hole of the golf course. Can you imagine a more dangerous location? 

The two hairpin turns on Country Club Drive used by bikers and hikers to our two most popular 
trails, Jurassic and Boomerang, along with the residents of the Meadows and Country Club 
Drive who walk and drive it every day are already hazardous. Years of construction vehicles 
using these same dangerous curves will only exacerbate the risk of injury to our residents and 
guests. 

We all made the choice to move to Mountain Village for the beauty of our mountain vistas, the 
serenity, the wonderful outdoor life, and the feeling of a small hamlet. We would certainly hope 
it stays that way for many years to come. 

As a first step, we implore town council not to extend the existing outdated PUD. Once that is 
done the developers, if desired, should be required to come back for a responsible new process 
with new traffic impact studies and address the safety concerns of the town generally and our 
surrounding neighborhood specifically. 

Concerned Citizens 

(Names Attached - 3 pages) 



68

Page 1 The following persons have agreed to have their names added to our letter 
objecting to the continuation of the original PUD of Rosewood Property 
Please note that none of the following are residents of Country Club Drive. 

Carolyn Doerle Schumacher, Peaks Hotel, Unit 318, Mountain Village, CO 

Wendy Sisler, 632 W Columbia Ave, Unit D, Telluride, CO 

Judd Zebersky, 117 Sunny Ridge Place, #129, Mountain Village, CO 

Steve Silver, 140 Lost Creek Lane, Mountain Village, CO 

Bill Goldberg, 114 Palmyra Drive, Mountain Village, CO 

Dorothy Kammerer Doak, MD, 107A Lawson Point, Mountain Village, CO 

Henry Haizlip, 100 Pennington Place #5, Mountain Village, CO 

Greg Baer, 93 Pennington Place, Mountain Village, CO 

Dave Heaney, 140 San Sophia, Mountain Village, CO 

Billy Harbert, Lot 238 Hang Glider Drive, Mountain Village, CO 

Robert Bullock, 133 Russell Drive, Mountain Village, CO 

LeighAnne Baxter, 166 Country Club Drive, Mountain Village, CO 

Walter Fitzsimmons, Bear Creek Lodge, Unit 307, Mountain Village, CO 

Sarah Haizlip, 100 Pennington Place, #5, Mountain Village, CO 

David C Aldrich, 117 Fischer Drive, Unit D, Mountain Village, CO 

Jennifer Bullock, 133 Russell Drive, Mountain Village, CO 

Bob Doak, DVM, 107A Lawson Point, Mountain Village, CO 

Marilyn T Aldrich, 117 Fischer Drive, Unit D, Mountain Village, CO 

Clare Hart, 93 Pennington Place, Mountain Village, CO 

Greg Parr, 145 Sunny Ridge Place, Unit 116, Mountain Village, CO 

Nancy McNamara, 620 Mountain Village Drive, Mountain Village, CO 

Myron E Ullman, 18162 Woodgate Road, Montrose, CO 

Continued 



69

Page 2 Continuation of persons objecting to extension of original PUD of Rosewood Property 

Jill Savin, 112 Cabins Lane, Mountain Village, CO 

Lisa Eaton, 104 Gold Hill Court, Mountain Village, CO 

Jim Tharp, Franz Klammer, Mountain Village, CO 

Greg Anisi, 721 Pandora, Telluride CO 

John Trudeau, 108 Singletree Ridge, Telluride, CO 

Don Orr, 212 Knoll Estates Drive, Telluride, CO 

Lynn Cornelius, 54 Timberwoods Drive, Telluride, CO 

Howard Savin, 112 Cabins Lane, Mountain Village, CO 

Cheryl Nordstrom, 136 San Joaquin Road, #D201, Mountain, CO 

Andy Sheils, 644 West Columbia, Telluride, CO 

Dianne Zarrilli, 618 Mountain Village Blvd, Mountain village, CO 

Ray Delong, 761Smuggler Ave., Telluride, CO 

Shari Mitchell, 112 Singletree Ridge, Mountain Village, CO 

Pat Sullivan, 158 Russell Drive, Mountain Village, CO 

Joan Kyle, 130 Kokomo Court, Telluride, CO 

Debbie Madaris, 327 Adams Ranch Road, #703, Mountain Village, CO 

Leslie Trudeau, 108 Singletree Ridge, Telluride, CO 

Nancy Orr, 212 Knoll Estates Drive, Telluride, CO 

Tom Elrod, 106 Prudencia Lane, Telluride, CO 

Bingo Eaton, 104 Gold Hill Court, Mountain Village, CO 

Jim Lindheim, Franz Klammer, Mountain Village, CO 

Marla Meridith, 568 Country Club Drive, Mountain Village, CO 

Rock Martell, 111 San Joaquin Road, #17, Mountain Village, CO 

Continued 



70

Page 3 Continuation of persons objecting to extension of original PUD for Rosewood Property 

Barb Martell, 111 San Joaquin Road, #17, Mountain Village, CO 

Shasheen Shaw, Element 52, Telluride, CO 

Pricilla Zintak, 240 North Aspen Street, Telluride, CO 

Richard Cornelius, 54 Timberwoods Drive, Telluride, CO 

Trish Anisi, 721 Pandora, Telluride, CO 

Mia Delong, 761 Smuggler Ave., Telluride, CO 

Michael Antieri, Residence 533, Madeline Hotel, Mountain Village, CO 

Ben Zintak, 240 North Aspen Street, Telluride, CO 

Marty McKinley, 176 Adams Ranch Road, Mountain Village, CO 

Walter DelaRosa, 6 Elkstone, Mountain Village, CO 

Janet Elrod, 106 Prudencio Lane, Telluride, CO 

Continued 



71

-----1 

• -.:,,.~~ • n"Y••~ .. :,c,- ,~:..,1, 
• .,,~ ·••J ... 1,..<r.1..-_·--~ 

,-."""•:w:i.: 
-·-••ir~. 

--------·--- : 

-- ·------
1
NORTHUGHT 

1 ;[."J; ';52R 
1itu'-",1AI• 'IIU.ACIE. 
~ 

, A101 



 

  

February 13, 2018 

 
 
 
Via Email mhaynes@mtnvillage.org 
Members of the Mountain Village Town Council (“Town Council”) 
c/o Ms. Michelle Haynes, Director of Planning and Development Services 
455 Mountain Village Boulevard, Suite A 
Mountain Village, CO 81435 
 
 Re: Comments on the Application for Proposed Major PUD Amendment and Extension 

 (the “PUD Extension Application”) sought by Northlight Trust I (the
 “Applicant”) for Lot 126R, Lot 152R, OSP 118, OSP 126 (the “Property”) for
 impacted Lot 143A Owner Carol Hintermeister (“Ms. Hintermeister”) 

  Our File Ref.: Hintermeister 
 ________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Dear Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
 As noted in our earlier correspondence, we continue to represent Ms. Hintermeister in 
connection with the above-referenced PUD Extension Application.  In that capacity, we have 
reviewed the Town Staff materials provided in advance of the February 15, 2018 Town Council 
meeting and ask for your consideration of the following: 
 
 Generally, Ms. Hintermeister is amenable to the new approach proposed by Town Staff 
for dealing with the current PUD and related approvals, and pursuing this approach in lieu of the 
prior PUD Extension Application.  However, due to the failure and/or refusal to date of the 
Applicant to make any concerted outreach to the neighbors impacted by the proposed 
development, Ms. Hintermeister requests that Town Council add an additional requirement 
that, prior to submitting its new application by June 2018, the current or any future 
applicant be required to schedule at least two meetings with its neighbors on Country Club 
Drive, to discuss their concerns and options for addressing those and mitigating adverse impacts 
from the proposed development. 
 
 

72

TELLURIDE 

618 MTN VILLAGE BLVD. 
SUITE 201 

TELLURIDE, CO 81435 
PH: 970.728.5775 

FAX: 970. 728.5898 

TUELLER & GIBBS, LLP 
DENVER· TELLURIDE 

WWW.TUELLERGIBBS.COM 

DENVER 

1601 BLAKE ST. 
SUITE 300 

DENVER, CO 80202 
PH: 303.854.9121 

FAX: 303.845.5333 



 
 In addition, Ms. Hintermeister asks that Town Council make it clear that, in honoring its 
intention to process the new application in compliance with applicable current regulations, no 
presumption of “vested rights” or special treatment based on prior approvals will be accorded to 
the applicant for the new application.  Rather, Ms. Hintermeister is very concerned that the new 
application be reviewed, weighed and balanced in light of current conditions, not with any bias 
or weight given to prior approvals, and that a full, open and fair process be conducted with 
adequate opportunities provided for community input, objections, etc.  
 

With those requests, Ms. Hintermeister is willing to support this approach, in reliance on 
the Town’s good faith efforts to process any new application in the best interests of the parties 
(including the impacted neighbors) and in full compliance with its regulations and adherence to 
standards for needed traffic studies, community feedback, sensitive development, etc. 
 

Thanks for your attention to these matters and please contact us with any questions, or if 
we can assist otherwise.  Please also note that we will be available at the February 15th Meeting 
to offer additional comments if/as helpful. 
 
 
     Sincerely,  
 
     TUELLER & GIBBS, LLP 
     a Colorado limited liability partnership 
 
 
     By:  /s/ Douglas R. Tueller   
      Douglas R. Tueller 
 
 
 
ec: James D. Mahoney, Esq. 

Carol and Hank Hintermeister 
Dr. Alan Safdi 

 Monique Bensett 

73



PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT SERVICES 
 DEPARTMENT 

455 Mountain Village Blvd. 
Mountain Village, CO 81435 

 (970) 369-8250 

Agenda Item No. 12 

TO: Town Council 

FROM: Michelle Haynes, Planning and Development Services Director 

FOR: Meeting of February 15, 2018 

DATE: February 5, 2018 

RE: Second reading, public hearing and council vote on an ordinance approving a 
rezone of Lot 304 and transferring density of (4) person equivalents of single family 
density from Lot 304 into the Density Bank pursuant to Community Development 
Code Sections 17.4.9 & 17.4.10  

PROJECT GEOGRAPHY 
Legal Description:   Lot 304, Town of Mountain Village according to Plat Book 1, Page 2281 

according to records of San Miguel County, Colorado. 
Address:    317 Benchmark  
Applicant/Agent:   Law Office of Daniel T. Zemke, P.D. 
Owner:  Telluvista, LLC and Donald & Amy Smith 
Zoning:   Single Family  
Existing Use:   Vacant Lot  
Proposed Use:  replat into adjacent properties and a substantial portion of the area formerly 

known as Lot 304 subject to no build area on the proposed replat (Lots 
303R2 and 305R) 

Lot Size:  .576 acres 
Adjacent Land Uses: 

o North:  Single Family
o South:  Single Family
o East:  Open Space
o West:  Single Family

ATTACHMENTS 
• Exhibit A: Applicant's Narrative dated November 3, 2017
• Exhibit B: No Build Covenant Map – for illustrative purposes only
• Exhibit C: Ordinance

BACKGROUND 
At the Town Council regular meeting held on January 18, 2018, the Town Council considered and 
approved by first reading of an ordinance a density transfer and rezone application for Lot 304, to 
transfer one single family density unit into the density bank along with a resolution approving a 
replat of lots 303R1, 304 and 305 into Lots 303R2 and 305R.  Town Council must approve by 
second reading of an ordinance, the rezone and density transfer application.  There were no 
changes recommended by the Town Council associated with the first reading of an ordinance. 
The second reading ordinance is the same as the first reading ordinance.  

74



DENSITY TRANSFER APPLICATION, CRITERIA AND STAFF ANALYSIS 
To transfer density to the Density Bank the rezoning process must be followed, which includes a 
recommendation by the Design Review Board and final action by the Town Council. The following 
criteria must be met for the review authority to approve a rezoning application: 

a. The proposed rezoning is in general conformance with the goals, policies and
provisions of the Comprehensive Plan;

b. The proposed rezoning is consistent with the Zoning and Land Use Regulations;
c. The proposed rezoning meets the Comprehensive Plan project standards;
d. The proposed rezoning is consistent with public health, safety and welfare, as well

as efficiency and economy in the use of land and its resources;
e. The proposed rezoning is justified because there is an error in the current zoning,

there have been changes in conditions in the vicinity or there are specific policies
in the Comprehensive Plan that contemplate the rezoning;

f. Adequate public facilities and services are available to serve the intended land
uses;

g. The proposed rezoning shall not create vehicular or pedestrian circulation hazards
or cause parking, trash or service delivery congestion; and

h. The proposed rezoning meets all applicable Town regulations and standards.

The proposal to transfer units to the Density Bank is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan 
which notes in Land Use Value Number 8, land uses are envisioned to fit into the surrounding 
neighborhood. (p. 35 of the Comprehensive Plan).  Single Family zoning is intended to be low 
density which is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan Land Use Policy A.1 (p.38) This 
application is reducing the density between the three lots by one single family density. Staff finds 
the application meets the above criteria.  Criteria e & f are not applicable to this application. 

The following criteria must be met for the Town Council to approve the transfer of density to the 
density bank: 

a. The criteria for decision for a rezoning are met, since such density transfer must
be processed concurrently with a rezoning development application;

b. The density transfer meets the density transfer and density bank policies; and
c. The proposed density transfer meets all applicable Town regulations and

standards.

The proposed density transfer meets the above criteria. 

DRB RECOMMENDATION 
The DRB by a unanimous vote of 7-0 recommended approval to the Town Council regarding the 
density transfer and rezone application for Lot 304 with conditions found in the proposed motion 
at the January 4, 2018 regular meeting. 

MINOR SUBDIVISION APPLICATION 
Town Council approved by Resolution the concurrent minor subdivision application to replat 
Lots 303R1, 304 and 305 into Lots 303R2 and 305R at their regular meeting held on January 
18, 2018.   

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends approval of the second reading of an ordinance. 

75



PROPOSED MOTION REZONE AND DENSITY TRANSFER 
I move to approve by second reading of an ordinance a rezone and density transfer application 
pursuant to CDC Sections 17.4.9 & 17.4.10 to rezone lot 304 and transfer one single family 
density unit (four-person equivalent density) from Lot 304 to the Density Bank with the following 
findings and conditions: 

Findings: 
1. The owner of record of density in the density bank shall be responsible for all dues,

fees and any taxes associated with the assigned density and zoning until such time
as the density is either transferred to a lot or another person or entity.

2. The concurrent Resolution approving a minor subdivision application was approved
by Town Council on January 18, 2018.

This motion is based on the evidence and testimony provided at a public hearing held on February 
15, 2018, with notice of such hearing as required by the Community Development Code. 

 /mbh 

76



November 3, 2017 

Via Email only to:  
Michelle Haynes, Planning Dept. Director 
Town of Mountain Village, CO  
455 Mountain Village Blvd.  
Mountain Village, CO 81435 
mhaynes@mtnvillage.org 

Re:   Minor Subdivision Application and Density Transfer Application for Lot 
304 Town of Mountain Village, Colorado; 

Dear Ms. Haynes: 

This firm represents Telluvista, LLC, a Colorado limited liability company (“Telluvista”) in all mat-
ters related to a request for a subdivision, lot line vacation and density transfer involving lot 304 
in Town of Mountain Village.  Telluvista is the owner of Lot 304, and the adjacent parcel, Lot 
303R1 which transferred to Telluvista in August this year.    Both lots are located at 313 Bench-
mark Drive (the “Telluvista Lots”).  This letter shall serve as the narrative for Telluvista’s applica-
tion for these applications related to Lot 304.   

Upon taking title to the Telluivista Lots, my client entered into discussions with the owners of Lot 
305, Donald B. Smith, Jr. and Amy M. Smith in order to subdivide and vacate the lot line for Lot 
304.   A contract was entered into for this process shortly thereafter and executed by the par-
ties.  The Smith Law Firm, P.C. represents the owners of Lot 305.  

Telluvista is requesting a vacation of the lot lines in Lot 304, that the lot be subdivided and por-
tions of Lot 304 be transferred to the adjacent parcels Lot 303R1 and Lot 305, all of which is set 
forth in the proposed replat attached hereto as Exhibit A.  Telluvista makes this request in order 
to protect view corridors and guard against further development on either side of the parties’ 
current residences.  Upon completion of the process, the lots will be designated as Lot 303R2 
for Telluvista, and Lot 305R for the Smiths.  Records for the Town of Mountain Village further 
demonstrate that there is zoning density of one (1) unit single family residential attached to Lot 
304, comprising of 4 persons.  This density unit shall remain the name and possession of 
Telluvista after this process and transferred into the Density Bank of the Town of Mountain Vil-
lage, pursuant to Community Development Code (“CDC”) at Section 17.3.8 and Section 
17.4.10(D)(2) as to criteria met for the decision.  A covenant agreement shall also be entered 
into between the Smiths and Telluvista and recorded with San Miguel County Land Records for 
establishment of a no-build zone on portions of Lot 303R2 and Lot 305R as well.  The no build 
zone is also designated on the proposed replat enclosed.    

A review of the CDC at Section 17.4.13 allows for subdivision for lots within Town of Mountain 
Village. Specifically, Sections 17-4-13(E)(2) are met as this request conforms with the goals for 
the Town zoning and regulations, easements are not affected or shall be relocated and the pro-

Exhibit A

77

mailto:daniel@dzemkelaw.com
http://www.dzemkelaw.com/


posed subdivision meets all requirements and standards of the Town.  There are no expected 
changes regarding access, or utilities to this lot, there will be no changes or affects upon drain-
age for the lots, fire protection, street improvements or additional facilities or structures upon 
any lots associated with this request.  The parties understand that if further changes to their lot 
shall be the responsibility of that individual lot owner.  The request made herein is in conform-
ance with all zoning regulations, and community standards as set forth in the CDC.  

As part of the process, enclosed please find the Minor Subdivision Application and the Rezoning 
and Density Transfer Application as required by the Town for this process, the title commitments 
for each of these lots, the proposed replat map and payment as required. You may recall that 
our pre-development meeting occurred on September 26, 2017 and also on October 27, 2017 
with Mr. Bulson, of Foley & Associates, the firm that provided the maps and Exhibit A as part of 
this application.   

Please feel free to contact me with any questions, but in the meantime, Telluvista looks forward 
to working with the Mountain Village Planning Department regarding these applications.  

Kind regards,  

LAW OFFICE OF DANIEL T. ZEMKE, P.C. 

/s/ Daniel Zemke, Esq. 

cc: Telluvista  LLC 
Nate Smith, Esq. 
Dave Bulson, Foley & Associates 

78--



Exhibit B

79

R 

- .JO' 

- by s- 9 a if ""'· 

~1~11~±===================~==~~1 }J~~~lltrj======================~~==f~ 
~ a~ltj=======================~~==t~ 1 

lt=i=======================~===f3 Surveyor's stamp and 1lgnatu,. 

FSLEY •-••n•, •••· ... -ENGINEERING • PLANNING • SURVEYING [ 

PO Box 1385 125 W. Pacific Ave. Suite Bl 
Telluride, Colorado, 81435 

phone 970-7_28--6153 fax 970-72B--6050 
e-mail to xmail"foleyassoc.com 

Client: 

EXHIBIT 

][ 

! 
i 
! 
I 
I 
i 
I 
i 
! 
I 
I 
i 
I 
i 
I 
I 
I 
i 
I 
i 
! 

Contact: 



ORDINANCE NO. 2018-___ 

ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF MOUNTAIN VILLAGE, 
COLORADO APPROVING:  (1) REZONE LOT 304 AND (2) TRANSFER DENSITY OF FOUR 
(4) PERSON EQUIVALENTS OF SINGLE FAMILY DENSITY FROM LOT 304 INTO THE 
DENSITY BANK   

RECITALS 

A. The applicant and owner’s representative, The Law Office of Daniel Zemke, has submitted an 
application for a rezoning and density transfer for the reconfiguration of Lots 303R1, 304 and 305 
replat into lots 303R2 and 305R. The proposed rezoning and density transfer is for one (1) unit of 
single family density, equivalent to four (4) person equivalents, to the density bank to be held by 
Telluvista, LLC (the “Application”) pursuant to the requirements of the Community 
Development Code (“CDC”). 

B. Telluvista LLC; is the owner of Lot 303R1 and 304 and Donald and Amy Smith is the owner of 
Lot 305 (“Owner”). 

C. Lots 303R1, 304 and 305 is referred to as the “Property” and have the following physical 
addresses in respective order: 317 Benchmark Drive, 317 Benchmark Drive and 101 Autumn 
Lane. 

D. The Owner has authorized the Law Office of Daniel Zemke, P.D. to pursue the approval of the 
minor subdivision application to replat Lots 303R1, 304 and 305 into Lots 303R2 and 305R 
concurrent with a rezoning and density transfer to transfer the density from former Lot 304 into 
the density bank.   

E. The Property has the following zoning designations pursuant to the Official Land Use and 
Density Allocation List and zoning as set forth on the Town Official Zoning Map: 

Lot No. Zone District Zoning 
Designation 

Actual 
Units 

Person Equivalent 
per Actual Unit 

Total Person 
Equivalent Density 

Lot 
303R1 

Single Family Residential 1 4 4 

Lot 304 Single Family  Residential 1 4 4 
Lot 305 Single Family Residential 1 4 4 

F. At a public hearing held on January 4, 2018, the DRB considered the Applications, testimony and 
public comment and recommended to the Town Council that the Applications be approved with 
conditions pursuant to the requirement of the CDC. 

G. At its regularly scheduled meeting held on January 18, 2018, the Town Council conducted a 
public hearing pursuant to the CDC and after receiving testimony and public comment, closed the 
hearing and approved this Ordinance on first reading and set a further public hearing on February 
15, 2018. 

H. At its regularly scheduled meeting held on February 18, the Town Council conducted a public 
hearing on this Ordinance, pursuant to the Town Charter and after receiving testimony and public 
comment, closed the hearing and approved the Applications and this Ordinance on second 
reading. 

Exhibit C

80



 
I. This Ordinance rezones the Property as follows 

 
 
Lot No. 

Zone 
District 

Zoning 
Designation 

Actual 
Units 

Person 
Equivalent per 
Actual Unit 

Total Person 
Equivalent 
Density 

Notes 

Lot 303R1 Single 
Family  

Residential  1 4 4  

Lot 305R Single 
Family  

Residential  1 4 4  

The 
former 
Lot 304 
(to be 
replat into 
Lots 
303R1 & 
305R) 

Single 
Family 

Residential 0 0 0 Transferred 
into the 
Density 
Bank 

 
J. Transfer of four (4) person equivalents of Single Family Density from Lot 304 to the Density 

Bank to be held by Telluvista, LLC. 
  
K. The meeting held on January 18, 2018 and the public hearing held on February 15, 2018 were 

duly publicly noticed as required by the CDC Public Hearing Noticing Requirements, including 
but not limited to notification of all property owners within 400 feet of the Property, posting of a 
sign and posting on the respective agendas. 

 
L. The Town Council hereby finds and determines that the Applications meet the Rezoning Process 

Criteria for Decision as provided in CDC Section 17.4.9(D) as follows: 
 

Rezoning Findings 
1. The proposed rezoning is in general conformance with the goals, policies and provisions of the 

Comprehensive Plan. 
 
2. The proposed rezoning is consistent with the Zoning and Land Use Regulations. 

 
3. The proposed rezoning meets the Comprehensive Plan.  
 
4. The proposed rezoning is consistent with public health, safety and welfare, as well as efficiency 

and economy in the use of land and its resources.  
 

5. The proposed rezoning is justified because of the specific policies in the Comprehensive Plan that 
contemplate the rezoning as applied for. 

 
6. Adequate public facilities and services are available to serve the intended land uses. 

 
7. The proposed rezoning shall not create vehicular or pedestrian circulation hazards or cause 

parking, trash or service delivery congestion.  
 
8. The proposed rezoning meets all applicable Town regulations and standards. 

 

81



M. The Town Council finds that the Applications meet the Rezoning Density Transfer Process 
criteria for decision contained in CDC Section 17.4.10(D)(2) as follows: 
 

Density Transfer  Findings 
1. The criteria for decision for a rezoning are met. 
 
2. The density transfer meets the density transfer and density bank policies. 

 
3. The proposed density transfer meets all applicable Town regulations and standards. 

 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Town Council approves the Applications. 
Section 1.  Effect on Zoning Designations 
 
Section 2.  Ordinance Effect 
 
All ordinances, of the Town, or parts thereof, inconsistent or in conflict with this Ordinance, are hereby 
repealed, replaced and superseded to the extent only of such inconsistency or conflict. 
 
Section 3.  Severability 
 
The provisions of this Ordinance are severable and the invalidity of any section, phrase, clause or portion 
of this Ordinance as determined by a court of competent jurisdiction shall not affect the validity or 
effectiveness of the remainder of this Ordinance. 
 
Section 4.  Effective Date 
 
This Ordinance shall become effective on __________, 2018 following public hearing and approval by 
Council on second reading. 
 
Section 5.  Public Hearing 
 
A public hearing on this Ordinance was held on the 15th of February, 2018 in the Town Council 
Chambers, Town Hall, 455 Mountain Village Blvd, Mountain Village, Colorado 81435. 
 
INTRODUCED, READ AND REFERRED to public hearing before the Town Council of the Town 
of Mountain Village, Colorado on the 18th day of January, 2018. 
 
TOWN OF MOUNTAIN VILLAGE 

TOWN OF MOUNTAIN VILLAGE, 
COLORADO, A HOME-RULE 
MUNICIPALITY 
 

By:________________________________ 
Laila Benitez, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
____________________________ 
Jackie Kennefick, Town Clerk 

82



HEARD AND FINALLY ADOPTED by the Town Council of the Town of Mountain Village, 
Colorado this 15th day of February, 2018 
 

TOWN OF MOUNTAIN VILLAGE 
TOWN OF MOUNTAIN VILLAGE, 
COLORADO, A HOME-RULE 
MUNICIPALITY 

 
By:________________________________ 
Laila Benitez, Mayor 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
____________________________ 
Jackie Kennefick, Town Clerk 
 
 
Approved As To Form: 
 
____________________________ 
Jim Mahoney, Assistant Town Attorney 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

83--



I, Jackie Kennefick, the duly qualified and acting Town Clerk of the Town of Mountain Village, Colorado 
(“Town") do hereby certify that: 
 
1.  The attached copy of Ordinance No.__________ (“Ordinance") is a true, correct and complete copy 
thereof. 
 
2. The Ordinance was introduced, read by title, approved on first reading with minor amendments and 
referred to public hearing by the Town Council the Town (“Council") at a regular meeting held at Town 
Hall, 455 Mountain Village Blvd., Mountain Village, Colorado, on __________________, 2018, by the 
affirmative vote of a quorum of the Town Council as follows: 
 
Council Member Name “Yes” “No” Absent Abstain 
Laila Benitez, Mayor     
Dan Caton, Mayor Pro-Tem     
Dan Jansen     
Bruce MacIntire     
Patrick Berry     
Natalie Binder     
Jack Gilbride     
 
3.  After the Council’s approval of the first reading of the Ordinance, notice of the public hearing, 
containing the date, time and location of the public hearing and a description of the subject matter of the 
proposed Ordinance was posted and published in the Telluride Daily Planet, a newspaper of general 
circulation in the Town, on _____________________, 2018 in accordance with Section 5.2b of the Town 
of Mountain Village Home Rule Charter.   
 
4.  A public hearing on the Ordinance was held by the Town Council at a regular meeting of the Town 
Council held at Town Hall, 455 Mountain Village Blvd., Mountain Village, Colorado, on 
_________________, 2018.  At the public hearing, the Ordinance was considered, read by title, and 
approved without amendment by the Town Council, by the affirmative vote of a quorum of the Town 
Council as follows: 
Council Member Name “Yes” “No” Absent Abstain 
Laila Benitez, Mayor     
Dan Caton, Mayor Pro-Tem     
Dan Jansen     
Bruce MacIntire     
Patrick Berry     
Natalie Binder     
Jack Gilbride     
 
5.  The Ordinance has been signed by the Mayor, sealed with the Town seal, attested by me as Town 
Clerk, and duly numbered and recorded in the official records of the Town.  
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the seal of the Town this _____ day 
of ____________, 2018. 

 
____________________________ 
Jackie Kennefick, Town Clerk 

 
(SEAL)  
 

84



BUILDING DEPARTMENT 
455 Mountain Village Blvd., Ste. A 

Mountain Village, CO  80135 
(970) 369-8246 

Agenda Item No. 13 

TO: Town Council 

FROM: Randy Kee, Town Building Official 
Michelle Haynes, Planning and Building Director 

FOR: Town Council Public Meeting on February 15, 2018 

DATE: February 5, 2018 

RE: First Reading, Setting of a Public Hearing and Council Vote on an Ordinance 
Approving a Community Development Code (CDC) Amendment to Section 17.7.7 
Building Board of Appeals to Make Minor and Conforming Amendments Pursuant 
to CDC Section 17.1.7 Amendments to the Community Development Code 

Background 
The Building Board of Appeals was created in 1995 by Resolution No. 1995-1128-16 as a board 
to hear and decide appeals of orders, decisions and determinations made by the building official 
relative to the application and interpretation of the building codes.  The bylaws, which are 
incorporated as part of the Community Development Code (CDC) at Section 17.7.7, can be 
amended from time to time pursuant to a Class 4 town review process found at CDC Section 
17.1.7.  The department initiated this CDC amendment primarily to clean up redundancies, 
conform the language, clarify vacancy advertisement and noticing requirements and to provide 
more flexibility regarding qualifications. 

Attachments 
1. Ordinance including exhibit A

DRB Recommendation 
The DRB provided a unanimous recommendation to approve the CDC amendment with a 
recommendation to clarify the qualifications requirements at their February 1, 2018 regular DRB 
meeting.  Staff provided this clarification in the redline exhibit A provided. 

Recommendation 
Staff recommends council adopt the amendment to the Board of Appeals Bylaws. 

Motion 
I move to approve at first reading an Ordinance amending Community Development Code (CDC) 
Section 17.7.7 Building Board of Appeals, to Make Minor and Conforming Amendments Pursuant 
to CDC Section 17.1.7 Amendments to the Community Development Code attached as exhibit A 
and to ask the Town Clerk to set a public hearing on March 15, 2018 with the following findings: 

1. The Planning Director initiated the CDC amendment consistent with CDC Section 17.1.7
2. The DRB provided a recommendation to the Town Council consistent with CDC Section

17.1.7 

85



ORDINANCE NO. 2018- 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT CODE (CDC)  AT 
SECTION 17.7.7, AMENDING THE BUILDING BOARD OF APPEALS  TO PROVIDE 
CLARIFYING AND MINISTERIAL AMENDMENTS 

RECITALS 

A. The Town of Mountain Village (the “Town”) is a legally created, established, organized and
existing Colorado municipal corporation under the provisions of Article XX of the Constitution  of
the State of Colorado (the “Constitution”) and the Home Rule Charter of the Town (the “Charter”).

B. Pursuant to the Constitution, the Charter, the Colorado Revised Statutes and the common law, the
Town has the authority to regulate the use and development of land and to adopt ordinances and
regulations in furtherance thereof.

C. The Town Council may amend the CDC, including the Building Board of Appeals Bylaws
incorporated into the CDC, from time to time.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF 
MOUNTAIN VILLAGE, COLORADO AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1.  Amendment of Community Development Code 

A. The Town of Mountain Village Community Development Code, section 17.7.7 is hereby amended
and replaced as set forth in Exhibit A which is attached hereto and incorporated herein.

B. The Planning Division is directed to codify the amendments in Exhibit A into the CDC.
C. The Planning Division may correct typographical and formatting errors in the amendments or the

adopted CDC.
D. Adoption of the foregoing CDC Amendment will also amend the Building Board of Appeals by-

laws.

Section 2.  Ordinance Effect 

E. This Ordinance shall have no effect on pending litigation, if any, and shall not operate as an
abatement of any action or proceeding now pending under or by virtue of the ordinances repealed
or amended as herein provided and the same shall be construed and concluded under such prior
ordinances.

F. All ordinances, of the Town, or parts thereof, inconsistent or in conflict with this Ordinance, are
hereby repealed, replaced and superseded to the extent only of such inconsistency or conflict.

Section3. Severability 

The provisions of this Ordinance are severable and the invalidity of any section, phrase, clause or portion 
of this Ordinance as determined by a court of competent jurisdiction shall not affect the validity or 
effectiveness of the remainder of this Ordinance. 

Section 4.  Effective Date 

This Ordinance shall become effective on _____________, 2018. 

Section 5.  Public Hearing 

A  public  hearing  on  this  Ordinance  was  held  on  the  18th of February, 2018  in  the  Town Council 

86



Chambers, Town Hall, 455 Mountain Village Blvd, Mountain Village, Colorado 81435. 

INTRODUCED, READ AND REFERRED to public hearing before the Town Council of the Town 
of Mountain Village, Colorado on the 18th  day of February, 2018 

TOWN OF MOUNTAIN VILLAGE: 

ATTEST: 

TOWN OF MOUNTAIN VILLAGE, 
COLORADO, A HOME-RULE 
MUNICIPALITY 

By:  Laila Benitez, Mayor 

Jackie Kennefick, Town Clerk 

HEARD AND FINALLY ADOPTED by the Town Council of the Town of Mountain Village, 
Colorado this 15th  day of March, 2018. 

TOWN OF MOUNTAIN VILLAGE: 
TOWN OF MOUNTAIN VILLAGE, 
COLORADO, A HOME-RULE 
MUNICIPALITY 

By:  Laila Benitez, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

Jackie Kennefick, Town Clerk 

Approved As To Form: 

Jim Mahoney, Assistant Town Attorney 

87



I, Jackie Kennefick, the duly qualified and acting Town Clerk of the Town of Mountain Village, 
Colorado (“Town") do hereby certify that: 

1. The attached copy of Ordinance No. (“Ordinance") is a true, correct and complete 
copy thereof.

2. The Ordinance was introduced, read by title, approved on first reading with minor amendments
and referred to public hearing by the Town Council the Town (“Council") at a regular meeting
held at Town Hall, 455 Mountain Village Blvd., Mountain Village, Colorado, on , 2017,
by the affirmative vote of a quorum of the Town Council as follows:

Council Member Name “Yes” “No” Absent Abstain 
Laila Benitez, Mayor 
Dan Caton, Mayor Pro-Tem 
Dan Jansen 
Bruce MacIntire 
Patrick Berry 
Natalie Binder 
Jack Gilbride 

3. After the Council’s approval of the first reading of the Ordinance, notice of the public hearing,
containing the date, time and location of the public hearing and a description of the subject matter of
the proposed Ordinance was posted and published in the Telluride Daily Planet, a newspaper of
general circulation in the Town, on  , 2018 in accordance with Section 5.2b of the
Town of Mountain Village Home Rule.

4. A public hearing on the Ordinance was held by the Town Council at a regular meeting of the
Town Council held at Town Hall, 455 Mountain Village Blvd., Mountain Village, Colorado, on
March 15, 2018. At the public hearing, the Ordinance was considered, read by title, and approved
without amendment by the Town Council, by the affirmative vote of a quorum of the Town Council
as follows:

Council Member Name “Yes” “No” Absent Abstain 
Laila Benitez, Mayor 
Dan Caton, Mayor Pro-Tem 
Dan Jansen 
Bruce MacIntire 
Patrick Berry 
Natalie Binder 
Jack Gilbride 

5. The Ordinance has been signed by the Mayor, sealed with the Town seal, attested by me as
Town Clerk, and duly numbered and recorded in the official records of the Town.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the seal of the Town this 
day of , 

2018. 

Jackie Kennefick, Town Clerk 
(SEAL) 

88



Exhibit A 

17.7.7 BUILDING BOARD OF APPEALS 

A. Name. The name of this bBoard shall be the Town of Mountain Village Building Board of
Appeals (the “Board of Appeals”).

B. Authority. The aAuthority of the Board of Appeals is strictly limited to hearing and deciding
appeals of administrative orders, decisions or determinations made by the Town of Mountain
Village (“Town”) Building Official (“Building Official”) relative to the application and
interpretation of all duly adopted Building Codes and Regulation (collectively the “Building
Regulations”) .  There shall be and is hereby created the Board. The Building Official shall be an
ex officio member of and shall act as secretary to the Board but shall have no vote on any matter
before the Board. The Board of Appeals bylaws for conducting its business are hereby created by
Town of Mountain Village Town Council (“Town Council”). The Board shall be appointed by
the Town Council and shall hold office at its pleasure. The Board of Appeals shall render all
decisions in writing with findings in accordance with the adopted bylaws and Building
Regulations.

C. Appeal Procedures. All appeals of decisions of the Building Official shall be filed in accordance
with the applicable Building Regulation and shall be made in writing within seven (7) calendar
days of the decision of the Building Official.  Failure to file a written appeal within seven
calendar days shall preclude the Board of Appeals from hearing any appeal and the decision of
the Building Official shall stand as the final administrative decision of the Town.

D. Appointments and Terms of Office. The Board of Appeals shall be appointed by the Town
Council and shall hold office at its pleasure. Appointments shall serve until they either (a) resign;
(b) are no longer qualified; (c) are removed by the Town Council or (d) the Town Council elects
to make new appointments to the Board of Appeals.  Any member may be removed with or 
without cause by a majority vote of the Town Council. Any vacancy shall be filled by the Town 
Council.  The Board of Appeals shall consist of five regular members and two alternates. 
Applications shall be received, reviewed and appointments made to the Board by the Town 
Council.  Advertising for appointments will be consistent with the Town Council adopted policy.  
Appointments shall serve until they either (a) resign; (b) are no longer qualified; (c) are removed 
by the Town Council or (d) the Town Council elects to make new appointments to the Board.  
Any member of the Board may be removed with or without cause by a majority vote of the Town 
Council. Any vacancy occurring on the Board shall be filled by the Town Council.  

E. Attendance. To ensure the orderly conduct of business, member attendance is vital. Except for
emergency absences, medical condition absences and absences resulting from military leave of
less than two continuous months, no current Board member shall miss more than three meetings
in any twelve-month period upon any fourth absence within 12 months, other than for an
emergency, medical condition or military leave of less than two months, as determined by the
chair, the Board member shall be deemed to have resigned from the Board, and the Town Council
shall appoint a replacement.

F. Qualifications. The Board of Appeals shall consist of a minimum of one Colorado licensed
electrical contractor, one Colorado licensed plumbing contractor.  Preference is given to
applicants who have the following types of professional experience: an ICC certified general
contractor; certified architect; construction project manager; design professional or engineer.

89



Qualifications include a minimum of five (5) years professional experience in their respective 
fields. , and two three ICC Certified General Contractors. Each shall have a minimum of 5 years 
of documented experience in their respective area of expertise. Candidates with experience and 
education in Design or Construction Management will also be considered.  

G. Officers. The Board of Appeals shall annually elect a chair from its number who shall preside 
over all hearings and proceedings of the Board.  The elected chair shall not serve successive 
terms.  A vice-chair elected annually by the Board of Appeals shall assume the chair's duties in 
the chair's absence.  

H. Quorum and Voting. Quorum shall consist of three members, and a decision of a majority of 
the members of the Board shall control. Any absent member may join in a decision of the Board 
after he or she has considered the evidence presented in any hearings conducted during his or her 
absence. All decisions are final, subject only to appeal to a court of competent jurisdiction.  

I. Duties. 
1. Chair. The chair shall preside at all meetings of the Board and shall perform all duties

usually incident to the office of Chair and such other duties as may be assigned to him or
her from time to time by the Task Force. The Chair shall see to the execution of
resolutions, procedures and policies approved by the Task Force.

2. Vice Chair. In the absence or disability of the Chair, the Vice Chair shall have all powers
of and shall be subject to all restrictions upon the Chair. The Vice Chair shall perform
such duties as shall from time to time be assigned by the Task Force.

3. Secretary. Secretarial duties for the Board will be maintained by the Town staff.
Secretary responsibilities are as follows 1) to keep minutes of Board meetings and to
keep records of the Board.

J. Meetings. The Board of Appeals shall hold an initial organization meeting as called by the chair.  
Further meetings shall be held as necessary in order to timely hear appeals as called by the Chair 
or the Building Official.  

K. Rules of Order. Unless otherwise specified in these bylaws, the Board of Appeals will follow 
procedures outline in Robert's Rules of Order, Newly Revised.  

L. Meeting Notices. The appointed staff member shall furnish the Board advance notice of all 
meetings. Staff shall deliver, by the close of business the Friday before the next meeting, minutes 
of the previous meetings and copies of material to be studied or acted upon, including an agenda, 
and other items necessary for discussion. Meeting notices may be delivered via email. Meeting 
notices are also posted at town approved posting areas and on the town’s website consistent with 
town adopted public meeting posting location requirements. 

M. Agenda. The appointed staff shall prepare the agenda with input from the Chair, and copies 
distributed in advance of the meeting. Other items of the agenda shall include but not be limited 
to disposition of minutes of the previous meeting, which may be distributed and approved via 
email by the board members due to the potential for long periods between meetings. The minutes 
and agenda shall be delivered to Board members as needed no later than 7 days in advance of the 
meeting.  

90



N. Open to the Public. All meetings shall be open to the public, except for executive session as 
authorized in the Colorado Open Meetings law, C.R.S. 24-6-402.  

 

91



COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 
PLANNING DIVISION 

455 Mountain Village Blvd. 
Mountain Village, CO 81435 

(970) 728-1392 

Agenda Item #14 

TO: Design Review Board 

FROM: Michelle Haynes, Planning and Development Services Director 

FOR: Meeting of February 15, 2018 

DATE: January 19, 2018 

RE: Consideration of Approval of a Resolution regarding a Comprehensive Plan 
Amendment regarding Parcel M, Lot 30, which consists of Lot 30 and a portion of 
the adjacent open space parcel OS1AR-3 within the Village Center Subarea and 
other associated amendments to accomplish the foregoing pursuant to Community 
Development Code Section 17.1.5 Town Comprehensive Plan. 

BACKGROUND 
The Town Council has initiated a Mountain Village Comprehensive Plan amendment to Parcel M, 
Lot 30 Village Center Subarea pursuant to Community Development Code (CDC) Section 
17.1.5.E. specifically to amend Chapter Titled Land Use Plan Policies, Section Titled Mountain 
Village Subarea Plan Principles, Policies and Actions Subsection 13. Parcel M Lot 30 . 

TIMELINE REGARDING PARCEL M, LOT 30 COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDMENT 
• August 17, 2017 Town Council Worksession
• October 12, 2017 Public Open House regarding a Parcel M, Lot 30 Comprehensive Plan

Amendment
• February 1, 2018 the DRB held a public hearing to provide a courtesy recommendation to

Town Council.

ATTACHMENTS 
a) Context Map
b) Relevant Existing Comprehensive Plan Documents

1. Future Land Use Map
2. Village Subarea Map
3. Village Subarea Table
4. Village Subarea Principles, Policies and Actions No. 13 Parcel M, Lot 30

c) Resolution
d) Proposed Amendment No. 13 Principles, Policies and Actions contained in the

Comprehensive Plan
e) Public Comments provided at and around the public open house held on October 12, 2017

(29 written comments in total), plus recent public comment
f) Worksession Memo for the meeting dated August 17, 2107
g) Public Comment, John Horn dated February 9, 2018

92



SITE ORIENTATION 
Parcel M as it is referred to in the Comprehensive Plan is comprised of a land area that includes 
Lot 30 and a portion of OS1AR-3, an adjacent active open space parcel of land.  Parcel M is 
further located adjacent to the Aspen Ridge multi-family condominium development to the west, 
adjacent to OS1AR-3 Active Open Space parcel to the north, across Mountain Village Boulevard 
and to the east sits the Granita mixed use development and Tramontana multi-family development 
to the south (See Attachment Context Map).  Lot 30 is a vacant lot, except for a commercial area 
in a small building that exists on the southwest corner of the lot.  Parcel OS1AR-3 surrounds Lot 
30 on four sides (see context map) is also vacant and zoned Active Open Space.  Parcel M is a 
combination of two separate zoning designations Lot 30 being Multi-Family, OS1AR-3 Active 
Open Space. It is also recognized in the Comprehensive Plan as part of the Mountain Village 
Center Subarea.   

PARCEL M, LOT 30 OVERVIEW OF EXISTING ZONING AND COMPREHENSIVE PLAN 
VISION 

Existing Zoning and Density Allocations for Lot 30 
Community Development Code (CDC) 

Zoning Multi-Family 
Lot Size .60 acres 
Maximum Allowable 
Height  

48 feet 

Lot Coverage 65% 
Current Zoning 9 Condominiums 

2 Employee Apartments 
Commercial Use (per Resolution No. 2012-0426-07 ) 

Comprehensive Plan Table 7 specific to Parcel M, Lot 30 excerpt 
Parcel M 
Lot 30 

Target 
Maximum 
Building 
Height 

Target 
Hotbed 
Mix 

Target 
Condo 
Units 

Target 
Dorm 
Units* 

Target 
Restaurant/Commercial 
Area 

Total 
Target 
Units 

78.5 88 12 2 0 102 

Existing Zoning and Density Allocations for  Parcel OS1AR-3 
Community Development Code (CDC) 

Zoning Full Use Ski Resort Active Open Space (Class3AOS) 
Lot Size  1.432 acres MOL (only a portion contemplated 

pursuant to the comprehensive plan of .419 acres 
MOL) 

Maximum Allowable 
Height  

n/a 

Lot Coverage n/a 
Current Zoning No density designated 

Full Use Ski Resort Active Open Space Zoning is associated with the operation and 
maintenance of a ski resort and the community at large which are limited to ski resort uses, active 
recreational uses, recreational trails, community infrastructure, equestrian facilities, workforce 
housing, telecommunications antenna and similar uses. 

93



Table 3-1: Town of Mountain Village Land Use Schedule outlines specific uses allowed consistent 
with the broad list above indicating whether they are permitted or conditional uses.  Any 
development proposing above grade construction with allowable uses in the Full Use, Ski Resort 
Active Open Space zone district, is subject to a class 4 Conditional Use Permit development 
application and also must be found to be in conformance with the Comprehensive Plan. 

Comprehensive Plan Land Use Map 
The Future Land Use Plan map in the Comprehensive Plan indicates that Parcel M, if developed 
consistent with the Comprehensive Plan, would be rezoned to mixed-use [village center] and the 
remaining portion of OS1AR-3 rezoned to limited use ski resort active open space. 

BACKGROUND 
In July of 2017, the owner of Lot 30, which is a portion of the comprehensive plan parcel M area, 
approached the town regarding the potential of a Comprehensive Plan amendment.  The owner 
of lot 30 has an existing density allocation of 9 condominiums and 2 employee apartments that 
can be constructed today without demonstrating conformance with the Comprehensive Plan. The 
owner of Lot 30 felt that the Comprehensive Plan Table 7 did not provide any flexibility should 
they wish to develop Lot 30 other than to its by right density allocation.  Conformance with the 
Comprehensive Plan otherwise directs the owners to conform with the heights, densities and mix 
of uses shown by Table 7 of the Comprehensive Plan.  The specific request discussed at the 
Town Council worksession in August included an amendment to the Comprehensive Plan Table 
7 and also to the principles and policies, to remove the flagship hotel designation and allow an 
increase in condominium density up to 25 condominium units.   

The Town of Mountain Village held an open house on October 12th, specifically regarding an 
amendment to Parcel M, Lot 30.  We had an attendance of over 30 community members and 26 
public comments submitted in writing.  The land owner of OS1AR-3 participated in the open house 
and also provided written comment. 

In summary, many members of the public were not aware that the Comprehensive Plan Parcel 
M, Lot 30 indicated building heights up to 78.5 feet, a density of 102 units and characterized within 
the Village Center Subarea.  Absent the Comprehensive Plan the community public comments 
felt the property would be developed similar to the Aspen Ridge Condominium development which 
is adjacent, and zoned multi-family (see attached public comment letters). More importantly, the 
underlying comments suggested that future development of Parcel M be sensitive to the 
surrounding densities and heights. 

The Town Council has spent a significant amount of time talking with the public along with the 
property owners of Lot 30 and OS1AR-3 and finalized a proposed Comprehensive Plan 
amendment contained herein during the intervening months with the stated goal of allowing both 
Lot 30 and OS1AR-3 the ability to pursue alternative development scenarios to the full Parcel M 
buildout in a manner which would have existed prior to the adoption of the Comprehensive Plan, 
while also preserving a full Parcel M option. 

DESIGN REVIEW BOARD RECOMMENDATION 
At the DRB’s regular meeting on February 1, 2018, the DRB recommended unanimously to 
approve the amendment as presented.  The DRB added a recommendation that the Village 
Center Subarea Committee review Parcel M in the future and provide recommendations on a 
Comprehensive Plan amendment while reviewing the Village Center Subarea as a whole. 

PROPOSED AMENDMENT 
The Comprehensive Plan amendment proposes the following. 

94



• No change to the future land use plan map
• No change to the village center subarea map
• No change to Table 7
• Modify No. 13 Parcel M (a part of OS1AR-3 and Lot 30) Mountain Village Center

Subarea Plan Principles, Policies and Actions, to strike the words, no site specific
policies, and amend the section to include the following policies:

a. The flagship hotel, flag hotel operator and flag hotel site designations may apply at the
discretion of Town Council after receiving a recommendation from the Design Review
Board, should Parcel M be developed as a single parcel (Lot 30 and .419 acres of
OS1AR3) Town Council may also consider other measures such as timeshares,
fractional sales, condominium-hotel, front desk and amenity spaces for administering
rental programs and boutique hotels among other measures and requirements along
with traditional flagship hotel requirements in any development scenario including an
independent Lot 30 development (meaning exclusive of any inclusion of the OS1AR-
3 portion of Parcel M) scenario or a Parcel M development scenario.

b. The range of development on Parcel M shall be from 9 condominium units (which is
currently allowed by right on the Lot 30 portion of Parcel M) to the full 102 total unit
mixes for the entire Parcel M as shown on Table 7 Mountain Village Center
Development Table (“Table 7”). Table 7 shall only be invoked in the event of proposed
development of the entire Parcel M. The owner of Lot 30 may elect to bring forth to the
Town an application, meeting all submittal requirements of the Town’s Community
Development Code to develop Lot 30 independently or jointly as Parcel M. The Town
Council shall have the sole discretion, after receiving a recommendation from the
Design Review Board, pursuant to its Community Development Code, to determine if
any proposed development scenario other than a by right development scenario is in
the best interest of the community and whether such a scenario is appropriate for
development independently on Lot 30 without invoking the requirements of Table 7.
Otherwise, the Town Council shall consider the Community Development Code
requirements as well as the Comprehensive Plan principles and policies in making
such a determination.

c. If an entire Parcel M development scenario, is proposed, then an increase in hotbeds,
and mixed use development is required and shall then require a rezoning to the Village
Center zone district in order to realize the Comprehensive Plan principles and policies.

d. In the event that an independent Lot 30 development occurs in any manner (either by
right or through a rezone and density transfer), the remainder of Parcel M (the
OSP1AR-3 portion) may be developed either consistent with the existing underlying
zoning or pursuant to rezone and density transfer as approved by the Town Council,
so long as it meets such rezone and density transfer requirements and the
Comprehensive Plan principles and policies. However, general conformance with the
unit mix for Parcel M as shown on Table 7 Mountain Village Center Development Table
shall not be applicable as that unit mix is only representative of an entire Parcel M
development.

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN CRITERIA AT 17.1.5. 
E. The Town Council may initiate amendments to the Comprehensive Plan from time to time in 
accordance with the requirements of C.R.S. § 31-23-206, since elements of the community 
vision and factors affecting land use may change over time. 

95



F. Amendments to the Comprehensive Plan shall meet the following process steps: 
1. The initiation of a Comprehensive Plan amendment may only be initiated if the Town

  Council finds: 
a. That the community visions and factors affecting land use have substantially

changed since the adoption of the Comprehensive Plan; 
b. Adequate financing and resources are available to complete the amendment.

3. Citizen participation is the most important element of amending or creating a
Comprehensive Plan. Therefore, the Comprehensive Plan amendment process shall 
include significant and meaningful public participation elements. 

The Town Council must approve a Comprehensive Plan amendment by supermajority vote 
pursuant to CDC Section 17.1.5.F.9.   

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN PURPOSE 
The purpose of the Community Development Code at Section 17.1.3 is to implement the 
Comprehensive Plan. 

At CDC Section 17.1.5., land use applications such as Planned Unit Developments, Variances or 
density transfer or rezone applications must be in general conformance with the Comprehensive 
Plan. Further the CDC states the following: 

C. The Comprehensive Plan future land use map shall be implemented by: 
1. Ensuring all development applications that are required to be in general

conformance with the Comprehensive Plan are compliant with the land use plan 
policies and future land use map of the Comprehensive Plan; and 

2. Ensuring that the ski resort operator and golf resort operator’s land will be
rezoned in the future to be in general conformance with the land use plan policies 
and the future land use plan as set forth in the Comprehensive Plan, including 
but not limited to the public benefit number 9 in the Comprehensive Plan public 
benefits table, that requires the ski resort operator and golf resort operator’s land 
to be rezoned to be consistent with the six open space classifications shown on 
the future land use plan and as set forth in this CDC. 

ANALYSIS 
The purpose of the Comprehensive Plan amendment is not to change the intention of the Parcel 
M use specifically, but to perfect site specific policies in response to input by the owners of the 
properties, stakeholders and community members.  The community intentionally included Parcel 
M into the Village Center Subarea and identified the property as a potential flagship hotel site. 
Lot 30 can otherwise be developed consistent with the underlying zoning and density as multi-
family and condominium use.   

The proposed Comprehensive Plan amendment provides greater flexibility and guidance in 
achieving Comprehensive Plan conformance for Lot 30 and Parcel OS1AR-3 separately or 
combined.  The Comprehensive Plan amendment provides greater Town Council discretion and 
flexibility should a hotbed development or mixed-use proposal be considered, recognizing that 
hot bed density can be achieved and may be preferred, with less height and density and greater 
flexibility than the prescriptive flagship requirements. The amendment also provides greater 
flexibility should Lot 30 be developed to increase condominium density without invoking 
conformance with Table 7. and otherwise would conform with 48 feet multi-family zoning heights 
and other regulations. Finally, the amendment provides greater flexibility and guidance should 
development of the OSAR1-3 parcel be considered under the same criteria and circumstances 
which existed prior to the adoption of the Comprehensive Plan.  

96--



RECOMMENDED MOTION 
I move to approve a Resolution of the Town of Mountain Village Town approving an amendment 
to the Comprehensive Plan, Parcel M, a part of OS1AR-3 and Lot 30, attached as exhibit d with 
the following findings: 

1. That the community visions and factors affecting land use have substantially changed
since the adoption of the Comprehensive Plan;

2. Adequate financing and resources are available to complete the amendment.
3. That significant and meaningful public participation occurred.

This motion is based on the evidence and testimony provided at a public hearing held on February 
15, 2018, with notice of such hearing as required by the Community Development Code.  

/mbh  

97--



Exhibit A

98



Exhibit B.1

99

... 

-

Meadows 
Subarea 

...... 

..... 

Mountain Village 
Center Subarea 

- -

Town Hall 
Center Subarea 

Future Land 
Use Plan 

Legend 

__ _ ,,, 

Civic 
Mixed-Use Center 
Multiunit 
Municipal Public Works 
Single-Family and Duplex 

Passive Open Space 

NORTH 

Limited Use Golf Course Active Open Space 

Full Use Ski Resort Active Open Space 
Limited Use Ski Resort Active Open Space 
Resource Conservation Active Open Space 
Right-of-Way and Access Active Open Space 

Subarea 

0 ,. 130() 

J 
1" 0 1300' 

2(,<)0 
I 



MV
52

Table 7.  Mountain Village Center Development Table

Parcel Designation Target
Maximum 
Building 
Height

Target 
Hotbed Mix

Target 
Condo 
Units

Target 
Dorm 
Units*

Target Restaurant/
Commercial
Area

Total Target Units

Parcel A-1 Lots 122, 123 & 

128 P
54 125 0 3 Existing in The Peaks 128

Parcel A-2  The Peaks Existing 177 23 0 As built 200

Parcel A-3 Peaks Northwest 

Addition P
43.5 56 0 1 Existing in The Peaks 57

Parcel A-4 Telluride Conference 

Center Expansion P
78.5 68 0 2 Existing in The Peaks 70

Parcel B Shirana 78.5 78 10 2 0 90

Parcel C-1 89 Lots Hotbeds P 68 174 23 4 8,000 square feet 201

Parcel C-2 89 Lots Ridgeline 
Condos

35 0 8 0 0 8

Parcel C-3 89 Lots 

Transitional Condos P
43.5 0 8 0 0 8

Parcel D Pond Lots P 78.5 71 9 2 5,000 square feet 82

Parcel E Le Chamonix P 78.5 51 7 1 12,540 square feet 59

Parcel F Lot 161-CR P 95.5 242 32 6 6,500 square feet 280

Parcel G Gondola Station P 68 127 17 5 3,500 square feet 147

Parcel H Columbia Condos P 68 28 4 1 8,700 33

Parcel I Village Creek P 68 39 5 1 0 45

Parcel J Recreation Center/
Multipurpose Facility

52 NA NA NA TBD NA

Parcel K Meadows Magic 

Carpet P
57.5 115 15 3 5,000 square feet 133

Parcel L Heritage Parking 

Garage Entry P
57.5 14 2 1 0 17

Parcel M Lot 30 P 78.5 88 12 2 0 102

Parcel N Lot 27 P 78.5 64 9 2 0 75

Parcel O TSG Clubhouse 57.5 51 7 1 0 (Private Club OK) 59

*Target dorm units are calculated by multiplying the number of hotbed units by 10% to determine the number of employees required to be provided dorm housing.
The resultant number of employees is then multiplied by 250 square feet per employee to determine the total floor area in dorm units. This dorm unit floor area is then 
divided by 1,000 to determine the number of dorm units based on 1,000 square feet per dorm unit, each with ideally four separate bedrooms.  Refer to Section IV.B.2. in 
the Land Use Principles, Polices and Actions, page 43.

M.  Require that any applicant who 
proposes a rezoning, density 
transfer, subdivision or any other 
application that requires general 
conformance with the 
Comprehensive Plan to meet the 
following site-specific policies at 
the appropriate step in the 
development review process:

1.  THE PEAKS
 The Peaks provided an overall plan for
the following parcels of land that are
based solely on the provision of
hotbeds without any condominiums.
Therefore, any future development
review that requires general
conformance with the Comprehensive
Plan only requires the provision of

hotbed units and dorm units as 
outlined in the Mountain Village Center 
Subarea Development Table, with the 
minimum sizes for the hotbed units in 
accordance with the hotbed policies 
(page 43).  The number of dorm units 
will also need to be established based 
on the 10% standard set forth in 
Section IV.B.2., page 43.

Exhibit B.2

100

mhaynes
Highlight



Exhibit B.3

101

Parcel C-1 
89 Lots 
Hotbeds 

a::: 
N 
lf) 

l map s onceptual 11 ~ is St ~eel to change. 

Parcel D 
Pond Lots 

0 
n 
I 

if) 

0 

() 

•' 

\ 

.. / "-· 

t ·n V '1llage Center Moun a, 

Subarea Plan Map 

Legend ~ 

----
---

Redevelopment Site 

Subarea Parcel Boundary 
Civic 

Mixed-Use Center 

Multiunit 
Municipal Public Works 

Single-Family and Duplex 

NORH I 

Passive Open Spaoe Active Open Space 
Limited Use Goff Course 

. ort Active Open Space 
Full Use Sk, Res esort Active Open Space 

Limited Use Sk, R r n Active Open Space 
Resource Conserva io Active Open Space 
Right•of•Way and Access 

Existing Traif 

Proposed Trail 

Existing Sidewalk 

Proposed Sidewalk 

Subarea Boundary 

0 112.5 225 450 



Magic Carpet to cooperate and 
fund an engineered access 
study that looks at the 
coordinated and combined 
public access to Parcel K 
Meadows Magic Carpet through 
Parcel J Recreation Center/
Multipurpose Facility since such 
access provides for a better 
sense of arrival and entry to a 
hotbed project on this parcel 
than Mountain Village Boulevard 
and also reduces vehicular trips 
on Visher Drive.

c.  Provide direct, year-round, at-grade
pedestrian connection to Mountain
Village Center by sidewalks, stairs
and appropriate dark-sky lighting.

d.  Allow for golf course parking within
Parcel K Meadows Magic Carpet.

12.  PARCEL L HERITAGE PARKING
GARAGE ENTRY
a.  Encourage the development and

operation of Parcel L Heritage
Parking Garage Entry to be in
conjunction with  Hotel Madeline
on Lots 50-51.

b.  Allow an above grade, above
right-of-way connection from Hotel
Madeline to Parcel L Heritage
Parking Garage Entry that also
provides connectivity to Parcel J
Recreation Center/Multipurpose
Facility. Ensure the connection is
architecturally interesting and
appropriately consistent with the
town’s Design Regulations.

c.  Evaluate if required parking for
Parcel L Heritage Parking Garage
Entry can be included within
Heritage Parking Garage.

13. PARCEL M LOT 30
a. No site-specific policies.

14. PARCEL N LOT 27
a. No site-specific policies.

15. PARCEL O TSG CLUBHOUSE
a.  Provide all required parking in a

garage to minimize visual impacts.
b.  Require the provision of a shuttle

service, and/or  sidewalk, or other
pedestrian connection to existing
plaza areas in Mountain Village
Center.

59
MV

Exhibit B.4

102



RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF MOUNTAIN 
VILLAGE, COLORADO AMENDING THE TOWN OF MOUNTAIN VILLAGE 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN 

Resolution No. 2018-__________________ 

RECITALS: 

A. The Town of Mountain Village, Colorado, acting through its Planning Commission is 
empowered pursuant to Section 31-23-201, et seq. CRS to make and adopt a master 
plan; and 

B. The Town Council, acting by ordinance, may initiate amendments to the 
Comprehensive Plan from time to time in accordance with Section 31-23-206, et seq. 
CRS, since elements of the community vision and factors affecting land use change 
over time; and 

C. The Town of Mountain Village Home Rule Charter Section 12.1 (a)(2) provides that 
the Town’s Design Review Board (DRB) functions as the Town’s Planning 
Commission unless otherwise provided by ordinance; and 

D. The Town Council has adopted Section 17.1.5 (F) 7 of the Town’s Community 
Development Code, which designates the Town Council to act as the Town’s 
Planning Commission; and 

E. On August 17, 2017 the Town Council held a worksession by request and 
participation of the owner and owner’s agent of Lot 30 to discuss the existing 
development rights and densities as it relates to the Comprehensive Plan Table 7. 
Parcel M, Lot 30. Densities, heights and flagship hotel designation were discussed.  
Town Council agreed to move forward with a Comprehensive Plan amendment 
understanding that there were otherwise no site specific policies currently outlined in 
the Comprehensive Plan for Parcel M, Lot 30. 

F. On October 12, 2017 the Town of Mountain Village hosted a public open house 
regarding Parcel M, Lot 30.  We received over 29 written public comments regarding 
a Comprehensive Plan amendment to Parcel M, Lot 30. 

G. On February 1, 2018 The Design Review Board provided a courtesy recommendation 
to the Town Council regarding a Comprehensive Plan amendment after finding that 
the community vision and factors affecting land use have substantially changed since 
the adoption of the Comprehensive Plan and there is adequate financing and resources 
available to complete the element; and 

H. On February 15, 2018 the Town Council considered and approved the 
Comprehensive Plan amendment as written; and 

Exhibit C

103---



I.         The Comprehensive Plan amendment lists site specific policies for Parcel M, Lot 30 
found within the Village Center Subarea; and 

J.         The Town Council public hearing on February 15, 2018 was adequately noticed 
including the time and place by publication in the Telluride Daily Planet, a 
newspaper of general circulation; and 

K. The Comprehensive Plan amendment and its adoption complies with the requirements 
of Section 31-23-201 et seq. CRS; and 

L. The Town Council believes it is in the best interest of the Town that the site-specific 
policies for Parcel M Lot 30 be adopted as an amendment to the Comprehensive Plan. 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE 
TOWN OF MOUNTAIN VILLAGE, COLORADO: 

1. The Comprehensive Plan amendment attached as exhibit A, hereby is adopted by
the Town Council, acting as the Planning Commission and also in its own right as the governing 
body of the Town pursuant to CRS 31-23-208.     

2. The Comprehensive Plan amendment to the Mountain Village Comprehensive
Plan as adopted hereby, does not otherwise modify any other map or plan.  Town staff is hereby 
authorized to modify Number 13, Parcel M, Lot 30 to Parcel M (a part of OS1AR-3 and Lot 30) 
by adding site specific policies found on page 59 of the Comprehensive Plan and complete the 
final layout of the plan prior to the Mayor signing the official document.  However, no 
substantive changes to the wording of the plan shall be made by Town staff.   

3. That the action of the Town Council adopting the Comprehensive Plan
amendment to the Mountain Village Comprehensive Plan shall be recorded on the Plan by the 
identifying signature of the Town Clerk. 

4. A copy of the Resolution shall be attached to each copy of the Mountain Village
Comprehensive Plan and shall serve as an attestation that each such copy is a true and correct 
copy of the Plan as adopted. 

5. That an attested copy of the amendment Mountain Village Comprehensive Plan
shall be and hereby is certified to the San Miguel County Board of Commissioners pursuant to 
Section 31-23-208, CRS. 

6. Town staff shall be permitted to correct immaterial errors, typos and
inconsistencies in the Town Hall Subarea Plan. 

Approved by the Town Council at a public meeting February 15, 2018 

Town of Mountain Village, Town Council 

By___________________________ 
         Laila Benitez, Mayor 

104---



Attest: 

_________________________________ 
Jackie Kennefick, Town Clerk 

Approved as to Form: 

_________________________________ 
Jim Mahoney, Assistant Town Attorney 

105---



Amendment to comp plan: 

Amend paragraph 13 on page 59 of the Comprehensive Plan shall be amended as follows: 

“13. Parcel M (a part of OS1AR-3 and Lot 30) 

a. The flagship hotel, flag hotel operator and flag hotel site designations may apply at the
discretion of Town Council after receiving a recommendation from the Design Review
Board, should Parcel M be developed as a single parcel (Lot 30 and .419 acres of
OS1AR3) Town Council may also consider other measures such as timeshares, fractional
sales, condominium-hotel, front desk and amenity spaces for administering rental
programs and boutique hotels among other measures and requirements along with
traditional flagship hotel requirements in any development scenario including an
independent Lot 30 development (meaning exclusive of any inclusion of the OS1AR
portion of Parcel M) scenario or a Parcel M development scenario.

b. The range of development on Parcel M shall be from 9 condominium units (which is
currently allowed by right on the Lot 30 portion of Parcel M) to the full 102 total unit
mixes for the entire Parcel M as shown on Table 7 Mountain Village Center
Development Table (“Table 7”).  Table 7 shall only be invoked in the event of proposed
development of the entire Parcel M. The owner of Lot 30 may elect to bring forth to the
Town an application, meeting all submittal requirements of the Town’s Community
Development Code to develop Lot 30 independently or jointly as Parcel M.   The Town
Council shall have the sole discretion, after receiving a recommendation from the Design
Review Board, pursuant to its Community Development Code, to determine if any
proposed development scenario other than a by right development scenario is in the best
interest of the community and whether such a scenario is appropriate for development
independently on Lot 30 without invoking the requirements of Table 7. Otherwise, the
Town Council shall consider the Community Development Code requirements as well as
the Comprehensive Plan principles and policies in making such a determination.

c. If an entire Parcel M development scenario, is proposed, then an increase in hotbeds, and
mixed use development is required and shall then require a rezoning to the Village Center
zone district in order to realize the Comprehensive Plan principles and policies.

d. In the event that an independent Lot 30 development occurs in any manner (either by
right or through a rezone and density transfer), the remainder of Parcel M (the OSP1AR-
3 portion) may be developed either consistent with the existing underlying zoning or
pursuant to rezone and density transfer as approved by the Town Council, so long as it
meets such rezone and density transfer requirements and the Comprehensive Plan
principles and policies.  However, general conformance with the unit mix for Parcel M as
shown on Table 7 Mountain Village Center Development Table shall not be applicable as
that unit mix is only representative of an entire Parcel M development.

Exhibit D

106---



Letter Support Not Support Suspend Other Notes
1 Delves X 25 condos + 48 feet in height, encourage broader hot bed definition
2 Catsman X 20 condos + 5-10 deed restricted units
3 Jensen X Lumiere model of development
4 Durham X 25 condos + 48 feet in height  
5 Ward X reduce below 25 condos and consistent heights with zoning 48'
6 Stenhammer X hot bed development important - don't fragment the parcel
7 Roer - Granita X supports 9-25 condos and 48 feet
8 Omotani - Granita x supports 9-25 condos and 48 feet
9 Ward see above 2 emails with comments same general comments

10 Vanek X similar to aspen ridge supported
11 Eaton X similar to aspen ridge supported
12 Elinoff X ok with height and density in comp plan
13 Field X density and height in comp plan inappropriate, density proposed ok
14 MacIntire X flexibile zoning 9 condos or up to 70 hotel or condo hotel units-remove flagship

replace with "AAA 3 star or higher" - scrape condo-hotel rules
15 Tooley X support 48' height. If upzone then hotel, commercial and workforce housing

discuss library and med center
16 Gilbert X comp plan height and density inappropriate - create a canyon
17 Gilbert X comp plan height and density inappropriate - too much hardscape loss of greenscape
18 Evans X waive comp plan requirement - proceed as requesting
19 Prohaska X hotel development important - if not here then where?
20 Jensen X keep option joint land use (lot 30 and TSG open space) for greater purpose future needs
21 Ezell x supportive of reducing density over what comp plan indicates
22 Granita X supports 9-25 condos and 48 feet
23 Gunty x existing zoning is adequate

24 Pashayan x
supports an amendment to consider different options on Lot 30, support reasonable height, 
more affordable housing

25 Capo x support reducing table 7 in comp plan
26 Ullrich-Granita x support comp plan amendment reduce height and density
27 Ward x support a comp plan amendment to remove flagship, reduce height density
28 Vankova x support reducing mass table 7
29 Omotani - Granita x support  lower density here

Public Comment Summary Page
Exhibit E

107



108

Michelle Haynes 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Cc: 
Subject: 

rhdelves@aol.com 
Thursday, October 12, 2017 12:49 PM 
Michelle Haynes 
rhdelves@aol.com 
Parcel 30 

Hi Michelle. Welcome to Mountain Village! I see that Lot 30 is again under discussion. You 
may not know, but I was significantly involved in the Comp Plan effort and it all got developed 
and approved while I was Mayor. I'm afraid the document did not really accurately capture 
the spirit or content of the some of the discussions at the time re: lot 30. Much of the give and 
take in the planning process was looking for possible places to increase density- specifically 
"hot bed" (hotel or similar use) density. Some large numbers were suggested as possible on 
several parcels including lot 30. But in the case of lot 30, a high hot bed density scenario was 
only envisioned as part of a larger project that would pull in active open space from the ski run 
to create a larger footprint AND would likely work in concert with the "Magic Carpet" parcel 
across the ski run to create a much larger project- and only through that combination would a 
flagged property become possible. It was never our intent to prohibit a medium density condo 
project on lot 30 and certainly not to prohibit by right development or force a flag. 

In my opinion, a 25 unit condo development with a max height of 48 feet is probably the more 
appropriate development option here. The bottom line for the Comp Plan was to encourage 
more density in and near the core while preserving the low/medium density outside of the 
core. This parcel is on/near the core so more is good - but too much is probably too much. 
And, the world has changed - with VRBO-type options, condo projects increasingly perform 
like the "hot beds" envisioned in the Comp Plan -Aspen Ridge certainly does. 

Hope that's helpful. If you'd ever like to sit down and debrief the Comp Plan let me know- my 
knowledge is getting dated, but I lived and breathed it for a few years. 

Bob Delves 
rhdelves@aol.com 
970-708-404 7 

1 



109

Michelle Haynes 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Subject: 

Hi Michelle, 

Werner Catsman <werner@catsman.com> 
Wednesday, October 11, 2017 8:34 PM 
Michelle Haynes 
Lot 30 

I hope you are enjoying your new role in the Mt. Village. I saw that the there is an open house regarding Lot 
30. Unfortunately, I'm extremely busy tomorrow and can't attend the forum but I've worked with a few 
different developers on a few concepts and wanted to give you my two cents. 

It seems that the comprehensive plan has placed too much density on the lot and that the "build by right" 
doesn't offer quite enough to make the project viable. 

From my perspective, this lot would be an ideal spot to get 20 plus condo units on it with perhaps an 
additional (5-10) deed restricted units. At a slightly larger density, I think it would be profitable enough to add 
more employee units and explore the potential of a public/private venture. 

I also think that the ski access issue where I believe Telski is stating there is no access should be addressed as it 
is just silly to have a lot adjacent to the ski area that doesn't technically have access. 

Those are my thoughts and I hope the open house goes well. 

Thanks, 
Werner Catsman 
President 
CL: 970 519 1379 

FINB O CO STRUCTION 

1 



110

Michelle Haynes 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 

Jensen, Bill < bjensen@tellurideskiresort.com > 
Thursday, October 12, 2017 12:37 PM 
Michelle Haynes 

Michelle, thank you for your time today. As I think through lot 30/M Zoning request I am curious why no one has 
thought about a Lumiere type condo hotel at that location. The goal of the comp plan was to generate more economic 
activity for the core of mountain village. A boutique condo hotel would provide condo sales for a developer, a hotel/hot 
beds for the community, increased economic vitality for the core and a good fit in the lot 30/M location. 
Lumiere is a great reference point as the work group works through the village core study. 
Another example of why we should defer the zoning decision on Lot 30 until we can review the comp plan in this public, 
group effort. 
Bill 

Sent from my iPhone 

1 



111

Michelle Haynes 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 

Anton Benitez <anton@tmvoa.org> 
Thursday, October 12, 2017 2:44 PM 
Michelle Haynes 

Cc: Anton Benitez 
Subject: FW: Lot 30 

Please add to Lot 30 public comment. 

AB 

From: tim durham [mailto:rtimdurham@gmail.com] 
Sent: Thursday, October 12, 2017 1:52 PM 
To: Anton Benitez <anton@tmvoa.org> 
Subject: Lot 30 

Hello Anton, the email, MHaynes@mtnvillage.org.,does not work so I thought I would send it to you to pass on. 

I have been a property owner in MV for 27 years and I write this to encourage the Town of MV to change the zoning of 
Lot 30 back to its original land use of a maximum height of 48' and a maximum of 25 units. 

Thanks, 

Tim Durham 
512-422-1237 

1 



112

Michelle Haynes 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Cc: 

Anton Benitez <anton@tmvoa.org> 
Thursday, October 12, 2017 9:57 AM 
Michelle Haynes 
Anton Benitez 

Subject: FW: Lot 30, Parcel M -- Public Comment 

FYI .... Plz add to public comment. 

AB 

From: Stacie Ward [mailto:wards4@mac.com] 
Sent: Thursday, October 12, 2017 9:56 AM 
To: Anton Benitez <anton@tmvoa.org> 
Subject: Fwd: Lot 30, Parcel M -- Public Comment 

Hello Anton-

Here is the original email- thank you for reaching out on this issue. Now that I understand further what Mr. Huschke is 
asking, our concerns and objections would be: 

1. The requested density increase from 9 units to 25 units is too great for Lot 30 given the size of the property (.6 acres). 
2. The requested density increase would necessitate that the proposed structure be much higher than the current 
height restriction of 48 feet. A building of such great height and overall scale would not be in keeping with the existing 
character of the Aspen Ridge neighborhood. Our comments listed below still apply. 

Thank you, 
Stacie Ward 

Begin forwarded message: 

From: Stacie Ward <wards4@mac.com> 
Subject: Lot 30, Parcel M -- Public Comment 
Date: October 11, 2017 at 9:20: 12 PM EDT 
To: MHaynes@mtnvillage.org 
Cc: anton@tmvoa.org 

Dear Ms. Haynes, 

We just received an email from Mr. Benitez about the Open House to discuss Lot 30-Parcel M, scheduled 
for tomorrow October 12th. My wife and I own Aspen Ridge #20 and would like to comment on the 
proposed re-zoning of Lot 30, but we are currently in Florida and will be unable to make the meeting in 
person. Please consider this email as our official input on the matter and include it with the other public 
comments. 

While we understand the thinking and motivation behind the effort to increase the density and height 
restrictions currently associated with Lot 30-Parcel M, we are vehemently opposed to it coming to 

1 



113

fruition in the new Plan. In general, Lot 30-Parcel M appears too small to support such a large increase 
in density, and we question the necessity of the requested change as well. We are under the impression 
that at present, there are plenty of available hotel rooms in Mountain Village even during holidays, so 
adding more rooms at this juncture seems superfluous. Our more specific concerns and objections to 
the proposed changes include, but are not limited to: 

1. Not in keeping with the residential character of the Aspen Ridge neighborhood. To increase the 
density of Lot 30-Parcel M from a handful of condominium units to a monstrous 108-hotbed structure is 
a huge leap in planning-- one unsupported by the historical zoning of the property and directly at odds 
with the residential character of the neighborhood. We bought in Aspen Ridge precisely for the fact that 
it felt like a true second home rather than just a vacation destination. While we like being close to the 
Village core, we did not purchase within the core because it's too developed and crowded for our 
taste. Aspen Ridge's location is perfect as it's close enough to the core's amenities, but far enough away 
for peace and quiet, with more open space. 

2. Eyesore. Besides the general character of the Aspen Ridge neighborhood being adversely affected, 
the proposal to increase the height restriction of Lot 30-Parcel M to 78 feet is ill-advised for aesthetic 
reasons. The proposed hotel will dwarf all of the surrounding buildings and utterly spoil the charming 
approach to the Village core, as well as the immediately adjacent Aspen Ridge residential 
properties. The visual pollution presented by such an obtrusive structure contradicts the "unmatched 
beauty" marketed by Telski and the Mountain Village community. 

3. Increased Traffic and Noise. The increased traffic and noise that would undoubtedly accompany such 
a large hotel structure would negatively impact the adjacent Aspen Ridge condominium owners. As 
stated above, Aspen Ridge is a residential area, and a respite from the commercialization that exists in 
the Village core. A large hotel structure existing in such close proximity to private residences would 
shatter the existing peaceful environment with too many people coming and going, constant deliveries, 
and increased noise levels. There can be no question that the heightened overall activity surrounding 
such a structure would adversely affect the Aspen Ridge owners' use and enjoyment of their residential 
properties that currently exists. 

4. Interfering with reasonable investment-backed expectations of Aspen Ridge owners. In addition to 
adversely affecting our use and enjoyment, the above factors will likely negatively impact our 
condominium's property value. We, and other Aspen Ridge owners, paid a significant premium to be 
located slopeside with outstanding views and serene surroundings. An obtrusive hotel structure is 
simply out of place in the Aspen Ridge neighborhood, and will likely interfere with our reasonable, 
investment-backed expectations should we choose to sell in the future. While we think it's fantastic 
that Telski and the Mountain Village community are addressing future growth and development issues, 
it should not be done at the expense of residents whose investment is far greater than that of a lift 
ticket or a hotel stay. 

Thank you in advance for your consideration of this matter, and please feel free to contact us if you have 
further questions. 

Sincerely, 

Tom Ward 
Stacie Ward 
Aspen Ridge, Unit 20 
(727) 940-3469 

2 



114

Michelle Haynes 

From: Robert Stenhammer <stenhammer@gmail.com> 
Thursday, October 12, 2017 11:07 AM Sent: 

To: Michelle Haynes 
Cc: 
Subject: 

Kim Montgomery; Laila Benitez 
Public Comment - Lot 30 Parcel M 

Hi Michelle; 

I am unable to attend the Open House today but here are my thoughts: 

• My comments stem from the Comp Plan "Road Map for the Future" and specifically pg. 28 
"The Importance of Hotbeds for Envisioned Economic Vibrancy'' and the content in the 
following Economic Development section. To me, this is the most important section of the 
Comp Plan and holds the key to long-term Mountain Village success and destination success. 

• As we look to the future, additional hotbeds are needed for the sustainability of Town revenue 
streams, village vibrancy, the success of our merchants, and the services and offerings that 
are required to give world-class resort experiences for our residents and guests. 

• As you know, The Town of Telluride will unlikely be adding additional hot beds with significant 
density; additional hot bed development needs to occur in Mountain Village as we work to 
optimize our tourism economy. 

• Lot 30 along with Parcel M and TSG Open Space represent a premiere hot bed development 
location in Mountain Village. With easy access off Mtn Village Blvd, Ski-In/Ski-Out capabilities, 
walking distance to the Village Core/Gondola and the golf course can all be possible with 
keeping to the Comprehensive Plan. 

• In my opinion, fragmenting Lot30 and treating Parcel M separately with 25 condo units would 
be a fail in the face of the Comp Plan economic objectives and long-term visioning. 

I understand TMV, TSG and TMVOA wills soon be undertaking a Village Core Sub-Area Plan similar 
to the Town Hall plan. I would encourage this land be part of that process to understand in more 
detail the importance of this special parcel and how to best utilize it. 

Thank you for your very capable service and contributions to Mountain Village. 

Best Regards, 

Robert Stenhammer 
210 Sunnyridge PL 
970-708-7771 

1 



115

Granita Homeowners Association 

10/12/17 

Comprehensive Plan Amendment Lot 30, Parcel M 

Dear Michelle, 

Thank you for your time today at the TMV open house regarding the Comprehensive 
Plan Amendment Lot 30, Parcel M. 

As a multiple Mountain Village property owner and owner in the Granita Building 
and it's current President, Please allow this letter to serve as formal notice that we 
the Granita HOA and it's owners support The Huschke's proposed changes to the 
comp plan. We totally support their request to reduce the building height from 78' 
to 48', reduce the density from 102 units to between 9-25 units, and remove the 
requirement for a Flagship hotel. 

Please do not hesitate to call at any time if I can be of any assistance whatsoever. 

Respectfully, 

AlbertRoer 
President 
Granita Condominium Owners Association 



116

Michelle Haynes 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Cc: 
Subject: 

Dear Michelle, 

Gmail Les Omotani <lmo8337@gmail.com> 
Thursday, October 12, 2017 12:13 PM 
Michelle Haynes 
Gmail Les Omotani 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDMENT LOT 30 PARCEL M 

Granita Homeowners Association 

10/12/17 

Comprehensive Plan Amendment Lot 30, Parcel M 

Regarding the Comprehensive Plan Amendment Lot 30, Parcel M. 

As an owner in the Granita Building, Please allow this letter to serve as formal notice that we the Granita HOA and it's 
owners support The Huschke's proposed changes to the comp plan. We totally support their request to reduce the 
building height from 78' to 48', reduce the density from 102 units to between 9-25 units, and remove the requirement 
for a Flagship hotel. 

Respectfully, 

LES AND BARBARA OMOTANI 

Granita Owner 

Unit# 304 

1 



117

Les and Barbara Omotani 
Les Omotani, Ph. D. 
LM08337@gmail .com 

8337 N Lee Trevino Drive 
Tucson, Arizona 857 42 

516 652 6278 

2 



118

Michelle Haynes 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Cc: 
Subject: 

Dear Ms. Haynes, 

Stacie Ward <wards4@mac.com> 
Wednesday, October 11, 2017 7:20 PM 
Michelle Haynes 
anton@tmvoa.org 
Lot 30, Parcel M -- Public Comment 

We just received an email from Mr. Benitez about the Open House to discuss Lot 30-Parcel M, scheduled for tomorrow 
October 12th. My wife and I own Aspen Ridge #20 and would like to comment on the proposed re-zoning of Lot 30, but 
we are currently in Florida and will be unable to make the meeting in person. Please consider this email as our official 
input on the matter and include it with the other public comments. 

While we understand the thinking and motivation behind the effort to increase the density and height restrictions 
currently associated with lot 30-Parcel M, we are vehemently opposed to it coming to fruition in the new Plan. In 
general, Lot 30-Parcel M appears too small to support such a large increase in density, and we question the necessity of 
the requested change as well. We are under the impression that at present, there are plenty of available hotel rooms in 
Mountain Village even during holidays, so adding more rooms at this juncture seems superfluous. Our more specific 
concerns and objections to the proposed changes include, but are not limited to: 

1. Not in keeping with the residentia l character of t he Aspen Ridge neighborhood. To increase the density of Lot 30-
Parcel M from a handful of condominium units to a monstrous 108-hotbed structure is a huge leap in planning-- one 
unsupported by the historical zoning of the property and directly at odds with the residential character of the 
neighborhood. We bought in Aspen Ridge precisely for the fact that it felt like a true second home rather than just a 
vacation destination. While we like being close to the Village core, we did not purchase within the core because it's too 
developed and crowded for our taste. Aspen Ridge's location is perfect as it's close enough to the core's amenities, but 
far enough away for peace and quiet, with more open space. 

2. Eyesore. Besides the general character of the Aspen Ridge neighborhood being adversely affected, the proposal to 
increase the height restriction of lot 30-Parcel M to 78 feet is ill-advised for aesthetic reasons. The proposed hotel will 
dwarf all of the surrounding buildings and utterly spoil the charming approach to the Village core, as well as the 
immediately adjacent Aspen Ridge residential properties. The visual pollution presented by such an obtrusive structure 
contradicts the "unmatched beauty" marketed by Telski and the Mountain Village community. 

3. Increased Traffic and Noise. The increased traffic and noise that would undoubtedly accompany such a large hotel 
structure would negatively impact the adjacent Aspen Ridge condominium owners. As stated above, Aspen Ridge is a 
residential area, and a respite from the commercialization that exists in the Village core. A large hotel structure existing 
in such close proximity to private residences would shatter the existing peaceful environment with too many people 
coming and going, constant deliveries, and increased noise levels. There can be no question that the heightened overall 
activity surrounding such a structure would adversely affect the Aspen Ridge owners' use and enjoyment of their 
residential properties that currently exists. 

4. Interfering w ith reasonable investment-backed expectations of Aspen Ridge owners. In addition to adversely 
affecting our use and enjoyment, the above factors will likely negatively impact our condominium's property value. We, 
and other Aspen Ridge owners, paid a significant premium to be located slopeside with outstanding views and serene 
surroundings. An obtrusive hotel structure is simply out of place in the Aspen Ridge neighborhood, and will likely 
interfere with our reasonable, investment-backed expectations should we choose to sell in the future. While we think 

1 



119

it's fantastic that Telski and the Mountain Village community are addressing future growth and development issues, it 
should not be done at the expense of residents whose investment is far greater than that of a lift ticket or a hotel stay. 

Thank you in advance for your consideration of this matter, and please feel free to contact us if you have further 
questions. 

Sincerely, 

Tom Ward 
Stacie Ward 
Aspen Ridge, Unit 20 
(727) 940-3469 

2 



120

10/11/2017 

To Town of Mountain Village 

Re: Lot 30 M 

This lot is such a lovely lot - and still has some Aspen trees that are 
becoming more and more valuable around Mountain Village. 

Our visitors come here for the beauty first, and second, hiking and outdoor 
activities, skiing, etc. And only after that come hotels and various amenities. I 

This I hear year round on the Gondola, from many visitors from all over the US 

and the world. 

So I would urge all parties involved to consider a project similar to Aspen 

Ridge, as that would not block our most valuable asset - the views ! 

It would also be lovely to have these open houses after working hours, so 
we, the working residents cold actually participate. It is nice these are held, but 
during workday you are only getting fairly small percentage of residents. When 

meetings were held after work on the Meadows project Town Hall was packed. 

Please consider this for the next scheduled open houses. 

Thank you for considering my comments, 

Jolana Vanek, 19 Boulders Way 



121

Michelle Haynes 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 

Brian Eaton <bingo.eaton@cox.net> 
Wednesday, October 11, 2017 9:35 PM 
Michelle Haynes 

Subject: Re: Lot 30 M 

Michelle, 
Thanks for the info. We certainly do no longer need hotel sites to add to the 4-5 we already have and cannot find 
developers for. As it appears our condo availability is easing,,something that aligns itself with Aspen Ridge would be a 
great plan. Low density on a premier location. 
But, it is time to start carefully controlling our growth. The days of BUILD,BUILD, BUILD are long gone, and we all lost lots 
of equity in our own homes during this time. 
Every development needs to prove that; it is worthy of our Village, and WILL NOT detract from the beauty of its 
surroundings! 
We need to plan like the Swiss, the mountains are more important and nature cannot be improved here! 

Brian Eaton 

Sent from my iPad 

> On Oct 11, 2017, at 3:07 PM, Michelle Haynes <MHaynes@mtnvillage.org> wrote: 
> 
> Brian: 
> 
> There is no secrecy, hence a public meeting and open house! 
> 
> Here is the worksession memo from August and a pdf of some slides we'll show tomorrow. 
> 
> Let me know if you have any additional questions. 
> 
> Thank you! 
> 
> 
> Michelle Haynes, MPA 
> Planning and Development Services Director Town of Mountain Village 
> 455 Mountain Village Blvd. Suite A 
> Mountain Village, CO 81435 
> 0:: 970-239-4061 - PLEASE NOTE NEW OFFICE PHONE NUMBER 
> M:: 970-417-6976 
> mhaynes@mtnvillage.org 
> 
> 
> Email Signup I Website I Facebook I Twitter I Pinterest I Videos On 
> Demand 
> 
> -----Original Message-----
> From: Brian Eaton [mailto:bingo.eaton@cox.net] 
> Sent: Wednesday, October 11, 2017 4:06 PM 
> To: Michelle Haynes <MHaynes@mtnvillage.org> 

1 



122

> Subject: Lot 30 M 
> 
> Michelle, so why all the secrecy. We would like some background info as this is a very special location. 
> Thanks, 
> Brian Eaton 
> 104 Gold Hill Ct 
> 
> Sent from my iPad 
> <Lot 30 Parcel m ppt.pdf> 
> <20170808 Lot 30 Comp Plan Amendment Worksession Memo revised.pdf> 

2 



123

Michelle Haynes 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 

Michelle Haynes 
Wednesday, October 11, 2017 6:32 PM 
neal elinoff 

Subject: Re: meeting tomorrow 10 - noon 

Thanks for your comments Neal. I will incorporate them. 

Michelle Haynes 

Sent from my iPhone 

On Oct 11, 2017, at 4:56 PM, neal elinoff <nealelinoff@gmail.com> wrote: 

HI Michelle, 

I own a Blue Mesa Condo that is impacted by this and I'm okay with increasing density and the height to 
the new height of 70 feet. I think it's fine. And I have a condo that would be impacted but it's important 
to get some more people into the core and get some greater vitality. 

Sincerely, 

Neal Elinoff president 
Elinoff 8: Co. Gallerists and Jewelers 
204 West Colorado Ave. 
PO Box 2846 
Telluride, CO 81435 
work: 970-728-5566; fax: 970-728-5950; cell: 970-708-0679 

1 



124

Comprehensive Plan Amendment Lot 30, Parcel 

Please provide your comments on the Comprehensive Plan Amendment 

PLEASE PROVIDE YOUR COMMENTS: 

It~~~ ·I Oc;)._ L(-)-..J1·1-b ,.b.}v:t~-re,}> ·13,'-f 
C-OH -~ ·:r~l)c-.l l-b ~).-1-.s,. \ PL:~P- 1.J-~ 1--" 

1 N ,,..__-c:pr7<-0p, R \A. r-=- ~'F:<-,·T14- f-b -"=> (T"G , ( '-4-N ~ &Tl<:.., 

~ ~O~µ-L--'-( ~~A-(-l (...::, \C ~ ~(l--?0 
:P,-ROt-~'\;2.-i-'<) 'Ti+-~ ( ~..A- i .:E:,,, N or- A. Co~ c:i~ ,, 

·--r,+-~ e_L\-,:c::_~ .. n·- --zo'r--f•(\.J<- I~ s u~~,~)3y 
-±::--- ( ~ ,BO"p:_-5 ~ I~ .s I z ~ ~ M A.R--~ I J,-

b L--l (pif I C-~~ ,w ~..s1i---,rw,'r·t+sA..~ ~ 
LL.,.?;::l~:::,\ ~ H- ~ ,J,,.-'(" ~ ~rbR--,~ ~~I 

NAME _ __________ _ Email ------- ----
PLEASE PROVIDE YOUR COMMENTS: 



125

Comprehensive Plan Amendment Lot 30, Parcel 

Please provide your comments on the Comprehensive Plan Amendment 

NAME _ ______ _____ _ Email -------------
PLEASE PROVIDE YOUR COMMENTS: 



126

Comprehensive Plan Amendment Lot 30, Parcel 

Please provide your comments on the Comprehensive Plan Amendment 

lo /rJ./~01 7 

PLEASE PROVIDE YOUR COMMENTS: 

f !:.. Uffo,,1 T t,.__ ~ :../ & ~ 1 ~ ~ bv f.._,,}} /\ ct._ Q 1/\ Vt. l cf) 

{3 ul r k-e v s ~ o r= r"' -e_ ,,,._ J,J.--f1 o""" L sf"' l e. 

; &\. . "' " J F ,.--0 .,._,,._ 0-\ t, V F c:._ cJ "' e_ .S l e ✓ L J,. Ir, U' v <l 

§P Q c ~ (- ,' c_ £ ,J b ~ ' "" T,~ L h 0 \/\. .... co---- tdZo V 5 e- 5 
.._ f -I h(o .rl( rc;rc-e_ ~e>v5•v-g-
f \A. C. LvJ , ""- C....0 \,y,.. VV\ -e..v- e_, .~ L ~ 

Q MefCe_"" Te,,-, ' i L( \nv--A ,r, -6 kovLJ "'- L-S O loeoPisc sd!.. 
NAME - - - - ------ -+--- Email - - - - ----- - -

PLEASE PROVIDE YOUR COMMENTS: ~ \l, ,) 

(, l-,\~ ~ 



127

Comprehensive Plan Amendment Lot 30, Parcel 

Please provide your comments on the Comprehensive Plan Amendment 

NAME __ ~~_%_- ~-~\~_ . ...c....__- _ 

PLEASE PROVIDE YOUR COMMENTS: 'f ft~~ t19 ~ 11 ~-r ll'tii C0iVuiP,Y lJ nJ rn vlq i fv lt-pf'l1o p Ii l Yi 
~ u1t 'rt9 , rv~ ~()\0i~Shf~\~Wtti<9~ t,'7 th t ~ efJ & i1~fA1111 , 

· W\~ 1Wl/l}{l-'1 ~ ~M'M \. )ec(u, Df1t. f7etvo/l,~) 1~1v .• ~ c? A~ ~~ 
~ ~wl ~ll\ w,~~ ~tl,,-- ~ u, t lwP ~UJ~o/ >¼ ($!>.~ ( w '!ib (j 

h9 t't1(.cf "5 tllft,f(n"" 'v'fVfl/ f ~u 1ulcp r fe-' (ftYV~ erv Mwvij Ht~-7 ~ ~ 
, mwt wltiivi t;),fl)-1fr A~ 1i I A{;{.)J~uP ~ mt w,. L ~\ft· ( Vttnut, t 

\ l;lttJ ~ l1i ©~ ~-Ot ~ 10-aJ f>'Ui!9 ~ IM'7 ~ ~ ~ ~ ~M\J" t 5-- m u µ f!6'}:i1 - f>l "1 
Q\iJ; vr"l~f'\r'J it,~l>t Matv <tiW( fJ~ ~lv'tlvi vJfrNlt, rot>fu-w '1,,ri ·./.9\J,t r , ,,, ,. 

NAME ---------- Email _ _______ _ 



128

Comprehensive Plan Amendment Lot 30, Parcel 

Please provide your comments on the Comprehensive Plan Amendment 

NAME _ _________ _ Email __________ _ 

- LL 

c 



129

Comprehensive Plan Amendment Lot 30, Parcel 

Please provide your comments on the Comprehensive Plan Amendment 

NAME _ __:_µ_1-1-,_ 1 i_._ -Er/_/"_ A-_ ;J_S __ _ Email 

PLEASE PROVIDE YOUR COMMENTS: 

/? G COµ /11 e'?JD 1(!. CQ vs-j 7.) i=lL t./ ~, l.1 ~ t; Co fv1 f , /'L-fh\) 

/C-Gr.)M (T at,/ L-or 3o A-~.l> /,v'--::J..71'2v'~ Z>eve-~I'~ 
I 

7b /9floC~p (,Jr·n•f ~J/t'S'T7tJ? ~A/16'7 /r/'/~c.A-'77--o,,J 

L,W/ '17,t VifJSi-/2.. ,,,,. _ 1~c .,;<" /.'-~,,..-n~ ) 
,r,v, __. 1 "'~=--~1:3.b ~; "To/ AS ;l)£:s, /Z€;b 

NAME _~f,_ ,_ &,_ ~ __ 5 _ _____ _ Email __________ _ _ 

PLEASE PROVIDE YOUR COMMENTS: 

{!o u IX./'- r <- :5 I f-o v ~ /vb 'T k~ f2EE 7o /V f:-4.} 2::tJ M./ t0<., 

Al /·7l+ou·, 'Z)ll.l3 /fe:=r/&.v' t' /,J //o £.✓C7'l,l.f3vr 



130

Comprehensive Plan Amendment Lot 30, Parcel 

Please provide your comments on the Comprehensive Plan Amendment 

NAME _________ _ Email - - --------

PLEASE PROVIDE YOUR COMMENTS: 



1

Michelle Haynes

From: Jensen, Bill <bjensen@tellurideskiresort.com>
Sent: Thursday, October 12, 2017 4:30 PM
To: Michelle Haynes
Subject: RE: Lot 30 Parcel M Public Comments - Open House

These are the verbal comments I shared with Michelle at the open house.  
TSG, as an adjacent land owner, has had no interactions with the lot 30 owners or their representative John Horn. Given 
the common lot lines,  one would think the lot 30 owners or their representative would have reached out to TSG at a 
minimum with a neighborly heads up on what they were hoping to achieve in a rezoning.  
The last interaction TSG had with the lot 30 owners was in 2014 when TSG granted the lot owners an access easement 
(previous to that Lot 30 had no access). 
A rezoning of lot 30 without considering the potential use of TSG open space in that location that could allow for use of 
density over a broader footprint and perhaps would allow for an overall height reduction seems premature.  Without 
the ability to work together on options the only remaining development use for TSG’s open space according to the land 
plan is affordable housing. 
While the comp plan density associated with Parcel M (the designation for the combination of lot 30 and TSG open 
space) is significant, given the increased land mass, there may be options or variations that better meet the current and 
future needs of Mountain Village. 
Given the Town of Mountain Village and TMVOA are initiating a working group to study the Village core it would seem 
appropriate to defer a rezoning decision and allow that working group six months to look at the Mountain Village core in 
its entirety and how lot 30/Parcel M  options that may better serve the future of the core area. 
Bill Jensen 

From: Michelle Haynes [mailto:MHaynes@mtnvillage.org]  
Sent: Thursday, October 12, 2017 3:52 PM 
To: Jensen, Bill <bjensen@tellurideskiresort.com> 
Subject: RE: Lot 30 Parcel M Public Comments ‐ Open House 

Bill: 

Yes, verbal comments are harder to summarize succinctly.  I did not summarize anyone’s verbal comments.  Would you 
like to provide them now via email and I can amend the public comments?  Happy to do so.  Just let me know.   

Michelle Haynes, MPA 
Planning and Development Services Director 
Town of Mountain Village 
455 Mountain Village Blvd. Suite A 
Mountain Village, CO 81435 
O:: 970‐239‐4061 – PLEASE NOTE NEW OFFICE PHONE NUMBER 
M:: 970‐417‐6976 
mhaynes@mtnvillage.org 

131



2

 
Email Signup | Website | Facebook | Twitter | Pinterest | Videos On Demand 
 

From: Jensen, Bill [mailto:bjensen@tellurideskiresort.com]  
Sent: Thursday, October 12, 2017 3:48 PM 
To: Michelle Haynes <MHaynes@mtnvillage.org> 
Subject: RE: Lot 30 Parcel M Public Comments ‐ Open House 
 
Michelle, saw you included my follow up email comment but you did not include my as important verbal comments to 
you during the open house. 
Bill 
 

From: Michelle Haynes [mailto:MHaynes@mtnvillage.org]  
Sent: Thursday, October 12, 2017 3:30 PM 
To: Michelle Haynes <MHaynes@mtnvillage.org> 
Subject: Lot 30 Parcel M Public Comments ‐ Open House 
 
Please see the attached public comments from today’s open house. 
 
If I receive more, and I expect that I may, I will forward those along as well. 
 
Thank you. 
 
 
Michelle Haynes, MPA 
Planning and Development Services Director 
Town of Mountain Village 
455 Mountain Village Blvd. Suite A 
Mountain Village, CO 81435 
O:: 970‐239‐4061 – PLEASE NOTE NEW OFFICE PHONE NUMBER 
M:: 970‐417‐6976 
mhaynes@mtnvillage.org 
 

 
Email Signup | Website | Facebook | Twitter | Pinterest | Videos On Demand 
 

132



1

Michelle Haynes

From: Dave Ezell <DEzell@sigmasupply.com>
Sent: Friday, October 13, 2017 12:37 PM
To: Michelle Haynes
Cc: nickiezell1@yahoo.com; bkjack@rmi.net
Subject: FW: Comprehensive Plan Amendment Lot 30, Parcel M
Attachments: 20171012113445580.pdf; ATT00001.htm

Please note that as owners of Granita 204 we are in support of reducing the density of this proposed building as Darrell 
Huschke notes in his attached letter.  

		
Thank you!	
		
Dave Ezell	
Sigma Supply of North America Inc.	
3316 Towson Avenue	
Fort Smith, AR 72901	
800-785-0367	
479-785-0367	
479-785-0368 (FAX)	
479-459-7028 (Cellular)	
dezell@sigmasupply.com	

www.sigmasupply.com 

  

From: Nicki Ezell [nickiezell1@yahoo.com] 
Sent: Friday, October 13, 2017 1:16 PM 
To: Dave Ezell 
Subject: Fwd: Comprehensive Plan Amendment Lot 30, Parcel M 

 

Sent from my iPhone 
 
Begin forwarded message: 

From: "Marcy Pickering" <marcy@peakpropertytelluride.com> 
Date: October 13, 2017 at 12:28:44 PM CDT 
To: <marcy@peakpropertytelluride.com>, <office@peakpropertytelluride.com> 
Subject: FW: Comprehensive Plan Amendment Lot 30, Parcel M 

Granita Owners, 
  
Please see below, and if you have any additional questions, please don’t hesitate to contact me. 
  
Thank	you, 
Marcy Pickering 
President/Owner 
Peak	Property	Management	&	Maintenance	Inc. 

133



2

100	Aspen	Ridge	Dr. 
Telluride,	CO	81435 
Office:	970‐729‐0178 
Fax:	970‐728‐0998 

Marcy, 

Please forward this email and the attachment to all the Granita owners so that they can write their own 
letter in support of the Huschke's proposal. They can send an email to Michelle Haynes TMV Town 
Planner @ mhaynes@mtnvillage.org 

Granita Homeowners Association

10/12/17

Comprehensive Plan Amendment Lot 30, Parcel M

Dear Michelle, 

Regarding the Comprehensive Plan Amendment Lot 30, Parcel M.. 

As an owner in the Granita Building, Please allow this letter to serve as formal notice that we the Granita 
HOA and it’s owners support The Huschke’s proposed changes to the comp plan. We totally support 
their request to reduce the building height from 78’ to 48’, reduce the density from 102 units to 
between 9‐25 units, and remove the requirement for a Flagship hotel. 

Respectfully, 

Granita Owner 
Unit # 

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE: The information contained in this message is privileged and/or confidential and is intended only for the use of the individual or entity 
to whom it is addressed. If the reader of this message is not the intended recipient or the employee or agent responsible to deliver it to the intended recipient, you 
are hereby notified that any dissemination or copying of this message is strictly prohibited. If you have received this message in error, please notify the sender by 
return e-mail and delete the message and any attachments from your computer. Thank you.

134



1

Michelle Haynes

From: Murry Gunty <mgunty@blackstreetcapital.com>
Sent: Wednesday, October 18, 2017 8:51 AM
To: Michelle Haynes
Subject: Lot 30 feedback

It seems to me that there is no shortage of condos for sale in Mountain village.  The proposal to increase the number of 
units to up to 25 seems unnecessary to me.  the existing zoning should be sufficient for them.   I hope this feedback is 
helpful.   

‐‐  
Murry Gunty 
CEO 
Blackstreet Capital 
5425 Wisconsin Ave, Suite 701 
Chevy Chase, MD 20815 
240 223 1333 
mgunty@blackstreetcapital.com 

"The information of Blackstreet or its affiliates contained in this email and any attached documents may be confidential 
or legally privileged.  It has been sent for the sole use of the intended recipient(s).  If you are not an intended recipient, 
you are hereby notified that any unauthorized review, use, disclosure, dissemination, distribution, or copying of this 
communication or any attached documents is strictly prohibited.  If you have received this communication in error, 
please contact the sender by reply email and destroy all copies of the original message and any attached documents." 

135



1

Michelle Haynes

From: Angela Pashayan <info@angelapashayan.com>
Sent: Wednesday, October 18, 2017 11:33 AM
To: Michelle Haynes
Subject: Lot 30

Thank you for the information on Lot 30 in the Mountain Village. 

It is my opinion that the lot is located in a prime location for development of a small boutique hotel encroaching past 
the Lot lines into Telski property per their agreement, with a few local housing units included as a trade off. It would 
bring more amenities to our Mountain Village and offer much needed local housing. Four to five units of local housing is 
better than nothing at all. 

I am literally typing this while riding on the off season goose to town..... listening to the driver explain to a group of 
visitors that Mountain Village is in the midst of a housing crunch. The visitors replied, “how can the Mountain Village 
sustain itself going forward “? The driver provided no answer. 

In regards to planning and zoning, I am ‘for’ amending the comprehensive plan to allow consideration of different types 
of developments on Lot 30 while the Mountain Village retains the right to accept or deny proposals of development. 
This may lead to contingent offers to purchase the land delaying the sell, however the sellers can always choose to sell 
at any time under the existing planning & zoning codes that I believe allow for an 8 unit condo building. 

If a contingent offer is accepted for the larger footprint development, I would be against a height past 3 stories (approx. 
35‐40 ft. high). 

My last comment for consideration is on the stipulations for including local housing units; that there be configurations 
offered for families and singles, and that the hotel may not bring in ‘their own’ occupants/employees to fill those units. 
We have qualified people here waiting for solid opportunities to work.  

Thank you for considering my views on this important matter of planning and development in Mountain Village. 

‐‐  

136



137

LJ A 

~ @ d1I C:\ Users\ABenitez\AppData\ Local\ Microsoft\Windows\ lNetCache\ Content.Outlook\ GKUD2W5G\ email.mht • C I Search ... 
~_L_~--========::::;----------------------------------~ P· I G*© " 
gJ mhtml :file://C:\ Users\ABen ... X 'E' 
~ P Pand ora Radi o - Li sten to ... [!!I Sugg ested Sites • @'l Trump sig.ns executi... • 

\ development of this scale on this site is an outrage! Lot 30 cannot absorb something of this magnitude . Traffic and parking impacts will be intolernble and frankly dangerous. Proposed height and density ,..,-ill violate 
he quiet enjoyment rights of the longstanding residents of Aspen Ridge . I strongly urge the Mountain Village Owners Association reject this proposal . 
\!lowing excessive density in a development to rectify an economic result would be irresponsible on the part of the Association. Any development on this site needs to contemplate a more sensible usage that is 
:ompatible with its neighbors and will not be totally disruptive to the surroundings as this will certainly be. 
hope that reason will prevail and that MVOA will prevent the destruction of this important neighborhood that has been a jewel of Mountain Village for years . 

>eter Capobianco , res ident of Aspen Ridge 

=rom: Anton Benitez, TMVOA Execut ive Director <ant on@tmvoa.org> 

~ · · O~SPM 

ro: petercapo@hot mail.com 

--- ' -
T E LLU R ID 

M OUINTA I N Vlt.i.. .. CI! 
OWNERS ASSOCIAT I ON 

I 

TOMORROW: Lot 30, Parcel M - Open House 

No Images? Click here 

The Town is holding an open house to discuss and gather public input on a 

Comprehensive Plan Amendment to Lot 30. Parcel M on Thurs., Oct 12, 10 a.m. - 12 p.m. 
at Town Hall. The site is located across the street from the Granita Building and adjacent 

to the Aspen Ridge development. 

Public input is a key component of any comprehensive plan and comprehensive plan 

amendment. Town Council will consider the comorehensive olan amendment at their Nov 



1

Michelle Haynes

From: Steven Ullrich <sullrich2@yahoo.com>
Sent: Friday, October 13, 2017 12:34 PM
To: Michelle Haynes
Subject: Regarding the Comprehensive Plan Amendment Lot 30, Parcel M.

Granita Homeowners Association

10/13/17

Comprehensive Plan Amendment Lot 30, Parcel M

Dear Michelle, 

 Regarding the Comprehensive Plan Amendment Lot 30, Parcel M. 

 As an owner in the Granita Building, Please allow this letter to serve as formal notice that we the Granita HOA and its 
owners support The Huschke’s proposed changes to the comp plan. We totally support their request to reduce the 
building height from 78’ to 48’, reduce the density from 102 units to between 9‐25 units, and remove the requirement 
for a Flagship hotel. 

 Respectfully, 

 Steven Ullrich 

 Granita Owner 

Unit # 202 

138



1

Michelle Haynes

From: Marty <mmhuschke@aol.com>
Sent: Saturday, October 14, 2017 5:30 PM
To: jhorn@rmi.net; Michelle Haynes
Subject: Fwd: Lot 30 Mountain Village

 
 
 
Begin forwarded message: 

From: Stacie Ward <wards4@mac.com> 
Date: October 14, 2017 at 4:11:24 PM MST 
To: Marty <mmhuschke@aol.com> 
Subject: Re: Lot 30 Mountain Village 

Hello Darrell—  
 
Thank you for emailing to clarify your position, as the documents attached to the TMVOA email were a 
bit unclear as to your request and the current restrictions.  We support your efforts to develop Lot 30 if 
the interests of Aspen Ridge owners are ultimately protected and the character of the immediate 
neighborhood is retained.   
 
Specifically, we support: 
1.  The removal of the flagship requirement from Lot 30/Parcel M under the Comprehensive Plan; 
2.  The reduction in height and density of Lot 30/Parcel M under the Comprehensive Plan (down from 78 
feet and 102 units, respectively);  
3.  Developing Lot 30 (or the Lot 30/Parcel M combination) in keeping with the current character of the 
Aspen Ridge neighborhood (i.e., multi‐family only). 
 
However, we do have these concerns: 
1.  Density request of up to 25 condominium units on the Lot 30/Parcel M is too great.  We are skeptical 
that 25 condominium units (or anything approaching that number) could be constructed on Lot 
30/Parcel M and still be in keeping with the character of the Aspen Ridge community.  It seems that 
amount of density would require a very large and tall structure, and be at odds with the townhouses of 
Aspen Ridge. 
 
2.  We would not support a hotel or a commercial, non‐residential structure of any kind on Lot 30/Parcel 
M, whether mixed‐use or hybrid approach, irregardless of the removal of the flagship 
requirement.  Therefore, we do not agree with or support the following Staff recommendation: 

  "it is in the town’s best interest to incentivize a greater unit number with a hybrid approach to 
hotel bed base (hotel, hotel efficiency, condominium‐hotel, lodge, efficiency lodge, or property 
management/rental pool requirements) without the flagship hotel requirement, consistent with 
a lot that has historically been treated as a transition lot between two zone districts."  

 

139



2

We hope you and the town can come to an agreement on this, and that you will be allowed to 
sell/develop Lot 30 in such a way that also protects the interests and investments of all Aspen Ridge 
owners, as well as the residential character of our neighborhood. 

Thanks again for emailing, 
Stacie and Tom Ward 

On Oct 13, 2017, at 4:15 PM, Marty <mmhuschke@aol.com> wrote: 

October 13, 2017 

Dear Tom and Stacy, 

I wanted to be sure that you understand that I am trying to REDUCE the height limit and 
density on Lot 30 to protect the owners and character of Aspen Ridge. The 78.5 height 
and 102 unit requirements were imposed on my property by the Comprehensive Design 
Plan. I am asking for a height and density consistent with our neighborhood. 

If you wish to discuss any other aspects of Lot 30, I would be happy to talk with 
you.  (602) 616‐9876 

Thank you for being a concerned resident of Aspen Ridge. 

Sincerely,  

Darrell Huschke 
Developer of Aspen Ridge 
Owner of Lot 30 and AR Unit 18 

140



1

Michelle Haynes

From: Laila Benitez
Sent: Saturday, October 14, 2017 3:24 PM
To: Michelle Haynes
Cc: jolanavanek@yahoo.com
Subject: Fwd: Lot 30, Parcel M Comprehensive Plan Amendment Open House, October 12
Attachments: Aspen Ridge Comment.docx; ATT00001.htm

Hi Michelle,  
Please see Jolana’s email feedback below.  
Thanks, 
LB 

Sent from my iPhone 

Begin forwarded message: 

From: JOLANA VANKOVA <jolanavanek@yahoo.com> 
Date: October 14, 2017 at 2:17:35 PM MDT 
To: Town of Mountain Village <lailabenitez@mtnvillage.org> 
Subject: Lot 30, Parcel M Comprehensive Plan Amendment Open House, October 12 
Reply‐To: JOLANA VANKOVA <jolanavanek@yahoo.com> 

Dear Laila, 

I had clients Thursday morning so I only dropped in for about 3 minutes. My comment is 
attached. 

Even the TMV founder Ron Allred said during a meeting that he would not build the 
Peaks that size today. Let's not block this amazing last part of views and trees by huge 
hotel as we have done with the Peaks 20 plus years ago. 

All I had a chance to speak with , specially riding on the Gondola approaching from 
town hall felt that something like "Aspen Ridge 
phase 2" would look appropriate. 

Thank you 
Jolana Vanek 

141



2

From: Town of Mountain Village <bkight@mtnvillage.org> 
To: Jolana Vanek <jolanavanek@yahoo.com>  
Sent: Wednesday, October 11, 2017 12:51 PM 
Subject: Lot 30, Parcel M Comprehensive Plan Amendment Open House, October 12 
 
Mountain Village Seeks Community Input 

No Images? Click here

 
  

RESIDENTS     |     BUSINESSES     |    GOVERNING     |    EVENTS 
  

  

Comprehensive Plan Amendment Lot 30, Parcel M 

OPEN HOUSE 

142



3

SEEKING COMMUNITY INPUT 

Thursday, October 12 
10 a.m. to 12 p.m. 

Mountain Village Town Hall 

The Town of Mountain Village is holding an open house to discuss a comprehensive plan amendment to Lot 

30, Parcel M. Public input is a key component of any comprehensive plan and comprehensive plan 

amendment. Coffee and pastries will be served!  

For more information or to provide written public comment, contact Planning and 

Development Services Director, 

Michelle Haynes at MHaynes@mtnvillage.org 

SUGGESTED RSVP  

143



From: L Omotani
To: Michelle Haynes
Cc: Les M. Omotani
Subject: Re: Parcel M, Lot 30 Comprehensive Plan Amendment, Village Center Subarea
Date: Saturday, January 13, 2018 7:22:43 AM

Hi Michelle

Thanks for this update

We continue to support what we understood to be the existing owners plans to develop Lot 30
as small density condo/town homes.   We are not supportive of the expanded high density
hotel with multi story height allowances.   This is NOT what we were told when we purchased
our Granita condo.   

When the Madeline hotel was built restricting existing mountain views we were told by village
planners that we would continue to have our down valley MEADOWS views without
obstruction.

Thanks for continuing to keep us informed

Les Omotani

Granita 304

Sent from my iPad

On Jan 11, 2018, at 3:50 PM, Michelle Haynes <MHaynes@mtnvillage.org> wrote:

Dear Community Members:

The design review board (DRB) will be providing a recommendation to town council
and the town council will consider a comprehensive plan amendment to parcel M, lot

30, Village Center Subarea.  The DRB recommendation will occur on February 1st and

the town council will consider a proposed amendment on February 15th.

Draft and preliminary materials can be found at the following link:

https://townofmountainvillage.com/governing/building-development/current-
planning/

Please also note that the materials associated with the proposed comprehensive plan
amendment will be updated by January 19, 2018 and town council may consider edits
or revisions prior to and at the town council meeting.

144

mailto:lmo8337@gmail.com
mailto:MHaynes@mtnvillage.org
mailto:LMO8337@gmail.com
mailto:MHaynes@mtnvillage.org
https://townofmountainvillage.com/governing/building-development/current-planning/
https://townofmountainvillage.com/governing/building-development/current-planning/


I am providing this email to you as a courtesy because you either participated in the
open house, provided public comment or otherwise expressed interest in this process.

Do not hesitate to contact me if you have any additional questions.

With regard,

Michelle Haynes, MPA
Planning and Development Services Director
Town of Mountain Village
455 Mountain Village Blvd. Suite A
Mountain Village, CO 81435
O:: 970-239-4061 – PLEASE NOTE NEW OFFICE PHONE NUMBER
M:: 970-417-6976
mhaynes@mtnvillage.org

Email Signup | Website | Facebook | Twitter | Pinterest | Videos On Demand

145

mailto:mhaynes@mtnvillage.org
http://mail.ezemailmarketing.net/phase2/survey1/survey.htm?cid=cxfpod&1268674845
http://www.townofmountainvillage.com/
https://www.facebook.com/townofmountainvillage
https://twitter.com/MountainVillage
http://pinterest.com/townofmv/
http://www.townofmountainvillage.com/Index.aspx?NID=452


COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 
PLANNING DIVISION 

455 Mountain Village Blvd. 
Mountain Village, CO 81435 

(970) 728-1392 

Agenda Item #13 

TO: Town Council 

FROM: Michelle Haynes, Planning and Development Services Director 

FOR: Meeting of August 17, 2017 

DATE: July 28, 2017 

RE: Worksession regarding a Comprehensive Plan Amendment for Lot 30, 
Parcel M 

Worksession Summary 
The purpose of the worksession is to discuss amending the existing unit and density 
designations contained within the Mountain Village Comprehensive Plan for Lot 30, Parcel M. 
Only the Town Council can initiate a Comprehensive Plan amendment pursuant to the 
Community Development Code (CDC) Section 17.1.5.E. 

Attachments 
• Context Map

Geography and Existing Use 
Lot 30 is located adjacent to the Aspen Ridge multi-family condominium development on the 
west and south side of Mountain Village Boulevard and across from the Granita mixed use 
development to the east and Tramontana multi-family development to the south (See 
Attachment Context Map).  Lot 30 is a vacant lot, except for a commercial area in a small 
building that exists on the southwest corner of the lot.  It is zoned Multi-Family although 
recognized in the Comprehensive Plan as part of the Mountain Village Center Subarea.  The 
Mountain Village Center Subarea is substantially comprised of the Village Center Zone District 
(VC) with some variation outside of the VC zone district boundary to include Lot 30 zoned multi-
family, the Sunny Ridge and Lookout lots zoned multi-family, and Mountain Village Blvd lots 
zoned single-family on the south and north boundaries of the VC zone district .   

Lot 30 Community Development Code Data: 
Community Development Code (CDC) 

Zoning Multi-Family 
Lot Size .60 acres 
Maximum Allowable 
Height  

48 feet 

Lot Coverage 65% 
Current Zoning 9 Condominiums 

2 Employee Apartments 
Commercial Use (per Resolution No. 2012-0426-07 ) 

Exhibit F

146



Site Background 
When originally platted at Reception No. 233115 in 1984, Lot 30 was designated a 
condominium lot with an allocation of four (4) units.  The Town approved an increase in density 
to14 condominium units (1988) and then a later rezoned to single family (1991).  Today the 
densities are approved at nine (9) condominium units, two (2) employee apartments and 
commercial (2012).  A replat of Lot 30 and Lot 11 occurred in 1996 resulting in a lot size 
increase from .452 acres to .60 that included a portion of contiguous open space.  The lot is not 
encumbered with General Easements. 

2014 Comprehensive Plan 
The Comprehensive Plan was adopted in 2011 and included Principals, Policies and Actions 
related to a number of subareas and parcels contained within each subarea.  Lot 30 is indicated 
as Parcel M, which includes an Active Open Space parcel that surrounds Lot 30 on three sides 
owned by Telluride Ski and Golf (TSG).  Parcel M is envisioned to provide a target total of 102 
units by combining Lot 30 with the TSG active open space parcel. 

Although outlined in Table 7. Below, Lot 30, Parcel M contains no additional site specific policies 
in the Comprehensive Plan.  See excerpt from Table 7. Mountain Village Development Table 
specific to Parcel M Lot 30 below: 

Parcel M 
Lot 30 

Target 
Maximum 
Building 
Height 

Target 
Hotbed 
Mix 

Target 
Condo 
Units 

Target 
Dorm 
Units* 

Target 
Restaurant/Commercial 
Area 

Total 
Target 
Units 

78.5 88 12 2 0 102 

Additional Background 
In 2014, Town Council held a workesssion with a potential buyer of Lot 30 to rezone the 
property for a proposed multi-family project from 9 to 15 condominium units.  The following 
bullet points summarize the prior worksession: 

• Staff supported the Comprehensive Plan as written and did not otherwise support the
rezone worksession premise because it was not consistent with the Comprehensive
Plan.

• In order for the owner of Lot 30 to redevelop consistent with the Comprehensive Plan,
the owner of Lot 30 must consolidate ownership with TSG. As a worksession outcome,
the applicants were asked to talk with TSG regarding redevelopment of the properties
consistent with the Master Plan.  The talks with TSG did not result in the desired
Comprehensive Plan direction to the owner’s satisfaction.  There has been no
development activity on the property since 2014.

• The owner indicated that the number of units increased from 22 units to 102 units during
the Comprehensive Plan process very late in the adoption process and only after the
intended densities on Boomerang and the Comanche sites were abandoned.  The owner
of Lot 30 did not receive notice regarding the unit number increase.

• The owner could otherwise develop 9 Condominium Units as a by right scenario but any
development scenario that varies with this proposal otherwise needs to be consistent
with the Comprehensive Plan.

• It is generally understood that if a lot consolidation between Lot 30 and the TSG active
open space parcel does not occur, Lot 30 cannot accommodate the densities outlined in
the Comprehensive Plan.

147



Staff Analysis 
Staff is supportive of a Comprehensive Plan amendment for Lot 30, Parcel M for the following 
reasons: 

• Lot 30 functions as a transition lot between the Aspen Ridge condominium development
(multi-family zoning), and the Village Center, zoned for high density, multi-use and hot-
bed development.     This is evidenced by development history on the lot along with its
treatment in the Comprehensive Plan.  Flexibility in zoning, uses and units can be
encouraged on this lot with the associated appropriate town approvals.

• The 102 unit numbers outlined for Lot 30, Parcel M provided for in the Comprehensive
Plan require cooperative efforts with TSG that may or may not be achievable in order to
comply with the Comprehensive Plan.  The fundamental nature of a Comprehensive
Plan is to provide an aspiration that is achievable for the town and a property owner.
The Comprehensive Plan for Lot 30, Parcel M does not currently provide adequate
flexibility and/or aspiration for the owners of Lot 30 and within the area of Parcel M.

• Although the owner could construct nine (9) condominium units and two (2) apartment
efficiencies consistent with the development pattern of the adjacent Aspen Ridge
condominium development and the underlying zoning, it is in the town’s best interest to
incentivize a greater unit number with a hybrid approach to hotel bed base (hotel, hotel
efficiency, condominium-hotel, lodge, efficiency lodge, or property management/rental
pool requirements) without the flagship hotel requirement, consistent with a lot that has
historically been treated  as a transition lot between two zone districts.   The discussion
of the right range and mix of units as well as other details can occur during a
Comprehensive Plan amendment to Lot 30, Parcel M.

/mbh 

148---



Context Map: Lot 30, Parcel M

149



To:  Mountain Village Town Council 
From:  John Horn 

Real Estate Consultant On Behalf of Marty and Darrell Huschke 
Date: February 9, 2018 
Re: Parcel M Comp Plan Amendment 

-Background Information 

The purpose of this memorandum is to provide a record of background information related to the above 
matter that is scheduled to be discussed at the Town Council meeting scheduled for February 15, 2018. 

When Marty and Darrell Huschke bought Lot 30 in 1995 the property rights they acquired that are 
relevant to the proposed amendment were the following: 

1. A piece of land.
2. Right to build to Town imposed building height.
3. Right to build to any Town imposed setbacks.
4. Right to seek a rezoning and density transfer so long as it complied with the land use code

and Design Regulations.

The collective result of these rights was a Town sanctioned building envelope. In 1995 if it made sense to 
the property owner and the Town, then you could increase or decrease the number of units you placed 
in the envelope. For example, if, instead of a use by right development of nine large 4-bedroom units, it 
made sense to the Town and the owner, then the owner could seek a rezoning and density transfer that 
resulted in two 4-bedroom units, eight smaller 3-bedroom units and six smaller 2-bedroom units, a total 
of 16 units. Same building envelope, same Design Regulations, different unit mix. The right to do this 
continued until the Comp Plan was adopted and the new Community Development Code was adopted in 
2013. 

Since the adoption of the new Community Development Code (“CDC”) the development of Lot 30 has 
been limited to either (i) a use by right (i.e. nine Condominium Units, two Employee Apartments and 
Commercial) or (ii) a joint development with TSG Ski & Golf, LLC of Parcel M that is in “general 
conformance” with the following as set forth in the Comp Plan: 

“Table 7. Mountain Village Center Development Table 
Parcel 
Designation 
Target 

Target 
Maximum 
Building 
Height 

Target 
Hotbed Mix 

Target 
Condo Units 

Target Dorm 
Units* 

Target 
Restaurant/ 
Commercial 
Area 

Total Target 
Units 

Parcel M Lot 
30 Flag 

78.5 88 12 2 0 102” 

(See page 53) 

“13. Parcel M Lot 30 
a. No site-specific policies.” (See page 61)

The Huschkes do not dispute the fact that the Comp Plan was the result of many well publicized 
meetings. However, they were only tangentially aware of process and did not engage in it whatsoever, 
they had ZERO involvement. It is a fair question to ask why, why didn’t the Huschkes participate in the 

Exhibit G
Public Comment

150



process. The answer is that it was their understanding that as a lower density lot on the periphery of the 
Village Core their lot was “planned”, and density could be increased if it made sense. It never dawned on 
them that the Comp Plan would affect Lot 30. Huschkes first learned Lot 30 was impacted in phone call 
from a TMVOA representative that occurred well after both Comp Plan and CDC were adopted. They 
were stunned when they learned the impact on Lot 30. 

As noted by Councilperson Cath Jett in the June 26, 2014 Town Council meeting/work session, back in 
2011 Lot 30 became a density dump only after the Boomerang and Comanche sites were eliminated. It 
was acknowledged that at the 2011 meeting there was very little public discussion, virtually only 
Council, staff and consultants were present; the Huschkes were not contacted in any way despite the 
fact that development options for their lot were being substantially changed. It is nearly unanimously 
agreed that the Comp Plan process whereby Lot 30’s development possibilities and corresponding value 
were diminished was fundamentally unfair to the Huschkes and, therefore, the Comp Plan should be 
amended to rectify the unfairness. 

The practical real world effect of the Comp Plan and CDC is twofold. First, several contracts have fallen 
through due to the combined effects of Comp Plan and new development code; and other parties 
interested in Lot 30 have indicated they declined to contract due to the combined effect. Second, the 
value of Lot 30 has been materially diminished.  

When Huschkes bought Lot 30 in 1995 it was their intention to develop it. However, with the inevitable 
passage of time they have reached their point in life where developing Lot 30 is no longer an option. In 
the Huschkes' program of estate planning Lot 30 is of significant value and the orderly liquidation of Lot 
30 is essential to their estate planning. Clearly this is not a theoretical or academic problem, the 
diminished value and inability to sell Lot 30 is inflicting enormous stress and financial damage on two 
fine people who devoted and invested a huge portion of their lives and economic resources to the 
success of the Mountain Village. 

Huschkes are simply asking the Town to reinstate the development option (and the ensuing rights and 
value) that existed on Lot 30 during the period from when they bought it in 1995 until the development 
code was amended on February 21, 2013. 

151---



From: John Horn
To: Michelle Haynes
Cc: Darrell Huschke
Subject: Background Memorandum
Date: Friday, February 09, 2018 9:45:41 AM
Attachments: 2018-2-9 Parcel M Background Memorandum.docx

Good Morning Michelle,
Would you please cause the attached memorandum to Town Council, dated February 9, 2018 Re:
Parcel M Comp Plan Amendment-Background Information to be included in the Council packet for
the Comp Plan amendment item scheduled on the February 15, 2018 meeting.  If it cannot be
included in the packet then please cause it to be distributed to Council so they can review it in
advance of the meeting.
Thanks,
John Horn

152

mailto:jhorn@rmi.net
mailto:MHaynes@mtnvillage.org
mailto:mmhuschke@aol.com

To: 	Mountain Village Town Council

From: 	John Horn

	Real Estate Consultant On Behalf of Marty and Darrell Huschke

Date:	February 9, 2018

Re:	Parcel M Comp Plan Amendment

-Background Information



The purpose of this memorandum is to provide a record of background information related to the above matter that is scheduled to be discussed at the Town Council meeting scheduled for February 15, 2018.



When Marty and Darrell Huschke bought Lot 30 in 1995 the property rights they acquired that are relevant to the proposed amendment were the following:



1. A piece of land.  

2. Right to build to Town imposed building height.  

3. Right to build to any Town imposed setbacks.   

4. Right to seek a rezoning and density transfer so long as it complied with the land use code and Design Regulations.



The collective result of these rights was a Town sanctioned building envelope. In 1995 if it made sense to the property owner and the Town, then you could increase or decrease the number of units you placed in the envelope. For example, if, instead of a use by right development of nine large 4-bedroom units, it made sense to the Town and the owner, then the owner could seek a rezoning and density transfer that resulted in two 4-bedroom units, eight smaller 3-bedroom units and six smaller 2-bedroom units, a total of 16 units. Same building envelope, same Design Regulations, different unit mix. The right to do this continued until the Comp Plan was adopted and the new Community Development Code was adopted in 2013.



Since the adoption of the new Community Development Code (“CDC”) the development of Lot 30 has been limited to either (i) a use by right (i.e. nine Condominium Units, two Employee Apartments and Commercial) or (ii) a joint development with TSG Ski & Golf, LLC of Parcel M that is in “general conformance” with the following as set forth in the Comp Plan:



“Table 7. Mountain Village Center Development Table

		Parcel Designation Target

		Target Maximum Building Height

		Target Hotbed Mix

		Target Condo Units

		Target Dorm Units*

		Target Restaurant/ Commercial Area

		Total Target Units



		Parcel M Lot 30 Flag

		78.5

		88

		12

		2

		0

		102”





(See page 53)



“13. Parcel M Lot 30

a. No site-specific policies.” (See page 61)



The Huschkes do not dispute the fact that the Comp Plan was the result of many well publicized meetings. However, they were only tangentially aware of process and did not engage in it whatsoever, they had ZERO involvement. It is a fair question to ask why, why didn’t the Huschkes participate in the process. The answer is that it was their understanding that as a lower density lot on the periphery of the Village Core their lot was “planned”, and density could be increased if it made sense. It never dawned on them that the Comp Plan would affect Lot 30. Huschkes first learned Lot 30 was impacted in phone call from a TMVOA representative that occurred well after both Comp Plan and CDC were adopted. They were stunned when they learned the impact on Lot 30.



As noted by Councilperson Cath Jett in the June 26, 2014 Town Council meeting/work session, back in 2011 Lot 30 became a density dump only after the Boomerang and Comanche sites were eliminated. It was acknowledged that at the 2011 meeting there was very little public discussion, virtually only Council, staff and consultants were present; the Huschkes were not contacted in any way despite the fact that development options for their lot were being substantially changed. It is nearly unanimously agreed that the Comp Plan process whereby Lot 30’s development possibilities and corresponding value were diminished was fundamentally unfair to the Huschkes and, therefore, the Comp Plan should be amended to rectify the unfairness.



The practical real world effect of the Comp Plan and CDC is twofold. First, several contracts have fallen through due to the combined effects of Comp Plan and new development code; and other parties interested in Lot 30 have indicated they declined to contract due to the combined effect. Second, the value of Lot 30 has been materially diminished. 



When Huschkes bought Lot 30 in 1995 it was their intention to develop it. However, with the inevitable passage of time they have reached their point in life where developing Lot 30 is no longer an option. In the Huschkes' program of estate planning Lot 30 is of significant value and the orderly liquidation of Lot 30 is essential to their estate planning. Clearly this is not a theoretical or academic problem, the diminished value and inability to sell Lot 30 is inflicting enormous stress and financial damage on two fine people who devoted and invested a huge portion of their lives and economic resources to the success of the Mountain Village.



Huschkes are simply asking the Town to reinstate the development option (and the ensuing rights and value) that existed on Lot 30 during the period from when they bought it in 1995 until the development code was amended on February 21, 2013.





Page 2 of 2





LANNING AND DEVELOPMENT SERVICES 
 DEPARTMENT 

455 Mountain Village Blvd. 
Mountain Village, CO 81435 

 (970) 369-8250 
 

Agenda Item No. 15    
              
TO:  Town Council 
 
FROM: Michelle Haynes, Planning and Development Services Director 
 
FOR:  Meeting of February 15, 2018 
 
DATE:  February 5, 2018 
 
RE: Town Hall Subarea, Village Court Apartments Expansion Update  
             
 
Background 
Consistent with the 2018 Town Hall Subarea Committee Memorandum of Understanding and the 
recently amended Town of Mountain Village Comprehensive Plan, the Town of Mountain Village 
has been implementing the Village Court Apartments Phase IV project, to construct two to three 
additional apartment buildings with associated parking and amenities.   
 
Staff will provide a powerpoint presentation at the meeting.  There are no associated materials in 
the Town Council packet for this agenda item. 
 
 
 
/mbh 
 
 

153



        Agenda Item 16 

 

To:  Mayor and Town Council 

From: Jim Loebe  

For:  February 15th, 2018 Town Council Meeting 

Date: February 5, 2018 

Re:  Consideration of Adopting the Recommendation from the Parking Committee to Permanently Eliminate Permit 

Parking on Upper Mountain Village Boulevard 

 

Background 

In response to a letter received from Alpine Planning, LLC, the parking committee met on January 22nd to discuss the 
future of permit parking for employees on upper Mountain Village Boulevard (UMVB).  As the representative of the owners 
of Lot 89-2B, Alpine is requesting that the Town put an end to permit parking on UMVB which the owners feel have 
negative and adverse impacts on their property. 

History 

The current UMVB permit parking system was instituted for the winter of 2009/10 in an effort to decrease Gondola Parking 
Garage (GPG) overflow on-street parking in the Town Hall Sub-Area.  It also gave employees working in the core another 
free and convenient parking option when the Town began charging for daytime use of GPG the following ski season.  The 
$25 UMVB employee permit is valid from the first day of the fall gondola shutdown period through the last day of the spring 
gondola shutdown period.  Permitted vehicles can park on the outbound lane of UMVB between Lookout Ridge and Sunny 
Ridge as signed.  The Town issues around 100 UMVB permits annually for the 45 spots available along the road. Only 
employees of licensed business within the core zone designation are eligible for this permit. 

During the summer months, vendors at the Wednesday Farmer’s Market have been allowed to park on UMVB to allow 
them to stay close to the core area. This is also an area that has been used for both festivals and special events (tour 
busses, etc.) during the summer.   

Recommendations 

The parking committee recommends that Town Council permanently eliminate permit parking activity on UMVB upon the 
expiration of this season’s permits due to the impacts as outlined by Aline Planning, LLC in their letter dated January 18th, 
2018.  Free day use of GPG for employees and guests, construction of a 30-space lot on 161-CR, and continued active 
management of all Town owned lots during projected peak times are factors that will mitigate the loss of the UMVB permit 
area. 

Further, it is recommended that summertime use of UMVB for farmers market vendors be discontinued and require 
vendors to utilize existing town parking infrastructure after unloading their products. 

As with other areas of town, approved and signed construction parking may still occur in this area as well as short term bus 
parking for bands that are performing at the Telluride Conference Center.  

154



A l p i n e  P l a n n i n g ,  L L C  
P.O. Box 654 |  Ridgway, CO  81432 |  970.964.7927  |  alpineplanningllc@gmail.com  
 

 

 

 

January 18, 2018 
 
 
Mountain Village Parking and Transportation Committee 
455 Mountain Village Blvd., Ste. A 
Mountain Village, CO  81435 
 

Sent via Email to:  jloebe@mtnvillage.org 
 

 
Dear Committee Members, 
 
My firm represents David and Lynette Wyler who are the owners of Lot 89-2B that is located at 667 
Mountain Village Boulevard (“Property”) as shown in Figure 1.  This letter is in regards to the 
Committee’s discussion of employee parking on Upper Mountain Village Blvd.  The Wyler’s are 
proposing to construct a new home on the Property starting in the spring.  The Property is located in 
the Single-family Zone District. 
 
The Town did not permit parking on Mountain Village Boulevard with “No Parking” signs clearly 
posted when the Wyler’s bought the Property during the summer of 2017.  They were shocked to see 
that the Town permitted employee parking along Upper Mountain Village Boulevard after their 
purchase without any notice of this decision. 
 
The Wyler’s are very concerned about the negative and adverse impacts of parking wrapping around 
the Property and their planned home as shown in Figure 1.  The parking is a significant concern of the 
Wyler’s due to the increased activity, noise, loss of privacy, security concerns, adverse impacts on 
property values, and a decrease in quality of life due to having intensive parking uses wrapping around 
and through a residential area.  The Town does not permit parking on roads anywhere else in 
Mountain Village due to the same issues and concerns of the Wyler’s.  The Wyler’s therefore want 
their property to have the same and equal treatment as other single-family zoned properties in 
Mountain Village with permanent or semi-permanent parking prohibited on all Town roads. 
 
I spoke with Finn Kjome, Public Works Director, about the history of parking on Upper Mountain 
Village Boulevard and he indicated that such parking was originally approved by the Mountain Village 
Metropolitan District quite some time ago.  Therefore, the Parking and Transportation Committee 
and Town Council should revisit and eliminate this parking permanently, except for construction 
parking or special event parking that may be periodically approved by the Town Council for festival or 
special event parking. 
 

155

ALPINE 
Pl A '-J(~ 

mailto:jloebe@mtnvillage.org


The new Lot 161C-R Parking Lot, free Gondola Garage Parking, parking in Hotel Madeline and other 
Town managed parking lots, the gondola system, and expansion of mass transit in the region provide 
the town with great parking and transportation infrastructure.  There is no need for parking on Upper 
Mountain Village Boulevard.  If and when parking demand increases beyond the capacity of the 
current parking garages and lots, the Town should push for more mass transit alternatives, charge for 
parking to control peak demand, or plan to expand the Gondola Parking Garage as designed and 
planned. 
 
We respectfully request that the Parking and Transportation Committee make a recommendation to 
the Town Council that parking be prohibited on all Town roads unless and except for special events or 
construction parking.  This should be an amendment into the Municipal Code so that parking in rights-
of-ways outside of special events or construction parking cannot occur. 
 
Thank you for your time and consideration. 
 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Chris Hawkins, AICP 
Alpine Planning, LLC 

156---



Figure 1 
 

 
 
 

157

Approx. On
Street 
Parking Area 
(Red Line) 



Telluride Mountain Club 
PO Box 1201 
Telluride, CO 81435 

Town of Mountain Village 
C/O Jim Loebe  
455 Mountain Village Blvd., Suite A 
Mountain Village, CO 81435 

February 6, 2018 

Dear Jim and Mountain Village Town Council, 

Telluride Mountain Club (TMtC) is seeking $10,000 from the Town of Mountain Village to 
implement our proposed Trails Sustainability Plan and aid in the creation of a Trails 
Sustainability Document in 2018.  

The Trails Sustainability Plan is a stewardship program that has the goal of maintaining and 
restoring local trails experiencing high use from outdoor enthusiasts (including: locals, second 
homeowners and tourists alike), while also educating and promoting ethical recreational use 
and conserving natural habitats for future generations. The key pieces of this plan include: 
● Trails Maintenance & Volunteer Coordination
● Trails Planning, Proposals & Mapping
● Group Trails-Related Events
● Via Ferrata Planning & Reporting

The Trails Sustainability Document will outline the future of trails in the Telluride region over 
the course of the next five plus years. This document will be shared with Telluride and 
Mountain Village entities on an ongoing basis to make sure everyone is on board and let aware 
of what we are planning. TMtC anticipates the document to include:  

• Trails Planning: Mapping & Proposals
• Future Stewardship Programs (to include Trail Maintenance)
• Potential Trail Funding Partners, Initiatives and Grants
• Future Public Trail Events
• Trail Software (Inclusive Trail Map & App)
• Trails Signage
• Future Via Ferrata Planning and Reporting
• Trails Timeline

Agenda Item 17

158

BOX 1201 · TELLURIDE , CO 81435 TELLURIDEMOUNTAINCLUB.ORG 



The Trails Sustainability Plan and Document will address the Telluride region (Telluride south to 
Lizard Head Pass and west to Placerville) for the time being. We hope to establish one all-
inclusive trails plan with the entire county (to include the West End) in the future. 

Telluride Mountain Club anticipates our 2018 Trails and Via Ferrata budgets to be the following: 

Trails (Total = $55,100): 
Trails

Trails Coordinator (Mtn. Air Media) $11,000

ESRI and Blue Door Mapping Fees $4,000

True North Mapping Fees $3,600

Trails Sustainability Plan 
Document $14,000

Trails Map & App $6,000

GPS Coordinates of Trails $3,000

Land Surveying Assistance $3,000

Tools, Signs, etc. $1,500

Website (trails information) $1,500

Trail Maintenance $7,000

Insurance (group hikes) $500

Via Ferrata (Total = $27,000):  

Via Ferrata

Preliminary Engineering $0

Hardware Upgrades $10,000

Final Engineering Report $10,000

Foot Bridge Design $5,000

Travel for USFS 
Meetings $2,000

Please refer to the attached 2018 budget for totals and specifics. 

159

BOX 1201 · TELLURIDE , CO 81435 TELLURIDEMOUNTAINCLUB.ORG 



In July 2017, TMtC submitted the Telluride region’s first trails proposal to various stakeholders. 
This proposal included seven trails, reroutes, and connector trails which can be found here: 
http://www.telluridemountainclub.org/summer-2017-trails-proposal/. This was the first step to 
understanding our region and the trails that will be required to bring our trails system up to 
current day connectivity standards. This conceptual plan is a living document that will be 
updated during the Trails Sustainability Plan project.  

The Telluride region is home to over 200 miles of trails spread over a patchwork of land owned 
by the United States Forest Service (USFS), San Miguel County, Town of Telluride, Town of 
Mountain Village, and privately held parcels. Currently, there is no entity coordinating with all 
the stakeholders to keep communication open surrounding trails, to identify collaborations, 
and to improve our trail system for future generations. Each individual entity is doing a good 
job of managing their own trails and needs, but there is very little communication and 
coordination among stakeholders. Telluride Mountain Club is proposing to take on this 
coordination role by planning for the long-term and implementing in the short-term with 
monetary support from regional entities. 

The Town of Mountain Village will benefit from TMtC’s Trails Sustainability Plan and Trails 
Sustainability Plan Document through a better connected and planned out trails system. This 
will allow more cyclists, hikers and trail runners to link trails via Mountain Village. This will in 
turn create a positive economic impact through restaurant, retail and lodging sales. A trails 
system that connects through Mountain Village also has the ability to increase home values.   

A well thought out, planned and executed trail system will be around forever with the intention 
that locals, second homeowners and tourists use this system well into the future. TMtC has 
already received funding from San Miguel County and is actively asking for funding from the 
Town of Telluride, SMART, and the Telluride Tourism Board in addition to the Town of 
Mountain Village.   

The Telluride Mountain Club Board of Directors looks forward to your feedback. 

Thank you for your consideration, 

Tor Anderson 

Tor Anderson 
Telluride Mountain Club 
www.telluridemountainclub.org 

160

BOX 1201 · TELLURIDE , CO 81435 TELLURIDEMOUNTAINCLUB.ORG 



Telluride Mountain Club
2018 BUDGET

2018 Budget
INCOME
Memberships $9,000
Merchandise sales $3,500
Climbing wall fees $5,200
Raffle tickets/auction items at fundraisers $2,000
Grants
  Telluride Foundation $12,000
  CCASE Grant $2,700
  Dalton Family Foundation $1,000
  Access Fund $200
  Telluride Gives (climbing wall) $500
  Telluride Ski Resort $2,500
  San Miguel County $10,000
  Town of Telluride $10,000
  Town of Mountain Village $10,000
  New Grants $5,000
Donations

  Miscellaneous Donations $6,500
  Fundraising Mailer $18,000
  Via Ferrata Donations $20,000

Events Sponsorships $5,000
Refunds $900
Miscellaneous $200

Total Income $124,200

EXPENSES
Mountain Air Media (contract staff) $8,000
Bookkeeper, Tax Accountant $4,000
Strategic Planning Facilitator $0
Climbing Wall
  Wall monitor (wages/employment taxes) $4,000
  Administrative (Mtn. Air Media) $500
  Route setter (wages/employment taxes) $800
  Workmans Comp Insurance $450
  Climbing Wall Rent to THS $1,620
  Key Deposit $250
  Frontdesk Software $360
  Self Belay Systems Maintenance Costs $100
  Equipment (holds, ropes, bolts, quickdraws) $1,500
  Advertising, Supplies, etc. $100
Climbing Anchors & Bolts $200
Website $1,500
Software Licenses $750
Trails
  Trails Coordinator (Mtn. Air Media) $11,000
  ESRI and Blue Door Mapping Fees $4,000
  True North Mapping Fees $3,600
  Trails Sustainability Plan Document $14,000
      Trails Map & App $6,000
      GPS Coordinates of Trails $3,000
  Land Surveying Assistance $3,000
  Tools, Signs, etc. $1,500
  Website (trails information) $1,500
  Trail Maintenance $7,000
  Insurance (group hikes) $500 2018 Trails total = $55,100
Merchandise (t-shirts, hats, etc.) $5,000
Fundraising Mailer $4,000
Events
  Film Festival at Opera House $1,500
  Summer Barbeque $3,200
  Adopt-a-crag $200
  Climbing Event (beer night) $200
Via Ferrata 
  Preliminary Engineering $0
  Hardware Upgrades $10,000
  Final Engineering Report $10,000
  Foot Bridge Design $5,000
  Travel for USFS Meetings $2,000 2018 Via Ferrata total = $27,000
Travel $150
Insurance $1,200
Board Meetings $120
PO Box Rent $60
Supplies $100
Office Rent $0
Miscellaneous $100

Total Expenses $122,060

Net Income $2,140

161



A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE MOUNTAIN VILLAGE, 
COLORADO, SUPPORTING LEGISLATION TO PROTECT THE 

ENVIRONMENT AND REDUCE PUBLIC LIABILITIES RELATIVE TO 
MINING ACTIVITIES 

RESOLUTION NO. 2018-0215- 

RECITALS: 

A. The Town Council of the Town of Mountain Village, Colorado, and residents of
Mountain Village, agree that water bodies, streams and rivers should be
adequately protected; and that the local economy has benefitted from the
protection of the watershed and the environment; and

B. Colorado’s rivers and streams have been impacted by historic mining activities
that were not conducted in an environmentally protective manner, including the
San Miguel River as it runs through the Telluride Valley; and

C. Our town government and community has worked successfully and cooperatively
through the years with many partners to support reclamation and restoration
activities in the San Miguel River watershed; and

D. Sound and reasonable mining regulations that protect the public interest and
require future mines to conduct operations in a manner that does not cause a
public fiscal burden is in the best interests of the people of Colorado; and

E. The State of Colorado should have all reasonable authorities and powers to
require adequate financial assurances and guarantees from mining operators so
that the costs of reclamation and protecting water quality do not fall on the public;
and

F. Mines that cannot operate in a manner that will not permanently impair water
supplies, rivers and streams should not be permitted in the future; and

G. The Colorado General Assembly should pass a bill that will provide the State of
Colorado with the authority to require adequate financial assurances to protect
both water quality and the public, and provide for the treatment of mine water and
maintenance of water treatment plants; and
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF

THE TOWN OF MOUNTAIN VILLAGE, COLORADO as follows: The Town 
Council of the Town of Mountain Village, Colorado, hereby expresses its support of 
changes to the Colorado Mined Land Reclamation Act that implement these protections 
and urges the Colorado General Assembly to adopt them as law. 

RESOLVED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED by a majority of the Town 
Council of the Town of Mountain Village, Colorado at its regular meeting on February 
15, 2018. 

Agenda Item 18

162---



TOWN OF MOUNTAIN VILLAGE, 
COLORADO, a home rule municipality 

By:______________________________ 
       Laila Benitez, Mayor  

ATTEST: 

By:_______________ __________________ 
      Jackie Kennefick, Town Clerk

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

By:__________________________________ 
James Mahoney, Assistant Town Attorney 

163---



20a. 
Town of Mountain Village 

HUMAN RESOURCES DEPARTMENT 
Biannual Report to Town Council 

August 2017 – January 2018 

We make Mountain Village a great place to live, work & visit. 

HUMAN RESOURCES STAFF: 
Corrie McMills, HR Coordinator 
Sue Kunz, HR Director      

SUMMARY 

• 5% decrease to 2018 medical premiums; NO INCREASE to medical premiums for 2000

• 2018 PSPC Compensation Study was implemented January 1

• The Employee Housing Program now provides seven furnished housing units for up to fourteen seasonal TMV
employees at Village Court Apartments.

• 59% of our workforce now lives in Telluride/ Mountain Village.

• Due to the extended hours and longer gondola season, seasonal employees will be eligible for health
insurance in 2019 due to the Affordable Care Act (ACA).

DEPARTMENT GOALS 

1. Administer and enforce town policies in compliance with state/federal laws and town goals
2. Assure compliance with the town’s drug & alcohol policies in compliance with DOT regulations and oversee drug

and alcohol testing collection.
3. Promote the town’s commitment to environmental sustainability to employees and applicants.
4. Prepare and stay within the HR department’s approved budget.
5. Maintain accurate personnel files in compliance with the Colorado Retention Schedule and ensure accurate

information for payroll
6. Assist management with timely and lawful recruitment processes to maintain proper staffing levels and reduce

turnover.
7. Oversee the Safety Committee, workers compensation, and safety programs to provide a safe workplace and

minimize workplace injuries
8. Administer attractive benefits and compensation package to attract and retain high-performing, well-qualified,

happy employees
9. Assist management with evaluating staff, performance documentation and conducting performance reviews.

Assist with succession planning.
10. Coordinate staff training, professional development and employee appreciation/recognition opportunities.

Continue to develop succession planning.

PERFORMANCE MEASURES 

1. Policy administration & enforcement
Annually update employee handbook, policies and procedures.  Continue ongoing communication/training with
MSEC, CIRSA, and Pinnacol regarding policies & procedures.  Review unemployment claims, workers
compensation claims, and personnel actions

• Handbook updated and attached for town council approval (February 15, 2018)

2. Drug testing administration
All required drug & alcohol testing is complete.

164



Complete pre-employment testing for all new hires; ensure random, reasonable suspicion, and complete post-
accident testing as appropriate with all associated paperwork in compliance with the DOT and non-DOT policies; 
conduct required training for employees and supervisors.  Oversee on site drug and alcohol testing collection. 

• Participated in FTA Drug & Alcohol Program Manager Training (April 2017)

• Successfully completed Drug & Alcohol Site Audit (September 2017)

• Drug & Alcohol Policy- Safety Sensitive Employees- updated and approved by town council on December
14, 2017 to include required FTA changes.

• HR Coordinator is collector certified and continues to do most drug testing in-house.

DRUG & ALCOHOL TESTING 

positive tests 

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004 

marijuana  0 2 2 4 2 1 2 2 2 2 8 5 4 4 

opiates 

cocaine 1 1 1 1 1 

amphetamines 1 

total  0 2 2 4 2 1 0 3 2 2 2 9 6 5 6 

3. Environmental Initiatives
Provide ongoing employee education, policies and programs to encourage a culture of responsible
environmental stewardship in employee orientations, recruiting, and monthly newsletters.  Work with the
Green Team’s efforts for town employees

• Promoted in recruiting and new hire information

• Annual town clean-up day (May 2018)

• Annual Environmental Award given to employees

4. Fiscal Responsibility
Department year end expenditure totals do not exceed the adopted budget.  Actively seek opportunities to
optimize financial costs when making decisions.

5. Personnel Recordkeeping
Maintain all employee files in accordance with the record retention schedule and audit compliance.   Process all
new hire paperwork on or before the first day of work.

• New hires can receive paperwork electronically prior to orientation

• HR Coordinator conducts one-on-one new hire orientation with all employees

6. Recruitment
Assist management with hiring process and seek creative ways to reduce turnover and attract quality
employees.  Oversee the employee housing program.

• 62% full time employees > 40 years old (63 employees)

• 59% of employees live in Mountain Village/ Telluride

165



• Affordable Care Act (ACA) challenges
o Employees that work more than 1560 hours qualify for health care the following year
o Limits ability to work overtime
o In 2019, due to the extended hours and longer gondola season, more employees will be eligible

for health insurance

1%

12%

32%

21%

22%

16%

Employees by Age (FTYR)
*43% are over age 50

*average age is 45

>70

60-69

50-59

40-49

30-39

20-29

Cortez
4%

Montrose
15%

Mountain 
Village

24%

Norwood
14%

Placerville
2%

Rico 
1%

Ridgway
4%

Shiprock, NM
1%

Telluride
35%

Commuting Employees

Cortez Montrose Mountain Village Norwood Placerville Rico Ridgway Shiprock, NM Telluride

12%

7%

13%

16%
51%

Average Years of Service
Full time, year round employees

2017 Average: 7.8 years
2016 Average: 5.8 years
2015 Average: 5.7 years

>20  years

>15  years

>10  years

> 5 years

< 5 years

1
2 2

6

1
3

5
4

0
2
4
6
8

Reasons for Termination
Full time, year round

166

• • • 

• 
• 
• 
• 
• 

• • • • • • 

• 
• 
• 
• 
• 

• 



• Effective January 1, 2017, gondola operations has a Transit Coordinator primarily responsible for
recruiting, hiring and training

• Gondola fill-in supervisors training program provides a succession plan for open supervisor positions

• Seasonal gondola operator positions are promoted to full time, year round employees

• The Employee Housing Program, developed by the HR Coordinator, provides seven furnished housing
units for up to fourteen seasonal TMV employees at Village Court Apartments.

• Lieutenant Redmond attended Florida police officer recruiting conference

• Child care education requirements have increased (both teachers and directors).  Mountain Village
assists with education expenses and provides pay increases for completing certification levels

7. Safety
Oversee the monthly safety committee meetings, safety inspections, and safety & loss control programs.
Process workers compensation claims, investigate accidents and coordinate with management to implement
safety measures.  Administer safety incentives for an accident free workplace (to include 1-yr accident free
awards, team safety bucks, & lottery tickets).  Utilize the return to work program after injuries. Conduct Motor
Vehicle Record reviews annually.

Workers Compensation 
CIRSA premium quote for 2018 = $298,000 
Pinnacol premium for 2018 = $214,232 

2018 Dividends so far ($77,160) 

• Deductible Discount ($2500):  $13,200

• Cost Containment Certification: $11,700

• Experience modification (MOD): $31,200

• Premium discount: $21,060

2017 CIRSA audit score:  93% 

• Safety Committee distributes employee incentives include one-year accident free awards, bi-monthly
Mountain Village Safety Bucks and monthly hard hat drawing.

• Safety training is being updated with the 2018 CIRSA revised Loss Control Standards

11

8

16

8

0
0

5

10

15

20

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 YTD

Workers Compensation 
Number of Claims

0.86
0.83

0.74 0.75

0.65

0.7

0.75

0.8

0.85

0.9

2014 2015 2016 2017

Workers Compensation 
Modifier Rate (MOD) 

167



8. Compensation & Benefits Administration
Administer all benefit programs and assist employees in program utilization.
Conduct an annual review of compensation and benefits and look to reduce benefit expenses.
Coordinate the annual employee appreciation picnic, regular employee potlucks, employee recreation day, and
other employee appreciation programs.
Conduct annual employee satisfaction survey.

• 5% DECREASE to 2018 health insurance premiums; (NO INCREASE to premiums in 2017 either)

• Implemented 2018 Compensation Study as recommended by Public Sector Personnel Consultants on
January 1.

• HR will attend Colorado Compensation Briefing (June 28, 2018)

Employee Recognition: 
Great service awards awarded monthly 
Annual employee appreciation picnic – tentatively scheduled for June 13, 2018 
Employee Summer Recreation Day – September 20, 2017 
Employee Winter Recreation Day- January 24, 2017 
Employee holiday potlucks  

$10,373 $9,940

$15,733
$13,178

$9,780

$0
$0

$5,000

$10,000

$15,000

$20,000

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
YTD

Workers Compensation
Claims Costs

$225,405

$240,955

$213,452
$210,156

$190,000

$200,000

$210,000

$220,000

$230,000

$240,000

$250,000

2014 2015 2016 2017

Workers Compensation 
Annual Premiums

168

file://///SERVER-TH1/data/Users/HR/Benefit%20Book-%20see%20Ultipro.%20My%20Company.Company%20Info/Great%20Service%20Awards/Great%20Service%20Awards%202017.pdf


Employee Survey ACTION PLAN: 

1. Leadership is a recurring theme.   Supervisor/ Manager Coaching & Teambuilding Training is being held on Mar 20-21.  (follow
up training on May 16, 2018)

2. Review the PTO plan (in particular, the first few years and holidays)
3. Safety training is being updated in conjunction with CIRSA’s updated 2018 Loss Control Standards
4. Safety committee topic:  Noise/ hearing protection
5. Safety committee topic: energy conservation and recycling- what can we do to differently in your department?

Future survey questions: 
What can we do differently to provide a better work/ life balance? 
What additional training would you like to see offered in your department? 
What can we do differently to encourage efficient energy use and proper recycling in your department? 

9. Performance Management
Provide ongoing supervisor training on evaluating and documenting employee performance.  Continue to re-
evaluate goals and performance measures annually and align with town goals.  Conduct performance reviews
annually for all year round employees; conduct end-of-season reviews for all seasonal employees

• 2018 employee goals and job descriptions were updated January 31, 2018

• End of season reviews conducted March 2017 and October 2017

• Annual reviews conducted December 2017

• Annual merit increases are based on performance ratings

10. Employee Professional Development & Training
Conduct new employee orientation for all employees.  Schedule employee meetings and ongoing training
regarding guest service, safety, policies, and benefits.   Assist with succession planning.

2018 Leadership & Teambuilding training - March 20-21  
With over 43% of staff over age 50 we are emphasizing succession planning.   The upcoming supervisor/manager 
training focuses on how to develop staff to their greatest potential.   It hits hard on working with generational 
differences/ millennials.  There will be a follow up to this training on May 16th. 

2017 Trainings 
Spring Gondola Orientation – May 15-18, 2017 
Drug & Alcohol Training – May 16, 2017 & November 2017 (DOT requirement) 
Town Cleanup Day –May 24, 2017 
Microsoft Outlook Tips & Tricks – July 19, 2017 
Hazardous Operations (CIRSA) - July 25, 2017 
Office Ergonomics (CIRSA) – July 25, 2017 
BAT Breathalyzer Training (MVPD) – July 25, 2017 
Workzone Safety/ Flagger Certification (CIRSA) – July 26, 2017 
Conflict Resolution/ SMRHA (Gregg Piburn) – July 26, 2017 
Safety Committee Development (CIRSA) July 26, 2017 
Defensive Driver (CIRSA) – July 27, 2017 
First Aid for Mental Health – Sept 13-14, 2017 
CDOT Flagger Certification – September 14, 2017 
Fall Gondola Orientation –Nov. 6-8, 2017 
Drug & Alcohol Training – November 7, 2017 (DOT requirement) 
Reasonable Suspicion Training for Supervisors – December 6, 2017 

2018 Trainings 
Writing Goals 101 – January 17, 2018 
Harassment Training (Gondola Operations) – January 8-12, 2018 
First Aid for Mental Health (Tri-County Health Network) - February 13, 2018 
Coaching & Teambuilding for Supervisors – March 20-21, 2018 
Follow up to Supervisor Training – May 16, 2018 

169



Annual Employee Satisfaction Survey  
• 44 employees completed the survey 

• 91% of employees stated that they were overall ‘satisfied’ or ‘very satisfied’ with town 
employment 

 

Overall, how satisfied are you with the town as an employer? 

 
 

 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 
very dissatisfied 2% 0% 0% 3% 0% 0% 10% 2% 

dissatisfied 0% 3% 7% 7% 8% 15% 4% 16% 

neither 6% 8% 5% 10% 8% 10% 4% 39% 

satisfied 55% 62% 59% 53% 58% 54% 70% 30% 

very satisfied 36% 28% 29% 27% 25% 21% 12% 14% 

Comments:   

1. It would help if there was consistency in the rules across departments. 
2. I have enjoyed very much my time working for the town and am grateful for the peaceful work 

environment and friendly associates 
3. Not being able to use PTO is kinda lame 
4. Potlucks have been few and far between 
5. Lumping all vacations, sick leave, etc. is tight for the first few years 

2%

0%

6%

55%

36%

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80%

very dissatisfied

dissatisfied

neither

satisfied

very satisfied

2011

2012

2013

2014

2015

2016

2017

2018

170

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 



6. I would love to have paid holidays or at least the option to take the day unpaid instead of having 
to use PTO 

7. I think Mountain Village offers a great benefits package which is the main thing holding me. 
8. There are monthly great service awards? 
9. We could use some more heat sources in Station 1 
10. More focus on energy conservation and proper recycling techniques maybe provide h.q. reusable 

hearing protection 
11. Great place to be employed 
12. When co-workers utilize speaker phones it can be distracting 
13. Excessive use of lights at shop, other departments should be held responsible to maintain all areas 

and vehicles to the same standard the rest practice, organization for safety and punctuality in job.  
Remodel bathrooms and lunch rooms for more hygienic standards. 

14. Best supervision I’ve ever had 
15. More human resources/ customer service training is essential to meet expectations 
16. I feel that the town gives special treatment to homosexuals 
17. Changes that affect me are very short notice 
18. Lack of communication from the deciders to the do’ers, rush last minute to accommodate the 

needs of a project, lack of consulting from opinions within importance in regard to projects or 
changes, lack of details within projects, not everybody is on the same page at beginning or 
throughout causing extra work that’s rushed 

19. I would be very candid with my concerns before referring a friend 

 

171---



35.71% 15

54.76% 23

7.14% 3

0.00% 0

2.38% 1

Q1 Overall, how satisfied are you with the town as an employer?
Answered: 42 Skipped: 2

TOTAL 42

very
satisfied

satisfied neither
satisfied nor
dissatisfied

dissatisfied very
dissatisfied

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

35.71%

35.71%

35.71%

35.71%

35.71%

35.71%

35.71%

54.76%

54.76%

54.76%

54.76%

54.76%

54.76%

54.76%

7.14%

7.14%

7.14%

7.14%

7.14%

7.14%

7.14%
2.38%

2.38%

2.38%

2.38%

2.38%

2.38%

2.38%

ANSWER CHOICES RESPONSES

very satisfied

satisfied

neither satisfied nor dissatisfied

dissatisfied

very dissatisfied

1 / 14

Employee Satisfaction Survey 2018 SurveyMonkey

172



Q2 FULL TIME YEAR ROUND BENEFITS: How satisfied are you with the
benefits offered? If you do not utilize a particular benefit, please select

n/a.
Answered: 44 Skipped: 0

52.27%
23

36.36%
16

4.55%
2

0.00%
0

0.00%
0

6.82%
3

 
44

43.18%
19

40.91%
18

6.82%
3

0.00%
0

0.00%
0

9.09%
4

 
44

38.10%
16

38.10%
16

4.76%
2

0.00%
0

0.00%
0

19.05%
8

 
42

56.82%
25

29.55%
13

6.82%
3

0.00%
0

0.00%
0

6.82%
3

 
44

50.00%
22

18.18%
8

4.55%
2

0.00%
0

0.00%
0

27.27%
12

 
44

36.36%
16

15.91%
7

9.09%
4

0.00%
0

0.00%
0

38.64%
17

 
44

56.82%
25

29.55%
13

9.09%
4

0.00%
0

0.00%
0

4.55%
2

 
44

9.38%
3

3.13%
1

0.00%
0

0.00%
0

0.00%
0

87.50%
28

 
32

61.36%
27

27.27%
12

4.55%
2

0.00%
0

0.00%
0

6.82%
3

 
44

34.88%
15

11.63%
5

2.33%
1

2.33%
1

2.33%
1

46.51%
20

 
43

33.33%
14

16.67%
7

11.90%
5

0.00%
0

2.38%
1

35.71%
15

 
42

20.93%
9

30.23%
13

13.95%
6

2.33%
1

0.00%
0

32.56%
14

 
43

45.45%
20

38.64%
17

6.82%
3

2.27%
1

2.27%
1

4.55%
2

 
44

40.91%
18

40.91%
18

6.82%
3

4.55%
2

0.00%
0

6.82%
3

 
44

50.00%
22

40.91%
18

2.27%
1

2.27%
1

0.00%
0

4.55%
2

 
44

25.58%
11

27.91%
12

16.28%
7

0.00%
0

0.00%
0

30.23%
13

 
43

44.19%
19

20.93%
9

16.28%
7

0.00%
0

0.00%
0

18.60%
8

 
43

 VERY
SATISFIED

SATISFIED NEITHER
SATISFIED
NOR
DISSATISFIED

DISSATISFIED VERY
DISSATISFIED

NOT
APPLICABLE
TO ME (N/A)

TOTAL

health benefits

dental benefits

vision benefits

amount of EMPLOYEE
premium (health, dental,
vision) paid by the town

amount of DEPENDENT
premium (health, dental,
vision) paid by the town

flex spending accounts
(FSA)

PERA (public
employee's retirement
association) in lieu of
social security

FPPA (police only)

wellness reimbursement
program

commuter shuttle
benefits

FMLA  (Family Medical
Leave Act)

holiday pay (time and
1/2 for working
designated holidays)

amount of PTO

401(k) match

employer paid life
insurance ($50,000)

voluntary life insurance

employer paid long term
disability (LTD)

2 / 14

Employee Satisfaction Survey 2018 SurveyMonkey

173



43.18%
19

29.55%
13

11.36%
5

0.00%
0

0.00%
0

15.91%
7

 
44

47.73%
21

29.55%
13

11.36%
5

0.00%
0

0.00%
0

11.36%
5

 
44

13.64%
6

9.09%
4

9.09%
4

0.00%
0

0.00%
0

68.18%
30

 
44

65.12%
28

32.56%
14

2.33%
1

0.00%
0

0.00%
0

0.00%
0

 
43

37.21%
16

25.58%
11

11.63%
5

0.00%
0

0.00%
0

25.58%
11

 
43

38.64%
17

29.55%
13

13.64%
6

2.27%
1

0.00%
0

15.91%
7

 
44

46.51%
20

30.23%
13

11.63%
5

0.00%
0

0.00%
0

11.63%
5

 
43

39.53%
17

25.58%
11

16.28%
7

0.00%
0

4.65%
2

13.95%
6

 
43

0.00%
0

0.00%
0

0.00%
0

0.00%
0

0.00%
0

100.00%
1

 
1

50.00%
22

25.00%
11

15.91%
7

0.00%
0

2.27%
1

6.82%
3

 
44

43.18%
19

34.09%
15

11.36%
5

2.27%
1

2.27%
1

6.82%
3

 
44

45.45%
20

29.55%
13

6.82%
3

2.27%
1

4.55%
2

11.36%
5

 
44

25.00%
11

36.36%
16

25.00%
11

0.00%
0

4.55%
2

9.09%
4

 
44

employer paid
bereavement

employer paid jury duty

employer paid military
leave

direct deposit

EAP (employee
assistance program)

training reimbursement

AFLAC

Employee Service
Awards (5 year, 10
year, 15 year...)

Discounted Peaks Spa
Membership

Employee Recreation
Day  

Annual
Employee Appreciation
Picnic

Employee Monthly
Great Service Awards

Employee Potlucks

3 / 14

Employee Satisfaction Survey 2018 SurveyMonkey

174



Q3 SEASONAL/ PART TIME BENEFITS: How satisfied are you with each
of the benefits offered? If you don't utilize a particular benefit, select n/a

Answered: 29 Skipped: 15

3.45%
1

3.45%
1

0.00%
0

0.00%
0

0.00%
0

93.10%
27

 
29

7.14%
2

3.57%
1

0.00%
0

0.00%
0

0.00%
0

89.29%
25

 
28

0.00%
0

7.14%
2

3.57%
1

0.00%
0

0.00%
0

89.29%
25

 
28

3.70%
1

3.70%
1

0.00%
0

0.00%
0

0.00%
0

92.59%
25

 
27

0.00%
0

7.69%
2

0.00%
0

0.00%
0

0.00%
0

92.31%
24

 
26

0.00%
0

11.54%
3

0.00%
0

0.00%
0

0.00%
0

88.46%
23

 
26

0.00%
0

3.85%
1

3.85%
1

0.00%
0

0.00%
0

92.31%
24

 
26

0.00%
0

3.85%
1

3.85%
1

0.00%
0

0.00%
0

92.31%
24

 
26

0.00%
0

0.00%
0

3.85%
1

0.00%
0

0.00%
0

96.15%
25

 
26

0.00%
0

7.69%
2

3.85%
1

0.00%
0

0.00%
0

88.46%
23

 
26

0.00%
0

7.69%
2

0.00%
0

0.00%
0

0.00%
0

92.31%
24

 
26

3.85%
1

7.69%
2

0.00%
0

0.00%
0

0.00%
0

88.46%
23

 
26

0.00%
0

3.85%
1

3.85%
1

0.00%
0

0.00%
0

92.31%
24

 
26

0.00%
0

3.85%
1

3.85%
1

0.00%
0

0.00%
0

92.31%
24

 
26

0.00%
0

3.85%
1

3.85%
1

0.00%
0

0.00%
0

92.31%
24

 
26

0.00%
0

7.69%
2

0.00%
0

0.00%
0

0.00%
0

92.31%
24

 
26

 VERY
SATISFIED

SATISFIED NEITHER
SATISFIED NOR
DISSATISFIED

DISSATISFIED VERY
DISSATISFIED

N/A TOTAL

end of season bonus

direct deposit

EAP (employee assistance
program)

commuter shuttles

FMLA (family medical
leave)

holiday pay

employer paid jury duty

voluntary life insurance

paid military leave

PERA (public employee's
retirement association)- in
lieu of social security

free ski pass

AFLAC

Discounted Peaks Spa
Membership

Employee Recreation Day

Annual Employee
Appreciation Picnic

Employee Monthly Great
Service Awards

4 / 14

Employee Satisfaction Survey 2018 SurveyMonkey

175



Q4 Compensation
Answered: 44 Skipped: 0

20.93%
9

51.16%
22

16.28%
7

9.30%
4

0.00%
0

2.33%
1

 
43

37.21%
16

48.84%
21

9.30%
4

0.00%
0

0.00%
0

4.65%
2

 
43

very satisfied satisfied neither satisfied nor dissatisfied

dissatisfied very dissatisfied n/a

My pay is fair for the work
that I perform

Overall I'm satisfied with the
town's benefit package

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

 VERY
SATISFIED

SATISFIED NEITHER SATISFIED
NOR DISSATISFIED

DISSATISFIED VERY
DISSATISFIED

N/A TOTAL

My pay is fair for the
work that I perform

Overall I'm satisfied with
the town's benefit
package

5 / 14

Employee Satisfaction Survey 2018 SurveyMonkey

176

• • • • • 
------

• 



Q5 My job (if a question does not apply, please select n/a)
Answered: 44 Skipped: 0

38.64%
17

45.45%
20

11.36%
5

2.27%
1

2.27%
1

0.00%
0

 
44

29.55%
13

52.27%
23

4.55%
2

9.09%
4

4.55%
2

0.00%
0

 
44

27.27%
12

50.00%
22

18.18%
8

2.27%
1

2.27%
1

0.00%
0

 
44

18.18%
8

61.36%
27

9.09%
4

2.27%
1

2.27%
1

6.82%
3

 
44

27.27%
12

52.27%
23

11.36%
5

2.27%
1

6.82%
3

0.00%
0

 
44

18.18%
8

52.27%
23

22.73%
10

4.55%
2

2.27%
1

0.00%
0

 
44

22.73%
10

47.73%
21

15.91%
7

9.09%
4

4.55%
2

0.00%
0

 
44

34.09%
15

59.09%
26

4.55%
2

0.00%
0

2.27%
1

0.00%
0

 
44

40.91%
18

45.45%
20

11.36%
5

0.00%
0

2.27%
1

0.00%
0

 
44

 VERY
SATISFIED

SATISFIED NEITHER
SATISFIED NOR
DISSATISFIED

DISSATISFIED VERY
DISSATISFIED

N/A TOTAL

I like the type of work that I do

I am given enough authority to
make decisions that I need to
make

I believe that my job is secure

Deadlines in my department
are realistic

I feel part of a team working
toward a shared goal

I am able to maintain a
reasonable balance between
my work and personal life

My job makes good use of my
skills and abilities

I have a clear understanding of
my job role

I understand the importance of
my job to the success of my
department and to Mountain
Village

6 / 14

Employee Satisfaction Survey 2018 SurveyMonkey

177



Q6 My work environment (if a question does not apply, please select n/a)
Answered: 44 Skipped: 0

45.45%
20

43.18%
19

4.55%
2

2.27%
1

2.27%
1

2.27%
1

 
44

47.73%
21

45.45%
20

4.55%
2

0.00%
0

2.27%
1

0.00%
0

 
44

31.82%
14

45.45%
20

18.18%
8

2.27%
1

2.27%
1

0.00%
0

 
44

34.09%
15

54.55%
24

9.09%
4

0.00%
0

2.27%
1

0.00%
0

 
44

38.64%
17

50.00%
22

4.55%
2

2.27%
1

4.55%
2

0.00%
0

 
44

27.27%
12

50.00%
22

15.91%
7

4.55%
2

2.27%
1

0.00%
0

 
44

40.91%
18

50.00%
22

4.55%
2

2.27%
1

2.27%
1

0.00%
0

 
44

47.73%
21

50.00%
22

0.00%
0

0.00%
0

2.27%
1

0.00%
0

 
44

31.82%
14

43.18%
19

18.18%
8

4.55%
2

2.27%
1

0.00%
0

 
44

29.55%
13

45.45%
20

15.91%
7

6.82%
3

2.27%
1

0.00%
0

 
44

52.27%
23

40.91%
18

4.55%
2

0.00%
0

2.27%
1

0.00%
0

 
44

 VERY
SATISFIED

SATISFIED NEITHER
SATISFIED
NOR
DISSATISFIED

DISSATISFIED VERY
DISSATISFIED

N/A TOTAL

safety is a high priority in my
department

customer service is a high
priority in my department

protecting the environment is a
high priority in my department

my physical working conditions
are good

my general work area is
adequately lit and clean

there is adequate noise control
to allow me to focus on my work

I feel physically safe in my work
environment

the town provides adequate
facilities for recycling (glass,
plastic, aluminum, paper,
cardboard, compost) in my
department

energy efficiency is a high
priority in my department

my department always practices
efficient use of natural resources
(fuel, water, electricity, natural
gas, heat)

I am willing to recycle waste and
conserve energy in the
workplace to help the town
reach its Zero Waste and Energy
Efficiency goals

7 / 14

Employee Satisfaction Survey 2018 SurveyMonkey

178



Q7 My relationship with my immediate supervisor
Answered: 44 Skipped: 0

52.27%
23

38.64%
17

6.82%
3

0.00%
0

2.27%
1

0.00%
0

 
44

43.18%
19

38.64%
17

13.64%
6

2.27%
1

2.27%
1

0.00%
0

 
44

45.45%
20

29.55%
13

18.18%
8

4.55%
2

2.27%
1

0.00%
0

 
44

45.45%
20

34.09%
15

15.91%
7

2.27%
1

2.27%
1

0.00%
0

 
44

40.91%
18

40.91%
18

13.64%
6

2.27%
1

0.00%
0

2.27%
1

 
44

45.45%
20

36.36%
16

11.36%
5

2.27%
1

2.27%
1

2.27%
1

 
44

38.64%
17

31.82%
14

25.00%
11

4.55%
2

0.00%
0

0.00%
0

 
44

45.45%
20

38.64%
17

4.55%
2

6.82%
3

2.27%
1

2.27%
1

 
44

43.18%
19

40.91%
18

11.36%
5

2.27%
1

0.00%
0

2.27%
1

 
44

 VERY
SATISFIED

SATISFIED NEITHER
SATISFIED NOR
DISSATISFIED

DISSATISFIED VERY
DISSATISFIED

N/A TOTAL

my supervisor treats me
fairly and with respect

my supervisor handles my
work related issues
satisfactorily

my supervisor handles my
personal issues
satisfactorily

my supervisor
acknowledges me when I
do my work well

my supervisor tells me
when my work needs
improvement

my supervisor is open to
hearing my opinion or
feedback

my supervisor helps me
develop to my fullest
potential

I can trust what my
supervisor tells me

my peers treat me fairly
and with respect

8 / 14

Employee Satisfaction Survey 2018 SurveyMonkey

179



Q8 Training & Development
Answered: 44 Skipped: 0

25.00%
11

50.00%
22

11.36%
5

11.36%
5

2.27%
1

0.00%
0

 
44

29.55%
13

47.73%
21

11.36%
5

9.09%
4

2.27%
1

0.00%
0

 
44

31.82%
14

54.55%
24

9.09%
4

2.27%
1

2.27%
1

0.00%
0

 
44

20.45%
9

43.18%
19

27.27%
12

4.55%
2

2.27%
1

2.27%
1

 
44

20.45%
9

45.45%
20

25.00%
11

2.27%
1

2.27%
1

4.55%
2

 
44

13.64%
6

34.09%
15

27.27%
12

6.82%
3

4.55%
2

13.64%
6

 
44

13.64%
6

36.36%
16

25.00%
11

11.36%
5

4.55%
2

9.09%
4

 
44

20.93%
9

41.86%
18

18.60%
8

9.30%
4

4.65%
2

4.65%
2

 
43

 VERY
SATISFIED

SATISFIED NEITHER
SATISFIED
NOR
DISSATISFIED

DISSATISFIED VERY
DISSATISFIED

N/A TOTAL

the town provide as much
initial training as I needed to
provide high quality service

the town provided as much
on-going training as i need to
provide high quality service

the town provides enough
information, equipment, and
resources I need to do my job
well

the town clearly tells me what
is expected for advancement

I trust what the town tells me
it takes to advance my career

the town has provided
training or experiences to
help me explore other
opportunities within the town

there is room for me to
advance at this organization

I trust that if I do good work,
the town will consider me for
a promotion of available

9 / 14

Employee Satisfaction Survey 2018 SurveyMonkey

180



Q9 Town leadership & planning
Answered: 43 Skipped: 1

16.28%
7

46.51%
20

27.91%
12

4.65%
2

2.33%
1

2.33%
1

 
43

18.60%
8

48.84%
21

23.26%
10

4.65%
2

2.33%
1

2.33%
1

 
43

25.58%
11

53.49%
23

9.30%
4

6.98%
3

2.33%
1

2.33%
1

 
43

18.60%
8

39.53%
17

27.91%
12

9.30%
4

2.33%
1

2.33%
1

 
43

20.93%
9

51.16%
22

16.28%
7

4.65%
2

4.65%
2

2.33%
1

 
43

23.26%
10

48.84%
21

13.95%
6

4.65%
2

6.98%
3

2.33%
1

 
43

23.26%
10

46.51%
20

11.63%
5

9.30%
4

6.98%
3

2.33%
1

 
43

16.28%
7

27.91%
12

30.23%
13

6.98%
3

6.98%
3

11.63%
5

 
43

21.43%
9

50.00%
21

16.67%
7

4.76%
2

2.38%
1

4.76%
2

 
42

28.57%
12

57.14%
24

11.90%
5

0.00%
0

2.38%
1

0.00%
0

 
42

18.60%
8

55.81%
24

18.60%
8

2.33%
1

2.33%
1

2.33%
1

 
43

13.95%
6

60.47%
26

6.98%
3

9.30%
4

9.30%
4

0.00%
0

 
43

16.28%
7

62.79%
27

16.28%
7

0.00%
0

4.65%
2

0.00%
0

 
43

41.86%
18

51.16%
22

6.98%
3

0.00%
0

0.00%
0

0.00%
0

 
43

11.90%
5

40.48%
17

26.19%
11

16.67%
7

4.76%
2

0.00%
0

 
42

 VERY
SATISFIED

SATISFIED NEITHER
SATISFIED
NOR
DISSATISFIED

DISSATISFIED VERY
DISSATISFIED

N/A TOTAL

I understand the long range
vision of the town

I have confidence in the
leadership of town staff

town managers &
supervisors care about their
employee's well-being

there is adequate planning of
the departmental objectives

the managers/ supervisors of
the town are open to input
from employees

the town's communications
are frequent enough

the town's communications
are detailed enough

I have a good understanding
of how the town is doing
financially

I can trust what the town tells
me

the town treats me like a
person, not a number

the town gives me enough
recognition for work that is
well done

staffing levels are adequate to
provide quality services

I believe there is a spirit of
cooperation with the town

employees are treated fairly
here regardless of race,
gender, age, religion, sexual
orientation,  & disability

changes that affect me are
communicated prior to
implementation

10 / 14

Employee Satisfaction Survey 2018 SurveyMonkey

181



Q10 employment
Answered: 43 Skipped: 1

48.84%
21

46.51%
20

2.33%
1

0.00%
0

2.33%
1

0.00%
0

 
43

55.81%
24

32.56%
14

6.98%
3

0.00%
0

4.65%
2

0.00%
0

 
43

46.51%
20

25.58%
11

13.95%
6

0.00%
0

4.65%
2

9.30%
4

 
43

46.51%
20

39.53%
17

11.63%
5

0.00%
0

2.33%
1

0.00%
0

 
43

very satisfied satisfied neither satisfied nor dissatisfied

dissatisfied very dissatisfied n/a

I am willing to
give extra
effort to help
the town succeed

I plan to
continue my
career with the
town for at...

I am interested
in advancement
with the town if
an opportunit...

I would
recommend
employment with
the town to a...

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

 VERY
SATISFIED

SATISFIED NEITHER
SATISFIED NOR
DISSATISFIED

DISSATISFIED VERY
DISSATISFIED

N/A TOTAL

I am willing to give extra
effort to help the town
succeed

I plan to continue my career
with the town for at least 2
more years

I am interested in
advancement with the town if
an opportunity becomes
available

I would recommend
employment with the town to
a friend

11 / 14

Employee Satisfaction Survey 2018 SurveyMonkey

182

• • • • 

I. -

• • 

I ,._____._______. _ I. -



Q11 Safety Culture
Answered: 44 Skipped: 0

34.09%
15

54.55%
24

11.36%
5

0.00%
0

0.00%
0

 
44

38.64%
17

52.27%
23

9.09%
4

0.00%
0

0.00%
0

 
44

39.53%
17

58.14%
25

2.33%
1

0.00%
0

0.00%
0

 
43

30.23%
13

44.19%
19

11.63%
5

0.00%
0

13.95%
6

 
43

32.56%
14

55.81%
24

9.30%
4

2.33%
1

0.00%
0

 
43

34.88%
15

55.81%
24

6.98%
3

2.33%
1

0.00%
0

 
43

32.56%
14

51.16%
22

13.95%
6

0.00%
0

2.33%
1

 
43

39.53%
17

41.86%
18

13.95%
6

2.33%
1

2.33%
1

 
43

50.00%
21

40.48%
17

4.76%
2

2.38%
1

2.38%
1

 
42

41.86%
18

44.19%
19

13.95%
6

0.00%
0

0.00%
0

 
43

34.88%
15

48.84%
21

11.63%
5

2.33%
1

2.33%
1

 
43

32.56%
14

51.16%
22

11.63%
5

2.33%
1

2.33%
1

 
43

27.91%
12

39.53%
17

25.58%
11

2.33%
1

4.65%
2

 
43

32.56%
14

51.16%
22

11.63%
5

2.33%
1

2.33%
1

 
43

53.49%
23

41.86%
18

4.65%
2

0.00%
0

0.00%
0

 
43

37.21%
16

39.53%
17

16.28%
7

4.65%
2

2.33%
1

 
43

37.21%
16

44.19%
19

11.63%
5

4.65%
2

2.33%
1

 
43

 VERY
SATISFIED

SATISFIED NEITHER
SATISFIED NOR
DISSATISFIED

DISSATISFIED VERY
DISSATISFIED

TOTAL

I get the safety training I need before I
perform a task

I believe safety suggestions are taken
seriously and followed up on

I know the rules and procedures for
safe work in my job

I am provided with the PPE (hard hats,
safety glasses, etc...) that I need

I, or my co-workers, never take short
cuts or disregard safe work
procedures

I am empowered to correct safety
procedures on my own

I am cautioned by my co-workers
when observed working unsafely

My supervisor feels that most
accidents are preventable

My supervisor never directs an
employee to perform a job that he/she
thinks is unsafe

Hazards are identified during
inspections in my department
corrected

Deadlines never override my
supervisor's concern and attention to
safety

Deadlines never override my
supervisor's concern and attention to
safety

My supervisor verbally acknowledges
employees when they perform their
jobs safely

Our accident investigation process
does not seek to place blame on an
individual

Management wants to be informed of
serious accidents

Management is consistent in their
treatment of those violating safety
rules and procedures

Managers and supervisors
consistently follow established safety
rules and procedures

12 / 14

Employee Satisfaction Survey 2018 SurveyMonkey

183



32.56%
14

48.84%
21

16.28%
7

0.00%
0

2.33%
1

 
43

25.58%
11

46.51%
20

25.58%
11

0.00%
0

2.33%
1

 
43

39.53%
17

44.19%
19

16.28%
7

0.00%
0

0.00%
0

 
43

41.86%
18

39.53%
17

16.28%
7

0.00%
0

2.33%
1

 
43

51.16%
22

34.88%
15

11.63%
5

0.00%
0

2.33%
1

 
43

45.24%
19

30.95%
13

16.67%
7

0.00%
0

7.14%
3

 
42

Management supports safety program
efforts with funding and other
resources

Management regularly participates in
safety program activities

Management's view on the
importance of safety is frequently
stressed to employees

Safety Awards: one year accident free

Safety Awards: Mountain Village
safety bucks

Safety Awards: hard hat awards

13 / 14

Employee Satisfaction Survey 2018 SurveyMonkey

184



185

~ ~ \11 N L\ I 
-= ·•'\ .. ::;f •• •.:~ 0• .~•= r - . ._. . I ' ·, I 11 .\ I I 11 

~ ., 
Mental Health First Aid 

Join the movement. 

Take a course. Save a life. 
Strengthen your co.mmunity. 

t· I· I' 1i t ·, \ 1; y 1 ~ ~, , n .. " 111 , \ ,\ 1 I 1 , =. ""I'.\ I 1 , , • • , , .. , .. 
1 
, , . , . • , ., , • . 

., ;;:,.f, 1t "!'< l·\ 1!< \ · 11.1 -\1, J Bl\( 1, r . 11 . i _ 11 , .. ' , ✓ • • 

,\(1 •l' t',j l". \f!-; \. II [ \I, (· 

Adult Mental Health First Aid 
February 13, 2018 

8:00 a.m. - 5:00 p.m. at the Town of 
Mountain Village Town Hall 

To register: 

Call 970-708-7096 

or email info@tchnetwork.org 



186

✓ 

Men,o 20 a.1 

To: Mayor Laila Benitez and Town Council 

From: Sue Kunz, Director Human Resources 

Date: February 20, 2018 

Re: 2017 Employee Handbook Updates 

The Employee Handbook has been updated to reflect the following changes: 

P. 5 Letter from the Town Manager 
'Businesses' has been added to our mission statement: 

The Town of Mountain Village is dedicated to providing exceptional facilities, services, and opportunities, in partnership 
with the community, which will enhance the quality of life for our residents, homeowners, employees, businesses and 
guests. 

P. 20 Medical Insurance 
Legal spouses, which includes civil union partners and their dependent children up to age 26, are eligible for medical 

coverage. 

Employees seeking to add a 'common law spouse' must complete a 'certificate of spouse' form. 

P. 26 Housing Down Payment Assistance Program 
As approved by town council in November 2017, the down payment assistance program now includes purchasing a 

home within the Mountain Village commuter shuttle area (extending to Cortez, Nucla, Ridgway, Montrose, and all 

intervening communities as well as San Miguel County.) 

P. 26 Ski Passes 
Seasonal and part time employees (working a minimum of 20 hours/ week) are eligible for a merchant ski pass. 

Group I, 2, 6, & 7 are eligible to use their Wellness Reimbursement towards a ski pass. 

P. 27 Wellness Reimbursement Program 
Added the existing program to the handbook 
In effort to promote healthy lifestyles for employees, thereby resulting in improved employee productivity, morale 

and healthcare cost savings, the town will reimburse full time, year-round employees up to $895 towards a season 

ski pass or other wellness qualifying items. Eligible employees must be hired prior to January 1. 

P. 38 Communications Systems & Password Policy (refer to the IT Security Policy) 
The following language from the IT Security Policy, as recommended by Todd DeJulio, has replaced the existing handbook 
language for consistency. 



187

Town of Mountain Village is committed to protecting its employees, partners, and the company from illegal or 
damaging actions by individuals, whether committed knowingly or unknowingly. lnternet/intranet/extranet
related systems, including but not limited to computer equipment, software, operating systems, storage media, 
network accounts providing electronic mail, Web browsing, and FTP, are the property of Town of Mountain 
Village. You are expected to use these systems for business purposes in the interests of the company, our clients, 
and our customers in the course of normal operations. Effective security is a team effort involving the participation 
and support of every Town of Mountain Village employee and affiliate who deals with information and/or 
information systems. It is your responsibility as a computer user to know these guidelines, and to act accordingly. 

General Use and Ownership 
1. While Town of Mountain Village's network administration desires to provide a reasonable level of 

privacy, you should be aware that the data you create on corporate systems remains the property of 
Town of Mountain Village. Because of the need to protect Town of Mountain Village's network, 
management does guarantee the confidentiality of information stored on any network device 
belonging to Town of Mountain Village. 

2. You are responsible for exercising good judgment regarding the reasonableness of personal use. 
Individual departments are responsible for creating guidelines concerning personal use of 
lnternet/intranet/extranet systems. In the absence of such policies, you should follow departmental 
policies on personal use, and, if there is any uncertainty, consult your supervisor or manager. 

3. Town of Mountain Village recommends encrypting any information that you consider sensitive or 
vulnerable. For guidelines on information classification, sec the lnformiltion Sensitivity Policy. For 
guidelines on encrypting email and documents, see the Awareness Initiative. 

4. For security and network maintenance purposes, authorized individuals within Town of 
Mountain Village may monitor equipment, systems and network traffic at any time, per the 
Audit Policy. 

Security and Proprietary Information 
1. Keep passwords secure and do not share accounts. As an authorized user, you are 

responsible for the security of your passwords and accounts. Change network system 
level passwords quarterly. 

2. Secure all PCs, laptops and workstations with a password- protected screensaver with the 
automatic activation feature set at 10 minutes or less, or by logging-off (Windows Logo+ L) for 
Win 7 /Win 10 users) when the host will be unattended. 

3. Use extreme caution when opening email attachments received from unknown senders. These 
attachments may contain viruses, email bombs, or Trojan horse code 

Unacceptable Use 
Under no circumstances is an employee of I own of Mountain Village authorized to engage in any activity that 
is illegal under local, state, federal or international law while utilizing Town of Mountain Village-owned 
resources. 
The following activities are strictly prohibited, with no exceptions: 

a) Violations of the rights of any person or company protected by copyright, trade secret, patent 
or other intellectual property, or similar laws or regulations, including, but not limited to, the 
installation or distribution of "pirated" or other software products that are not appropriately 
licensed for use by Town of Mountain Village. 

b) Unauthorized copying of copyrighted material including, but not limited to, digitization and 
distribution of photographs from magazines, books, or other copyrighted sources, copyrighted 
music, and the installation of any copyrighted software for which Town of Mountain Village or 
the end user does not have an active license. 

c) Exporting software, technical information, encryption software or technology, in 
violation of international or regional export control laws. Consult appropriate 
management prior to export of any material that is in question. 

d) Introducing malicious programs into the network or server (e.g., viruses, worms, Trojan 

2 



188

horses, email bombs, etc.). 

e) Revealing your account password to others or allowing use of your account by others. This 

includes family and other household members when working at home. 

f) Using a Town of Mountain Village computing asset to procure or transmit material that is in 

violation of sexual harassment or hostile workplace laws in the user's local jurisdiction. 

g) Making fraudulent offers of products, items, or services originating from any Town of 

Mountain Village account. 

h) Making statements about warranty, expressly or implied, unless it is a part of normal 

job duties. 

i) Effecting security breaches or disruptions of network communication. Security breaches include, 

but are not limited to, accessing data of which you are not an intended recipient or logging into a 

server or account that you are not expressly authorized to access, unless these duties are within 

the scope of regular duties. "Disruption" includes, but is not limited to, network sniffing, pinged 

floods, packet spoofing, denial of service, and forged routing information for malicious 

purposes. 

j) Port scanning or security scanning, unless you previously notify the Town of Mountain 

Village IT Department. 

k) Executing any form of network monitoring that will intercept data not intended for your host, 
unless this activity is a part of your normal duties. 

I) Circumventing user authentication or security of any host, network, or account. 

m) Interfering with, or denying service to, any user other than your host (for example, a 

denial of service attack). 

n) Using any program/script/command, or sending messages of any kind, with the intent to 
interfere with, or disable, a user's terminal session, via any means, locally or via the 

Internet/intra net/ extra net. 

o) Providing information about, or lists of, Town of Mountain Village employees to parties 

outside of Town of Mountain Village departments 

Email and Communications Activities 

The following are strictly prohibited, with no exceptions: 

1. Sending unsolicited email messages, including sending "junk mail" or other advertising material to 

individuals who did not specifically request such material (email spam). 

2. Any form of harassment via email, telephone, or paging, whether through language, 

frequency, or size of messages. 

3. Unauthorized use, or forging, of email header information. 

4. Soliciting email for any other email address, other than that of the poster's account, with the 

intent to harass or collect replies. 

5. Creating or forwarding "chain letters" or "Ponzi" or other "pyramid" schemes of any type. 

6. Using unsolicited email originating from within Town of Mountain Village's networks or other 

lnternet/intranet/extranet service providers on behalf of, or to advertise, any service hosted by Town 
of Mountain Village or connected via Town of Mountain Village's network. 

7. Posting the same or similar non-business-related messages to large numbers of Usenet 

newsgroups (newsgroup spam). 

Enforcement 
Any employee violating this policy may be subject to disciplinary action, up to and including termination of 

employment. 

3 



189

Anti-Virus Policy 
The policy defines standards for protecting Town of Mountain Village's network from any threat related to 
Virus, Worm or Trojan Horse. These standards minimize the potential exposure to Town of Mountain Village 
from damages that may result from and unprotected network. Damages may include the loss of sensitive or 
company confidential data or intellectual property, damage to public image, damage to critical Town of 
Mountain Village internal systems, etc. 

1. Always run the Town of Mountain Village standard, supported anti-virus software. 
2. Never open any files or macros attached to an email from an unknown, suspicious, or un-trusted 

source. Delete these attachments immediately, then "double delete" them by emptying your trash. 
3. Delete spam, chain, and other junk email without forwarding, per Town of Mountain Village's 

Acceptable Use Policy. 
4. Never download files from unknown or suspicious sources. 
5. Avoid direct disk sharing with read/write access unless there is absolutely a business requirement 

to do so. 
6. Always scan a floppy diskette from an unknown source for viruses before using it. 
7. Back up critical data and system configurations regularly and store the data in a safe place. 
8. If lab testing conflicts with anti-virus software, run the anti-virus utility to ensure a clean machine, 

disable the software, and then run the lab test. After the lab test, enable the anti-virus software. When 
the anti-virus software is disabled, do not run any applications that could transfer a virus, e.g., email or 
file sharing. 

9. New vlrnses are dlscovered ain-,ost eve,-y day. Pe,iouicc:1iiy check the company Anti-Virus Poiicy and 
this Recommended Processes list for updates. 

Identity Policy 

1. All employees should receive IT security training 

2. Workstations must be logged off to a point that requires a new log- on whenever employees leave 
their work area. 

3. Any employee who does not access an administrative system in a six months time period will have 
his/her access removed and must be reauthorized for access. 

4. Sharing of IDs is prohibited. 
5. Access managers will (immediately) delete the access of employees who have terminated the 

institution and will modify the access of ones who transfer to (remove capabilities dependent on 
the previous position). 

6. Computer installations running administrative applications will, where possible, provide a 
mechanism that records and logs off a user ID after a specified period of time of inactivity; they will 
also provide a mechanism that locks a user logon ID after multiple unsuccessful attempts to log on. 

Password Policy 

1. Change all network system-level passwords (e.g., application administration accounts, etc.) at least 
quarterly. 

2. Change all user-level passwords (e.g., email, Web, desktop computer, etc.) at least quarterly. 
3. Do not insert passwords into email messages or other forms of electronic communication. 
4. Where using SNMP, define community strings as something other than the standard defaults of 

"public," "private," and "system" and make them different from the passwords used to log in 
interactively. Use a keyed hash where available (e.g., SNMPv2). 

5. If you suspect an account or password has been compromised, report the incident to Town of 
Mountain Village Information Systems department and change all passwords. 

6. Town of Mountain Village or its delegates may perform password cracking or guessing on a periodic 
or random basis. If a password is guessed or cracked during one of these scans, the user is required to 
change it. 

4 



190

Social Networking Policy 
1. Personal biogs should have clear disclaimers that the views expressed by the author in 

the blog is the author's alone and do not represent the views of the company. Be clear 
and write in first person. Make your writing clear that you are speaking for yourself 
and not on behalf of the company. 

2. Information published on your blog(s) should comply with the company's 
confidentiality and disclosure of proprietary data policies. This also applies to 
comments posted on other biogs, forums, and social networking sites. 

3. Be respectful to the company, other employees, customers, partners, and 
competitors. 

4. Social media activities should not interfere with work commitments. Refer to IT 
resource usage policies. 

5. Your online presence reflects the company. Be aware that your actions captured via images, posts, or 
comments can reflect that of our company. 

6. Do not reference or site company clients, partners, or customers without their express consent. In all 
cases, do not publish any information regarding a client during the engagement. 

7. Respect copyright laws, and reference or cite sources appropriately. Plagiarism applies on line as 
well. 

8. Company logos and trademarks may not be used without written consent. 

Enforcement 
Any employee violating the IT Security policy may be subject to disciplinary action, up to and including termination 
of employment. 

P. 47 Parties & Activities 
Employees are paid to attend the Annual Town Picnic and retirement parties for employees with a minimum 
of 10 years of service. Pay for attending any other functions must be approved in advance by the Town 
Manager. 

P. 49 Smoking 
Updated the language to include the 2018 HUD regulations at Village Court Apartments. 
The Town of Mountain Village recognizes that smoking and tobacco chewing in the workplace can adversely 
affect employees and guests and is prohibited. This includes e-cigarettes and all other tobacco products. 
Employees may smoke in designated outdoor areas and are responsible for proper disposal of cigarette 
butts. The time spent away from your job to smoke or chew tobacco must be limited to breaks and lunch 

Periods. 

In accordance with the Colorado Clean Indoor Air Act, smoking is prohibited in fill.Town facilities, 
vehicles, or in any workplace, including non-business hours. This includes lobbies, elevators, 
restrooms, reception areas, hallways and any other common-use areas, child day care facilities, Village 
Court Apartments, public transportation of any kind (including gondola cabins/terminals, employee 
shuttles and all Town vehicles. In addition, smoking is prohibited within 15 feet of any main entrance. 

Effective July 31, 2018, smoking is prohibited within 25 feet of any building or apartment at Village 
Court Apartments. (refer to HUD Smoke Free Public Housing and Multifamily Properties Rule) 

5 



191

Employee Hand book 
The Town of Mountain Village is dedicated to providing exceptional 

facilities, services and opportunities, in partnership with the community, 
which will enhance the quality of life for our residents, homeowners, 

employees, and guests. 

Town of Mountain Village 

Adopted February 16, 2017 1 5, 2018 



192

Employee Handbook 
February~15. 2018 Page 1 



193

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

About the Handbook 
From the Town Manager 

EMPLOYMENT 
Guest Service Policy 
Safety 

Reporting Accidents 
Designated Medical Providers 
Environment 

Equal Opportunity Employer (EEO)/ Harassment Policy 
ADA and Religious Accommodation 

Pregnancy Workers Fairness Act 
Anti-Violence 

Sexual Harassment 

Complaint Procedure 

Whistleblower Protection 
Job Descriptions 

Confidentiality of Information 
Door Codes 
Personnel Records 
Reference Requests 

Employee Selection 

Employee Classification 
BENEFITS 

Benefits Eligibility Chart 

401(k) Plan 
Employee Assistance Program (EAP) 

Colorado Public Employer's Retirement Association (PERA) 

Fire & Police Pension Association (FPPA)- Police only 

Medical/Dental/Vision/Life Insurance Plan 
Flexible Spending Plans 
Paid Time-Off (PTO) 

Donated PTO Policy 

Short Term Disability (STD) 

Long Term Disability (LTD) 

Employee Housing Program 
Housing Down Payment Assistance Program 

Ski Passes & Skiing Privileges 
Unemployment Insurance 

PAY 
Employee Information Changes 

Garnishments and Attachments 

Holiday Pay Dates 
Lost Paychecks 
On-Call Duty and Pay 

Overtime Compensation 

Employee Handbook 
February 16, 201715, 2018 

4 
5 
6 
6 

6 
7 
7 
8 
9 
9 

10 
11 
11 

12 
13 
13 
14 
14 
14 
14 
14 

15 
17 
17 
18 
18 

19 
19 

20 
22 
22 
25 
25 
26 
26 
26 
26 
26 
26 
26 
27 
27 
27 
28 
28 

Page 2 



194

Pay Period and Paydays 
Payroll Deductions 
Payroll Disruption 

Personal Expenses 

Time Reporting 
Tips, Commissions or Fees 
Travel, Training & Education 

TIME OFF 
Absence Request 
Bereavement/Funeral 
Domestic Abuse Leave 
Unpaid Time Off/ Extended Leaves of Absence 
Holidays 

Jury Duty 
Medical Leave of Absence - Family and Medical Leave Act (FMLA) 
Non-work Related and Non-FMLA Leave 
Family Care Act Leave 
Military I eave 
Office Ciosures 
Voting 

WORK ENVIRONMENT 
Appearance 
Attendance and Punctuality 
Name Tags 
ID Cards 
Uniforms 
Lunch Periods 
Communications Systems & Password Policy 
Conflict of Interest 
Discipline/Discharge 
Drugs and Alcohol 
Inspections 
earking_. 

Performance Evaluation 
Political Participation 

Problem Solving 

Property Loss, Theft or Damage 
Smoking 
Terminating Employment 
Vehicle Use 
Commuter Shuttles 
Work Assignments & Schedules 
Policy Adoption 

Acknowledgement of Handbook Receipt 

Employee Handbook 
February -l-6;-frQ..1-715. 2018 

29 
29 
29 

30 

30 
30 
30 
31 
31 
31 
31 
31 
31 
32 
32 
35 
35 
35 
35 
36 
36 
36 
36 
37 
37 
37 
37 
37 
40 
41 
42 
42 

-43 
43 
43 

43 

44 
44 
45 
45 
46 
47 
48 
49 

Page 3 



195

ABOUT THE HANDBOOK 

The Town of Mountain Village employee handbook will acquaint you with the Town and some policies 
affecting your employment. Since it is impossible to anticipate every situation that could arise, this 
handbook will highlight general Town policies, practices, and benefits. Other existing policies and 
practices may not appear in this handbook. If you are not sure about a written or unwritten policy of 
the Town, have questions about any portion of this handbook, or any aspect of your job, or need further 
information, please ask your supervisor. 

We recognize that our business needs may change from time to time and that new governmental 
regulations take effect. Therefore, we reserve the right to amend, rescind, or modify any Town policies, 
practices, and benefits at any time, with or without prior notice. 

We wish to apply Town policies consistently and without discrimination so that all similarly situated 
employees receive uniform treatment. A situation may arise that causes us to deviate from our normal 
operating procedure. While we try to minimize these situations, we must reserve the right to consider 
each case separately and make any appropriate exceptions we feel necessary. The only recognized 
deviations from Town policies, practices, and benefits are those authorized and signed by the Town 
Manager. 

This employee handbook has been created without bias toward the employee, the employer, or any 
group of employees. The provisions of this handbook or any other documents (such as benefit 
statements or confidentiality agreements) are not intended to create any contractual obligation that 
conflicts in any way with this policy. 

You have been provided with your own personal copy of the employee handbook. As soon as possible, 
please take a moment to review your handbook. Refer to it whenever you have questions about Town 
policies, practices, or benefits. These policies are effective immediately, and you are expected to know 
and comply with them accordingly. 

Employee Handbook 
February 16, 201715. 2018 Page4 



196

From the Town Manager 

Welcome to the Town of Mountain Village 

This handbook was developed to describe some of the guidelines, programs, and benefits for 
employees. All employees should familiarize themselves with the contents of the employee 
handbook as soon as possible, for it may answer many questions about employment with the 
Town. 

The Town of Mountain Village is dedicated to providing exceptional facilities, services, and 
opportunities, in partnership with the community, which will enhance the quality of life for our 
residents, homeowners, employees, businesses and guests-. We believe that each employee 
contributes directly to the success of Mountain Village and we hope you will take pride in being 
.:t member of our team. 

The Town is committed to providing a safe work environment for employees. We know that 
our employees are our greatest resource and we will strive to prevent any possible injury or 
illness. We believe that most accidents and injuries are preventable and it should be clear that 
the responsibility for safety lies with all levels of employees at Mountain Village. We all need to 
work together to accomplish our goal of zero injuries by reporting unsafe conditions 
immediately. 

In the necessary push toward a greener nation, we're changing the way we do things day-to
day in Mountain Village. With these changes comes a greater awareness of our habits, and a 
deeper appreciation for our natural environment. We ask that you make environmentally 
conscious decisions daily regarding energy use, behavior and recycling. 

Please contact your supervisor or Human Resources with any questions you may have regarding 
Town policies and procedures. 

We make Mountain Village a great place to live, work and visit. 

Kim Montgomery 

Town Manager 

Employee Handbook 
February 16, 201715. 2018 Page 5 



197

EMPLOYMENT 

Guest Service Policy 

It is the philosophy of the Town that everyone in this community is a guest. One of the main functions 
of the Town is to provide consistently high quality "Guest Service" to everyone in our community 
including our co-workers. Guest Service refers to the interaction and assistance we provide the 
residents, visitors, business owners and employees of businesses here. The combination of Telluride's 
history and the Mountain Village's style offers a profoundly unique guest experience unequaled by any 
other resort in the world. It is the goal of the Town to ensure that our guests enjoy their stay here to 
the extent that they would wish to remain in or return to the Town over and over again. 

When referring to "Guest Service", the Town distinguishes between Internal and External Guests as 
follows: 

• Internal Guests - Co-workers and people with whom we work to create and maintain a highly 
professional, positively motivated working environment. We serve internal guests every time 
we do our own jobs exceptionally well and offer to assist other employees in any way we can to 
do their jobs well. 

• External Guests - Mountain Village and Telluride visitors, residents, clientele and employees of 
businesses we encounter during the course of performing our job duties each day. We serve 
external guests every time we offer assistance or direction to non-employees. 

All employees are empowered and encouraged to go beyond that which is expected of them when 
serving our guests. All employees are encouraged to serve guests as though they were visitors in our 
own homes. All employees are encouraged to work together with the employees of other companies to 
ensure that every guest's needs are met and, if possible, exceeded. Finally, as guests themselves, all 
employees are encouraged to communicate with co-workers and supervisors letting them know what 
they need in order to do their jobs more efficiently and enjoyably. 

Safety 

Our Town goal is to provide a safe and healthy work environment. The biggest single factor in insuring 
your safety on the job is YOU. It is YOUR responsibility, to both yourself and those working in your area, 
to practice safe work habits. Report any unsafe practices and conditions to your supervisor so corrective 
action can be taken. 

The Town has general safety rules that apply to every department. Any violation of either departmental 
or Town safety rules will not be tolerated. Should an on-the injury occur as a result of a violation of the 
departmental or Town safety rules, a reduction in worker's compensation benefits may occur. General 
safety rule violations may include but are not limited to: 

• Failure to abide by safety rules established for your department. 

• Falsification of accident or incident reports. 
• Being impaired by or under the influence of alcohol or any drugs (legal or illegal) while on duty. 

• Fighting or other disorderly conduct that may endanger the well being of co-workers or guests. 
• Unauthorized operation of Town vehicles or equipment. 
• Reckless operation of Town vehicles or equipment. 
• Failure to utilize safety seat belts at all times when the vehicle is in service (Buckle Up!). 

Employee Handbook 
February 16, 201715. 2018 Page6 



198

• Remember safety rules are only as effective as you make them. Safety is a cooperative endeavor 
and must be kept constantly in mind by all of us. Exercise common sense and good judgment in 
all that you do on the job. Then, we all can enjoy an excellent safety record . 

Upon employment with the Town, employees will be provided a general orientation session designed to 
acquaint them with their department, its safety concerns, equipment, first-aid kits and fire 
extinguishers. If an orientation session has not yet been scheduled for you please contact the 
supervisor to determine a time when this orientation may occur. 

Any unsafe conditions or practices an employee observes must be reported to your supervisor and your 
department's Safety Committee representative immediately. Your supervisor will immediately inform 
Human Resources. 

Reporting Accidents (Injuries) and Incidents 
Notify your supervisor of any incident or injury (no matter how minor) either to yourself or to a co
worker immediately. Failure to notify a supervisor of a work-related injury to one's self or a co-worker 
immediately but not later than within twenty-four (24) hours, will be considered cause for disciplinary 
action for both the injured worker and co-worker. Untimely reporting of injuries may also result in 
worker's compensation benefits being denied in most cases or greatly reduced in other cases. 

Once informed of an injury, the supervisor, the employee and any witnesses to the injury must complete 
the worker's compensation First Report of Injury form . This form will be submitted to the Human 
Resources Department for processing and opening of your worker's compensation claim. The supervisor 
is responsible for collection of statements from all persons involved in incidents or accidents as well as 
from any witnesses thereto. The supervisor is responsible for immediately notifying their Department 
Head, as appropriate and Human Resources regardless of the time of day. 

Receive authorization from the supervisor for medical treatment. When an injury has occurred the 
supervisor will send the employee immediately for medical treatment. Effective July 1, 2017, all 
employees have the choice of receiving treatment for work-related injuries and illnesses from four 
designated medical providers. The four providers are: 

Telluride Medical Center 
500 W. Pacific Avenue, PO Box 1229, Telluride, CO 81435 
Phone: (970) 728-3848 
Fax: (970) 728-3848 

Mountain Medical Center 
295 Sherman Street (295 Hwy 62), Ridgway, CO 81432 
Phone: (970) 626-5123 
Fax: (970) 626-9783 

Uncompahgre Medical Center 
1350 Aspen Street, PO Box 280, Norwood, CO 81423 
Phone: (970) 327-4233 
Fax: (970) 327-4228 
Email: info@umclinic.org 

Employee Handbook 
Februaryt~7-l5, 2018 Page 7 



199

Montrose Family Practice 
5 Hillcrest Plaza Way, Montrose, CO 81401 
Phone:_(970) 249-9678 
Fax: (970)249-1868 

Failure to receive treatment from a designated medical provider may result in non-payment of medical 
benefits. 

Any employee sustaining a work-re lated injury may be asked to submit a drug and/or alcohol test in 
accordance with Town policy. An employee injured while under the influence of drugs or alcohol is only 
entitled to half of the normal compensation allowed by law. If it is determined that the injury occurred 
in the course of an activity unrelated to the employee's job, benefits may be denied completely. 

The treating physician determines needed time off from work. Compensation payments made to the 
employee for lost wages resulting from an injury or occupational diseases begin after the third 
consecutive missed day of work and will commence until the employee is released to return to work. 
The compensation rate while unable to work is 2/3 of the average weekly wage, not to exceed a 
maximum amount as provided under the worker's compensation laws. Time spent away from work, 
during a work related injury leave will be applied to FMLA leave if eligible. 

Worker's compensation requires all employees to adhere to the physician's instructions, including 
attendance at follow-up appointments. If unable to comply, you must notify your physician, your 
supervisor and Human Resources. Failure to comply with your physician's prescribed treatment and 
follow-up plan could jeopardize your worker's compensation benefits. 

IMPORTANT NOTES: 
If an employee is released by their physician to return to work and is able to work but decides they do 
not want to return to work, the Town reserves the right to pursue reimbursement from the employee 
for all benefit premiums paid retroactive to the end of the required period of benefit continuation under 
FMLA. 

Recreational skiing and off-the-job accidents are not covered by worker's compensation. However, 
injuries sustained off-the-job may be covered by the Town's health insurance provided. 

Filing a fraudulent claim under worker's compensation for non-work-related injuries is against the law 
and will be grounds for termination. 

The Environment 
The Town of Mountain Village cares about our environment. Town Council and the community have 
made energy conservation and waste reduction a priority goal. In an effort to assist the town with 
reaching its Energy Efficiency and Zero Waste goals, we participate in our collective efforts to reduce 
waste and conserve energy in the workplace. 

Reduce Waste: 

• REDUCE: Reduce daily office waste by making sure you really need a hard copy before printing 
and stop unwanted junk mail. Carpool, walk, bike, bus or gondola instead of driving. 

Employee Handbook 
February 16, 201715. 2018 Page 8 



200

• REUSE: Reuse paper for scratch pads before recycling. Reuse plastic food containers as 
Tupperware before throwing away. Bring a re-usable coffee mug, lunch containers and 
silverware to work. Bring a re-usable bag to work for groceries or other shopping needs (or 
wants!). Recycling is great, but still requires a lot of energy so please try to use items as many 
times as possible before discarding into the town's trash or recycling bins. 

• RECYCLE: All offices in Town should be equipped with recycling bins. Recycle all paper, 
cardboard, glass, plastic #1-7 and aluminum products in these bins for collection by either the 
cleaning team or Town staff. If you are in a facility that does not have adequate recycling bins, 
please contact Deanna Drew, Director Plazas & Environmental Services, to arrange a method for 
you to recycle. Recycling these items is mandatory for all residents and businesses in the Town 
of Mountain Village. 

Save Energy: 

• OFFICE HEAT: All thermostats in the office building should be set at 68 degrees. We realize that 
everyone's comfort level is different so please do your best to dress appropriately for the season 
with enough layers to stay warm throughout the workday. Although personal space heaters are 
not prohibited, they do use a large amount of energy and could thwart our efforts to conserve, 
so please use your personal space heaters sparingly when necessary. 

• WINDOWS: Pulling your blinds down at the end of the day could help keep the offices warm 
and prevent the heaters from coming on during the night when no-one is here. Please close 
your blinds when you leave your office for the night to keep the heat in and the cold out. 

• COMPUTERS, PRINTERS, ELECTRONICS: These devices require a "phantom" load of energy 
when plugged in and not in use. Please remember to turn off electronic devices when leaving 
for the night and/or weekend. 

• OFFICE LIGHTS: We are in the process of upgrading lights from fluorescents to LEDs. LED bulbs 
use half as much energy as fluorescent lights for the same amount of light. Please turn off your 
lights when employees are not in the office or shop, and especially at night and on weekends, to 
make sure valuable electricity is not being wasted. 

If you have additional ideas for how to conserve in the workplace, please bring them to the attention of 
your supervisor or the Plazas & Environmental Services Director so that your ideas can be distributed to 
the rest of the Mountain Village team. 

Equal Employment Opportunity and Unlawful Harassment 
The Town is dedicated to the principles of equal employment opportunity. We prohibit unlawful 
discrimination against applicants or employees on the basis of age 40 and over, race, sex, color, religion, 
national origin, disability, military status, genetic information, or any other applicable status as 
protected by state or local law. This prohibition includes unlawful harassment based on any of these 
protected classes. Unlawful harassment includes verbal or physical conduct which has the purpose or 
effect of substantially interfering with an individual's work performance or creating an intimidating, 
hostile, or offensive work environment. This policy applies to all employees, including managers, 
supervisors, co-workers, and non-employees such as customers, clients, vendors, consultants, etc. 

ADA, Religious and Pregnancy Accommodation 
The Town will make reasonable accommodation for qualified individuals with known disabilities and for 
employees whose work requirements interfere with a religious belief, unless doing so would result in an 
undue hardship to the Town or cause a direct threat to health or safety. The Town will make reasonable 
accommodation to otherwise qualified employees due to pregnancy, a health condition related to 

Employee Handbook 
February ~l-715. 2018 Page9 



201

pregnancy, or the physical recovery from childbirth absent undue hardship. 

Employees needing such accommodation are instructed to contact their supervisor and Human 
Resources immediately 

Pregnant Workers Fairness Act (C.R.S 24-34-402.3) 

The Pregnant Workers Fairness Act makes it discriminatory or unfair employment practice if an 
employee fails to provide reasonable accommodations to an applicant or employee who is pregnant, 
physically recovering from childbirth, or a related condition. 

Requirements: 
Under the Act, if an applicant or employee who is pregnant or has a condition related to pregnancy or 
childbirth requests an accommodation, an employer must engage in the interactive process with the 
applicant or employee and provide a reasonable accommodation to perform the essential functions of 
the applicant or employee's job unless the accommodation would impose an undu~ hardship on the 
employer's business. 

The Act identifies reasonable accommodations as including, but not limited to: 
•provision of more frequent or longer break periods; 
•more frequent restroom, food, and water breaks; 
•acquisition or modification of equipment or seating; 
•limitations on lifting; 
•temporary transfer to a less strenuous or hazardous position if available, with return to the 
current position after pregnancy; 
• job restructuring; 
•light duty, if available; 
•assistance with manual labor or modified work schedule. 

The Act prohibits requiring an applicant or employee to accept an accommodation that the applicant or 
employee has not requested or an accommodation that is unnecessary for the applicant or the 
employee to perform the essential functions of the job. 

Scope of accommodations required: 
An accommodation may not be deemed reasonable if the employer has to hire new employees that the 
employer would not have otherwise hired, discharge an employee, transfer another employee with 
more seniority, promote another employee who is not qualified to perform the new job, create a new 
position for the employee, or provide the employee paid leave beyond what is provided to similarly 
situated employees. 

Under the Act, a reasonable accommodation must not pose an "undue hardship" on the employer. 
Undue hardship refers to an action requiring significant difficulty or expense to the employer. The 
following factors are considered in determining whether there is undue hardship to the employer: 

• the nature and cost of accommodation; 
• the overall financial resources of the employer; 
• the overall size of the employer's business; 

Employee Handbook 
February 16, 201715. 2018 Page 10 



202

• the accommodation's effect on expenses and resources or its effect upon the operations of 
the employer; 

If the employer has provided a similar accommodation to other classes of employees, the Act provides 
that there is a rebuttable presumption that the accommodation does not impose an undue hardship. 

Adverse action prohibited: 
The Act prohibits an employer from taking adverse action against an employee who requests or uses a 
reasonable accommodation and from denying employment opportunities to an applicant or employee 
based on the need to make a reasonable accommodation. 

Anti-Violence 
Employees have the right to a safe, violence free and drug free workplace. To that end, the Town's 
position on workplace violence is very inflexible. Employees who engage in workplace violence, 
whether instigating it or not, may be drug and/or alcohol tested, and pending a full investigation may be 
subject to discipline up to and including suspension from duty without pay or termination. 

Employees must not engage in physical and/or verbal intimidation, bullying, threats, or hostile 
behaviors, physical abuse, vandalism; arson; sabotage, use of weapons, carrying weapons on to Town 
property regardless of whether or not the employee possesses a concealed carry permitLor any other 
act, which, in management's opinion, is inappropriate to the workplace. (See Town Munici al Code 
Section 9.17 prohibiting the possession of weapons on all property owned by the town) In addition, 
employees must refrain from making bizarre or offensive comments regarding violent events and/or 
behavior. Employees are expected to report any prohibited conduct to management. (Sworn officers of 
the police department are exempt from the weapons reference of this policy) 

Employees should immediately report any such occurrences to their supervisor or to Human Resources. 
See complaint procedure below. 

Employees should directly contact law enforcement if they believe there is an imminent threat to the 
safety and health of themselves or co-workers. 

Sexual Harassment/ Inappropriate Conduct 
Because sexual harassment raises issues that are to some extent unique in comparison to other 
harassment, the Town believes it warrants separate emphasis. 
The Town strongly opposes sexual harassment and inappropriate sexual conduct. Sexual harassment is 
defined as unwelcome sexual advances, requests for sexual favors, and other verbal or physical conduct 
of a sexual nature, when: 

• Submission to such conduct is made explicitly or implicitly a term or condition of employment. 
• Submission to or rejection of such conduct is used as the basis for decisions affecting an 

individual's employment. 
• Such conduct has the purpose or effect of substantially interfering with an individual's work 

performance or creating an intimidating, hostile, or offensive work environment. 

All employees are expected to conduct themselves in a professional and businesslike manner at all 
times. Conduct which may violate this policy includes, but is not limited to, sexually implicit or explicit 
communications whether in: 

Employee Handbook 
February -16;--W-1--715. 20 8 Page 11 



203

• Written form, such as cartoons, posters, calendars, notes, letters, emails 
• Verbal form, such as comments, jokes, foul or obscene language of a sexual nature, gossiping or 

questions about another's sex life, or repeated unwanted requests for dates. 
• Physical gestures and other nonverbal behavior, such as unwelcome touching, grabbing, 

fondling, kissing, massaging, and brushing up against another's body. 

Complaint Procedure 
If you believe there has been a violation of the EEO policy or harassment based on the protected classes 
outlined above, including sexual harassment, please use the following complaint procedure. The Town 
expects employees to make a timely complaint to enable the Town to investigate and correct any 
behavior that may be in violation of this policy. 

1. Report the incident to your supervisor or manager who will investigate the matter where 
appropriate and take corrective action. Your complaint will be kept as confidential as 
practicable. 

2. If you prefer not to go to either of these individuals with your complaint, you should report the 
incident to Human Resources 

3. If the problem still cannot be resolved, employees may submit a written complaint to the Town 
Manager for review and final decision about the situation. 

The Town prohibits retaliation against an employee for filing a complaint under this policy or for 
assisting in a complaint investigation. If you perceive retaliation for making a complaint or for your 
participation in the investigation, please follow the complaint procedure outlined above. The situation 
will be investigated. 

If the Town determines that an employee's behavior is in violation of this policy, appropriate disciplinary 
action will be taken against the offending employee up to and including suspension or termination of 
employment. 

Filing a Retaliation Complaint 
A retaliation complaint may be filed directly with the Human Resources Director or Town 
Manager. A retaliation claim must be filed within 90 days of the retaliation behavior. If there is 
a pattern of retaliation, the complaint must be filed within 45 days of the most recent alleged 
act or threat of interference or retaliation. 

Investigation 
The complaint will be investigated. The Town Manager and Human Resources Director will 
convene a meeting for the purposes of making a determination about the investigation. The 
Town Manager may request any documentation or verbal statements by employees as may be 
legitimately required for appropriate fact finding. 

Decision 
If a finding that interference or retaliation has occurred, the Town Manager will review the 
incident. The determination is final and binding. The Town Manager sees to it that, through 
appropriate channels, corrective action is taken against the employee who is found to have 
interfered or retaliated. The Town Manager will communicate the determination in writing to 
the complainant, if known, and to the person or persons accused of violating this guideline. 

Employee Handbook 
February 16, 201715. 2018 Page 12 



204

With regard to complaints where it is alleged that the Town Manager interfered or took 
retaliatory action, the finding of the investigation shall be presented for a decision to the Mayor. 

Whistleblower Policy 
The Town of Mountain Village prohibits its employees, contractors, subcontractors, or other agents 
from discriminating in the terms and conditions of employment with respect to employees who: 

• Provide information to or assist in securities law investigations with town supervisors or 

investigators, federal regulatory or law enforcement agencies, or Congress, or 

• File, testify, participate in, or otherwise assist in any proceedings, including private actions, 

currently filed or to be filed involving alleged violations of the securities laws, SEC regulations, or 

securities fraud . 

The town is committed to protecting employees from interference with or retaliation for having made a 
protected disclosure or for having refused an illegal order. 

Filing a Retaliation Complaint 
A retaliation complaint may be filed directly with Human Resources Director, Finance Director or t he 
Town Manager. The cla im may be submitted anonymously if the complainant so chooses. Send a 
written or typed complaint to the following address: Human Resources, 455 Mounta in Vil lage Blvd ., Ste. 
A, Mountain Village, CO 81435 to submit an anonymous complaint. 

A retaliation claim must be filed within 90 days of the retaliation behavior. If there is a pattern of 
retaliation, the complaint must be filed within 45 days of the most recent alleged act or threat of 
interference or retaliation. 

Investigation 
The complaint will be investigated. The Audit Committee will convene a meeting for the purposes of 
making a determination about the investigation. The Audit Committee may request any documentation 
or verbal statements by employees as may be legitimately required for appropriate fact finding. The 
employee filing the complaint may at the time of the hearing, present their complaint to the Audit 
Committee in person. 

Decision 
If a finding that interference or retaliation has occurred, the Chairman of the Audit Committee will 
provide that information to the Town Manager. The determination is final and binding. The Town 
Manager sees to it that, through the appropriate channels, corrective action is taken against the 
employee who is found to have interfered or retaliated. The Town Manager will communicate the 
determination in writing to the complainant, if known, and to the person or persons accused of violating 
this guideline. 
With regard to complaints where it is alleged that the Town Manager interfered or took retaliatory 
action, the finding of the investigation shall be presented for a decision to the Finance Director or the 
Mayor. 

Appeal 
An employee may appeal the decision to the Town Manager only on the basis of whether the complaint 
is timely and qualifies for review under the scope of this guideline. 

Employee Handbook 
February -16,-2-0-1+15, 2018 Page 13 



205

Job Descriptions 
Job descriptions are available for each position within the Town in Ultipro. Your immediate supervisor 
will provide you with a copy of your job description and answer any questions that you may have 
regarding it. Each job description typically indicates duties and responsibilities, major reporting 
relationships, measures of job performance, required skills and education, and required physical ability. 

Confidentiality of Information 
To repay the trust and confidence placed in us by our guests and our employees we must maintain the 
confidentiality of information within the Town. Confidential information obtained as a consequence of 
employment is released only when properly authorized. This information includes, but is not limited to 
personnel records, confidential meetings, memoranda, documents, and other methods of internal 
communication. Any copying, reproducing, or distributing of confidential information in any manner 
must be authorized by management. 

A breach of confidentiality may subject the Town to liability. Confidential information may not be used 
for the purpose of furthering a private interest or as a means of making a profit. Such use of 
confidential information will not be tolerated. 

Door codes are issued to the individual employee are not to be shared or given to any other person, 
whether an employee or not. 

Personnel Records 
The Town keeps a personnel file as a record of your employment. It is important for this record to be 
up-to-date and complete. This enables us to reach you in an emergency, forward your mail, and 
properly maintain your insurance and other benefits. It also helps keep track of your payroll deductions 
and many other things that concern you as an individual. 
Notify the Human Resource Department immediately if you have changes in any of the following areas: 
Name, residence, telephone, marital status, insurance changes, tax exemptions, person to notify in case 
of an emergency, and other relevant information. 
Additionally, you should notify the Human Resources Department if you complete educational or 
training courses. This information may be considered with your other employment records as job 
opportunities arise in the Town. 

All requests to view personnel records must be made in writing to the Human Resources Department 
with reasonable advance notice. 

Reference Requests 
Employees who are approached either formally or informally and asked to provide information about 
former employees of the Town should refer such inquiries to the Human Resource Department. 

EMPLOYEE SELECTION 

Application Accuracy 
Prospective employees will be required to complete an employee application and necessary hiring 
forms. The Town reserves the right to verify all employment data. False or misleading information on an 
application or other hiring forms before or during employment may be cause for disciplinary action or 

Employee Handbook 
February 16, 201715. 2018 Page 14 



206

employment denial. If an employee realizes they have put inaccurate information on Town forms, he or 
she must notify Human Resources and correct the information immediately. 

Interviews 
Considered applicants for Town positions participate in an interview with Human Resources and with 
the supervisor/manager of the department to which the position reports. Interviews will be job related 
and will be used, in conjunction with employment and driver background checks and a variety of other 
measures, as a tool for making hiring decisions. 

Promotions 
Employees may be considered for promotion to fill vacancies based upon the following factors including 
but not limited to individual's experience, training, work related background, attendance, present and 
past performance, and anything else management believes to be important to the job at the time the 
open position is filled. Length of service for the Town will be considered when two or more applicants 
possess equal qualifications. In order to be eligible to apply for a posted position, you must meet the 
minimum hiring specifications for the position, be capable of performing the essential functions of the 
job with or without a reasonable accommodation. 

Employees are responsible for monitoring job vacancy notices on the Town website and for completing 
an online application durine the postine period for a specific opening. 

Employment of Relatives (see Code of Ethics) 
The Town recognizes that the work force in the region is limited, and on occasion, more than one close 
relative may work for the Town and even in the same department. In order to avoid any real or 
apparent Conflict of Interest, impropriety or favoritism, no person shall be permitted to be involved in 
the hiring, evaluation, salary adjustments, promotions, disciplinary decisions or other budgetary or 
financial decisions of a relative. For purposes of this Section, a relative shall mean spouses, parents, 
children, brothers and sisters, grandparents, grandchildren, in-laws or relatives living in the same 
household. 
In the event a situation exists as of the date of this employee handbook, where a relative is in a 
supervisory role of another relative, these situations may continue with the direct involvement and 
supervision of the Department Director. The Department Director shall be solely responsible for the 
evaluation, salary adjustments, promotions, disciplinary decisions or other budgetary or financial 
decisions of the supervised relative. 

EMPLOYEE CLASSIFICATION & INTRODUCTORY PERIOD 
The following employee group definitions are assigned at the time of hire and are used to determine 
eligibility for benefits such as PTO, health insurance, etc. 

Group 1 Full time, year-round employees (Exempt) - Exempt employees must meet both the duties 
test and the salary basis test under FLSA for exempt status. Exempt employees are expected to work at least 40 
hours per week or until the job is done, whichever is greater and are compensated based upon a biweekly salary. 
The employee is expected to work, at a minimum, the hours established for a particular department and be 
available when necessary outside those hours, either daily or weekly. No overtime will be paid for hours worked in 
excess of 40 hours per week. 

Group 2 Full time, year-round, hourly employees (Non-exempt) - Full-time hourly employees are 
normally scheduled for 40 hours per week. Benefits are calculated based upon hours worked up to 40 hours per 

Employee Handbook 
February~15, 2018 Page 15 



207

week. Some employees may regularly be scheduled less than a 40-hour week with Department Head and Town 
Manager approval. 

Group 3 Seasonal employees (Non-exempt) - Work for a limited period of time, referred to as a 
season (i.e. summer season, winter season, shoulder season, or during summer or holiday breaks from school or a 
period of time identified and agreed upon by the Town and the employee on the date of hire.) 

3A Full-time seasonal, hourly- Working Ju// time during Town recognized seasons. Season to be 
defined and agreed upon prior to commencement of employment 

3B. Part-time seasonal, hourly- Working part time during Town recognized seasons. Season to 
be defined and agreed upon prior to commencement of employment 

3C. Full-time, seasonal, hourly-Working full time, more than 1560 hours per year. 

Group 4 Part time, hourly employees (Non-exempt) -Part time employees generally work more than 
15 hours, but less than 30 hours per week and have a schedule that has been defined and agreed upon prior to the 
commencement or employment. 

Group 5 Part time, hourly employees (Non-exempt) - Part time employees generally work less than 
15 hours/week working the hours and/or shift assigned. 

Group 6 POLICE Full time, year-round employees (Exempt) - Exempt employees must meet both the 
duties test and the salary basis test under FLSA for exempt status. Exempt employees are expected to work at 
least 80 hours per pay period or until the job is done, whichever is greater and are compensated based upon a 
biweekly salary. The employee is expected to work, at a minimum, the hours established for a particular 
department and be available when necessary outside those hours, either daily or weekly. 

Group 7 POLICE Full time; year-round, hourly employees (Non-exempt) Full-time hourly employees 
are normally scheduled for 80 hours per pay period. Employees are paid overtime on hours worked over 80. 

Group 8 Town Councilors Part time elected officials 

Group 9 POLICE Part time, hourly employees (Non-exempt) - On call officers to work a limited 
period of time, working the hours and/or shift assigned. 

Definition of Seasons: 

• Winter Season - the beginning of November through the beginning of April, based on available 
work. 

• Summer Season - the end of May through the end of October, based on available work. 
• Shoulder Season - The time period between the beginning of April and the end of May and 

between the end of October and the beginning of November when the Town of Mountain 
Village may be operating with a reduced work force. 

• Other Season -A period of time identified and agreed upon by the Town and the employee and 
noted on the employment paperwork at the time of hire. 

Employee Handbook 
February 16, 201715. 2018 Page 16 



208

BENEFITS & ELIGIBILITY 
Employee Benefits 
This section describes the current employee benefits provided for you. The "Benefits Eligibility Chart" 
will familiarize you with our total benefits package. Seniority for benefits will accrue based on the 
employee's eligibility date. 

BENEFIT ELIGIBILITY CHART 

Eligible Groups 
Benefit 1 2 3A 38 3C 4 5 6 7 8 

AFLAC X X X X X X X 

401(k) X X 

457 FPPA X X 

Bereavement Leave- paid X X X X 

Direct Deposit X X X X X X X X X 

Employee Assistance Program (EAP) X X X X X X X X 

Employee Shuttles X X X X X X X X 

End of Se~son Bonus X X 

Flex Spending Accounts (FSA) - Dependent Care X X X X 

Flex Spending Accounts (FSA) - Medical X X X X 

FMLA (minimum 1250 hrs., 1 yr. service) X X X X X X 

FPPA (Police Only) X )C 

FPPA (457 (Police Only) X X 

Holiday Pay X X X X X X 

Jury Duty - full pay X X X X X X X 

Life Insurance - paid X X X X 

Life Insurance (PERA) - voluntary X X X X X X X X X 

Long Term Disability (LTD) X X X X 

Medical, Dental, Vision Insurance X X X X 

Military Leave (paid) X X X X X X X X 

PERA X X X X X X 

PTO (Paid Time Off) X X X X 

Employee Ski Pass X X X X X X X 

Wellness Reimbursement Program ~ ~ ~ ~ 

Eligible Dependents 
Dependents eligible for coverage under the Town group health plan, employee assistance program, and 
other Town benefits are as follows: 

1. The employee's lawful spouse, as defined in the State that you reside; provided that: 
a. the spouse is not legally separated from the employee, and 
b. the employee is eligible to claim a marital status of marriage on their Federal Income 
Tax Return as a result 

2. Common-law spouse verified by valid affidavit 

Employee Handbook 
February 16, 201715. 2018 Page 17 



209

3. A covered employee's Civil Union partner, who meets the requirements of Colorado's Civil 
Union Act, on a post-tax basis; verified by civil union certificate 

4. A covered employee's married or unmarried: natural born, blood related child; step-child; 
foster child; a Civil Union partner's child; legally adopted child; child placed in the 
employee's legal guardianship by court order; or a child placed with the employee for 
purpose of adoption and for which the employee has a legal obligation to provide full or 

5. partial support; whose age is less than the *limiting age. 

*The limiting age for each dependent child is 26 years of age. 

Human Resources must be notified within twenty (21) days to add newly acquired dependents (birth, 
marriage, adoption, etc.). New dependents become effective on the date of their eligibility. 

401(k) Plan 
The Town participates in PERA's 401(k) retirement plan. Participation in the 401K plan is voluntary for 
eligible employees. Employees who participate in the 401K plan decide how much money they want to 
contribute, consistent with current IRS regulations and they control how their money is invested. 401K 
plan contributions will be automatically deducted from your paycheck and the Town will match that 
amount dollar for dollar based upon the table below. Employee and Town contributions are 100% 
vested immediately. 

PLAN A Employees that were eligible for 401K PRIOR to April 1, 2008 may elect to stay on the previous 
plan as stated below or convert to the new plan: 

• Employees in their first year of eligibility who contribute to the 401K will receive an equal matching 
contribution up to 1% to their 401K. 

• Employees in their second year of eligibility who contribute to the 401K will receive an equal matching 
contribution up to 3% to their 401K. 

• Employees in their third year of eligibility who contribute to the 401K will receive an equal matching 
contribution up to 5% to their 401K. 

• Employees in their fourth year of eligibility who contribute to the 401K will receive an equal matching 
contribution up to 9% to their 401K. 

PLAN B: Em ployees that are eligible for 401K on or after April 1, 2008 will receive the following match: 
• Employees in their first year of eligibility who contribute to the 401K will receive an equal matching 

contribution up to 2% to their 401K. 
• Employees in their second year of eligibility who contribute to the 401K will receive an equal matching 

contribution up to 3% to their 401K. 
• Employees in their third year of eligibilitv who contribute to the 401K will receive an equal matching 

contribution up to 4% to their 401K. 
• Employees in their fourth year of eligibility who contribute to the 401K will receive an equal matching 

contribution up to 5% to their 401K. 

A 401K summary plan description booklet outlining all aspects of the plan is provided to all Group I and II 
employees upon hire. Additional information is available in Human Resources. 

Employee Assistance Program (EAP) 
The Town recognizes there may be times when employees need professional help with substance abuse 
and other personal or family matters. Therefore, the Town offers an Employee Assistance Program 
(EAP). All Town employees and their families are eligible for three (3) free counseling sessions per 

Employee Handbook 
February 16, 201715. 2018 Page 18 



210

incident per year. Two financial counseling sessions with certified financial planners and two 30-minute 
consultations with an attorney are also included. It is not necessary to consult your supervisor before 
using the EAP. Employees may confidentially request information about the EAP from Human 
Resources. An employee may seek assistance directly from the EAP by cont;:icting: 

Triad, EAP 
Phone: 877.679.1100 or 970.242.9536 

Fax: 970.257.1157 

Email: triadeap.com 

www.triadeap.com/TMV 

Use of the EAP must be on the employee's own time and is not designed to be a substitute for good job 
performance or an excuse for not completing their work duties and responsibilities. Those employees 
initiating a request for assistance from the EAP prior to receiving a positive drug or alcohol test or any 
disciplinary action for violating Town policies will be given positive consideration for their attempt to 
obtain help. 

~ COLOP.ADO Colorado Public Employer's Retirement Association (PERA) 
~U,, PER,\. www.copera .org * 1-800-759-7372 

Colorado PERA is a qualified retirement plan thc1t the Town contributes to in lieu of Social Security, as 
required by law. PERA pays interest on the employee contribution. Your PERA contributions are tax
deferred It is your responsibility to keep PERA advised or any 11a me, address or beneficiary changes. 

PPPA Fire & Police Pension Association-FPPA (Police only) 
The Town provides retirement, death, and disability and survivor benefits for its police officers through 
the Fire & Police Pension Association of Colorado (FPPA). As members of FPPA, police officers make 
member contribution to FPPA matched by Town contributions. Employees may consult their FPPA 
member handbooks or contact Human Resources for more information regarding FPPA plan design and 
benefits. 

JPPA 457 Plans (Police only) 
FPPA offers a valuable plan for those members who w;:int to s;ive ;iddition;il funds towards retirement. -------------
PLAN A Employees that were eligible for 457 PRIOR to April 1, 2008 may elect to stay on the previous 
plan as stated below or convert to the new plan: 

• Employees in their first year of employment who contribute to the 401K will receive an equal matching 
contribution up to 1% to their 457. 

• Employees in their second year of employment who contribute to the 401K will receive an equal matching 
contribution up to 3% to their 457. 

• Employees in their third year of employment who contribute to the 401K will receive an equal matching 
contribution up to 5% to their 457. 

• Employees in their fourth year of employment who contribute to the 401K will receive an equal matching 
contribution up to 9% to their 457. 

PLAN B: Employees that are eligible for 457 as of or after April 1, 2008 will receive the following 
match: 

Employee Handbook 
February 16, 201715. 2018 Page 19 



211

• Employees in their first year of who contribute to the 401K will receive an equal matching contribution up 
to 2% to their 457. 

• Employees in their second year of employment who contribute to the 401K will receive an equal matching 
contribution up to 3% to their 457. 

• Employees in their third year of employment who contribute to the 401K will receive an equal matching 
contribution up to 4% to their 457. 

• Employees in their fourth year of employment who contribute to the 401K will receive an equal matching 
contribution up to 5% to their 457. 

Medical/Dental/Vision/Life Insurance Plan 
The Town provides health, dental, vision and life insurance coverage for all eligible employees effective 
the first day of the month following 30 days of employment eligibility. Details about these coverage's 
are outlined in the summary plan information provided to each employee upon hire. 

Dependents of the employees can obtain health, dental and vision coverage under the same group plan 
for a reasonable employee contribution. The dependent cost for coverage will be deducted from the 
employee's biweekly paycheck. 

Lega l spouses {which includes Civil Union Partners) and, dependent chi ldren (including: step, foster, 
adopted, and child ren of a Civil Union Partnersh ip) up to age 26 are also eligible for coverage. Providing 
proof of eligible dependency is required to enroll dependents. Acceptable forms of documentation to 
show proof of dependency are: birth. adoption. marriage, common law. and Civil Union Certificates. 

An employee seeking to add a common law spouse must complete a "Certificate of Spouse" form. 

Specific information regarding the health/dental/vision plan is available at www.cebt.org and from the 
Human Resources department. 

Dependent Eligibility 
Dependents may only be covered if the employee is covered. Late enrollment may result in a delay of 
coverage. 
A dependent is eligible to be covered on the later of: 

1. The date the employee is covered; 
2. The date of the employee's marriage for a dependent acquired on that date. 
3. The child's date of birth 
4. The date a court order places a child in the employee's home. The child must be under the 

employee's legal guardianship 
5. The date a child is legally adopted 
6. The date a valid court order is issued which requires the plan to provide coverage 
7. For a Civil Union partner, the date you meet the definition of dependent as stated in the plan 

Newborn and Adopted Children 
A newborn child of a covered employee or dependent is automatically covered during the first 31 days 
of life and an adopted child is automatically covered in the 31-day period immediately following 
placement of adoption. Coverage is only provided automatically under this plan in the absence of other 
coverage under another plan. Dependent coverage must be in force for coverage to continue past the 
first 31 days or the child's coverage will terminate immediately. 

Annual Open Enrollment Period 

Employee Handbook 
February 16, 201715, 2018 Page 20 



212

Each year, a 30-day period will be provided for enrollment. Once you have made elections for the year, 
your choices cannot be changed until the next annual enrollment period unless you have a change in 
status or request to voluntarily terminate coverage mid-year. 

Completed enrollment forms must be received before the end of the 30 day annual enrollment period 
or you will not be able to enter the plan until the next annual enrollment period or change in status. 

Changes in Eligibility I COBRA Coverage 
Employees must notify Human Resources immediately regarding ANY CHANGE IN ELIGIBILITY. If you 
have a change in status, you have 30 days from the date of that change to make new elections under 
this plan. 

Qualifying events include: 
• Marriage, divorce, or legal separation 
• Death of any dependent 
• Birth or adoption of a child 
• Total disability 
• Employment status change of your or your dependent 
• Employee's dependent child reaches 26 years of age 
• Court order which requires you or another individual to provide coverage 
• Retirement 
• Medicare eligibility 
• Medicaid plan or State child health plan eligibility 

Failure to inform Human Resources of a qualifying event may result in a dependent being uninsured. 
Qualifying events allow dependents to remain on our plan by electing COBRA coverage. 

Coverage under COBRA for an employee and dependents may be elected for up to 18 to 36 months 
depending on the nature of the qualifying event. Please contact Human Resources with any questions 
you may have regarding COBRA coverage. 

Upon termination of employment, all medical benefits will cease at the end of the month unless the 
employee elects to continue their coverage at their own expense under COBRA, for up to 18 months. 
Termination of continued coverage will occur i._f._.: _______ _ 

• The employee becomes covered under another group health plan, 
• The employee becomes eligible for Medicare, or 
• The employee fails to pay the monthly coverage premium 
• Survivorship Continuation 

If you have dependent coverage in force on the date that you die, coverage under this plan will continue 
for your surviving dependents that were covered under the plan on the date immediately preceding 
your death. Coverage will end on the earliest of the following: 
1. The end of two consecutive years following your death 
2. The date your surviving dependents become covered under another group plan 
Reinstatement of Coverage 
If your coverage ends due to termination of employment and you qualify for eligibility under this plan 
again (are rehired or considered to be rehired for purposes of the Affordable Care Act) within 26 weeks 
from the date your coverage ended, your coverage will be reinstated. 

Employee Handbook 
February ~15. 2018 Page 21 



213

If your coverage ends due to termination of employment and you do not qualify for eligibility under this 
plan again within 26 weeks from the date your coverage ended you will be treated as a new hire and will 
be required to meet all of the requirements of a new employee. 
Refer to the Family and Medical Leave Act (FMLA) for possible exceptions. 

Termination of Coverage 
Coverage terminates 
l. For employees, the end of the month in which you terminate employment 
2. For dependents, the day the employees coverage terminates or the day the dependent 

no longer meets the plans eligibility requirements (for example, reaches 26 years of age) 

NOTICE for Active Employees and Spouses Age 65 or Over 
The plan cannot terminate your coverage due to age or Medicare status. An active employee that is 
eligible for Medicare due to age (age 65 or over) has the choice to: 

l. Maintain coverage under this plan, in which case Medicare benefits would be secondary to this 
plan; or 

2. End coverage under this plan, in which case Medicare would be the only coverage available to 
you 

An active employee's spouse who is eligible for Medicare due to age (age 65 or over) has the same 
choice. 

Flexible Spending Plans 
The Town offers eligible employees the opportunity to participate in flexible spending plans. Employees 
become eligible to participate in the plans on the first day of the month following thirty days of 
employment eligibility. These plans enable participants to pay health care and dependent care 
expenses with pre-tax dollars rather than after-tax dollars. The plans require advance annual enrollment 
and money not used during the period specified in the plan document is forfeited. Open enrollment is 
in November/December each year for the following year 

The Town currently offers three Flexible Spending (Section 125) Plans: 
Premium Only Plan 
This salary reduction plan converts employee premiums for health and/or dental benefits from an after
tax to a pre-tax basis. Employees who pay for health premiums are automatically included in this Plan, 
unless an employee specifically requests to be omitted from the Plan. 

Health Plan 
This plan allows employees to designate a portion oftheir income, up to a maximum amount allowed 
per year, to be placed into their flexible spending account. This money can be used to pay for medical 
expenses, such as dental care, vision care, coinsurance, deductibles, and over-the-counter and 
prescription drugs that are not covered by other insurance. 

Dependent Care Plan 
This plan allows employees to designate a portion of their income, up to a maximum amount allowed 
per year, to be placed into their flexible spending account. This money can be used to pay for eligible 
child or eldercare expenses. 

Employee Handbook 
February 16, 201715. 2018 Page 22 



214

In the event the above information conflicts with the actual terms and conditions of coverage, the latter 
governs. For more information, please refer to the Summary Plan Description, or contact Human 
Resources. 

Paid Time-Off (PTO) 
The Town strives to provide equity, consistency, and flexibility in the delivery of benefit alternatives to 
Town employees. Where appropriate, certain benefits have also been designed to incorporate 
employee tenure to recognize and reward long-term service to the Town. All eligible employees accrue 
PTO based on the schedule as set forth below, not including overtime and leaves of absence. 
It is the policy of the Town to provide employees necessary time away from work. This policy is 
implemented by means of the PTO plan, which covers all paid PTO previously available under the Town's 
PTO and PTO policies. 

PTO can be utilized for any purpose, subject only to necessary request/ approval procedures consistent 
with the Town of Mountain Village Employee Handbook. 

,.... 

PTO Accrual - Plan A (Employees eligible prior to November 3, 2013 

Years of Eligibility 
Annual Accrual Rate Hourly Accrual Maximum 

PTO Payout Cap (hours) Rate Bankable Hours 

Less than or equal to 2 
192 0.0923 384 years 120 

2.1- 3 years 208 0.1 416 152 
3.1- 4 years 216 0.1038 432 184 

4.1- 5 years 224 0.1076 448 216 
5.1-6 years 232 0.1115 464 224 
6.1- 7 years 240 0.1153 480 280 
7.1- 8 years 248 0.1192 496 340 

- ,-

--
8.1-9 years 

9.1-10 years 

10.1- 11 years 

11.1-12 years 

12.1-13 years 

13.1 -14 years 

14.1-15 years 

15.1- 16 years 

Employee Handbook 
February ¼,-2-0-1-715. 2018 

256 

264 

272 

280 

288 

296 

304 

312 

0.123 512 340 

0.1269 528 340 

0.1307 544 400 

0.1346 560 400 

0.1384 576 400 

0.1423 592 400 

0.1461 608 400 

0.15 624 460 

Page 23 



215

16.1-17 years 320 0.1538 640 460 

17.1-18 years 328 0.1576 656 460 

18.1- 19 years 336 0.1615 672 460 

19.1- 20 years 344 0.1653 688 460 

• 20 years 352 0.1692 704 520 

PTO Accrual - Plan B (Employees eligible on November 3, 2013 or later) 

Years of Eligibility 
Annual Accrual Rate Hourly Accrual Maximum 

PTO Payout Cap 
(hours) Rate Bankable Hours 

0- 2 years 192 0.0923 384 124.8 
2.1- 3years 208 0.1 416 129.6 
3.1- 4 years 216 0.1038 432 134.4 
4.1- 5 years 224 0.1076 448 139.2 
5.1- 6 years 232 0.1115 464 144 
6.1- 7 years 240 0.1153 480 146.4 
7.1- 8 years 248 0.1192 488 148.8 
8.1- 9 years 256 0.123 496 151.2 

9.1-10 years 264 0.1269 504 153.6 
10.1-11 years 272 0.1307 512 156 
11.1-12 years 280 0.1346 520 158.4 

12.1-13 years 288 0.1384 528 160.8 
13.1- 14 years 296 0.1423 536 160.8 

14.01-15 years 304 0.1461 536 160.8 
15.1-16 years 312 0.15 536 160.8 
16.1-17 years 320 0.1538 536 160.8 

17.1-18 years 328 0.1576 536 160.8 
18.1-19 years 336 0.1615 536 160.8 
19.1- 20 years 344 0.1653 536 160.8 

• 20 years 352 0.1692 536 160.8 
Use of PTO 

• PTO is accrued on a per hour basis up to 80 hours and may be used subsequent to the 
payroll in which it was earned. 

Employee Handbook 
February 16, 201715, 2018 Page 24 



216

• PTO time is available for an employee's absence due to a minor illness or injury. In the 
event an employee is absent for more than three days or in cases of excessive absenteeism, 
medical certification from a healthcare provider must be provided by the employee if 
requested by the employee's supervisor or Department Head. The Department Head may 
also require certification from a physician that the employee is capable of returning to work. 
(See FMLA) 

• PTO will continue to accrue up to the Maximum Bankable Hours listed above but only the 
number of hours set forth below will be paid out at termination: 

• Non-scheduled use must be requested prior to the beginning of a shift or per departmental 
practices. Non-scheduled PTO requests may be denied depending on staffing needs. 

• Employees receiving Workers Compensation may use accrued PTO hours to return to 100% of 
their net salary. 

• An employee taking an unpaid leave of absence must use all accrued PTO hours before 
beginning the unpaid leave. 

• Supervisors have the authority to encourage and/or deny use of PTO during critical times. 
Termination Benefits 
Upon Lermination of employment with the Town, PTO will be paid at the employee's hourly wage based 
upon the PTO Payout Caps listed above. 
Termination pay cannot be used to extend the employee's date of termination beyond the last 
scheduled workday. 

nnn~t,:i.rl PTn Pnlirv - ------- .. - . -··-, 
The intent of this section is to allow for the transfer of accrued PTO from one employee to the paid time 
off account of another employee who has a need for additional paid PTO because he/she has exhausted 
all paid PTO. The donation of accumulated PTO can be done only on a dollar for dollar basis. The 
employee requesting donated PTO shall submit a request to Human Resources authorized by the 
recipient's Department Head. PTO may be donated to all employees including seasonal and part-time 
employees subject to all terms and conditions contained in this policy. 

Employees may also contribute to a Donation Bank. All employees may be eligible recipients of the 
Donation Bank. Requests for PTO donations from the bank must be submitted to Human Resources. 
Donations must be approved by the depilrtment directors/supervisors. 

The Town Manager reserves the right to determine eligibility for donation transfer on a case-by-case 
basis. Exercise of the donation policy shall not establish precedent or practice and shall not be subject 
to the grievance procedure. 

Donated PTO Terms and Conditions 
1. Donations may be from accrued PTO and will be credited to the recipient's PTO account. Donations will 

be subject to policies that govern the PTO policy. 
2. The recipient must first use all accrued PTO before being eligible to receive donated PTO. 
3. Employees receiving worker's compensation, disability, or other similar benefits are not eligible to receive 

donated PTO. 
4. Any donation of PTO must be at least four hours and not more than forty hours per year from any one 

donor to any one employee unless approved by the Town Manager. Department Directors/Supervisors 
must authorize the donation of PTO to their employees. 

5. The donor must maintain at least 40 hours of PTO in their own account. 

Employee Handbook 
February~lS. 2018 Page 25 



217

6. The donated PTO will be transferred at the donor's pay rate and used at the recipients pay rate. 
7. Donations may be made retroactively, but no more than sixty days retroactively. 
8. Names of donors and recipients will not be revealed unless the donors and recipients choose to do so in 

writing. 
9. Employees are only eligible to receive donated PTO for normal work hours lost. 
10. Employees will be allowed to receive up to 480 hours of donated PTO annually. Any donation of PTO 

must be approved by the recipient's Department Head. 
11. Donated PTO hours do not qualify for cash payout upon termination. 

8 PEAAe 
Short Term Disability (STD) (all employees except Police) 

Colorado PERA members with five or more years of earned service credit are covered by short term 
disability (STD) insurance and a disability retirement benefit. STD may provide reasonable income after 
you have been unable to work for 60 days. STD lasts a maximum of 22 months. The maximum income 
is 60% of your pre-disability earnings. www.copera.org 

1reStandan:f Group Long Term Disability Insurance (LTD) 
At no cost to the employee, full time/year-round employees (group 1, 2, 6 & 7) are automatically 
enrolled into the Town of Mountain Village Group Long Term Disability Insurance Program. This 
program provides employees with income protection if they are unable to work more than 90 days due 
to illness, physical disease, injury, pregnancy or mental disorder. 

1 == t 
l:CI--~ HOOS4-G 
oppowru • v Employee Housing Program 
Furnished one-bedroom, shared occupancy units may be available for full time, seasonal employees at 
Village Court Apartments. Priority for the program is given to departments providing essential services 
to help them maintain the operational staff to meet the needs of the community. Contact the HR 
Coordinator for more information. 

Housing Down Payment Assistance Program (refer to Employer Assisted Housing 
Program 
An employee may be eligible for housing assistance towards the purchase of a home in Mountain 
W#agewithin the Town of Mountain Vi llage employee shuttle area -depending on the Town's available 
funding. The area extends to Cortez, Nucla, Telluride, Ridgway, Montrose and all intervening 
communities as well as San Miguel County.) Contact Human Resources for more information. 

Ski Passes and Skiing Privileges (refer to the Ski & Snowboard Pass Request Policy) 
Employees are eligible for a discounted ski pass. 

Seasonal and part time employees (working a min imum of 20 hours/ week) are eligible for a merchant 
ski pass. Group I, 2, 6, & 7 are eligible to use t heir Wellness Reimbursement towards a ski pass. 

All ski passes are a taxable benefit. 

Employee Handbook 
February 16, 201715. 2018 Page 26 



218

For those who are new to the mountain, the fastest way to lose your ski privilege is to sell, loan or give 
away your ski passes. Misuse or abuse of ski passes is closely monitored. Selling, loaning or giving away 
either your Season pass or the Day Passes is against the law. This type of ski pass misuse is called "Theft 
of Skier Services". For your own protection, you should know that selling, loaning or giving away a Day 
Pass is a Class Ill Misdemeanor punishable by six months in prison and up to a $500.00 fine. Selling, 
loaning or giving away a Season Pass is a Class IV Felony Theft carrying a maximum penalty of up to six 
years in prison and a minimum fine of $2,000.00. In addition to these penalties other additional 
disciplinary actions may also occur. 

Wellness Reimbursement Program (refer to the Wellness Reimbursement Policy) 
In effort to promote healthy lifestyles for employees, thereby result ing in improved employee 
productivity. morale and hea lthcare cost savings. the town will reimburse full t ime. year-round 
employees up to $895 towards a season ski pass or other wellness qua lifying items. Eligible employees 
must be hired prior to January 1. 

Unemployment Insurance 
The Town contributes a percentage of employee's wages to the state to provide unemployment benefits 
if an employee becomes unemployed through no fault of their own. Eligibility for benefits is an 
individual determination made by the appropriate state agency. 

PAY 
This section of your handbook explains how payroll is administered, defines Employee Classification 
Groups, outlines Employee Benefits and explains Eligibility. 

Employee Information Changes 
Employees are required to contact the Human Resource Department if changes occur in the following 
information: 

• Marital status 
• Dependent insurance coverage information 
• W-4 or 401(k) contributions 
• Address, telephone or other contact information 

-• Dnver'slkense or identffication renewal 
• Completion of education, credential or training program 
• Beneficiary changes 
• Bank information for direct deposit 

o Inaccurate bank routing information may result in delayed processing of funds until the 
next pay period. Use pre-note if unsure of account numbers. 

In some cases, your insurance eligibility or other dependent coverage options may be affected by 
inaccurate information. 

Garnishments and Attachments 
By court action, a creditor may require the Town to withhold a certain percentage of your pay. If 
garnishments or similar proceedings are instituted against an employee, the Town will deduct the 
required amount from the employee's paycheck. Garnishment actions are conducted in compliance 
with appropriate federal and state laws. 

Employee Handbook 
February le, 201715, 2018 Page 27 



219

Holiday Pay Dates 
It is the policy of the Town to provide employees with certain holiday pay dates. Employees must work 
their regularly scheduled shift prior to and after the holiday to be eligible for the holiday pay rate. All 
non-exempt employees of the Town shall receive time and one half ifthey work on the following 
designated official holiday pay dates: 

Holiday 
New Year's Day 
Memorial Day 
Independence Day 
Labor Day 
Thanksgiving Day 
Christmas Day 

If an employee does not work on a holiday pay date they must use PTO if they want to be compensated 
for that day. 

Compensation and Calculation of Holiday Pay 
When a non-exempt employee is scheduled to work an official holiday pay date, the employee shall be 
paid time and one-half for the hours worked. (i.e. An employee that makes $10.00/hr will be paid 
$15.00/hour for working a designated holiday pay date). If overtime is worked on a holiday over forty 
hours, the overtime hours will be paid at 2.25 times the regular pay rate (i.e. if an employee that makes 
$10/hour works 36 hours of regular time, and 8 hours on a holiday pay date he/she will be paid 
$15/hour for 4 hours and $22.50 for the 4 overtime hours). Pre-approval by the Town manager is 
required for exempt employees to receive holiday pay. 

Lost Paychecks 
Employees are responsible for their paychecks once they have been received from the supervisor. If an 
employee loses a check, they should immediately notify their supervisor. Employees should not expect 
to receive their replacement paycheck until five working days after a check has been reported lost. This 
delay is due to the amount of time required to stop payment on one check and to issue a new one. 

On Call Duty & Pay (except Police) 
The safety sensitive and customer service nature of many of our departments dictates the need for 
twenty-four hour, seven-day coverage. These departments operate fully staffed during normal business 
hours and require coverage by "On Call" personnel after hours, on holidays and weekends. The term 
"On Call" means that an employee carries an electronic communication device (i.e.: cellular phone, 
pager or radio) and responds to whatever calls may come in after hours. This response is made first by 
phone and, if necessary, secondly by going into work and physically addressing whatever the problem 
might be. In instances where calls come in reporting severe or emergency conditions, an employee 
should contact their supervisor and report as to the condition. Supervisors should discuss with 
employees the types of situations constituting a severe or emergency condition, for which the 
supervisor should be contacted. 

Employee Handbook 
February 16, 201715, 2018 Page 28 



220

Exempt (salaried) personnel performing "On Call" duties are not eligible for additional compensation for 
time spent being "On Call", for being called out or for overtime in accordance with applicable federal 
wage and salary guidelines. 

Eligible non-exempt (hourly) employees performing "On Call" duties are eligible for additional 
compensation for being "On Call", for being called out and for overtime hours (hours spent over their 
normal 40-hour work week). Non-exempt employees will be compensated in the following manner and 
at the following rates: 

11On Call" Pay for non-exempt employees 
Departments with 7-day week coverage 
$10.00 per day for after hour on call duty 

Departments with 5-day week coverage 
-$10.00 per day for after hour on call duty on days the employee is regularly scheduled to work. 
-$25.00 per day on days the employee is not regularly scheduled to work and there is no day time 
coverage, and when the employee is required to respond 24 hours a day 

11Call Out" Pay for non-exempt employees 
"Call Out" pay for non-exempt employees is paid at the regular hourly rate up to 40 hours per week. 
Employees will be paid at 1 ½ times the regular hourly rate over '10 hours per week. 

On Call Staffing: 
The "On Call" schedule for each department may be staffed by management personnel, supervisory 
personnel or hourly personnel at the discretion of the department manager/supervisor. 

Overtime Compensation 
From time to time, employees may be required to work overtime. In these instances, employees are 
given as much advance notice as practical. Non-exempt employees are paid at the rate of one and one
half times their regular rate for hours worked in excess of 40 during the established workweek. For 
purposes of calculating overtime, only hours actually worked are counted. 

Town Pmploypp.c; m;:iy elect, at their own discretion, to work in jobs outside their regular duties and 
departments without incurring overtime. The extra work must be completely separate from their 
regular job and must be very occasional. There is no set number of hours for these sporadic 
assignments, however, they should be relatively minimal. 

Non-exempt (Hourly) Employees 
All non-exempt employees (employees paid on an hourly basis), with the exception of Police Officers, 
will be compensated at an overtime rate of one and one-half times their regular rate for all hours 
worked in excess of 40 hours per week. A week is defined as Sunday through Saturday. Time paid but 
not worked (i.e. PTO and/or jury duty) will not be counted as hours in calculating weekly overtime. All 
overtime must be pre-authorized by a supervisor. 

Exempt {Salaried) Employees 
Exempt employees are not subject to overtime provisions. No overtime will be paid for hours worked in 
excess of 40 hours per week. 

Employee Handbook 
February 16, 201715. 2018 Page 29 



221

Compensatory time may be granted for extra hours worked under certain circumstances, entirely 
through the generosity of the Town and only with the pre-approval of the direct supervisor and Town 
Manager. Approved compensatory time may only be taken during the pay period in which the extra 
time worked is incurred and cannot be carried over to future pay periods. 

Overtime Pay for Police Officers 
Police Officers are paid overtime at a rate of time and one half for hours worked in excess of eighty 
hours per two-week pay period. A two-week pay period for Police Officers is defined as Sunday of one 
week through Saturday of the following week. Time paid but not worked (e.g., PTO, jury duty) will not 
be counted as hours in calculating weekly overtime. All overtime must be pre-authorized by a 
supervisor. 

Pay Period and Paydays 
Employees are paid on a biweekly basis. The pay period runs from Sunday through Saturday. Actual 
paydays are regularly scheduled for the Friday following the close of the pay period the previous 
Saturday. Employees may obtain their paychecks and/or pay statements directly from their supervisor. 
For the employees' convenience, we offer the option of having paychecks automatically deposited to 
bank account(s). Employees that also opt to receive an electronic statement can view/print their direct 
deposit statement via online employee self-service. 

Payroll Deductions 
Applicable federal and state taxes are withheld from your paycheck each pay period. The law requires 
that a specified amount be withheld for Medicare Tax and Public Employees Retirement Association 
(PERA) benefits. The number of exemptions each employee claims on their W-4 form determines the 
amount of federal and state withholding. 
If you need to increase your federal or state withholding or change the number of exemptions claimed, 
you must initiate the changes on line in Ultipro or notify the Human Resources Department and 
complete the required forms. 

Payroll Disruption 
If the Town experiences computer failure or some other complication that could cause disruption of the 
paycheck distribution schedule, the Town will use its best efforts to distribute the paychecks within 
forty-eight (48) hours of the affected payday. 

Personal Expenses 
From time to time employees may use their personal credit card on behalf of the Town. These 
circumstances should be rare and limited to relatively minor sums of money. The Town will only 
reimburse employees for expenses incurred while conducting legitimate Town business, including 
training, and accompanied by a receipt. Using a personal credit card to pay for town customers or 
tenants is prohibited. 

Time Reporting 
All employees are required to record the hours worked and project tasks via time clock, computer, or 
phone. Time utilized commuting to and from the workplace is not considered hours worked. Scheduled 
time off for any employee must be taken as PTO or unpaid leave. All timesheets must reflect the actual 
hours worked. The accuracy of employee time reporting is the responsibility of the employee. 

Employee Handbook 
February 16, 201715, 2018 Page 30 



222

The supervisor is responsible for verifying, approving and submitting time records no later than 10 am 
on the Monday prior to payday. If there is a discrepancy between times shown on the time record and 
the employee's paycheck, employees should notify their supervisor immediately. If an employee has 
not recorded their time properly, adjustments may be made to the next paycheck if appropriate. 

Do not punch "In" before starting a shift more than seven minutes before the normal start of that shift. 
For example, if your shift begins at 8:00 a.m., do not punch "In" before 7:53 a.m. unless instructed 
otherwise by your supervisor. 

Punch "Out" as soon as possible following the completion of your shift. Normally, this should not be 
more than seven minutes following the end of your shift, unless you are authorized to work overtime. 

Employees may not punch another person's time card. Employees may not falsify information on time 
cards. Should an employee punch another person's time card by mistake, the employee must notify 
their supervisor immediately. Falsification or tampering with time records or violation of this policy is 
subject to disciplinary action including termination. 

Tips, Commissions or Fees 
The solicitation or acceptance of unauthorized tips, commissions, fees, or items of monetary value from 
guests, representatives, suppliers, or any other source, as compensation for services rendered is 
improper and illegal. (See Code of Ethics Policy) 

Travel, Training & Education 
Employee Development 
Employees may be given the opportunity to develop their work capacity so that they can improve and 
extend their contribution to the employer. The department head must approve in advance any 
employee training to determine the value to the employee and Town. 

A completed Per Diem Travel Expense Form with department head approval is necessary for any 
reimbursement. Cash advances may be allowed if requested at least 48 hours in advance. Expenses for 
alcoholic beverages and personal entertainment are not reimbursable. Mileage for use of a personal 
vehicle is reimbursable at the current IRS rate. Registration fees and/or airfare are generally paid before 
the trip. 

TIME OFF 

Absence Requests 
Requests for absence from work must be submitted to the supervisor. Supervisors have the authority to 
grant or deny requests based upon a variety of factors including but not limited to: department staffing 
considerations, reason for needing the absence, whether the employee has adequate PTO accrued to 
accommodate the request, tenure with the Town, etc. Failure to submit absence requests in a timely 
manner may result in requests being denied. 

Bereavement/Fu nera I 
All full time, year-round employees will be granted up to five days (40 Hours) of paid leave due to a 
death of an immediate family member. "Immediate family" is defined as follows: spouse, children, 

Employee Handbook 
February -Ui,--W--1-715. 2018 Page 31 



223

parents, brothers, sisters, grandchildren or grandparents of either employee or employee's spouse. This 
paid leave is in addition to any PTO the employee may be eligible for. The Town reserves the right to 
request proof of such death. Pay will be calculated based on straight time of the employee's normally 
scheduled work week. 

Employees are also allowed up to four hours of paid leave to attend a fellow employee's funeral service. 
Time off is subject to supervisor approval. Employees are required to use PTO if they need additional 
time. 

Domestic Abuse Leave 
The Town provides leave to employees who are the victims of domestic violence or abuse, stalking, 
sexual assault, or a crime found by the court to include an act of domestic violence. To be eligible for 
this leave, an employee must be employed for at least 12 months preceding the leave. Upon reasonable 
advance notice (except in cases of imminent danger to the health or safety of an employee), an 
employee may take up to three working days of leave in any 12-month period. The 12-month period 
will be measured forward from the date the first domestic violence leave begins: 
Leave is unpaid although employees may use accrued PTO. Employees must use the leave to: 

• Seek a civil protection order to prevent domestic abuse 

• Obtain medical care or mental health counseling for him or her or for his or her children to 
address physical or psychological injuries resulting from the domestic abuse, stalking, sexual 
assault, or other crime involving domestic violence 

• Make his or her home secure or seek new housing to escape the perpetrator 

• Seek legal assistance and prepare for and attend court-related proceedings arising from acts of 
domestic violence 

Employees must contact Human Resources to request leave. The Town requires appropriate 
documentation to approve this leave. Appropriate documentation may include police reports, court 
orders, confirmation of court appearances, or documentation from medical and other professionals. 

Unpaid Time Off/ Extended Leaves of Absence 
Employees may, with their department director's approval, take unpaid time off from work; however, 
employees are required to exhaust all PTO first. 

Full time, year-round employees may be granted an extended leave of absence that is voluntary time off 
without pay for reasons other than otherwise protected under federal or state law (illness, disability). 

Such requests will be granted in the Town's sole discretion based on a variety of factors, but not limited 
to, the reason for, and length of the requested leave, length of employment, employee performance, 
workload, and the ability of the Town to cover an employee's job responsibilities during the requested 
leave. In order to be eligible for an unpaid personal leave of absence, employees must be in good 
standing and have continuously worked for the Town for one year. 

The Town will consider an unpaid personal leave of absence up to six weeks. 

Employees should submit requests to their supervisor. Except in the case of emergencies, requests for 
personal leaves of absence should be submitted at least four weeks in advance of the need for the 
leave. Employees must use all paid leave available before starting a personal leave of absence. The 

Employee Handbook 
February 16, 201715. 2018 Page 32 



224

employee will not accrue PTO during unpaid time off since PTO is based upon hours worked. Paid 
bereavement leave or employer's jury duty pay are not granted on unpaid leave. Health, dental and 
vision benefits will remain in force if the individual makes prior arrangements to pay their share of the 
costs. Employees should consult human resources to determine the impact of any approved leave on 
an employee's eligibility for group benefits and required premium payments. 

The department director, Human Resources, and the Town Manager must approve all personal leaves of 
absence. 

Jury Duty 
Employees will receive the necessary time off for jury duty. Any employee who is summoned for jury 
duty or subpoenaed in connection with his or her employment during regularly scheduled work time will 
be compensated for scheduled hours. When summoned, employees should notify and submit a copy of 
the summons to their immediate supervisor. If excused from jury duty during regular working hours, 
employees are expected to return to work. Employees will receive their normal pay for all jury duty 
hours worked that coincides with their regularly scheduled work time. Employees must endorse all jury 
duty compensation checks to the Town or have the amount deducted from their pay. 

Family and Medical Leave (FMLA) 
The Town provides up to 12 weeks of unpaid, job-protected leave to eligible employees for the following 
reasons: 

• Incapacity due to pregnancy, prenatal medical care, or child birth. 
~ Tc c~rc for the cmp!oyee's chUd ~ftei biith, Oi placement foi adoption Oi fostei care. 
• To care for the employee's spouse, son or daughter, or parent, who has a serious health 

condition 
• Serious health condition that makes the employee unable to perform the employee's job. 

Military Family Leave Entitlements 
Eligible employees with a spouse, son, daughter, or parent on active duty or called to active duty status 
in the Armed Forces, National Guard, or Reserves may use their 12-week leave entitlement to address 
certain qualifying exigencies. Qualifying exigencies may include attending certain military events, 
arranging for alternative childcare, addressing certain financial and legal arrangements, attending 
c:P.rtain c:ounc;Pling c;pc;c;ionc;, and attendine posl-depluyrmml reintegration briefings. 

FMLA also includes a special leave entitlement that permits eligible employees to take up to 26 weeks of 
leave to care for a covered servicemember during a single 12-month period. A covered servicemember 
is: (1) a current member of the Armed Forces, including a member of the National Guard or Reserves, 
who is undergoing medical treatment, recuperation or therapy, is otherwise in outpatient status, or is 
otherwise on the temporary disability retired list, for a serious injury or illness*; or (2) a veteran who 
was discharged or released under conditions other than dishonorable at any time during the five-year 
period prior to the first date the eligible employee takes FMLA leave to care for the covered veteran, 
and who is undergoing medical treatment, recuperation, or therapy for a serious injury or illness.* 

*The FMLA definitions of "serious injury or illness" for current servicemembers and veterans are distinct 
from the FMLA definition of "serious health condition." 

Benefits and Protections 

Employee Handbook 
February~15. 2018 Page 33 



225

During FMLA leave, the Town maintains the employee's health coverage under any group health plan on 
the same terms as if the employee had continued to work. Employees must continue to pay their 
portion of any insurance premium while on leave. If the employee is able but does not return to work 
after the expiration of the leave, the employee will be required to reimburse the Town for payment of 
insurance premiums during leave. 

Upon return from FMLA leave, most employees are restored to their original or equivalent positions 
with equivalent pay, benefits, and other employment terms. Certain highly compensated employees 
(key employees) may have limited reinstatement rights. 

Use of FMLA leave cannot result in the loss of any employment benefit that accrued prior to the start of 
an employee's leave. As with other types of unpaid leaves, paid leave will not accrue during the unpaid 
leave. Holidays, funeral leave, or employer's jury duty pay are not granted on unpaid leave. 

Eligibility Requirements 
Employees are eligible if they have worked for the Town for at least 12 months and for 1,250 hours over 
the previous 12 months. 

Definition of Serious Health Condition 
A serious health condition is an illness, injury, impairment, or physical or mental condition that involves 
either an overnight stay in a medical care facility, or continuing treatment by a health care provider for a 
condition that either prevents the employee from performing the functions of the employee's job, or 
prevents a qualified family member from participating in school or other daily activities. 

Subject to certain conditions, the continuing treatment requirement may be met by a period of 
incapacity of more than three consecutive full calendar days combined with at least two visits to a 
health care provider or one visit and a regimen of continuing treatment, or incapacity due to pregnancy, 
or incapacity due to a chronic condition. Other conditions may meet the definition of continuing 
treatment. 

Use of Leave 
The maximum time allowed for FMLA leave is 12 weeks in the 12-month period. The Town uses the 12-
month period measured forward from the first day of an employee's leave. 

An employee does not need to use this leave entitlement in one block. Leave can be taken 
intermittently or on a reduced leave schedule when medically necessary. Employees must make 
reasonable efforts to schedule leave for planned medical treatment so as not to unduly disrupt the 
Town's operations. Leave due to qualifying exigencies may also be taken on an intermittent basis .. 

Employees taking intermittent or reduced schedule leave based on planned medical treatment and 
those taking intermittent or reduced schedule family leave with the Town's agreement may be required 
to temporarily transfer to another job with equivalent pay and benefits that better accommodates that 
type of leave. 

Substitution of Paid Leave for Unpaid Leave 
The Town requires employees to use accrued paid leave while taking FMLA leave. Paid leave used at the 
same time as FMLA leave must be taken in compliance with the Town's normal paid leave policies. If an 
employee's leave of absence does not constitute paid leave as defined by the town's paid leave policies, 

Employee Handbook 
February 16, 201715. 2018 Page 34 



226

the employee cannot use accrued paid leave, but can take unpaid leave. FMLA leave is without pay 
when paid leave benefits are exhausted. 

Employee Responsibilities 
Employees must provide 30 days advance notice of the need to take FMLA leave when the need is 
foreseeable. When 30 days' notice is not possible, the employee must provide notice as soon as 
practicable and generally must comply with the Town's normal call-in procedures. 

Employees must provide sufficient information for the Town to determine if the leave may qualify for 
FMLA protection and the anticipated timing and duration of the leave. Sufficient information may 
include that the employee is unable to perform job functions; the family member is unable to perform 
daily activities, the need for hospitalization or continuing treatment by a health care provider, or 
circumstances supporting the need for military family leave. Employees also must inform the Town if the 
requested leave is for a reason for which FMLA leave was previously taken or certified. 

Employees also may be required to provide a certification and periodic recertification supporting the 
need for leave. The Town may require second and third medical opinions at the Town's expense. 
Documentation confirming family relationship, adoption, or foster care may be required. If notification 
and appropriate certification are not provided in a timely manner, approval for leave may be denied. 
Continued absence after denial of leave may result in disciplinary action in accordance with the Town's 
attend;inc.e guideline. Employees on leave must contact the Human Resource Director at least two days 
before their first day of return. 

The Town's Responsibilities 
The Town will inform employees requesting leave whether they are eligible under FMLA. If they are, the 
notice will specify any additional information required as well as the employees' rights and 
responsibilities. The Town will provide a reason for the ineligibility if they are not eligible. 

The Town will inform employees if leave will be designated as FM LA-protected and the amount of leave 
counted against the employee's leave entitlement. If the Town determines that the leave is not FMLA
protected, the Town will notify the employee. 

Unlawful Acts 

• FMLA makes it unlawtul tor the Town to: Interfere with, restrain, or deny the exercise of any 
right provided under FMLA. 

• Discharge or discriminate against any person for opposing any practice made unlawful by FMLA 
or for involvement in any proceeding under or relating to FMLA. 

Enforcement 
An employee may file a complaint with the U.S. Department of Labor or may bring a private lawsuit 
against the Town. 

FMLA does not affect any federal or state law prohibiting discrimination, or supersede any state or local 
law or collective bargaining agreement which provides greater family or medical leave rights. 

Non-Work Related and Non-FMLA Medical Leave 

Employee Handbook 
February ~15. 2018 Page 35 



227

Employees who have not worked 12 months or 1,250 hours are not eligible for the Town's FMLA 
guideline. New employees requiring non-work related medical leave may have up to two (2) weeks 
unpaid time off without jeopardizing their employment status. Employees requiring more time off than 
two weeks may be involuntarily terminated in order to allow the Town to address staffing needs. 
Employees terminated under these circumstances may be eligible for consideration for future positions 
once they are able to return to work. 

Any employee requiring non-work related medical leave must produce a doctor's excuse in order to 
receive approval for that leave. Upon the employee's return to work, they must produce a doctor's 
release for full or modified duty. 

Family Care Act Leave 
The Town provides up to 12 weeks of unpaid leave to eligible employees to care for their partners in a 
civil union or domestic partnership, who have serious health conditions. Generally, leave under the 
Family Care Act is administered consistent with FMLA regulations. Contact your supervisor or Human 
Resources if you need family care leave. 

Military Leave/ Reserve Duty 

Employees are granted an unpaid military leave of absence, subject to federal law. 

If employees are in the Reserves or National Guard and are called for training, the training period will 
not be charged to paid time off (PTO) unless the employee makes such a request. The Town currently 
compensates employees for a portion of military leave by paying employees the difference between 
military pay (not including travel or subsistence allowances) and Town pay up to 15 days per calendar 
year. 

The Town prohibits retaliation against any employee for taking time off under this policy. If you believe 
there has been a violation of our retaliation standard, please contact the Human Resources Department. 

Office Closures 
In the case of inclement weather or emergency conditions, the Town Manager may close Town facilities 
or suspend Town operations. Employees are expected to be at their work stations unless the Town 
Manager declares the offices officially closed. Any employee who is absent from their work station when 
offices are officially open will be charged personal time off (PTO) or leave without pay for the time 
missed. Employees will be paid for their regular work day when offices are officially closed due to 
weather conditions. 

Voting 
The Town will give an employee time off to vote. The employee will be paid for working time he or she 
is required to miss in order to vote. The employee is required to apply for the leave before the day of 
election and the supervisor may specify the hours that the employee may be absent, provided, however, 
that the hours shall be at the beginning or end of a shift if the employee so requests. 

Work Environment 

Appearance 

Employee Handbook 
February 16, 201715, 2018 Page 36 



228

The Town believes an employee's dress and grooming should be appropriate to the work situation. 
Radical departures from what the Town considers conventional dress or grooming are not permitted, 
regardless of the nature of the job performed. 
Personal appearance is important to maintaining our commitment to excellence, and our commitment 
to a professional image. While appearance is a matter of personal taste and personal pride, certain 
standards must be adhered to. You may be required to wear a specific uniform, however if you are not, 
you are expected to have a "resort casual" appearance. In that respect, the following list is a partial list 
of inappropriate attire/styles: 

• Extremely "short" shorts, skirts and dresses. 
• Extremely low-cut blouses or shirts with cleavage or chest hair showing. 
• Clothing that reveals undergarments (or lack thereof). 
• Frayed, worn-out or overly faded clothing. 
• Belts, chains, or other attachments that could be become a safety issue. 
• Excessive ear piercing (more than three earrings per ear). 
• Any overly extreme hairstyles, dress or jewelry. 
_•_Flip-flops, thongs or sandals worn in safety sensitive areas are not permissible. These types of 

shoes may only be worn where job appropriate and where safety standards permit. 

All employees should wear their hair clean and neatly groomed so that it does not interfere with 
operational duties or the professional image of the employee. Departmental guidelines may require 
certain hair restrictions due to health and safety requirements at the direction of their department 
supervisor/manager. Hair must be of a natural color. 

Attendance & Punctuality 
Excessive absenteeism and late attendance places a huge burden on other employees and on the Town. 
In many cases, working short staffed compromises employee safety and it is detrimental to the quality 
of guest service we provide the public and our customers. Each employee is expected to be prompt and 
regular in attendance. Your attendance and punctuality record will be a key consideration in granting 
pay raises, promotions or transfers. Personal appointments should be scheduled during the lunch hour 
or after work hours, whenever possible. If scheduling a personal appointment during working hours is 
absolutely necessary, advance approval from your supervisor is required. 

The Town has a strict pulicy rt:!lctlivt:! tu ctn employee's failure to report to work. As soon as you know 
that you will be absent or late to work, you must telephone your supervisor to report your absence or 
lateness. Permission not to report to work must be obtained directly from your supervisor. Leaving a 
message with non-designated employee is not acceptable. Failure to promptly report your absence or 
lateness will not be tolerated. Your supervisor will determine what constitutes an excused or unexcused 
absence. The Town reserves the right to make allowances, at its sole discretion, for what it considers 
emergency or extraordinary circumstances. 

Name Tags 
Failure to wear a provided nametag or wearing another person's nametag is not acceptable. If you lose 
your nametag please notify your supervisor immediately so that a replacement can be obtained. 
Front line employees are asked to wear buttons to be more visible for guests, visitors, and residents. 

Employee Handbook 
February~lS, 2018 Page 37 



229

ID Cards 
Employees are issued Town employee identification cards when required by their position. Upon 

termination employees must return cards to Human Resources. 

Uniforms 
Many employees are required to wear a uniform during working hours, furnished by the Town. When 
uniforms and other Town owned equipment are issued, employees will be asked to sign a uniform/ 
equipment log identifying each item received its value and the Town's policy regarding return ofthese 
items to the Town. The uniform/equipment log clearly states that the value of any items not returned 
to the Town may be deducted from an employee's final paycheck 
Employees are responsible for the maintenance of all uniforms and equipment assigned to them. All 
uniform and employee clothing shall be in good condition, free of stains, rips, holes and excessive wear. 
It is the responsibility of each Town employee to maintain his/her uniform work clothing in a neat, 
clean, and identifiable condition. Replacement of worn, tattered or stained clothing may be arranged 
with the supervisor upon the return of the excessively worn or stained clothing at the supervisor's 
discretion. 

Department Managers and Supervisors are responsible for department inventory of all uniforms -
issuing at hire and collecting upon termination. Employees will be charged for all items not returned. 

Lunch (Does not apply to Police) 
The supervisor will determine when, during your shift, you may take your lunch period. Lunch periods 
are not paid by the Town unless the employee is required to take a working lunch. Employees who take 
their meal breaks at their desks are asked to refrain from working during that time. The Town 
encourages employees to leave their work area during meal time. On the rare occasion that an 
employee must work through lunch, due to staffing shortage or other considerations, the employee will 
be paid for the portion of their lunch time worked. Prior authorization is required before employees 
work overtime or through meal breaks. Employees who abuse this regulation may be subject to 
disciplinary actions. 

Communication Systems & Password Policy (refer to the IT Security Policy) 
Town of Mountain Village is committed to protecting its employees. partners. and the company from illegal or 
damaging actions by individuals. whether committed knowingly or unknowingly. lnternet/intranet/extranet
related systems, including but not limited to computer equipment. software. operating systems. storage media, 
network accounts providing electronic mail. Web browsing. and FTP, are the property of Town of Mounta in 
Village. You are expected to use these systems for bus iness purposes in the interests of the company, our c lients, 
and our customers in the course of normal operations . Effective security is a team effort involving the participation 
and support of every Town of Mountain Village employee and affiliate who deals with information and/or 
information systems. It is your responsibi litv as a computer user to know lhese guidelines. and to act accordinglv. 

General Use and Ownership 

L. While Town of Mountain Village' network administration desires to provide a reasonable 
level of privacy. vou hould be aware thal the data you create on corporate ystems remains the 
property of Town of Moun tain Vil I age. Because of the need to protect Town of Mountain 
Vil lage's network. management does guarantee the confidentiality of information stored on any 
network dev ice belong-ing to Town of Mountain VIiiage. 

2. You are responsible for exerc ising good judgment regarding the reasonablene s of per anal 
use. Individual departments are responsible for creating guidelines concern ing personal use of 

Employee Handbook 
February 16, 201715, 2018 Page 38 



230

lntemet/intranet'extranet systems. In the absence of such policies. you should follow 
departmental po licies on personal use, and, if there is any uncertaintv, consu lt your supervisor 
or manager. 

3. ·ro\Yll of Mounta in Village reco1nmends enc1ypting any inforination that you consider 
sensitive or vu lnerable. ·or guidelines on information classification. see Lhe In formation 
Sensitivity Policy. Por guidelines on encrypting emai l and documents. see the Awareness 
Initiative. 

4. For security and network maintenance purposes, authorized individuals within Town of 
Mountain Village may monitor equipment. systems and network traffic at any time. per 
the Audit Policy. 

Security and Proprietary Information 
I. Keep passwords secure and do not share accounts. As an authorized user. you 

are responsible for the ecurity of your passwords and accounts. Change network 
system level passwords gua1terly. 

2. Secure all PCs, laptops and workstations with a password- protected screensaver with 
the automatic activation feature set at IO minutes or less. or bv logging-off (Window 
Logo + L) for Win 7/Win IO users) when the host will be unattended. 

3. Use extreme caution when opening email attachments received from unknown 
senders. The e alladune11ts may i.:untuin virust:s, email bombs, or Trojan horse code 

Unacceptable Use 
Under no circumstances i an employee of Town of Mountain Vi llage authorized to ngage in any activily that 
is illegal under local, late. federa l or internalional law while utilizing Town of Mountain Village-owned 
resources. 

he following activi ties are strictly prohibited. with no except ions: 
a) Violations of the rights of anv person or company protected bv coovri!!ht. trade 

secret. patent or other intellectual property. or similar laws or regu lations, includ ing, 
but nol li mi ted to, the installation or di tribution of"pirated" or other software 
products Lhal are not appropriately licensed for use by Town or Mountain Vi llage. 

b) Unauthorized copying of copyrighted material includine., but not limited to, 
digitization and dis lTibution of photographs from magazines, books, or other 
copyrighted sources, copyrighted mus ic, and the installation of any copyrighted 
software for which Town of Mountain Village or the end user does not have an active 
license. 

c) Exporting software, technical information. enc1y ption software or 
te hnology. in violation or international or regional export contro l laws. 
Consult appropriate management prior to expo11 of any material that is 
in question. 

d) Introducing malicious programs into the network or server (e.g .• viruses, worms, 
Trojan horses, t:rnail bombs. etc.). 

e) Revealing your account pa sword to others or allowin g use of your account by others. 
This includes family and other household members when working al home. 

f) Using a Town of Mountain Vil lage computing asset to procure or tran mi t material 
that is in violation of sexual harassment or hostil workplace laws in the user's 
local jurisdict ion. 

g) Making fraudu lent offers of products. items, or services originating from any 
Town of Mountain Village account. 

b) Making statement about warranty. expressly or implied, unle s it is a part or 
normal iob duties. 

i) Effecting security breaches or disruptions of network communication. Security breaches 
include, but are not limited to, accessing data of which you are not an intended recipient 
or logging in to a server or account that you are not expressly authorized to access, unless 
these clutie are within the scope of regular duties. Disruption' include , but is not 

Employee Handbook 
February 16, 201715. 2018 Page 39 



231

limited to, network sniffing, pinged floods, packet spoofing, denial of service, and 
forged routing information for malicious purposes. 

j) Poat scanning or securiLy scann ing. unless you previou ly notify the Town or 
Mountain Vi llage I Department. 

k) Executing any form of network monitoring that wi ll intercept data not intended for 
your hosl. un less this activity is a part of your normal duties. 

I) Circumventing user aulhentication or security of any host network. or account. 
m) Interfering with. or denying service to, any w;er other than your host (for 

example. a denia l of service attack). 
n) Using any program/script/command, or sending messages of any kind. with tJ1e intent 

lo interfere with, or disable, a user 's terminal session, via any means, locally or via the 
Intemet/intranet/ extranet. 

o) Providing information about or lists of. Town of Mounta in Vi llage employees lo 
parties outside of Town of Mountain Village departments 

Email and Communications Activities 
The follow ing are strictly prohibited, wilh no exceptions: 

1. Sending unsolicited email messages. including sending ' junk mai l ' or other advertisi11g 
material to individuals who did not specifically requesl such material (email spam). 

2 . Any fonn of ba.rassment via email. telephone. or paging, whether through language, 
frequency. or sjze of messages. 

3. Unaulhorized use, or forging. of email header information. 
4. Soliciting email for any other email address, other than that of the poster's account, 

with the intent to harass or collect replies. 
5. Creating or forwarding "chain letters' or 'Ponzi ' or oLher 'pyramid" schemes of any 

~ 
6 . Using unsol icited emai l originating from within Town of Mountain Vi llages networks or 

other lntemet/intranet/extranet service providers on behalf of. or to advertise. any service 
hosted by Town of Mountain Vi llage or connected via Town of Mountain Village' s network. 

7 . Posting the same or simi lar non-business-related messages to large number of Usenet 
newsgroups (newsgroup spam). 

Enforcement 
Any employee violating th is policy may be subject to disciplinary action, up to and including 

termination of employment. 

Anti-Virus Policy 
The policy defines standards for protecting Town of Mountain Vi llage's network from any threat 
related to Virus, Worm or Tro jan Horse. These standards minimize the potential exposure to Town 
of Mountain Village from damages that may result from and unprotected network. Damages may 
inc lude the loss of sensitive or company confidential data or intellcctuaJ property. damage to 
public image. damage to.critical Town of Mountain Village intema·1 systems, etc. 

1. Alway run the Town of Mountain Village standard, suppo1ted anli-virus software. 

2. Never open any files or macros attached to an email from an unknown, suspicious. or un
trusted source. Delete these attachments immediately. then ' double delete' them by 
emptying your trash. 

3. Delete spam, chain, and other junk email without forwarding, per Town of Mountain 
Village's Acceptable Use Policy. 

4. Never download files from unknown or suspicious sources. 

Employee Handbook 
February 16, 201715. 2018 Page 40 



232

5. Avoid di rect di k sharing with r ad/write access unless there i absolute ly a business 
requirement to do so. 

6. Always scan a floppy diskette from an unknown source for viruses before u ing it. 
7. Rack up critical data and system configurations regularly and store the data in a safe place. 
8. !flab testing conflicts with anti-virus software. run the anli-virus utili ty to ensure a clean 

machine, disable the software, and then run the lab test. After the lab test, enable the anti-virus 
software. When the anti-virus software is disabled, do not run any applications thal could 
transfer a virus. e.g .• email or file sharing. 

9. New viru e are discovered almo t every day. Periodically check the company Anti-Virus 
Policy and this Recommended Processe list for updates. 

Identity Policy 

1. All employees shou ld receive lT security training 

2. Workstations must be logged off to a point that requires a new log- on wheneve.r employees 
leave their work area. 

3. Any employee who does not acces an admin!strat i e system in a ix. rn nth Lime period will 

4. 
have his/her access removed and must be reauthorized for access. 

haring of IDs is prohibited. 
5. Access managers will (immediatelv) delete the access of employees who have terminated the 

inslit11 tion Anrl wi ll mndify tfa~ acce of one who h·ansfer to (remove capabilities dependent 
on Lhe previou position). 

6. Computer insta llations running adm inistrat ive aµp lications wil l. where poss iblt:. µruvi <lc a 
mechanism that records and logs off a user ID after a specitied period of time of inactivity: 
they will also provide a mechanism that locks a LLSer logon ID after mul tiple uns uccessful 
attempts to log on. 

Password Policy 

1. .hange all network system-level posswords (e.g., npplicalion admini tralion accounts, etc.) at 
least quarterly. 

2. hange all user-level passwords (e.g. .• email. Web, desktop computer, etc.) at least 
quarterly. 

3. Do not insert pas words into email messages or other forms of electronic 
communication. 

4. Where usi ng SNMP, define community strings as someth ing other than the standard defau lts of 
public." "prjvate.' and 'system' and make them different from the pAs.c;worrls 11sr.fl to lne in 

interactively. Use a keyed hash where available (e.g.. NMPv2). 

5. lf you usp cl an accou111 or password has been compromised, report the incident to Town 
of Mountain Vil lage Informat ion ystems department and change all passwords. 

6. own of Mountain Village or its delegates may perform password cracking or guessing on 
a periodic or random basis. !fa password is guessed or cracked during one of these scans, the 
user is required to change it. 

7. 

Social Networking Policy 
1. Personal biogs should have clear disclaimers that the views expressed by 

the author in U1e blog is the author's alone and do not represent the views of 
the company. Be clear and write in first person. Make your writing clear that 
you are speaking for yourself and not on behalfof the company. 

2. Information publ i hed on your blog(s) should comply with the 
company's confidentiality and disclosure of proprietary data policies. This 

Employee Handbook 
February 16, 201715. 2018 Page 41 



233

also applies to comments posted on other bloas, forum s, and social 
networking sites. 

3. Be respectful to the company, other employees, customers. partners, 
and competitors . 

4. Social media activities should not interfere with work commitments. 
Refer to IT resource usage policies. 

5. Your on line presence reflects the company. Be aware that your acrion captured via images, posts, 
or comments can reflect that of our company. 

6. Do not reference or site company clients, parlners. or customers without their express consent. In all 
ca e . do nol publish any information regarding a client during the engagement. 

7. Respect copyright laws. and reference or cite sources appropriate ly. Plagiarism applies on line as 
well. 

8. Company logos and trademarks may not be used without written consent. 

Enforcement 
Any employee violating the IT Security policy may be subject to disciplinary action. up to and including 
termination of employment. 

The communication systems are property of the To•,•m and intended for business use. Therefore, the 
Town maintains the abil ity to access any computer fi les, use of software, Internet usage, voice mail 
and e mail. Although employees may select individua l passwords, emplo•,ees shoulel not assume that 
such files are confidential. However, other than management employees acting on behalf of the 
Town, employees should not attempt to gain access to another emplo•,•ee's computer, Internet fi les, 
email or '•'Oice mail '.\'ithout the latter's perm ission. 

All computer users' "Windows password" must be changed at least once every 90 elai,·s. You ,...,ill-be 
prompteel to change your passv.«ord. 

All information regarding access to the Tmvn's computer resources, suct:i as user ielentifications, moelem 
phone numbers, access codes; and passwords are Tm\'n confielential information and may not be 
disclosed to non Town personnel. 

~ 

Because the Town provides the e mail si,•sten:1 to en:1plo•1ees to hel13 them •Nith the performance of their 
jobs, it should be useel for officia l To•Nn business. Incidental and occasional personal use of email is 
permitted. Ho•Ne'.«er, em13levees sl:iou ld be a11,•are that these messages will be treated the same as 
business messages, and subject to review at any time •,uithout notice. Employee correspondence on 
email may be a public record under the public records law ana-ma-y-ae-suaject to public inspection. 

Also, emplo•1ees cannot contro l where their messages will ultimately end up. For example, a message 
meant for one person can be mistal~enli,• sent to the 'Nrong ineli•;idual(s}, or the message can be 

Employee Handbook 
February 16, 201715. 2018 Page 42 



234

forwarded to unintended recipients. In addition, e mails that were deleted are stored elsewhere on the 
S','Stem. 

Personal l::lse of the Internet 
Use of the internet must not interrupt the operation of tl:le Tewn netv.•ork or t l:le netwerks of other 
users. It FRust not interfere ,,...itl:I emplo¥ee's produrtit,iit\•, 

Software and Copyrigl:lt 
The Town licenses, and does not own the software it utilizes. Therefore, use of the soft•h'are must be in 
accordance w ith the applicable Software .'\greements or as directed b•,• the Town's de~ig11aleu Suflware 
Manager. 

Emplo','ees must not use the To•,vn's technology resources to copy, retrieve, forv.iard or send 
copyrighted mat er:ia-l-s-l±fHess-t-l-'le-em-ployee-has-tRe-a1::1tRe ~ss«m. 

Unauthorized Use 
Emplo•1ees are not permitted to visit websites or send electron ic e mail t hat is deemed by management 
as inappropriate or in violation of other Town guidelines (s1::1ch as pornograph•1 or on line gambling) . We 
reserve the right to det ermine when an emplo•,•ee is using the Town communications inappropriatel','. 
Passwords 

The To'lm's Computer s1·stem requires the use of "comple•1 pass· .... orels" . "Complex passwords" re~ 
three of the f.ollowins four characters (1::1pper case, lower case, numeric and Sf;)ecial-eAar-aeter) be 
contained in •rour password . The password also must be at least eight cha racters in length. Pass>.•,•ords 
are requi red to be changed ever~• 90 da>,'S. 
It is t he emplo.,,ee's responsibil ity to protect their password (IE. QO ~lOT give out ·rour password to 
an•rone or ·1o•rite it dow n whereas someone could obtain it). 
Passwerd Respensibili~ 
It is the effiplo•ree's responsibilily lo protect their pass•.•,•ord (If . DO NOT gii.•e out •,•our password to 
an•,•one or ,.,,•rite it do•.•m whereas someone cou ld obtain it). 
Website 8le6king 
An Internet f iltering S','Stem has been deplo','ed which w ill block "known" infected websites. Other sites 
ha•r'e also been blocked based on categories. This •,viii be a11-0Agoing process in determining which 
categories to block. lnitial l•t the following categor ies ha•.ie been blocked: Adware, Dating, Gambling, 
Games, Mate/Discriminat ion, Nuelit't', P2P File/Music sharing, Pornograph~• and Web Spam. Attempting 
to access a blocked page ,,,,iil l cause this message: "'Sorry, [domain] has been blocked by ','Our netwo-rk 
adffiinistrator" . 

Note: Use of t he Internet can be important for completing job functions. This web filtering prO;ject is not 
intended to pre•,•ent ','OU from doing ~•our job or to mal~e 'fOUr job t:iarder. It is intended to protect the 
s•rstem and the users of the system. Therefore, if ·1ou need to access a 'Nebsite and it is blocl,ed, please 
notify '/Our supervisor ,,..,ho in turn will notify n:ie. VVith supervisor approval, these sites w+l-1--be unblocked 
as needed. 

Please contact ','Our manager or human resources 1•••1ith any questions. 
~mail Se6YFit'I Tips 
Have separate email accounts for v.•ork and personal activity. Having separate email accounts will not 
onl'I help eoost ·rour security, but also 1•our producti>.•it','. ln:iagine if ','OU could consolidate all of ','Our 
work emails into a single work account; all of your friends and :family communicate with your personal 

Employee Handbook 
February 16, 201715. 2018 Page 43 



235

account; you have a recreational accOtlf\t-for various 'Nebsites; and a throwaway account for potential 
spam links. This way, if someone hacl~s your work account, all of your persona l emails are still safe. 
UniE1ue Passweras: 
¥ou should use a unique password for each account that ,,,ou setup. If ~•our password is compromised, 
only that account will be affected. 
8eware of Phishing Scams: 
Basically, mali€i0-l-f5-t:lsers will imitate and impersonate high profile i.vebsites !e.g., eBay, Amazon, 
i::acebook, etc.) and say that they're experiencing trouble with your account; all you ha-.ie to do to fix it is 
to send them ·1our username and password to verify your authenticit,,. Sometimes they'll even link you 
to a false website that looks exactly like the real thing. 
Be wary. In fact, whenever your personal information is ever brought up in a non face to face capacity, 
your scam detector shou ld go off loud and clear. 
Outleek Setting: 
Disable auto pre1i.•iew pane. If a suspicious message is received, it can be deleted without being opened. 
Do Not Open Unselicited Attaet:u:r1ents; 
Attachments are a trick•r thing when it comes to email. If you're eicpecting something from a buddy or an 
uncle, then sure, go ahead and open the attachment. I-lave a laugh at the funny photo they sent you. It's 
all good when 't'OU are expecting the attachment. But if the emai l is unsolicited, nev-er open any 
attachments. Even if the file looks innocent, 't'OU could be in fo r a worlEl of hurt. Filenames can be 
spoofed. JPEGs could be EXEs in disguise and those EXEs will run as soon as they're downloaded. Ana 
then you'll have a '.'irus on your hands. 
Atteia Pulalie 'Ni i:i: 
Avoid checking your email when •tou're on public Internet. It can be tempting to ·Nhip out 1•our 
smartphone or laptop and check for new messages. Unfortunatel•y, public Wi i::i can be extremely 
insecure. There are programs out there called "network sniffers" t hat run passh.«ely in the background of 
some hacker's device. The sniffer monitors all of the wire less data f lowing through a particu lar networl, 
and that data can be analyi!ed for important information. Like your username and password. 

Voice Mai l 
Employees are responsible to make certain their voice ma il messages are reviewed in a timely fashion. 
When employees knoY.' that they are going to be out of the office for a da•r or more, they must leave 
messages on their voice mail stating when they will be returning messages, and 'lt'ho ,. • .,ill be an alternate 
contact in the meantime. 

Telephones/ Cell Phones/ Mobile Devices (refer to Cell Phone Policy) 
The Town provides mobile devices to those employees who need them to perform their jobs. Such 
devices are intended for business use. In the interest of good business practice, personal telephone 
calls, including those made with cell phones, must be minimal and not interfere with employees' 
performance of their jobs. Where personal use of Town's phones cost the Town money, the Town is 
entitled to reimbursement. This includes any additional expenses incurred when doing an upgrade. 

For safety reasons, employees should avoid the use of cell phones while driving. In accordance with 
Colorado law, all drivers are prohibited from texting while driving. 

Town cell phone numbers shall be published in the Town directory and on the town website. Phone 
numbers remain with the Town upon termination. 

Employees must report lost or stolen town devices to the Broadband Services Director immediately. 

Employee Handbook 
February 16, 201715. 2018 Page 44 



236

Conflict of Interest 
A "conflict of interest" exists when the interests of the Town or the community it serves are 
compromised by an employee's involvement in outside interests, businesses or employment. 
Employees must report in writing any outside interests, businesses or employment to their supervisor 
and to the Town Manager so that any possible conflicts of interest may be identified. 

An employee may engage in outside interests, businesses or employment only after the following has 
occurred: 

• The employee has informed their supervisor and the Town Manager in writing, 
• No conflict of interest is found to exist, and 
• The employee has received written permission from the Town Manager to proceed. 

Where there is the possibility of a conflict of interest an employee may be asked either to forgo outside 
interests, businesses and employment during their employment with the Town or to seek employment 
elsewhere. The Town believes that, in these instances, the community as a whole is better served by 
doing what is right rather than what is expedient or of direct personal gain. 

Discipline/ Discharge 
Occasionally performance or other behavior falls short of our standards and/or expectations. When this 
occurs, management takes action, which, in its opinion, seems appropriate. 

Disciplinary actions can range from a formal discussion with the employee about the matter to 
immediate discharge. Action taken by management in an individual case does not establish a precedent 
in other circumstances. An employee's conduct is a major factor affecting the health and growth of the 
Town. It is also an important aspect ofthe Town's image within the community. When management 
finds an employee's performance is unsatisfactory or an employee's conduct is unacceptable, 
disciplinary action may be taken. 

In the event that it becomes necessary to discipline an employee for unsatisfactory performance or 
violation ofTown policies and procedures, one or more ofthe following disciplinary actions may be 
taken. 

Verbal Reprimand -A verbal reprimand is usually considered the least serious form of 
disciplinary action. It is generally intended to inform the employee of the need for 
improvement in job performance or to confirm an employee's understanding and application of 
Town policies and procedures. The "Employee Disciplinary Notice" form is filled out as written 
documentation of a verbal reprimand, verifying that the employee has been informed and is 
aware of the issue in question. Goals for improvement are established and documented on the 
form. Both the supervisor and the employee may make comments on this form and both must 
sign it. . 
Written Reprimand -A written reprimand is a formal reprimand considered to be an 
appropriate disciplinary action to be taken for more serious job performance or Town policy 
infractions. This type of reprimand requires a counseling session with the employee during 
which the supervisor discusses the serious performance or policy related problem with the 
employee. The "Employee Disciplinary Notice" form is filled out as written documentation of 
the written reprimand, verifying that the employee has been informed and is aware of the issue 

Employee Handbook 
February ±e,W-1-715. 2018 Page 45 



237

in question. Goals for improvement are established and documented on the form. Both the 
supervisor and the employee may make comments on this form and both must sign it. 
Termination -While meant to be the exception rather than the rule, immediate termination 
without prior warning may be a justified course of action in light of the seriousness of the 
particular violation and for employees who are repeat violators of Town policies and work rules. 
The employee is clearly informed as to the reason(s) for termination during a counseling session 
with the Supervisor. The employee is given the opportunity to make their written comments 
and sign the "Termination Record" form. 

Employees should realize that these general guidelines for disciplinary action must have a degree of 
flexibility as there are varying degrees of seriousness that pertain to performance and/or Town policy 
infractions. The Town does not have a policy of progressive discipline and reserves the right to handle 
each disciplinary issue on a case-by-case basis. The fact that the Town has or has not utilized any of 
these actions does not set any precedent and should not be relied upon in future disciplinary situations 
by any employee. 

Drugs & Alcohol 
The Town is committed to a safe, healthy and productive work environment for all employees that are 
free from the effects of substance abuse. Abuse of alcohol, drugs and controlled substances impairs 
employee judgment, resulting in increased safety risks, injuries and faulty decision-making. This 
includes working after the apparent use of marijuana. 

In accordance with the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988, the Town prohibits the unlawful manufacture, 
distribution, dispensation, possession, or use of a controlled substance during Town time, on Town 
premises, or other work sites. 

Testing is an important element in the Town's efforts to ensure a safe and productive work 
environment. Please refer to the Drug & Alcohol Policy- Safety Sensitive Employees or the Drug & 
Alcohol Policy- Non-Safety Sensitive Employees as appropriate for your position. Contact the Human 
Resources Department or your supervisor if you have specific questions. 

Parties & Activities 
As a measure of The Town's responsibility to promote safety, the following standards have been 
established for Town sponsored parties and activities: 

• Alcohol is allowed on Town premises ONLY for Town sponsored parties or activities. Town 
sponsored parties or activities shall be defined as Town sanctioned planned events with specific 
pre-approval by the Town Manager. All other possession and/or consumption of Alcohol on 
Town premises shall be considered in direct violation of the Town Drug and Alcohol Policy. 

• A supervisor should be present at all times to monitor party guidelines and participants' 
behavior. 

• Employees scheduled to work immediately following attendance at a Town sponsored party 
must refrain from the use of alcohol during the party. 

• Employees attending a Town sponsored party who are not scheduled to work immediately 
following the party must exhibit good judgment in their alcohol consumption to ensure their 
capability of safe travel home. 

Employee Handbook 
February 16, 201715. 2018 Page 46 



238

• The onl'I Town function t hat e_!;mployees are paid to attend +s the Annual Town Picnic and 
retirement parties for employees with a minimum of 10 years of service. Pay for attend ing any 
other functions , unlessmust be approved in advance by the Town Manager. 

Inspections 
We may conduct searches after notice is given and with the employee's consent of employees' personal 
effects. This may include, but is not limited to: lunch bags, boxes, purses, personal computers, 
packages, or vehicles. 
We may conduct searches of the above items without employee consent if we have a reasonable 
suspicion to believe that illegal activity is taking place and after obtaining a warrant to do so. Any illegal 
and unauthorized articles discovered may be taken into custody and will be turned over to law 
enforcement representatives. 

Employees do not have a reasonable expectation of privacy in lockers, desks, cabinets, or file drawers, 
all of which are keyed by the Town and copies of those keys are kept by the Town. 

Parking 
If you arc parking at the town Hall for business purposes and will be here less than an hour, please park 
against the rock wall and not in the middle spaces immediately in front of the grocery store. If you will 
be longer than an hour, please utilize the Gondola Parking Garage. 

if you are driVi11g your j~n2:rs0,-,a1 vehicle to /1ruf11 wurk, fJdrki11g perm ii stickers are avaiiabie from the 
police department if you work in town hall. Department head authorization is required. 

The Town is not liable for fire, theft, damage or personal injury involving employees' automobiles. 
Protect your property by locking your car. 

Performance Evaluations 
The Town reserves the right to review employee performance at any time. Evaluating employee job 
performance and providing feedback is an important factor in making employment-related decisions. 
Seasonal employees will receive evaluations at the end of each season. All other employees receive an 
annual performance evaluation. 

Employee Political Participation 
The Town encourages employees to participate in matters of responsible citizenship. The Town will not 
interfere with the conduct of Town employees engaged in political activity, as long as the activities are 
confined to hours when the employees are not on duty, are not campaigning in their official Town 
uniforms, and that the activities do not impair the employee's job efficiency or that of others. 
Employees whose principal employment is in connection with federally financed activities are subject to 
the following federal requirements as a condition of such employment. 

1. Covered employees may not use their official authority or influence for the purposes of 
interfering with or affecting the results of elections or nominations for office. 

Employee Handbook 
February 16, 201715. 2018 Page 47 



239

2. In addition, they may not coerce, attempt to coerce, command, or advise other covered 
employees to pay, lend or contribute anything of value to a party, committee, Town, agency, or 
person for political purposes. 

Political beliefs, activities, and affiliations are the private concern ofthe employee. An employee's work 
status is not affected by participating or not participating in lawful civic and political activities. No 
employee of the Town can directly or indirectly coerce or command any other employee to pay, lend, or 
contribute salary, compensation, service, or anything else of value to any political party, group, Town, or 
candidate. 

Any Town employee may be a candidate for a partisan political office provided that the involvement 
does not interfere or present a conflict of interest with his/her job. If involvement is necessary during 
normal working hours, the individual must take PTO or leave without pay. Employees whose salary 
comes in part or in whole from federal government sources are subject to the Hatch Act and its 
revisions. 

Problem Solving 

If you have a problem concerning a work-related matter, discuss it with your immediate supervisor, 
where appropriate. Normally, this discussion should be held within 3-5 days of the incident or in a 
timely manner. Discussions held in a timely manner will enhance our ability to resolve concerns while 
it's fresh in everyone's mind. The majority of misunderstandings can be resolved at this level. 

If the solution offered is not satisfactory, or if it is inappropriate to go to the supervisor, then employees 
are encouraged to take the problem to Human Resources. If the problem still cannot be resolved, 
employees may submit a written complaint to the Town Manager for review and final decision about 
the situation. Also see (EEO Harassment Complaint Procedure) 

Property Loss or Damage 

Theft of Town or Employee Property 
The Town assumes no responsibility for the property of its employees. However, the Town is committed 
to ensuring a safe and secure working environment. Theft of money or property from the Town or its 
employees will be promptly and thoroughly investigated. Such investigations will be conducted by the 
Town and, if the size and nature of the theft warrants, the Police Department (MVPD). All employees 
are asked to assist in ensuring the on-going security of the Town and employee property by immediately 
reporting any suspicious activity to their supervisor, Human Resources, Risk Management or the police 
department. 

Town Property Losses or Damage 
All losses of Town property, including theft, fire or accidental damage, must be reported immediately to 
a supervisor. The supervisor will take appropriate action informing Risk Management and the MVPD (if 
appropriate) and will complete the Incident/ Accident Report. Risk Management, the supervisor and 
Safety Committee will conduct an investigation. Once the investigation is completed a report will be 
submitted to the Town Manager. In cases involving losses or damage to Town property, the Town may 
ask an employee to submit to a drug and/or alcohol test in accordance with the Town's Drug and 
Alcohol Policy. The employee has the option of obtaining insurance to cover any possible loss or 
damage to personal property. 

Employee Handbook 
February 16, 201715. 2018 Page 48 



240

Town Vehicles and Equipment Losses 
As an employee, you must comply with all state and local laws in reporting accidents involving Town 
vehicles and equipment. All vehicle accidents on public roads or private property should be immediately 
reported to the Police Department or appropriate law enforcement agency and to your supervisor. Do 
not move a vehicle involved in an accident until a law enforcement officer authorizes you to do so. A 
"Vehicle Accident Report Form" must be filled out the same day the accident has occurred. 
Incident Inquiries 
You might anticipate that an accident or incident relating to the Town's operations will generate inquiry 
from the press, insurance adjusters, attorneys, etc. Before responding to any such inquiry, it is essential 
that you first bring the inquiry and the circumstances surrounding the inquiry to the attention of your 
supervisor and the Town Manager. Do not talk to ANYONE regarding the incident without permission 
from the Manager. Get the phone number and name of the individual inquiring and indicate that you 
will have someone follow up. By following this procedure, you will not only protect your own interests 
but also the interests of the Town. 

Smoking 
The Town of Mountain Village recognizes that smoking and tobacco chewing in the workplace can 
adversely affect employees and guests and is prohibited. This includes e-cigarettes and all other 
tobacco products. Employees may smoke in designated outdoor areas and are responsib le for proper 
disposal of cigarette butts. The time spent away from your job to smoke or chew tobacco must be 
limited to breaks and lunch Periods. 

In accordance with the Colorado Clean Indoor Air Act, smoking is prohibited in fill_ Town facilities, 
vehicles, or in any workplace, including non-business hours. This includes lobbies, elevators, restrooms, 
reception areas, hallways and any other common-use areas, child day care facilities, common areas of 
Village Court Apartments, public transportation of any kind (including gondola cabins/terminals, .Qia.1-a 
RWe;-employee shuttles and all Town vehicles), including non business hours. In addition, smoking is 
prohibited within 15 feet of any main entrance. 

Effective July 31, 2018, smoking is prohibited within 25 feet of any building or apart ment at Village Court 
Apartments. (refer to HUD Smoke Free Public Housing and Multifamily Properties Rule) 

Terminating Employment 

Exit interviews 
Exit interviews with the Human Resources Department gather constructive feedback from employees 
who leave the Town. The purposes of this interview are to review eligibility for benefit continuation and 
conversion, ensure necessary forms are completed, collect all Town property that may be in the 
employee's possession (keys, phones), and provide employees with an opportunity to discuss their job
related experiences. 
Employees may be considered for re-employment provided they qualify for the position of interest and 
while they were employed with the Town maintained satisfactory performance and attendance. 

Final Paycheck Issuance 
The Supervisor ensures that all Town property (uniforms, keys, tools, radios, ski passes, advances, 
overdrawn PTO etc.) is returned or paid back prior to the preparation of the employee's final check. As 

Employee Handbook 
February 16, 201715. 2018 Page 49 



241

disclosed in this handbook and on the Uniform/ Equipment Log signed by the employee at the time 
Town property is issued, the Town will deduct an amount equal to the value of all money owed or un
returned Town property from the employee's final paycheck OR depending upon the circumstances, the 
Town may hold a portion of the employee's final check pending the return of Town property or money. 
Final paychecks are issued for all voluntarily and involuntarily terminated employees on the next 
regularly scheduled payday, unless other arrangements are requested and approved for earlier issuance. 
Paydays occur every two weeks on Friday. 

Vehicle Use 

The Town owns a variety of vehicles from heavy equipment on down to small trucks. These vehicles are 
used for transporting personnel, equipment and supplies and for working on a variety of construction 
and snow removal projects. In some cases, employees use vehicles during and after normal business 
hours while conducting Town business. Employees of the Town will not be authorized to use Town 
owned vehicles for personal use. "Personal use" is defined as any use of a vehicle that does not occur 
during the performance of one's job duties. The operation of Town vehicles by non-employees (i.e.: 
friends or family members of employees) is strictly forbidden. Non-employees shall not use, operate or 
perform any kind of maintenance on a Town vehicle. 
Any employee who operates a Town vehicle must be on a qualified Town Vehicle Operator list and must 
meet the following criteria: 

• Have valid Drivers' License to operate vehicle, 

• Have supervisor's authorization to operate the vehicle, 
• Have acceptable driving record as verified by a OMV background check, 

• Be operating a vehicle on Town business or for authorized direct commute to work or home 
only, and 

• Have completed vehicle checklist before operating the vehicle. 
• Obey ALL traffic laws 
• Are responsible for ensuring the safe operation of the vehicle at all times. 

The driver and passengers must utilize the safety seat belts at all times when the vehicle is in service in 
compliance with Colorado law. 

A driving record search will be conducted on all drivers prior to employment and subject to observation 
throughout employment. 

The following activities will not be tolerated: 
• Operating a Town vehicle in violation of applicable laws and regulations or in a careless manner. 
• Operating a Town vehicle without permission. 

• Operating a Town vehicle without a valid driver's license or without proof of insurance. 
• Operating a Town vehicle while using or while under the influence of alcohol or drugs. 

• Smoking and tobacco chewing are strictly prohibited in Town vehicles 
• Utilizing a Town vehicle to transport hitchhikers. 
• Falsification of information on employee's driving history 

If an employee operates a Town vehicle in violation of any of the above, the employee will receive a 
written warning and depending upon the nature and circumstances surrounding the infraction, may be 
subject to additional disciplinary action up to and including termination. lfthe driver is cited and fined 

Employee Handbook 
February 16, 201715. 2018 Page SO 



242

for an invalid driver's license, proof of insurance, expired registration, driving a vehicle not in proper 
working condition or for disobeying the law, any fines will be the responsibility of the employee. These 
are not Town expenses. Proof of insurance and copies of the current registration can be obtained from 
the transportation department. 

Emergency Use/Extended work hours 
From time to time a personal emergency situation may arise or, an employee without personal 
transportation may be asked for extended work hours. In these cases, a Department Head may 
authorize a properly licensed employee to use an appropriate Town vehicle, if one is available. If a 
vehicle is not available, the Town will try to accommodate the employee wilh allerndlive lrcmspurlc:1tiun. 

Use of Town owned, leased or sponsored vehicles for business travel 
From time to time it may be necessary for an authorized employee to use a Town vehicle for business 
travel, locally or out-of-Town. In these cases, a Department Head may authorize a properly licensed 
employee to use an appropriate Town vehicle, if one is available. 

Commuter Shuttles 
It is the intent of the Town to provide safe and reliable transportation to and from work for groups of 
three (3) or more employees who work similar shifts and who commute in similar directions from the 
same location or on the same general route. Employees of the Town may access the shuttle system by 
cuntacting the Transit Coordinator. 

• Employees currently pay a pre-determined rate per ride, deducted bi-weekly from their 
n:::u,rhorl, fnr thic- c-.or\liro Cnl" +ho r, ,rron+ r"3+o nlo-:t.~o rru•"\+~r+ +hn U, ,_._,..."' Dru .. _, . .,..,..nr ,.,...,., ... ,,""' ... '" """"' '-''' ... _,.._,, .,,.._.._. I.._,, '-11.._, .._."'11 .... ,1 .... IY'-.._, t-'''-'UJ'-- '-''"'IILU ... \, 1.11'- 1 IUlllfo.AII 11'--JVUl'-''-J 

Department. 
• Any employee who drives a shuttle is considered a safety sensitive employee as defined by 49 

CFR Part 655, as amended, and must submit to a urine test and undergo a minimum of 60 
minutes of training on the signs and symptoms of drug use on personal health, safety and the 
work environment. 

• Drivers are required to have a valid driver's license. 
• Must be 21 or over to drive shuttles. 
• A driving record search will be conducted on all applicants prior to employment and will be 

subject to observation throughout employment. 

Employees that utilize the shuttles to commute to and from work that arrive and depart outside their 
regularly scheduled workday must adhere to their regularly assigned workday schedule. Shuttle arrival 
and departure times do not supersede or alter your assigned work scheduled nor is it to be considered 
authorization for overtime or authorization to leave work early. Management does not expect 
employees to start their workday any earlier or end their workday any earlier as a result of riding a 
shuttle. 

Work Assignments & Schedules 
The scheduling of work assignments and work-day schedules are the responsibility of each supervisor. If 
you have any questions about or difficulty with your work assignment, please discuss it with your 
supervisor. If you are unable to perform any duty assigned to you, let your supervisor know 
immediately. 
Participation in the Employee Shuttle Program is not to be considered authorization to deviate from 
the regularly assigned work-day schedules. 

Employee Handbook 
February 16, i01715, 2018 Page 51 



243

Employee Handbook 
February 16, 201715. 2018 Page 52 



244

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF RECEIPT 

I HAVE RECEIVED A COPY OF THE EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK DATED February 16 201715, 
2018. I UNDERSTAND THAT I AM TO BECOME FAMILIAR WITH ITS CONTENTS. 
FURTHER, I UNDERSTAND: 

u THE LANGUAGE USED IN THIS HANDBOOK AND ANY VERBAL STATEMENTS OF 
MANAGEMENT ARE NOT INTENDED TO CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT OF 
EMPLOYMENT, EITHER EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, NOR ARE THEY A GUARANTEE OF 
EMPLOYMENT FOR A SPECIFIC DURATION. 

u THE HANDBOOK IS NOT ALL INCLUSIVE, BUT IS INTENDED TO PROVIDE ME WITH A 
SUMMARY OF SOME OF THE TOWN'S GUIDELINES, 

u THIS EDITION REPLACES ALL PREVIOUSLY ISSUED HANDBOOKS. THE NEED MAY 
ARISE TO CHANGE THE GUIDELINES DESCRIBED IN THE HANDBOOK. THE TOWN 
THEREFORE RESERVES THE RIGHT TO INTERPRET THEM OP. TO CHANGE THEM 
WITHOUT PRIOR NOTICE. 

u NO REPRESENTATIVE OF THE TOWN OF MOUNTAIN VILLAGE, OTHER THAN THE 
TOWN MANAGER, HAS THE AUTHORITY TO ENTER INTO AN AGREEMENT OF 
EMPLOYMENT FOR ANY SPECIFIED PERIOD AND SUCH AGREEMENT MUST BE IN 
WRITING, SIGNED BY THE TOWN MANAGER AND MYSELF. WE HAVE NOT ENTERED 
INTO SUCH AN AGREEMENT. 

Print Employee Name 

Date 

Employee Handbook 
February 16, 201715. 2018 

Signature 

Page 53 



245

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF RECEIPT 

I HAVE RECEIVED A COPY OF THE EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK DATED February 15, 2018 I UNDERSTAND 

THAT I AM TO BECOME FAMILIAR WITH ITS CONTENTS. FURTHER, I UNDERSTAND: 

u THE LANGUAGE USED IN THIS HANDBOOK AND ANY VERBAL STATEMENTS OF MANAGEMENT ARE 

NOT INTENDED TO CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT OF EMPLOYMENT, EITHER EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, 

NOR ARE THEY A GUARANTEE OF EMPLOYMENT FOR A SPECIFIC DURATION. 

u THE HANDBOOK IS NOT ALL INCLUSIVE, BUT IS INTENDED TO PROVIDE ME WITH A SUMMARY OF 

SOME OF THE TOWN'S GUIDELINES. 

u THIS EDITION REPLACES ALL PREVIOUSLY ISSUED HANDBOOKS. THE NEED MAY ARISE TO CHANGE 

THE GUIDELINES DESCRIBED IN THE HANDBOOK. THE TOWN THEREFORE RESERVES THE RIGHT TO 

INTERPRET THEM OR TO CHANGE THEM WITHOUT PRIOR NOTICE. 

u NO REPRESENTATIVE OF MOUNTAIN VILLAGE, OTHER THAN THE TOWN MANAGER, HAS THE 

AUTHORITY TO ENTER INTO AN AGREEMENT OF EMPLOYMENT FOR ANY SPECIFIED PERIOD AND 

SUCH AGREEMENT MUST BE IN WRITING, SIGNED BY THE TOWN MANAGER AND MYSELF. WE 

HAVE NOT ENTERED INTO SUCH AN AGREEMENT. 

Print Employee Name 

Date 

Employee Handbook 
February le, 201715. 2018 

Signature 

Page 54 



AGENDA ITEM #20.b 
TOWN OF MOUNTAIN VILLAGE 

TOWN MANAGER 
CURRENT ISSUES AND STATUS REPORT 

FEBRUARY 2018 

1. Great Services Award Program
▪ Great Services Award – January

- Rob Johnson and the entire Gondola Operations Department , nominated
by Jim Loebe, for their stellar performance over the holiday season.  With no
frontside open to skiers, they handled the multi-day crowds in a friendly and
efficient manner.  Not only did they have throngs of guests to contend with,
but many stepped up to work overtime staffing the supplemental town bus
service as well as last-minute survey taking for TMVOA’s economic impact
study.  I really feel like they were the shining stars of our holiday season –
WINNER FOR JANUARY

- Kathy Smith, nominated by Dawn Katz.  During a time when we were
without an IT person, Kathy spent HOURS at Munchkins trying to help me
with my Incode (accounts payable software) issues and finally resolved the
problem.  This was not her problem to deal with but she took the time out of
her days (two of them) to make sure it was taken care of. I was so very
grateful

- Nathan Wilson, nominated by Cecilia Curry. He brought big equipment to
VCA to help with snow and ice.  It was amazing to watch how patient and
pleasant he was with traffic and residents

2. Cassidy Ridge Condo Unit
▪ The closing is still on schedule for February 20th

▪ We developed a policy for the lottery of this unit and any others that are
purchased by the Town (Council will be reviewing this at the February meeting)

▪ Lottery application forms have been developed and this information will be
disseminated by Human Resources to all employees immediately following
Council’s consideration of the lottery policy

▪ Lottery applications will be due by March 2nd at 5:00 p.m. and the winning
employee will be chosen based on measurable criteria of tenure, position with the
town and employee evaluation rating the week of March 5th

3. IT Status
▪ Contracted with Telluride Bytes for IT services during the RFP process
▪ The RFP has been developed with input from Patrick Berry, Jack Gilbride, Steven

Lehane and Kim Montgomery
▪ Lilo Santes from the Governor’s information office and Brandon Williams who

also formerly worked as the CIO for the same office, have graciously offered to
review the RFP and recommend potential qualified respondents

246



▪ Once review is complete, the RFP will be issued with a deadline for respondents
to submit by mid-late March (depending on when we issue the RFP)

4. Miscellaneous
▪ Met with the RFP  Selection Committee for the Telluride Regional Wastewater

Treatment Plant (TRWWTP) relative to financial analysis and rate study proposal
selection. The FCS Group was selected and they will begin work once a contract
is executed. This will provide us with the financial analysis that will help us form
our strategy to fund the short and long term master plan

▪ Attended the Mental Health First Aid Training for an all day session conducted by
Paul Reich

▪ Attended TSG’s lunch meeting for the roll out of the Epic Pass partnership
▪ Participated in multiple conference calls to discuss the House Bill 18-1084

regarding use of lodging tax for other purposes besides marketing and tourism.
Thanks to David Reed and his ability to work directly with state representatives to
outline our position of complete opposition to this bill. We were notified over the
weekend that the Counties were not going to pursue this bill

▪ Participated in the first meeting of the year for the Green Team Committee.
Updates were provided on the build out of the bathroom in the Meadows and the
green initiatives for that facility. Lengthy discussion was held regarding moving
forward with a small pilot program for composting at VCA

▪ Participated in a conference call with TSG, our water attorney and engineers to
discuss an upcoming meeting with Telluride regarding river flows during
snowmaking season and how best to proceed to ensure the required flows are met
moving forward. The meeting with Telluride is tentatively scheduled for February 
22nd 

▪ Attended the Budget and Finance Committee’s first meeting of the year

247

-



TOWN OF MOUNTAIN VILLAGE 
Town Counci1 Meeting 

February 15, 2018 
8:30 a.m. 

During Mountain Village government meetings and forums, there will be an opportunity for the public to speak. If 
you would like to address the board(s), we ask that you approach the podium, state your name and affiliation, and 
speak into the microphone. Meetings are filmed and archived and the audio is recorded, so it is necessary to speak 
loud and clear for the listening audience. If you provide your email address below, we will add you to our 
distribution list ensuring you will receive timely and important news and information about the Town of Mountain 
Village. Thank you for your cooperation. 

NAME: (PLEASE PRINT!!) 

Y\ iill [V\ 011-t-~ 0 i'vl e,V'.'.:;J EMAIL: 

EMAIL: 

EMAIL: 

EMAIL: 

EMAIL: 

EMAIL: 

EMAIL: 

EMAIL: 

EMAIL: 

EMAIL: 

EMAIL: 

EMAIL: 

EMAIL: 

EMAIL: 

EMAIL: 

EMAIL: 

EMAIL: 

EMAIL: 

EMAIL: 

EMAIL: 

EMAIL: 

EMAIL: 

EMAIL: 

EMAIL: 

EMAIL: 



TOWN OF MOUNTAIN VILLAGE 
Town Counci1 Meeting 

February 15, 2018 
8:30 a.m. 

During Mountain Village government meetings and forums, there will be an opportunity for the public to speak. If 
you would like to address the board(s), we ask that you approach the podium, state your name and affiliation, and 
speak into the microphone. Meetings are filmed and archived and the audio is recorded, so it is necessary to speak 
loud and clear for the listening audience. If you provide your email address below, we will add you to our 
distribution list ensuring you will receive timely and important news and information about the Town of Mountain 
Village. Thank you for your cooperation. 

l2/lrz,ij t:_ /20 SC /1-H /2 u~ -

EMAIL: c__ \,_,.._.s @ Q_ \ i;:::,i ~~ :i:, ( ~..;:,-) , k c '----

EMAIL: 

EMAIL: £.l >6 6 { 0 1,N\, c, ,..J @ +-el s Kt· , co Vv'\ 

EMAIL: 

EMAIL: 

EMAIL: ( ( r, II 

EMAIL: 

EMAIL: 

EMAIL: 

EMAIL: 

EMAIL: 

EMAIL: 

EMAIL: 

EMAIL: 

EMAIL: 

EMAIL: 

---fr~~;.t(...f.~~ =--t-~~"_,t.l,:!.::t.'A~----=E::..:M:..:A-=--I L=--=--: _ ____.:;,,:d::S==-i.---+:==:1-,,,11~ =---,;~ J..L..1.--¢?.=~::ii:::t.. ~ 

EMAIL: 

EMAIL: 

EMAIL: 

EMAIL: I< e ;· ·n., e_ { i I 0.. S:H:l::C r-~ t l v.-...H}f ,. U? ,', 

EMAIL= kt( 1 (I: $(1 AVJYJ QI{ 1( {! /Ke: , Mir(· (avJ] 
EMAIL: t l l\ vi r\ e,t~ t) \) G\\ (A,\ {\ C \v Y) :U CAW\ {A~\ It om 
EMAIL: jov~e,s·,, ns®-5/h o. d-Co/f) 1 

EMAIL: ull-A--tG.{i:) LM-1vt.vN"6~ \--i yA::t..-:D . ~ 



TOWN OF MOUNTAIN VILLAGE 
Town Counci1 Meeting 

February 15, 2018 
8:30 a.m. 

During Mountain Village government meetings and forums, there will be an opportunity for the public to speak. If 
you would like to address the board(s), we ask that you approach the podium, state your name and affiliation, and 
speak into the microphone. Meetings are filmed and archived and the audio is recorded, so it is necessary to speak 
loud and clear for the listening audience. If you provide your email address below, we will add you to our 
distribution list ensuring you will receive timely and important news and information about the Town of Mountain 
Village. Thank you for your cooperation. 

EMAIL: 

EMAIL: 

EMAIL: 

EMAIL: 

EMAIL: 

EMAIL: 

EMAIL: 

EMAIL: 

EMAIL: 

EMAIL: 

EMAIL: 

EMAIL: 

EMAIL: 

EMAIL: 

EMAIL: 

EMAIL: 

EMAIL: 

EMAIL: 

EMAIL: 

EMAIL: 

EMAIL: 

EMAIL: 

EMAIL: 

EMAIL: 



Susan Johnston 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 

Cc: 

Subject: 

Jackie Kennefick 
Wednesday, February 14, 2018 5:23 PM 
Bruce Maclntire; Dan Caton; Dan Jansen; Jack Gilbride; Laila Benitez; Natalie Binder; 
Patrick Berry 
Kim Montgomery; Michelle Haynes; mvclerk; Jim Mahoney Gmahoney@jdreedlaw.com); 
David Reed Gdreed@jdreedlaw.com) 
FW: Town Council Convenes February 15 I View the Agenda 

FYI - more public comment 

From: Laila Benitez 
Sent: Wednesday, February 14, 2018 4:23 PM 
To: Jackie Kennefick <JKennefick@mtnvillage.org>; Michelle Haynes <MHaynes@mtnvillage.org> 
Subject: Fwd: Town Council Convenes February 15 I View the Agenda 

Jackie, Please share the email below with Council and add to the packet. 

Laila Benitez 
970-708-0129 

Sent from my iPad 

Begin forwarded message: 

On Feb 14, 2018, at 4:11 PM, sandra gilbert <svgnm@comcast.net> wrote : 

Laila - Please let me know if this communication should be sent to another 
email address. S. Gilbert 

---------- Original Message ----------
From: sandra gilbert <svgnm@comcast.net> 
To: bkight@mtnvillage.org 
Date: February 14, 2018 at 3:59 PM 
Subject: Re: Town Council Convenes February 15 I View the Agenda 

To: Town Council Members 

Re: Lot 30 and TSG's Plan to Connect Parcel M to Lot 30 

My husband and I attended the October 2017 Design 
Review Public Comment meeting regarding the proposed 
idea of connecting Parcel M to Lot 30 as included in TSG's 
Comprehensive Plan. We regret not being able to attend 

1 



the 2-15-18 meeting. At the October meeting 
we completed written comments regarding our concerns for 
how combining the properties would negatively impact the 
surrounding properties as well as negatively impact the 
overall aesthetic value of Mountain Village. 

As owners of a Granita Building condo we are concerned 
about the visual impact of a 101-unit building constructed on 
the site and directly adjacent to Mountain Village Blvd. Any 
development greater than the currently zoned 9 to 14 condo 
units on Lot 30 will: 

• cast disruptive shadows on the adjacent buildings 
• block out solar access 
• create an unacceptable level of traffic 
• overstress existing infrastructure 
• establish an objectionable precedent of confiscating 

Open Space for private vs public use 
• diminish the property value of units at Aspen Ridge, 

the building just south of Aspen Ridge, the Granita 
Building, and Madeline Hotel, 

The proposed development is totally out of character for the 
location and is a-taking of all the inherent characteristics of 
purchasing property within Mountain Village - space, views, 
solar access, ambiance, and a way of life, in addition there 
will be a loss of real dollars in any future sales transaction for 
the numerous current owners of the adjacent properties. 

At the October meeting it was clear that the majority of those 
in attendance were not in favor of the massive development 
and we request in the strongest possible manner that the 
properties not be combined. 

Best regards, Van and Sandra Gilbert 

2 



Susan Johnston 

Subject: FW: Lots 126R and 152R/Rosewood 

From: Susanne Connolly [mailto:suseconnolly@yahoo.com] 
Sent: Wednesday, February 14, 2018 9:27 AM 
To: Jackie Kennefick <JKennefick@mtnvillage.org> 
Subject: Lots 126R and 152R/Rosewood 

Dear Jackie, 

Please include the letter below in the Town Council packet. 

Thank you. 

Suse 

Suse Connolly, Esq. 

Dear Town Council Members: 

Re: Lots 126R and 152R 

I am perplexed as to what benefits the Town of Mountain Village or the residents of Mountain Village would receive 
from the proposed Memorandum of Understanding requested by Northlight Trust I ("Owner" or "Northlight"). I think 
that the MOU has no public benefit and that the MOU is an entirely one-sided agreement solely benefitting North light. 

The current owner, North light Trust I, purchased the property for $4.8 million in August, 2013. At the time of purchase, 
the expiration date for the approvals was March 18, 2018 so North light has had more than 4 1/2 years to: (i) commence 
construction, (ii) seek new approvals or (iii) sell the property. The subject property is currently for sale for $11.9 million 
and it is my understanding that a contract of sale for the property has already been executed. It appears that North light 
is seeking the MOU primarily so that it can sell the property for a gain of approximately $7 million. If the approvals 
expire, the value of the property will be greatly diminished. As there are no public benefits under the MOU, TMV should 
not execute the MOU as it would be assisting North light in making a profit of $7 million and would thereby be giving 
preferential treatment to Northlight. As a government, Town Council should aim to enforce and apply all laws and 
regulations fairly and consistently to all residents and businesses and the execution of the MOU would clearly violate 
these principles. Are there any other properties that have approvals that were granted 11 years ago when there exists 
no compelling public purpose or extenuating circumstance for repeated and lengthy extensions of the approvals? Are 
there even any other properties with 11 year old approvals? If the answer is no to either of these questions, Town 
Council should not approve the MOU. Since the approvals were issued in 2007, the Land Use Ordinance has been 
replaced by the Community Development Code. TMV should move to extinguish the vested rights when they expire on 
March 18, 2018 so that the development of the subject property is subject to the CDC as the CDC reflects the current 
community standards and concerns with respect to development. 

1 



There is no compelling public purpose for TMV to execute the MOU. Any purported public benefits from the project are 
illusory as the project has still not commenced construction despite the fact that the approvals were issued 11 years 
ago. Additionally, in the MOU, Northlight has not agreed to either preserve or not materially reduce the public benefits 
set forth in the existing approvals when it applies for new approvals. Was the preservation of the project's public 
benefits even sought by TMV during the MOU negotiations? 

The hallmarks of good government are that all residents and businesses are treated equally and all laws, rules and 
regulations are applied consistently. This property has already received extensive preferential treatment from prior 
Town Councils. When the approvals and vested property rights were initially approved in April, 2007, the vested 
property rights were valid for a period of 3 years. In 2010, a 3 year extension was granted and in 2013, an additional 5 
year extension was granted. If the MOU is executed, the approvals for this property will have remained in effect for an 
astonishing 13 years. The First Amendment to Development Agreement and the Second Amendment to Development 
Agreement did not set forth any compelling reasons or extenuating circumstances warranting 8 years of extensions. By 
agreeing to the MOU, Town Council would be giving additional preferential treatment to Northlight. 

While the MOU purports to be a standstill agreement, in reality, the agreement is a de facto extension by virtue of the 
fact that the MOU has a 2 year term, which is exactly the extension period previously requested by North light and 
opposed by DRB. The MOU will provide North light with the time necessary to sell the property with the approvals in 
effect. The MOU does not contain any prohibitions on the sale of the property. 

It is respectfully requested that Town Council : (i) not approve the MOU and (ii) schedule a hearing immediately after 
March 18, 2018 so Town Council can revoke the vested property rights. 

Suse Connolly, Esq. 
23 Trails Edge Lane 
Mountain Village, CO 81435 

2 



From: 
To: 

Michelle Haynes 
Jane Marinoff 

Subject: Fwd: Lot 30 / Parcel M - Town Council Hearing tomorrow 
Wednesday, February 14, 2018 3:34:37 PM Date: 

Attachments: ATT00001. htm 

Jane 

20110317 Meeting Mlnutes.odf 
ATT00002 htm 

Could you make 12 copies please? 

Thank you 
Michelle 

Sent from my iPhone 

Begin forwarded message: 

From: "Solomon, Stefanie" <sso lomon@tellurideskiresort.com> 
Date: February 14, 2018 at 3:30:21 PM MST 
To: Michelle Haynes <MHaynes@mtnvillage.org>, 
"lailabenitez@mtnvi llage.org" <lailabenjtez@mtnvillage.org> Jim Mahoney 
<j m ahoney@jd reed law.com> "'kmontgomery@m tn vi I Jage.org'" 
<kmontgomery@mtnvillage.org> "dcaton@mtnvil lage.org" 
<dcaton@mtnvillage.org> "bmacjntire@mtnv il lage.org" 
<bmaci o ti re@mtov i l lage.org> 'Dan Jansen' <DJan sen@mtnv i I lage,org> 
"pberry@mtovillage.org" <pberry@mtnvillage.org> "jgilbride@mtovillage.org" 
<jgi lbride@m to v il lage.org> "n bi nder@m to vi I lage.org" 
<nbinder@mtnv i Uage.org> 
Cc: "Jensen, Bill" <bjensen@tellurideskiresort.com>, "John Horn 
(jhorn@rrni.net)" <jhorn@rmi.net> 
Subject: Lot 30 / Parcel M - Town Council Hearing tomorrow 

Dear Town Council, Jim, Kim and Michelle: 

The purpose of this e-mail is to provide TSG Ski & Golf's response to John Horn's public 
comment letter dated February 9, 2018. Please include this e-mail in the packet for 
tomorrow's Town Council Hearing. 

First, with regard to the Huschkes knowledge of the Comp Plan and the impact on Lot 
30, Mr. Horn states, the "Huschkes first learned Lot 30 was impact ed in a phone call 
from a TMVOA representative that occurred well after both Comp Plan and CDC were 
adopted." Although this could be the Huschkes recollection, such a statement appears 
to be false. 

As you may know, in 2008, Town Council appointed a Task Force, consisting of a diverse 
group of 15 community members, including Mr. Horn (who was the chairman). The 



Task Force conducted 30 meetings over 30 months, created bylaws and kept meeting 
minutes. 

The Task Force's Sept.21, 2009, Meeting Minutes {where John Horn was present}, 
David Schillaci {another Task Force member) stated that all property owners should be 
notified if the Task Force makes plans for their land . The minutes then state, "John 
Horn agreed and said that as the plan moves forward affected property owners should 
be notified." 

In 2011, when Lot 30 became part of the Comp Plan's discussions, the Task Force's 
meeting minutes from 3/17 /11 {attached}, three (3) months before Comp Plan was 
adopted, reflect the Hutchkes were indeed informed of the Comp Plan's impact on Lot 
30. [See minutes, page 3]. Specifically, these meeting minutes show there was a 
discussion regarding Lot 30. Importantly, the minutes reflect that Chris Hawkins 
{Planning Director at that time) stated he spoke with the Owner of Lot 30, Darrell 
Huschke, about the Lot 30 proposal in the Comp Plan (at that time showing multi
parcel units, including parking, with 4 levels consisting of 22 units). The minutes 
further indicate that Mr. Huschke told Chris Hawkins that he did not want to be bound 
by that specific plan, that he wanted to be able to develop within the existing zoning 
but was open to the idea. [See minutes, page 3 "Council Direction"]. 

Further, over the three year process, the Task Force's public outreach included 51 
public meetings hosted; 51 Agendas, Minutes and Packets on Town's website; 24 live
streamed meetings; 6 public events hosted; 166 advertisements, 18 press releases, 89 
E-mails, posters, banners, 2 community-wide surveys [over 300 completed and 
submitted], direct mail to 2,000 homeowners, 69 articles/broadcasts, and "Visioning" 
workshops and questionnaires. [Page 13 of the Comp Plan]. 

The evidence shows the Huschkes were informed and were so informed at least three 
months prior to the Comp Plan's adoption. Even before Chris Hawkins reached out to 
the Huschkes in early 2011, the Task Force did everything it could to reach the entire 
community, as evidenced by the enormous and continuous public outreach. Clearly, 
the Huschkes did have an opportunity to participate in the process. Any statements 
that they were uninformed or had zero involvement are not true . The fact they may 
have had little involvement was their choice, especially after learning Lot 30 was going 
to be included in the Comp Plan. 

Second, any discussion regarding the fact that Lot 30 has not sold should include an 
analysis of the real estate market and the asking price of Lot 30. 

Per the MLS, Lot 30 (0 .60 acres) has been listed on and off since 2013. It was initially 
listed at $7,225,000, and then John Horn took over the listing in 2016 and dropped the 
price to $3,250,000. It is currently listed at that amount. The listing states it is zoned 
for 9 condo units, 2 employee apartments and comes with 2500 sf commercial 
building, plus 1 additional condo unit in the density bank. 



To find comparable sales for the land value of Lot 30, I searched for Mountain Village 
land sales since 2013, the year the Huschke's begin listing their property. In the entire 
Mountain Village, 87 vacant lots sold from 1/1/13 to present. Of those 87, only 2 were 
located in the Village Center Subarea, as follows: 

<!--[if !supportlists]-->l. <!--[endif]-->Lot 89-2B (0.64 acres}, located above the 
pond lot, sold on 9/5/17 for $800,000, or $1,250,000/acre. It is zoned 
residential and part of Comp Plan parcel C-1-89, which would permit 174 
hotbeds mix, 23 condo units, 4 dorm units and a restaurant space, all on 5-6 
individually owned lots. C-1 is also a designated flag lot. Lot 89-2B also 
straddles Comp Plan parcel C-3, also subject to the Comp Plan. The point is 
that the fact that this Lot is part of two separate Comp Plan parcels did not 
prevent the sale this year of Lot 89-2B. Using this price per acre for Lot 30, Lot 
30 would have a land value of $750,000. If we add a value of $10,000 per 
additional density associated with Lot 30, as well as 2500 of commercial space, 
then the value could potentially exceed $1,000,000 but nowhere near 
$3,250,000. 

<!--[if !supportlists]-->2. <!--[endif]-->Lots 122/123-TSG purchased these two 
lots, and all associated density on the two lots, on 1/18/17 for $1,100,000. 
These were smaller lots (0.106 and 0.141, respectively) but they are similar in 
location and density. Lot 122 contains 9 condo units of density and 1 employee 
unit, and Lot 123 contains 11 condo units of density and 1 employee unit. As 
part of the $1,100,000, TSG also received 66.8 Units of condo density (or 200.5 
population) density (valued at $100,000}. Lots 122/123 are part of Parcel A-1 
of the Comp Plan, which includes these two lots and Lot 128. It is also 
designated as a flag parcel, with 125 target hotbeds and 3 dorm units. 

In our opinion, these comparable lots sold in 2017 because they were priced at a 
reasonable market price. Lot 30 has not sold because the asking price is too high. 

In Conclusion, TSG would prefer Town Council defer any Comp Plan amendment for Lot 
30 until the Subarea committee has had an opportunity to analyze the entire Mountain 
Village Subarea . However, TSG would support the amendment as written, so long as 
the Subcommittee can make appropriate recommendations after a full analysis of 
appropriate density and unit mix for Lot 30/Parcel M as well as the other Subarea 
parcels. 

Thank you . 

Stefanie 

Stefanie C. Solomon, Corporate Counsel 



TSG Ski & Golf, LLC 

565 Mountain Village Blvd 

Mountain Village, CO 81435 
Direct: (970) 728-7318 

E-mail: ssolomoo@tellurideskiresort.com 



TOWN OF MOUNTAIN VILLAGE 
MINUTES OF THE 

REGULAR TOWN COUNCIL MEETING 
MARCH 17, 2011 DRAFT 

.\:,$ 1,fau,11~,11 'tnla,ga m.,•d!. st~. A 
ritou11111m '/1\logu, co 81~H 
•~•YW,tG\'muia1uu«t~l11~illo1f~.i:~m 

9]0 HK.:!:0-00 
~,u r.:a.o,o 

The meeting of the Town Council was called to order by Mayor Bob Delves at 8:34 a.m. on Thursday, March 
17, 2011 in the Mountain Village Town Hall, 455 Mountain Village Boulevard, Mountain Village, Colorado. 

Attendance 

The foJlowing Town Council members were present and acting: 
Mayor Bob Delves 
Jonathan Greenspan 
David Schillaci 
Dan Garner 
Chris Cox 
Cath Jett (via conference call for portions of the meeting) 

The following Town Council members were absent: 
Richard Child 

Also in attendance were: 
Greg Sparks, Town Manager 
Kim Montgomery, Director of Administration 
Jackie Kennefick, Senior Deputy Clerk 
David Reed, Town Attorney 
Jim Mahoney, Assistant Town Attorney 
Julie Vergari, Chief Accountant 
Chris Hawkins, Director of Community Development 
Rob Rydel, OZ Architects 
Chris Colter, Director of Transportation 
Nichole Zangara, Community Relations Manager 
Chris Broady, Chief of Police 
Katie Tyler, Planner 
Dave Bangert, Forester/Planner 
Dave Riley 
Chris Laukcnmann 
Banks Brown 
Mary Rubadeau 
Kurt Shugars 
Kim Hewson 
Mike Fitzhugh 
Paolo Canclini 

Kathrine Warren 
Penelope Gleason 
Nicole Pieterse 
Jim Riley 
Joan May 
Brenda Vander Mije 
Mike Rozycki 
Jason Merritt 
Dennis Lankes 
Tom Kennedy 
Erik Fallenius 
Carly Shaw 
Brian Ahern 
Jeff Proteau 
Sally Field 
Lauren Bloemsma 
Doug Tueller 
Pete Mitchell 
Danny Craft 
Karen James 
Randy Edwards 



TOWN OF MOUNTAIN VILLAGE 
TOWN COUNCIL MEETING 

PAGE2 
MARCH 17,2011 

Di cussion nnd Potential Action on the Following Arens of the Mountain Village Comprehensive Plan: 
Farmer Chair of the Comprehensive Plan Task Force Chris Laukenmann spoke to Council and offered an 

historical perspective on the development of the plan. Mayor Delves explained that this meeting will begin with 

another charette session which is an interactive, flexible process. Director of Community Development Chris 

Hawkins introduced Rob Rydel with OZ Architects who will be presenting subarea revisions and the results of 

new parcel testing per Council's direction at the March 10, 2011 meeting. 

1. Economic Analysis Summary and How Such Compares to Hot Bed Numbers 
Generated from Directed Subnrca Concept Pino Changes to Date 

This item will be agendized at a future meeting;.":it is tentatively scheduled for March 31, 

2011. . · ::,i, 
; •,~ I • ,:, ,! 

:. l'h 

2. Presentation of Revisions (per Coun~ii Di~ection at the Maa-ch 101 2011 Spccilll 

Council Direction 

Meeting) to the Subarea Concept Plans and New Parcel TesHng Through a Design 
Chnrrette Proce.qs for the Following Subueas in the Comprehensive Plan: 
Mr. Ry<lt:l stated that the three things he is looking for direction on today are: 

• Overall Mass and Scale 
• Use 
• 40/40/20 split otllot ·bed only on certajn parcels 
At next week's meetingJlle presentation will .'be revised for these comments, including 
refined drawings and an update on to~l units with a comparison to the previous subarea plan 
parcel by parcel. Mayor Delves remihif ~.d eyeryone that this is conceptual and we are not 
designing or building anything. The gQa'.I is , to' test the parcel for mass, scale and use. All 
conceptuaJ ideas wiJI be subject to a .. rigorous DRB and Town Council process. 
a. Mountain Village Center 

West Village Feaks area. Cqmments and discussion were as follows: 
The·2.1 parcel was tested at five levels avoiding the wetlands. It was 
noted that 2.1 was parcel tested by Cal Wilbourne for a hot bed and 

,pieeting room expansion. 
22 expansion with hot beds. It was determined that this area should be 
reti~ed Peaks Addition as it is no longer contemplated as a clubhouse 
expansion. 
2.3 Conference Center Expansion. 
2;4 Covered tennis courts with hotel. Council stated that we need to show 
a new way to link to Hotel Madeline. 
2.5 A hotel with three levels or a Recreation Center and hotel combined. 
If a hotel only there would be 68 hotbeds or 34 units if combined with a 
recreation center. The access is via a tunnel off Vischer Drive. The 
proposal is to connect 2.4 from the same tunnel. 
This West Village Peaks parcel yields 376 units versus 302 units in 
December's Matrix 

Dave Schillaci suggested testing views from See Forever Village and Courcheval including roof elevations. He 

would like to see access for the Recreation Center off Mountain VilJage Blvd. (MVB) as well as from Vischer 

Ddve. Dan Garner stated that 30,000 square feet is needed for a Recreation Center and that 2.4 should be a 



TOWN OF MOUNTAIN VILLAGE 
TOWN COUNCIL MEETING 

PAGE3 
MARCH 17, 2011 

recreation center and 2.5 should be I 00% hotbeds. The rest of Council concurred. He added that the idea for a 
recreation center was previously sold as being 60-70% tourists and if it is located at Town Hall Plaza this would 
be a detraction for tourists. Bob Delves stated that if the recreation center is located at Town Hall Plaza it may 
be a different recreation center than what was envisioned before and he is still interested in the multi-taxing 
district possibilities. Mayor Delves expressed concerns about Vischer Drive access. He asked to show alternate 
access from MVB for the 2.5 hotel site and for 2.4 the recreation center. Jonathan Greenspan stated that he does 
not think access from MVB will work and he is okay with the Vischer Drive access for both 2.4 and 2.5. He 
would like to see an amphitheater shown in the 2.4 area. Chris Cox stated that he is okay with everything here 
on a broad conceptual basis and that his interests lie in how this flows into the economic mode], how the 
wetlands are affected and how it works with traffic study conclusions. He mentioned that Capella should be 
now called Hotel Madeline on the drawings. 

Consensus was for overall mass and scale, continuing to study access and \lll~erstanding the options. There was 
overall support for 2.4 as a recreation center and 2.5 as~ hotel, as well as adding an amphitheater. Council 
directed staff to determine if 2.2 is supported by the P~ ks. lt was also determined that Council would not direct 
the change of the 40/40/20 split on any parcel to hot bed :only as they believe that will ultimately be detennined 
by the applicant. 

South Driving Range/Golf Clubhou c plus Hot Beds Parcel (3.0): 
• The proposal is to move the development to!th:e JJ,orth with pot~ntial access off of Vischer Drive. This is a 

three story structure with an 18,000 sq. ft. ·¢lubhouse on the main floor and fifty-six bot bed units on the top 
two levels. 

Council Direction \ 
Mayor Delves likes the clubhouse and a mq~est number of hotel rooms, noting access would have to be off of 
Vischer Drive. He stated that a forested buffer should be kept for a surface parking lot and that we should talk to 
TSG about the winter impact of surface,.parkHig'an~ "tl1,.~_effects of both 2.4 and the clubhouse on the Meadows Ski 
Run. Dave Schillaci suggested .moving parking to the nort,h ~d left of building if possible. Mayor Delves noted that 
the clubhouse and parking are both allowed '4:Ses on Active Open Space but the hotel is not. Overall consensus was 
that Council was supp011ive of this parcel for·~as.s, scale and use. 

Lot 30 (Parcel 4.0): 
Previously, the parcel had two or three to~ home units similar to Aspen Ridge and Mr. Rydel was asked to look at 
multi-parcel w1its including parking. As shown, the parcel now has double sided multifamily units with four levels. 
There are 22 units with four leve]s stepping down to three levels on the ends. 

Council Direction 
Jonathan Greenspan and Dan Garner suggested looking at incorporating parking into the buildings underground 
rather than above ground. Mayor Delves stated the mass and scale is similar to a multi-family scenario and it is 
compatible with the neighborhood as it is across the street from a hotel. Chris Hawkins stated he spoke to the owner 
Darrell Huschke who indicated he does not want to be bound by the plan and wants to be able to develop within the 
existing zoning but he was open to this idea. Dave Schillaci stated that the minimum number of units to make a 
boutique hotel is 40-60 units and that we could get close to 40 units on this site and maybe more with a lot line 
adjustment. Council direction was to look at a "C" shape and undergrounding the parking and that they were 
favorable to this parcel. 



TOWN OF MOUNTAIN VILLAGE 
TOWN COUNCIL MEETING 

PAGE4 
MARCH 17, 2011 

89 Lots: 
Mr. Rydel stated that for this parcel he incorporated a smaller footprint on the south and north ends and included 8 
town homes closest to the adjacent single family homes in order to reduce the impacts of this parcel to the 
surrounding single family lots. He also indicated that 5.0C and D are five levels and the entire 89 Parcel contains 
135 units based on the 40/40/20 mix versus the 97 units in the previous model. 

Council Direction 
Jonathan Greenspan suggested a different mass and scale on 5 .0C and D by working with the topography, combining 
the two buildings and wrapping around and stepping down with the tcn'ajn which would have the appearance of 
separate units but would actually be connected. He believed that by c~eating the higher density from the B in 5.0B 
through 5 .OC in a C shape, leaving the View 4 and up as town ho111es aµd adding a few more town homes next to 
either side of 5.0B would be more sensitive to the surrounding neig{lbors n11d would put the density adjacent to other 
higher density projects. The Mayor and the rest of Council agreed' that Lhis sce{lario would be more respectful to the 
neighboring area. Council direction was to test it as a hQtefbut it could be mi1lti*family with some deed restricted 
units and to stay with five levels where Mr. Greenspan, suggested putting the ·niain mass and scale and then step 
down ti'om there. 

Gondola Parcel: 
Mr. Rydel explained that pursuant to Council .dfre.ction at the last meeting he added density by extending the 7 .0C 
building and he added to 7 .OC2 up the hill to the south·an~. some town home units at 7 .OC3 (he noted that 7 .OC3 may 
not be realistic). He also indicated that 7.0A and:~ could·~e. (Wnnected which would give this parcel 483 units of 
density compared to 361 units. He .also noted that•nOA is si~Jevels. 

Council Direction · , . • 
It is important to show access to the various units. Dan Garner and Bob Delves suggested looking at maximizing 
parking under the B and C buildings and to be mindful th~y also have parking commibnents for the Ridge. 

Council agreed on the need to profile mass. and scale to the si~gle family units adjacent to the parcels and to see the 
parcels tested both as one commori'·element and then as three separate parcels, including elevations. They also 
agreed there should b a condition in t~e: plan to memorialize that a loading dock must be addressed. The desire is 
for eve1yone to be able to work together in this area. The Town owns some open space in between the lots that 
could be used as incentives. The addition of C2 would be a great incentive. Overall, there was support for the mass 
and scale. 

b. Town Hall Plaza: 
16.5 A 30,000 sq. ft. recreation center with parking at the GPG 
16.6 A three level school facility with 17,000 sq. ft, gym on two levels. A 
playground is on the south side of the building. It could also incorporate a 
school/public library combo noting this parcel is a bit crowded 
16.1 An 8,000 sq. ft. children's ski school (two levels at 4,000 sq. ft each) 
including an over head link and drop off 
16.2 medical center building of 68,000 sq. ft. (half is a medical center, the 
rest are other related offices, four levels) 
16.3 Town Hall east hotel 23,000 sq. ft. with four to five stories and 95 
units 
16.4 Deed restricted housing including 26 one and two bedroom units 



TOWN OF MOUNTAIN VILLAGE 
TOWN COUNCIL MEETING 

Council Direction 

PAGES 
MARCH 17, 2011 

Mayor Delves stated that the school was not what he expected and Council directed Mr. Rydel to get input from 
Mary Rubadeau and her team to make sw-e needs were being addressed adequately. There was a lot of support 
for the school with multi-use idea and it was suggested that maybe we can try to celebrate the wetlands as a 
playground. Council direction was to draw it with and without the recreation center if the recreation center goes 
to the Village Center, including drawing a bigger gym so it is sized to serve both the school and the community. 
Jonathan Greenspan suggested looking at redesigning the entire area including MVB, undergrounding the 
parking, and maybe thinking in terms of a one building concept rather than a multi-building concept. Think of 
this area as a campus type of environment. A community center campus:with educational, recreational, wellness 
and commercial (daily community services) uses including daycare, 4>\jmiunity center, school, and a library. 
Dan Garner cautioned about the economic viability of a commu9itt ~ ter. The intention is not for Mountain 
Village taxpayers to pay for a school here. If the recreation ceruex,•Q tale~n out, there will be better opportunities 
for the school and the library. There are definite safety concer~s -'.;"bout ~bJi:g~tion and vehicles with an 
elementary school. Council direction was to start with the $Choo! and add on v;:hat is compatible, preferably 
something with n recreation component such as a gymnasium. CounciJ agreed there was a need to study the 
connection from the gondola to this area at a later meeting. Jonathan Greenspan stat~ he had no problem with 
the ski school location but asked would guests be better served if it was Jocated by the magic carpet by the 
Chondola and lhal safe access would need to be ensured. There.was consensus to leave 16.3 (the east hotel) as 
is. Also leave the deed restricted units (16.4) but the economics may not pencil. The Mayor asked to see the 
VCA footprint so we can see how the Big Billie's units~may fit there . . For 16.2, the medical center, add a plan 
note about a potential helicopter pad, olherwise ·1~8ive as:is',, Al.I were in agreement that it would be better to go 
under the road to access the children's ski school but this is· a\Q'ost jssue. 

\,. .] .~• . 
,t~ • 

~ \, 1:, c. Meadows ' · 
Mr. Rydel stated his direction was to look at Big BilJie~s and Prospect Plaza. For Big Billie's he used a scrape 
scenario and replaced it with 125 hot bed units with four stories with underground parking, noting that the existing 
units need to be relocated somewhere. The Prospect Plaza:parcels 11.2 to 11.9 yield 124 units of one and two 
bedroom units which could be a solution for replacing the loss of units at Big Billie's. 

Council Direction 
Meadows - Big Billie.'s:_ .. 
Dave Schillaci is opposed'.to a hotel at Big Billie's and noted the cun·ent configuration as drawn may be on wetlands 
which must be accounted for. Mayor Delves stated that the best expansion potential is up the hill noting this would 
have the best views. He suggested fiU#'1g in the "V's" of the current Big Billie's configuration and noted the 
existing 150 dorm units must be mov~d. · Dan Garner asked about access from the Meadows parking lot to the lifts 
and the Chondola, noting the need to solve connectivity to the core to help with vitality. Dave Riley will provide a 
drawing of a pulse gondola from the parking lot in the Meadows to Town Hall. Mayor Delves asked to test parking 
at grade from an economic perspective and to preserve the structure and expand it to where the outdoor patio and 
eating area is currently (beachfront). TSG needs to provide information on the condition of the existing structure. 
An improved intersection at Adams Ranch Road and the road to Fairway Four must be Jooked at. 

Meadows - Prospect Plaza: 
Dave Schillaci stated that as proposed this is just too much density. It is also too expensive and unrealistic to move 
the shops and noted he could support half the density which would greatly reduce the amount of people and vehicles. 
Chris Cox agreed and stated the Meadows should not be a "dumping ground" for density. 



TOWN OF MOUNTAIN VILLAGE 
TOWN COUNCIL MEETING 

PAGE6 
MARCH 17, 2011 

Jonathan Greenspan stated that the current shop layout is inefficient and it would be great to find ways to correct 
this. He stated that he respects the density issues and for 11.3 and 11.2 he is most interested in what really can fit 
there, noting it could be a good place to fit some density such as some of the Big Billie's units. Bob Delves stated 
that he is fairly ambivalent about this area and would like to keep options in the plan. Dan Garner stated he does not 
like what is proposed, noting that if the shop is there it won't be an attractive location for housing. The consensus 
was to leave 11.2 and 11.3 in the plan with conditions including showing a mix of 175 one and two bedroom units, 
show 11.9, 11.6 and 11.7 as a park, and leave 11.4 and 11.5. There is no need to do any more parcel testing or 3D 
modeling on this area. 

Lot 27 A adjacent to Belvedere ; .. 
There are buffers from the property lines and the access on Lost C~k}µtne to this lot. Parcel testing shown for four 
stories of double sided units (47 units). Mr. Rydel stated he wil(have :a)D model for this next week. Council 
consensus was to leave it in as depicted. ' 

d. Boomcl'nng and Comanche 
Mr. Rydel state<l that the Comanche site as previously deJ?icted had 152 wiits ari~,....,_after reducing by half it is 
currently shown as 77 units. Boomerang was 303 units befoi·y .as coltltiB;Ced to 253 now sllown. The view from the 
base area shows that you would be able to see some buildings -h~Mr~es1can minimize the impact. AJso shown is the 
view from the skier's perspective noting again th~t t{ees will minijµize the visual impacts. ·. ~. : . .•. 

Council Direction . . 
Mayor Delves acknowledged lh~t this P.arcel is the .Q)OSt conll'over~ial. Coh.eems include access, mass and scale, 
what it looks and fi els I ike as a skier the ~ppearance from the Village C~nter, lights on the hill, a pulse gondola with 
added congestion oo the beach 8,!1d questions pf whether this adds to or dilutes the Village Center. It is an iconic site 
which doesn 't exisl anywhere else. If it gets too small it won't happen economically. Council direction was to 
continue to test th is parcel and understand th~ i,;npacts. Dan Garner concurred with the Mayor and added that until 
we know what we have done with the rest oftne plan w~ won't know what density is necessary. Dan Garner stated 
that he likes the new drawings but i concerned abo~t the.loss of hotbeds. I 0.1 C is the most obtrusive building but lo 
make any sense ofil the trees need to be show11.from all angles. Dan Garner stated he is opposed to sequencing since 
any development will be free market dl'iven. Council direction was to reconfirm the visual impacts from the Village 

enter. Mr. Rydel clarified that he can show frees in the vicinity of the buildings but not all the U'ees on the 
mountain. he right side buildings should be tested further as most thought they would be more tucked in on the 
other side oflhe kn 11. Dave Schillaci asked how the road-cut is goiL1g to affect views and how far the trees have to 
be away from the building for fire mitigation requirements. Mr. Greenspan agreed with tree issues but noted that the 
forest is not healthy in this area. He stated that he made a promise to look at this subarea very closely and that it is 
the hardest one for him to stomach. Council directed Mr. Rydel to show the road on future drawings starting at the 
Mountain Sho·p and the pulse gondola alignment needs to be evaluated both top and bottom. Finally, 10.2 should be 
depicted as both in and out of the depiction so we can see whether the units themselves or the tree cuts for access arc 
driving the visual impact. 

Public comment on all items discussed was received by Brenda Vander Mije, Mary Rubadcau, Mike Rozycki, 
Penelope Gleason, Nicole Pieterse, Doug Tueller, Sally Field, Tom Kennedy and Erik Fallenius 

3. Other Comprehensive Plan Business 
a. Presentation and Discussion of Revised Comprehensive Plan Schedule. 

Chris Hawkins stated he will present a revised schedule at next week's meeting. 



TOWN OF MOUNTAIN VILLAGE 
TOWN COUNCIL MEETING 

LUNCH BREAK from 1:05 p.m. to 1:35 p.m. 

Public Comment for on-Agenda Items 

PAGE7 
MARCH 17, 2011 

Public comment was received from Paolo Canclini who explained that employee units at Franz Klammer Lodge 
(FKL) do not have designated parking and this has become a significant detriment in keeping the units occupied. 
The Mayor acknowledged that deed restl'icted housing without parking is problematic and directed Mr. Canclini 

to meet with Town Manager Greg Sparks, himself and possibly Scott Shifrin or other FKL representatives to 
look fmther into the situation noting that this could be an HOA issue. 

Staff Reports: 
a. Mountain Munchkins Preschool & Daycare Assistant .Town Manager Kim Montgomery presented 

the above report for Director Kathleen Merritt who was unable to & t nd the meeting. Dave Schillaci 
stated that be would like to see added goals that are geared toward cli:i 'd development. Council 
discussion ensued on various topics including daycare opening on Satin\ . ~Yf and Sundays, a movie night 
on Friday nights and the possibility of offering Saturday service year round, .. 

b. Town Manager Town Manager Greg Sparks presented his report. He stated th~~ snow and ice removal 
at Big BiJlie's as well as the number of: cars parked beyond the breezeway that will not a1low an 

' ambulance to get through are ongoing.'i_s~ue~ that need to be addressed with TSO. Mr. Sparks noted that 
he will meet with Mr. Canclini regardin'g,parl<ihg issues for the FKL deed restricted units. Mr. Sparks 
info1mcd Council of Hotel Madeline's ir1t~11tion to ~tay open during the off season and that the ice rink 
closed last week for the season (Jue to warm}temperatures. He expli\ined that Gondola Station 3 went 
down Sunday morning and the i~sue was not a ·predictable type of failure. Staff did a great job dealing 
with the issues and getting the gon~oJa back Jp and running. Council discussion ensued. 

Telluride Historical Mu eum Annual Update 
Telluride Historical Musewn Director Lauren Bloemsma presented the annual update stating that the museum 
had a small deficit this past year which was covered by reserves. The Mayor thanked Ms. Bloemsrna and noted 
the great job she is doing for the museum. She added that she is working with the Town to fund exhibits and 
may put some exhibits in hotels as well. Council discussion ensued. 

Consideration of: 
Febronry 28, 2011 BAGAR Renort 
Chief Accountant Julie Vergari presented the BAG AR Report. Council discussion ensued. 

First Reading, Setting of a Public Hearing and Council Vote on an 01·dinancc Amending the Solid Waste 
and Recycling Onlin~mce Regarding Houl's for Residential Solid Waste Pick Up 
Greg Sparks presented the above stating that per Council direction at the last meeting, the ordinance has been 
amended to allow additional time for bear proof containers to be set out prior to pick-up. On a MOTION by 
Dan Garner and seconded by Chris Cox, Council voted 5-0 (with Richard Child and Cath Jett absent) to approve 
the above ordinance on first reading and set the second reading, public hearing and Council vote for April 21, 
2011. 

Consideration of 2011 Telluride DJucgrnss Festival Facilities Use Agreement 
Greg Sparks presented the above stating that he has not yet received comment back from Bluegrass Director 
Craig Ferguson. Council discussion ensued. On a MOTION by Dan Garner and seconded by Jonathan 



TOWN OF MOUNTAIN VILLAGE 
TOWN COUNCIL MEETING 

PAGES 
MARCH 17, 2011 

Greenspan, Council voted unanimously to authorize the Mayor and the Town Manager to finalize and execute 
the 2011 Telluride Bluegrass Festival Facilities Use Agreement. 

Consenf Ageud:i 
All matters in the consent agenda are considered to be routine by the Town Council and will be enacted 
with a single v o1 c. There will be no seuaratc discussion of these items. If discussion is deemed necessa1y, 
that item should be removed from the Consent Agenda and considered separately: 

a. onsidcration of Approval of Minutes of the Marcl1 10, 2011,Special Town Council Meeting 
On a MOTION by Dan Garner and seconded by Chris Cox, c;'.:ouncil voted unanimously to approve the 
consent agenda. 

Other Business 
There was no other business. 

E xecutive cssion for the Purpose of Receiving Legal Advice Pursuant to c:R:S. 24-6-402 (4)(b); and for 
the Pun>osc of ·gotfations Pursuant to C.R.S. 24-6-402{4)(e) ·· 
No executive session was necessary. 

There being no further business, on a MOTION by :Jonathan Greenspan and seconded by Chris Cox, Council 
agreed to adjourn at 2:20 p.m. 

Respectfully Submitted, 

Jackie Kennefi.ck 
Sr. Deputy Clerk 



TELLURIDE 

618 MTN VILLAGE BLVD. 
SUITE 201 

TELLURIDE, CO 81435 
PH: 970.728.5775 

FAX: 970.728.5898 

TUELLER & GIBBS, LLP 
DENVER· TELLURIDE 

WWW.TUELLERGIBBS.COM 

February 14, 2018 

Via Email mhaynes@mtnvillage.org 
Members of the Mountain Village Town Council ("Town Council") 
c/o Ms. Michelle Haynes, Director of Planning and Development Services 
455 Mountain Village Boulevard, Suite A 
Mountain Village, CO 81435 

DENVER 

1601 BLAKE ST. 
SUITE 300 

DENVER, CO 80202 
PH: 303.854.9121 

FAX: 303.845.5333 

Re: Comments on the Application for Proposed Major PUD Amendment and Extension 
(the "PUD Extension Application") sought by Northlight Trust I (the 
"Applicant") for Lot 126R, Lot 152R, OSP 118, OSP 126 (the "Property") for 
impacted Lot 143A Owner Carol Hintermeister ("Ms. Hintermeister") 
Our File Ref: Hintermeister 

Dear Ladies and Gentlemen: 

This letter again is provided on behalf of Ms. Hintermeister in connection with the above
referenced PUD Extension Application and supplements the comments set forth in our February 
13, 2018 letter. Accordingly, based on a number of technical issues/questions arising after our 
letter yesterday, we ask for your confirmation/clarification of the following at tomorrow's Town 
Council Meeting. 

1. Please confirm, for the record, that the contemplated "Memorandum of Understanding" 
will have the same binding effect as the more formal "Standstill Agreement" (which is 
the actual document mentioned in the notices). 

2. Please also clarify the definition of the "Vested Rights" referenced in Recital B of the 
proposed Memorandum of Understanding, again to establish for the record the exact 
rights that, without a formal PUD extension, the Town deems otherwise would expire on 
March 18, 2018 (i.e., which specific "Vested Rights" no longer will exist after that 
expiration). 

3. Conversely, please also confirm (citing the LUO or the CDC, as applicable) exactly 
which approved rights associated with the 2007 PUD Approval are believed to survive 
expiration of the "Vested Rights" on March 18, 2018 (i.e., which specific "Vested 
Rights' will continue to exist after that expiration). 

Y:\H\Hintermeister\Lots 126R & 152R Development\Corr\Northlight Trust I Development Application Comment Letter Follow
up FNL 2- I 4-17 .docx 



Ms. Michelle Haynes 
February 14, 2018 
Page 2 

4. Please also confirm whether any of those specific surviving "Vested Rights" will include 
any recorded subdivision or density rights. In doing so, please clarify whether the 2007 
PUD Approval granted only preliminary subdivision rights, or whether recordation of the 
final subdivision plat, in fact, vested any permanent rights (and, if so, what exact rights). 

5. Assuming that subdivision rights associated with the 2007 PUD Approval in fact survive 
expiration of the "Vested Rights" on March 18, 2018, please confirm that such 
subdivision rights in fact have been secured by adequate subdivision improvements 
security collateral posted and retained in place pursuant to Colorado law at all times since 
March 15, 2007. Since we understand that Colorado law indicates failure of any 
landowner to have so posted and retained adequate security could give rise to claims of 
default regarding the approved "Vested Rights," we need to ask for clarity on this issue 
(including any steps that now will be required for any new posting in connection with 
Town Council acts taken tomorrow). 

6. Finally, based on these new issues and general concerns about public participation in any 
new application(s), we need to confirm formally that Ms. Hintermeister reserves full 
rights to object to any final form of approvals and any subsequent applications filed in 
connection therewith. 

* * * * * 

Thanks again for your continued attention to these matters and please contact us with any 
questions, or if we can assist otherwise. Please also note that we still plan to attend tomorrow's 
meeting, and, thus, will be available to assist with any of these matters, if/as helpful. 

ec: James D. Mahoney, Esq. 

Sincerely, 

TUELLER & GIBBS, LLP 
a Colorado limited liability partnership 

By: Isl Douglas R. Tueller 
Douglas R. Tueller 

Carol and Hank Hintermeister 
Dr. Alan Safdi 
Monique Bensett 

Y:\H\Hintermeister\Lots 126R & 152R Development\Corr\Northlight Trust I Development Application Comment Letter Follow
up FNL 2-14-17.docx 



Date: February 14, 2018 

To: Town of Mountain Village 
455 Mountain Village Blvd., Suite A 
Mountain Village, CO 81435 
Attn: Michelle 

From: George and Cynthia Barutha 
255 Country Club Dr. 
Mountain Village, CO 81435 

14621 S. Presario Trail 
Phoenix, AZ. 85040 

Subject: Lot 126R and 152R - Memorandum of Understanding 

This letter serves as official notification of our concerns with the proposed Alternative Development 
Plan being proposed by Northlight Trust I. Because our new home is located outside the 400 ft limit, 
we were not aware of this issue, until our visit the week of February 7th thru 11th, 2018. However, the 
location of this project would greatly affect our quality life and experience in Mountain Village. 

It is our understanding an impact study of the area and Country Club Drive for this Alternative 
Development that could potentially be proposed in the future, has not been performed for over 11 
years when the town approved a mixed use development project on Lots 126R and 152R. Since that 
time, new projects have been developed or additional units added: Cassidy Ridge, Cortina, Madeline, 
and Elk5tone 21. 

Our concerns stand with the extension of an Alternative Development Plan, with gives Northlight 
Trust I the same results that cannot be rescinded. 

We are building our 2nd home in Telluride to get away from the busy city life, which makes the 
Telluride/ Mountain Village area so appealing. 

Our home is near the end of the cul-de-sac on Country Club Drive and sits low on Country Club Drive due 
to the height restrictions. Any Alternative Development Plan would increase traffic in the area causing 
safety issues on the curved roads, the cul-de-sac would be used for guest to turn vehicles around on 
County Club Drive and vehicle lights would shine directly into the windows of our home. Any future 
project on these lots, must be understood, and a current density impact study must be performed. 

Please do not tie our hands with an agreement that took place back in 2007, with different Landowners 
and different density conditions. 

Sincerely, 

0!,J-,fl-~ 
/~~ 
George and Cynthia Baru1ha 



1

Susan Johnston

Subject: FW: Permit Parking at Upper Mountain Village

 
 
 
From: Craig Spring [mailto:craig@luminosityald.com]  
Sent: Thursday, February 15, 2018 3:49 PM 
To: mvclerk <mvclerk@mtnvillage.org> 
Subject: Permit Parking at Upper Mountain Village 
 
Hi MV Council / MV Clerk / Natalie, 
  
After one of the Parking Committee members stopped by yesterday to inform each business who has an Upper Mountain 
Village Parking Permit of the Council Meeting, I wanted to follow up and comment: 
  
I will keep my comments as concise as possible. 
  

- As a business owner in MV, I know multiple business owners that utilize the parking along Upper Mountain 
Village, including our team.   

- As a business that attends numerous meetings a day in Telluride, Mountain Village, and at construction sites 
throughout the county, having access to parking near our office is essential.  If I had to park in the parking garage 
near the market, the round trip commute would significantly impact my operation.  If I had to pay for parking on 
an hourly basis, for multiple employees, that would also add up dramatically over the course of a year.     

- If they are looking to eliminate 100 passes/40 spaces of parking in that zone, I would ask Council to consider 
another lot on this end of MV to be considered.  It sounded like the empty parking lot adjacent to the 
Gondola/Telluride Sports will potentially be developed into a permitted parking lot (lottery system), but that 
information could not be confirmed, and may be under different ownership.        

  
I attended the meeting today, but it appeared that it was going to be delayed significantly before the Parking Committee’s 
recommendation was going to be discussed.  
  
Best, 
   
Craig Spring  | IALD | IES | LC | LEED AP 
Principal 
  

 
 
www.luminosityald.com 
  
P  970.729.8892   |   C  970.708.4532   |   618 Mtn Vlg Blvd, Ste 203A, Mtn Vlg, CO 81435   l   PO Box 3610, Telluride, CO 81435    
___________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
  
This email and any attachments are confidential and may contain privileged information and/or copyright material of Luminosity  
or third parties. You should only re-transmit, distribute or commercialize the material if you are authorized to do so. 
  

LUMlf\OSITY 



1

Susan Johnston

Subject: FW: Please pass along my thoughts to the Mayor for the meeting on Feb 15

 
 
From: David Reed [mailto:david@reedda.com]  
Sent: Tuesday, February 13, 2018 4:21 PM 
To: Kim Montgomery <KMontgomery@mtnvillage.org> 
Cc: mvclerk <mvclerk@mtnvillage.org>; Bruce MacIntire <BMacIntire@mtnvillage.org>; Dan Caton 
<DCaton@mtnvillage.org>; Dan Jansen <DJansen@mtnvillage.org>; Jack Gilbride <JGilbride@mtnvillage.org>; Laila 
Benitez <LailaBenitez@mtnvillage.org>; Natalie Binder <NBinder@mtnvillage.org>; Patrick Berry 
<PBerry@mtnvillage.org> 
Subject: Re: Please pass along my thoughts to the Mayor for the meeting on Feb 15 
 
Thank you for the clarifications on both issues.  I agree parking on the upper road is not good and support the proposal 
to stop that  
 
David, thank you for your eloquent response. It seems for sure this issue has been fully disposed. No need to push my 
concerns further for as you state, doing so could open up pandoras box again.  
 
Thanks to both for complete and timely responses. I hope to meet you one day soon 
 
Regards. David 

David A Reed-   david@reedda.com 
 
On Feb 13, 2018, at 3:53 PM, Kim Montgomery <KMontgomery@mtnvillage.org> wrote: 

Good Afternoon David: 
  
The only parking that is being discussed is employee parking permits which allow for parking on Upper 
Mountain Village Blvd. which is considered on-street parking (I have attached the memo from the 
Council packet explaining in more detail). With development in that area of homes and other uses, we 
are eliminating this street side parking. All current parking that is in place for our “residential permit 
parking” will remain in place. I have copied Town Council, including the Mayor, on this email so they are 
aware of your questions and my response. To date, the Town has not considered free parking for 
residents at what we call “Heritage Parking Garage” in the Village Center, however, by copying Council 
they will be aware of your suggestion (the Town does control a portion of that parking garage). 
  
Our attorney David Reed has responded to your second question from other constituents and I have 
copied his response below: 
  
“As legal counsel to the Town of Mountain Village, the Town Clerk has requested that I respond 
to your recent email expressing your concerns regarding your right to vote in a Mountain Village 
municipal election. 
  
First, without getting into too much boring detail, let me explain that state and local law in 
Colorado, as well as in all other states and local jurisdictions, sets the qualifications for voter 



2

registration. One of those qualifications is that the individual must be a resident of the state and 
of the local jurisdiction in which he or she intends to register. 
  
Notwithstanding this long held constitutional concept of a residency requirement, the founders of 
Mountain Village, recognizing the demographics of Mountain Village, then as well as into the 
future, felt that it was important to provide our non-resident property owners with the right to 
have a voice in their local government. Thus the Mountain Village Town Charter was drafted to 
enfranchise our non-resident property owners.  This is a very unusual concept and goes against 
traditional constitutional concepts. 
  
Shortly after incorporation of the Town, the ACLU, along with a number of local residents 
brought suit to constitutionally challenge this provision in the Charter.  The Town vigorously 
defended its Charter position and litigated this issue all the way to the Supreme Court.  After the 
expenditure of many resources, including financial, the Town prevailed on its defense of the non-
resident property owner’s right to vote under the unique circumstances of the Town.  However, 
this decision upheld the right of non-resident property owners who were natural persons to 
vote.  Had this class of voters been other than natural persons, I speculate that the outcome 
would have been different. 
  
Having said all of this, keep in mind that the provision that allows non-resident property owners 
the right to vote is a Charter provision.  The Town Council does not have the power or authority 
to change or amend the Charter, only the Town electors can do that. Consequently, an 
amendment to the town charter to expand the right to vote to properties held in trust could be 
proposed and voted on by the Town voters.  However, in my opinion, if such a Charter 
amendment were to pass, I believe that it would be subject to legal challenge and likely not 
upheld, if challenged. 
  
As an aside, at the time we litigated the voter’s rights case, there were only two other 
jurisdictions in the United States that enfranchised its non-resident property owners with the 
right to vote and in both instances unique circumstances existed, as is in the case of the Town 
and as was so recognized by the Courts. 
  
Please let me know if I can provide you with any other information. 
  
Regards,  
  
  
J. David Reed” 
  
Thank you for your inquiry and please don’t hesitate to contact me if you have any additions questions. 
  
Kim E. Montgomery 
Town Manager 
O:: 970-369-6411 
M:: 970-729-3403 
kmontgomery@mtnvillage.org 
Town of Mountain Village 
Email Signup | Website | Facebook | Twitter | Pinterest | Videos On Demand 
  
  
Please note that I am in the office Monday through Thursday. I am available via email and cell phone 
outside of office hours. 



3

  
From: David Reed [mailto:david@reedda.com]  
Sent: Tuesday, February 13, 2018 3:38 PM 
To: Kim Montgomery <KMontgomery@mtnvillage.org> 
Subject: Please pass along my thoughts to the Mayor for the meeting on Feb 15 
  
Dear, Kim, I am not the David Reed which is the Town Attorney.  I have a 
home at 120 Arizona, and thus, I receive the Agendas for the Town Council 
Meetings and noticed an item discussing parking permits, which if I 
understand this correctly, calls for a further reduction of permit parking in 
“Upper Mountain Village”.   I looked for awhile in the Agenda 
documentation but could not get clarification for what is being 
recommended.   At the moment, as a part-time resident, we are able with 
our permit to park in the garage at the Market, along the wall by the Market, 
and the small lot across to the east of Wells Fargo Bank.  I am not sure 
whether the latter is the “Upper Mountain Village” referred to, but I strongly 
am against further reduction in the availability of our residents to park 
beyond what has already been provided.  We pay a very strong 3% transfer 
fee, significant property taxes, and what seems to be extremely high 
inspection fees, and feel we should have some benefits within our own 
town. Moreover, it would be terrific if some spaces (maybe 10-20) could be 
reserved for residents in the underground parking lot in the Center Core.  I 
do not know if the Town owns or administers that garage, so forgive me if 
that is a private operation and cannot be considered.  If I have 
misunderstood the proposal to remove the Upper Mountain Village parking, 
please correct me.  Thank you 
  
One other topic- since we hold our home in a Revocable Trust (which is a 
see-through, set up only to avoid Estate Probate), we are not eligible to 
vote in elections.  This seems ridiculous to us.  If there is any consideration 
to changing this so we can vote, it would be great.  Just wanted the Mayor 
and your Group to be aware and to raise the issue if it can be discussed 
and/or changed in the Bylaws. 
  
Gain, thank you for your consideration 
  
David Reed 
120 Arizona 

<UMVB permit parking.pdf> 



Susan Johnston 

Subject: FW: DRB Reform 

From: Brian Eaton <bingo.eaton@cox.net> 
Date: February 14, 2018 at 2:00:26 PM MST 
To: <lbenitez@mtnvillage.org>, <dcaton@mtnvillage.org>, <pberry@mtnvillage.org>, <nbinder@mtnvillage.org> 
Cc: <KMontgomery@mtnvillage.org> 
Subject: DRB Reform 

Council Members and friends, 
After seeing the notice for the positions on the DRB, I thought it a good time to look into changing and 
improving the Board to better serve the homeowners and residents of Mt. Village. For over twenty years 
now, I have been attending these meetings and have been been very concerned with the lack of support 
for homeowners' concerns. In the beginning, we could not even get proper notifications in order to 
voice these concerns, but the most common issue was that there was no slowing down any large or 
commercial project. Homeowners were greatly outnumbered by developers with architects, builders 
and attorneys. Even the well-meaning DRB Members were overwhelmed most of the time as the hours 
spent in these meetings. The end result was a lot of poorly planned and underfunded condo projects 
that all but one,(TransMontana), failed at least once. In the rush to "Build Baby Build", grotesque 
mistakes were made by allowing some projects to be too large for the lot, too high for County 
Ordinances, not enough parking, or without proper setbacks to protect homeowners nearby! As a result, 
Mt. Village property values stagnated for over 10 years while those in nearby Telluride greatly improved. 

So, my question is, what is the big hurry to build out our Village? We are left with only 30% left so now 
is the time to be very careful and patient in order to protect the quality and beauty of our town. 
Here are some suggestions I have been proposing for the past 15 years: 
1. Require all DRB Members to live in the Mt Village. (We do not need those who do not live among us 
to determine what we would see every day). 
2. Limit it to 5 Members, and hire consultants when necessary. (Having architects, builders and realtors 
on this Board may encourage poor developments as they may be seeking contracts for themselves. Why 
would they do it otherwise when they may reside elsewhere?) 
3. Shorten the meetings to 5 hours once a month so residents will be willing to volunteer. (Applicants 
will have to get-in-line, but have a "fast-track" for those with no variance requests as well as for single
family residences). 

These "reforms" will provide us all with the assurance that our Village will succeed in being the most 
beautiful resort in Colorado, if not America! 

Thanks, 
Brian Eaton 
104 Gold Hill Ct 
Mt Village 

Sent from my iPad 

1 



CAPTURE	EVERY	RENTAL LODGINGRevs.com

INTRODUCING

CAPTURE	EVERY	RENTAL LODGINGRevs.com

LODGINGRev~ 
CAPTURE EVERY RENTAL 



MUNIRevs and LODGINGRevs

Background:

• Since 2011
• Currently over 35,000 Businesses Use our 

System
• Process over $8 million monthly
• Our Communities are 95% paperless
• Rental Compliance since 2011
• Evolution Into LODGINGRevs System

CAPTURE	EVERY	RENTAL LODGINGRevs.com



Vacation Rental Compliance

Upcoming	Features	Q2:

• Interactive map
• 20+ listing sites
• Integrated Notifications
• Property Complaint Form
• Audit Alerts on Calendar 

Data

CAPTURE	EVERY	RENTAL LODGINGRevs.com

Parking lot 

✓ 

✓✓ 

✓✓ 
tents O 

Etta Place One 

G 

✓ 

Doubi.i)iamond 
byR1!t91Quest 

✓ 

✓ 
.. .. · 



Vacation Rental Compliance

94%	Compliance,	99%	Identified

• How do you know that?
• How is that 

accomplished?
• Why does that matter? 

CAPTURE	EVERY	RENTAL LODGINGRevs.com



Vacation Rental Compliance

How	do	you	know?

• Automated 
process, with 
manual oversight.

• Fully accessible 
to town staff

CAPTURE	EVERY	RENTAL LODGINGRevs.com

Ucense number Is advertised matches the eonnrmed Business's accountnumber 

The advertised owner / manager matches the business user 

The street In the advertisement matches the businessld's physical address street 

link to Ustlng Advertisement :-7 ~ Compliance Status 

2656012 _j Compliiint 

License Name from Automation Check 

Start Date 

Remova l Date 

r·MMJ!,!HJ 
Advertised owner/Manager : 

TBO 

Busi ness User : 

Name 11:mall 

Management Company Name 

SNrdl tor ,n exf5WIQ orooe,ty l'IWWlo,emtnl 
COffll>'"Y, 

Company 

rfV.f:",. '-,4 i·Bb + 
' Advertisement Title 

LO«lably Prieed I Bed,oom • HCJ) 

Property Description: 

People Sleeps 

Mi n imum Night Stay 



Vacation Rental Compliance

How	is	that	accomplished?
• Monitor listings
• Identify properties
• Verify compliance
• Notifications
• Booking Data
• Permitting/Licensing
• Reports

CAPTURE	EVERY	RENTAL LODGINGRevs.com

• Tax Remittance
• Complaints



94-98% Average Compliance Rates

How	is	that	accomplished?
• Capture all listings.
• Deliver custom notifications to owners and 

managers. 
• Support owners and managers.
• Make Compliance Easy – with MUNIRevs.

CAPTURE	EVERY	RENTAL LODGINGRevs.com

Editing Advertisement for Mountain Elegance ,., Location & Luxury - Ski-In-Ski-Out - 5 Guest Suites 

FlipKey 

r-•-l><,-•i_n_•·-·---~ 

Link to Listing Advertisement ID 

5000234 I Compliant 

Start Date 

12/26/ 2017 

Removal Dat e 

N/A 

Compliance Status 

: J 

Advertisement Details 

Mount ain Elegance ~ Location &. Luxury -
Sk i-In-Ski-Out - 5 Guest Su ites 

MOUNTAIN ELEGANCE ~ Ult imate 
combmat1on of Luxury and Location m 
the Mountain Village Core. 

Casa Galena 1s a spacious 5 guest su ite 

Save Add Notlll 



Condos and Outliers

• Cross reference 12+ data points 
and 4 databases, including your 
system of record, assessor 
records and premium whitepages.

• With 1 unique identifier we can 
exclude all other possible 
properties.

• Sometimes this is even a name in 
a review.

CAPTURE	EVERY	RENTAL LODGINGRevs.com



Vacation Rental Compliance

Why	does	it	matter?

• Public safety
• Revenue
• Fairness

CAPTURE	EVERY	RENTAL LODGINGRevs.com



INTRODUCING

CAPTURE	EVERY	RENTAL LODGINGRevs.com

LODGINGRev~ 
CAPTURE EVERY RENTAL 



Sales and Use Tax Simplification Task Force

• Formed in May 2017
• Simplify Home Rule Filing for multi-jurisdictional 

businesses
• Two Other Issues

• “Central” Licensing
• Address Tax Rate Accuracy

• House Bill 17-1216 
• Department of Revenue to issue an RFI by Summer 2018 for a 

solution that is:
• OPTIONAL for businesses
• OPTIONAL for jurisdictions
• Business Funded (i.e. if they choose to use it, they will pay a fee)

ONE	UPLOAD.		ONE	PAYMENT.	FILE	WITH	ALL	70	HOME	RULE	COMMUNITIES HOME RULE PORTAL



Colorado Home Rule Portal

www.coloradohomeruleportal.com

• DBA of MUNIRevs
• Went Live this Week –

• Had 100 Businesses Register in first 2 Days
• Optional to Businesses – Fees commence in April
• No Change for Jurisdictions

– MUNIRevs Towns – Data from Home Rule Portal is 
Automatically Imported to “home” MUNIRevs site

– Paper jurisdictions can choose to sign up to receive 
Home Rule Portal Filings electronically

ONE	UPLOAD.		ONE	PAYMENT.	FILE	WITH	ALL	70	HOME	RULE	COMMUNITIES HOME RULE PORTAL



Sales and Use Tax Simplification Task Force

Next Steps for Colorado Home Rule Portal 
• Will Roll out Licensing in about 60 Days
• Present Again to Task Force in Summer Session 

with Update
• Lobbyist Firm Monitoring

– Goals: After RFI, No RFP Issued / No Single Vendor
• Competitive marketplace like in other states benefits all 
• Allow Certified Vendor Approach as the Department of Revenue 

does now for Tax Rates by Address

ONE	UPLOAD.		ONE	PAYMENT.	FILE	WITH	ALL	70	HOME	RULE	COMMUNITIES HOME RULE PORTAL



Erin Neer, CEO
(970) 729-1619

erin@munirevs.com
www.munirevs.com

'-== 

MUNIRev 
CAPTURE EVERY DOLLAR 

LODGING Rev~ 
CAPTURE EVERY RENTAL 



     1 of 10                                                                                                                                                                                                           Lot 30 Slide       1 of 10 
 

     1 of 10                                                                                                                                                                                                           Lot 30 Slide      1 of 10 

 
Staff Memo (page 3) 
 
“The Town Council has spent a significant amount of time talking with the public along with the property owners 
of Lot 30 and OS1AR-3 and finalized a proposed Comprehensive Plan amendment contained herein during the 
intervening months with the stated goal of allowing both Lot 30 and OS1AR-3 the ability to pursue alternative 
development scenarios to the full Parcel M buildout in a manner which would have existed prior to the adoption 
of the Comprehensive Plan, while also preserving a full Parcel M option.” 
 

1. But is “allowing both Lot 30 and OS1AR-3 the ability to pursue alternative development scenarios” only 
a goal or is it also a solution? 

 
2. Isn’t it in fact the proposed solution to two problems: 
 

Problem 1: Restore rights to Huschkes’ Lot 30 that were unfairly taken? 
 
Problem 2: Because we are giving something to Huschkes, then to be fair to TSG Ski & Golf, LLC, don’t we 

also need to give them something by similarly restoring rights to TSG’s open space? 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



     2 of 10                                                                                                                                                                                                           Lot 30 Slide       2 of 10 
 

     2 of 10                                                                                                                                                                                                           Lot 30 Slide      2 of 10 

CONTROLLING ISSUE  
Because the Comp Plan is being amended to restore rights to Huschkes which would have existed prior to the 
adoption of the Comprehensive Plan, then to be fair to TSG is it necessary to similarly restore rights to TSG? 
 

1. If the answer to this question is YES, then you should adopt paragraph 13.d. 
 

2. If the answer to this question is NO, then you should delete paragraph 13.d. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
“TIMELINE REGARDING PARCEL M, LOT 30 COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDMENT 

• August 17, 2017 Town Council Worksession 
• October 12, 2017 Public Open House regarding a Parcel M, Lot 30 Comprehensive Plan Amendment 
• February 1, 2018 the DRB held a public hearing to provide a courtesy recommendation to Town Council.” 

 
 
 

I 



     3 of 10                                                                                                                                                                                                           Lot 30 Slide       3 of 10 
 

     3 of 10                                                                                                                                                                                                           Lot 30 Slide      3 of 10 

 
 
" After months of navigating negotiations that were trickier than fist imagined this is the Town’s final position on 
this matter which the Town believes gives the Huschke’s some flexibility while preserving some of the Parcel M 
concepts and options.  I have been asked to also let you know that if the Huschke don’t agree with this language 
or want substantial changes to the language the Town is not going to continue to negotiate this matter and will 
simply move forward with the Village Center Subarea process and the Huschke’s can participate in that process." 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
17.1.5.f.3. Citizen participation is the most important element of amending or creating a Comprehensive Plan. 
Therefore, the Comprehensive Plan amendment process shall include significant and meaningful public 
participation elements. 
 
 



     4 of 10                                                                                                                                                                                                           Lot 30 Slide       4 of 10 
 

     4 of 10                                                                                                                                                                                                           Lot 30 Slide      4 of 10 

 

 
 



     5 of 10                                                                                                                                                                                                           Lot 30 Slide       5 of 10 
 

     5 of 10                                                                                                                                                                                                           Lot 30 Slide      5 of 10 

Full Use Ski Resort Active Open Space  
The class 3 AOS Zone District is intended to provide open space areas with more intensive land uses than those 
permitted in the class 1 AOS and class 2 AOS zone districts that are typically associated with the operation and 
maintenance of a ski resort and the community at large, which are limited to ski resort uses, active recreation 
uses, recreational trails, community infrastructure, equestrian facilities, workforce housing, telecommunications 
antenna and similar uses. 
 
 
Land Use Code Section 17.1.5.C. 
 

“C. The Comprehensive Plan future land use map shall be implemented by: 
 

1. Ensuring all development applications that are required to be in general conformance with the 
Comprehensive Plan are compliant with the land use plan policies and future land use map of the 
Comprehensive Plan; and; 
  
2. Ensuring that the ski resort operator and the golf resort operator’s land will be rezoned in the 
future to be in general conformance with the land use plan policies and the future land use plan as 
set forth in the Comprehensive Plan, including but not limited to the public benefit number 9 in the 
Comprehensive Plan public benefits table, that requires Telluride Ski Resort operator and Telluride 
Golf Resort operator’s land to be rezoned to be consistent with the six open space classifications 
shown on the future land use plan and as set forth in this CDC.  

 
Limited Use Ski Resort Active Open Space  
The Class 1 AOS Zone District is intended to provide open space areas limited to active recreational uses, recreational 
trails, ski resort uses limited to snowmaking systems, ski runs, ski events and related activities, tramways and related 
facilities and other similar uses that involve limited vertical development.  



     6 of 10                                                                                                                                                                                                           Lot 30 Slide       6 of 10 
 

     6 of 10                                                                                                                                                                                                           Lot 30 Slide      6 of 10 

 
d. In the event that an independent Lot 30 development occurs in any manner (either by right or through a rezone 
and density transfer), the remainder of Parcel M (the OSP1AR-3 portion) may be developed either consistent with 
the existing underlying zoning or pursuant to rezone and density transfer as approved by the Town Council, so 
long as it meets such rezone and density transfer requirements and the Comprehensive Plan principles and 
policies. However, general conformance with the unit mix for Parcel M as shown on Table 7 Mountain Village 
Center Development Table shall not be applicable as that unit mix is only representative of an entire Parcel M 
development. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Causal relationship: 
The natural agency that connects one process (the cause) with another process or state (the effect), where the 
first is responsible for the second, and the second is dependent on the first. A correlation between variables, 
however, does not automatically mean that the change in one variable is the cause of the change in the values of 
the other variable. Causation indicates that one event is the result of the occurrence of the other event; i.e. there 
is a causal relationship between the two events. 

https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Result


     7 of 10                                                                                                                                                                                                           Lot 30 Slide       7 of 10 
 

     7 of 10                                                                                                                                                                                                           Lot 30 Slide      7 of 10 

 
Requested Motion: 
 
I move to recommend approval to the Mountain Village Town Council of an amendment to the 
Comprehensive Plan, Parcel M, Lot 30 (a part of OS1AR-3 and Lot 30) attached as exhibit c with 
the following findings: 
1. That the community visions and factors affecting land use have substantially changed 
since the adoption of the Comprehensive Plan; 
2. Adequate financing and resources are available to complete the amendment. 
3. That significant and meaningful public participation occurred. 
4. Delete subparagraph 13.d in its entirety. 
5. Authorize the Town Attorney to accept input to determine if any ambiguities exist in subparagraphs 13.a, 13.b 
and 13.c and correct them as he deems appropriate. 
This motion is based on the evidence and testimony provided at a public hearing held on February 
1, 2018, with notice of such hearing as required by the Community Development Code. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
From: Jackie Kennefick  



     8 of 10                                                                                                                                                                                                           Lot 30 Slide       8 of 10 
 

     8 of 10                                                                                                                                                                                                           Lot 30 Slide      8 of 10 

Sent: Wednesday, February 14, 2018 11:52 AM 
To: jhorn@rmi.net  
Cc: Michelle Haynes ; mvclerk ; Jim Mahoney (jmahoney@jdreedlaw.com) ; Kim Montgomery ; Laila Benitez  
Subject: Town Council meeting February 15 
  
Good morning John: 
  
The Mayor spoke with Jim Mahoney this morning regarding how public comment will be handled for the agenda item that you inquired about. After 
they spoke Jim sent me the email below: 
  
The agenda for the Town Council meeting is extremely busy and very lengthy this month with the meeting scheduled to run 
until 4:15 without any delays.  This item is scheduled for 30 minutes total.  Introduction of the item and Council questions of 
staff will likely take at least 5 minutes and Council deliberation and motion usually takes at least 10 minutes leaving at most 15 
minutes total for all public comment.  We anticipate more public comment than just John Horn.  I would suggest you let John 
know of these time constraints and that he should expect to have no more than 5 minutes to make his public comments.  You 
can forward John this email if you would like. 
  
You may also submit written comments that will be sent to Council in advance of the meeting.   
  
See you tomorrow.   
  
Jackie Kennefick 
Director of Administration/Town Clerk 
Town of Mountain Village 

 
 



     9 of 10                                                                                                                                                                                                           Lot 30 Slide       9 of 10 
 

     9 of 10                                                                                                                                                                                                           Lot 30 Slide      9 of 10 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Town Holl 
Ccnttr Suoor('..i 

Future Land 
Use Plan 

Le"end .... 
.W•11<J.L,.1tC.,101 
1,•~o,,,;1 
~lqlol f'o..t:ilC'tloO~ 
!lf"l:li..f....,.,.,, OtiS:-o. 

l'fflr,e()pM~ 
lltJt<l:Vt,e,(;(#Col,M NJt,e Q,,'!~ ,,.,~w "-"t111~~$p0~ 
lJT.IKU,,,Sll,_.,~OIJ!,>$~ 
~ow.wmACJlot~--
11,;f,j,r/,WJtW-ld.'IOeo,S..--· 



     10 of 10                                                                                                                                                                                                           Lot 30 Slide       10 of 
10 

 

     10 of 10                                                                                                                                                                                                           Lot 30 Slide      10 of 
10 

 

1.43 acres 



126R and 152R



126R and 152R
1987 Plat Map for Lot 152

• 1.136 acres 
• 18 condominium units

1984 Plat Map for Lot 126
• 2.70 acres
• 120 hotel units
• 2 employee apartments
• 16 dormitories
• Commercial 



126R and 152R
Between the 1980 platting and the existing Rosewood Approval

Lot 152(R) 
• An increase in five (5) condominium units
• An approval of 4,655 square feet of commercial space

Lot 126(R) 
• decreased in hotel density by 64 units
• A change of density to add 44 condominium units
• A change of density to add 19 hotel efficiency units (can be 

condominiumized)
• An increase of three (3) employee apartments
• An increase in one (1) employee dormitory
• An approval of 34,001 square feet of commercial space

A .5 acre increase in open space


	February 15, 2018 Agenda
	Agenda Item 6 Regular Town Council Meeting Minutes
	Agenda Item 7 Memo to Council on Signature Verification Ordinance
	Agenda Item 7a Ordinance Opting Out of Signature Verification
	Agenda Item 8 Town of Mountain Village Employee Housing Purchase Program
	Agenda Item 9a BaGAR
	Agenda Item 9b December 2017 Financials
	Agenda Item 9c 2019 Budget Calendar
	Agenda Item 9d Short Term Rentals Compliance
	Agenda Item 10 Ordinance Lot 628B
	Agenda Item 11 Memo on Rosewood  Standstill Agreement
	Agenda Item 11a Rosewood Standstill Agreement
	Agenda Item 11b 126R and 152R Land and Density Analysis
	Agenda Item 12 Lot 304 Rezone Density Ordinance
	Agenda Item 13 Board of Appeals CDC Amend Packet
	Agenda Item 14 Parcel M Comp Plan Amend Packet
	Agenda Item 15 Village Court Apartments Expansion Update Memo
	Agenda Item 16 Parking Committee Recommendation
	Agenda Item 17 Funding Request Tell Mtn Club
	Agenda Item 18 Mtn Village Mining Legislation Resolution
	Agenda Item 20a HR Staff Report
	Agenda Item 20a1 Flyer
	Agenda Item 20a2 2018 Handbook draft
	Agenda Item 20b February Managers Report



